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Chairman’s Statement

I am pleased to present to shareholders of Allied Properties (H.K.) Limited (“Company”) the annual
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year 2018. The
performance of the Group has been pleasing as the Group’s core operating divisions continued to
deliver solid performances in view of the challenging financial and economic environment during the
year 2018.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The revenue of the Group for 2018 was HK$4,915.4 million (2017: HK$4,374.3 million). The profit
attributable to the owners of the Company for the year was HK$2,343.4 million (2017: HK$3,991.1
million), a decrease of HK$1,647.7 million. Basic earnings per share amounted to HK34.40 cents (2017:
HK58.59 cents).

DIVIDEND

The Board has declared an interim dividend of HK8 cents per share (in lieu of a final dividend) for
the year ended 31st December, 2018 (2017 interim dividend (in lieu of a final dividend): HK8 cents
per share) payable on or around Thursday, 2nd May, 2019 to the shareholders of the Company
(“Shareholders”) whose names appear on the register of members of the Company on Friday, 12th
April, 2019.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
(1) For determining the entitlement to the interim dividend

For determining the entitlement to the interim dividend (in lieu of a final dividend) for the year
ended 31st December, 2018, the register of members of the Company is closed from Wednesday,
10th April, 2019 to Friday, 12th April, 2019 (both days inclusive), during which period no
transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In order for a Shareholder to qualify for the
interim dividend (in lieu of a final dividend), all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited of Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 9th April, 2019.

(2) For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company (“2019 AGM”)

The 2019 AGM is scheduled to be held on Friday, 24th May, 2019. For determining the entitlement
to attend and vote at the 2019 AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 20th May, 2019 to Friday, 24th May, 2019 (both days inclusive), during which period
no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In order for a Shareholder to be eligible to
attend and vote at the 2019 AGM, all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited of Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 17th May, 2019.
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Chairman’s Statement (Cont'd)

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The “Review of Operations” by the Chief Executive, which immediately follows this statement,
incorporates the Group’s business outlook for the future.

APPRECIATION

We have maintained a solid performance in 2018. The Group expects there will still be various
challenges arising from economic and geopolitical issues during 2019. We believe that with its prudent
strategy, and the dedication, loyalty, professionalism of its staff, the Group is well prepared to meet the
challenges.

I would like to express the Group’s appreciation for the efforts of our staff and look forward to their

continued support. | would also like to thank my fellow Directors, our professional advisors and our
Shareholders for their support during the year.

Arthur George Dew
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25th March, 2019
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Review of Operations

INTRODUCTION

The core businesses of the Company and its subsidiaries and associates consist of property investment,
property development, hospitality related activities, financial services and elderly care services. The
Company is a subsidiary of Allied Group Limited (“Allied Group”). The Company’s interests in property
investment and development, hospitality related activities and elderly care services in Hong Kong
and overseas are mainly held through its wholly owned subsidiaries or the 50% owned Allied Kajima
Limited (“AKL”). Tian An China Investments Company Limited (“TACI”), being an associate held by the
Company, is engaged in property investment and development and property management businesses in
The People’s Republic of China, while its subsidiary Asiasec Properties Limited is principally engaged
in property investment and development, investment holding and estate management in Hong Kong.
The Company’s financial services business is mainly conducted through the Company’s 61.48%
holding in Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited (“SHK”) as well as SHK’s effective 58.18% holding in United Asia
Finance Limited (“UAF”). APAC Resources Limited (“APAC”), being an associate held by the Company,
is engaged in commodity trading, resources investment and principal investment and financial services
business.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

2018 2017
HK$ Million HK$ Million
Revenue 4,915.4 4,374.3
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company 2,343.4 3,991.1
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 36,737.7 35,019.2
Return on equity attributable to owners of the Company 6.4% 11.4%
Earnings per share

— Basic HK34.40 cents  HK58.59 cents
- Diluted HK34.39 cents  HK58.58 cents
At At
31st December, 31st December,
2018 2017

Net asset value per share attributable to owners of
the Company HK$5.4 HK$5.1
Gearing ratio 32.1% 26.7%
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Review of Operations (Cont'd)

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Financial Results

The revenue of the Group for the year was HK$4,915.4 million (2017: HK$4,374.3 million). The
increase is mainly due to higher interest income from the consumer finance business and loans

business, and higher management and services fees from building services.

The profit attributable to the owners of the Company for the year was HK$2,343.4 million (2017:
HK$3,991.1 million), a decrease of HK$1,647.7 million.

The decrease in profit attributable to the owners of the Company was primarily a combination of:—
— lower contributions from associates TACI & APAC;

— decreased profit contribution from the consumer finance business and principal investments of
SHK; and

— alower fair value gain on revaluation of the investment properties.
Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share amounted to HK34.40 cents (2017: HK58.59 cents).
Material Acquisitions and Disposals

During the year, SHK group disposed of two of its wholly-owned subsidiaries, SWAT Securitisation
Fund and Maple Shade Limited for consideration of HK$312.9 million. The Group disposed of its
38.09% interest in an associate, Tanami Gold NL, to APAC Resources Mining Limited (a wholly-
owned subsidiary of APAC) for a consideration of HK$119.8 million. Further financial details of the
transactions are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

Financial Resources, Liquidity and Capital Structure

The 4.75% US dollar denominated notes (“4.75% Notes”) are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. The nominal value of the 4.75% Notes after eliminating the intra-group holdings was
US$354.9 million or equivalent to HK$2,779.0 million (2017: US$354.9 million or equivalent to
HK$2,774.6 million) at the reporting date.

The 4.65% US dollar denominated notes (“4.65% Notes”) are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. The nominal value of the 4.65% Notes after eliminating the intra-group holdings was
US$540.8 million or equivalent to HK$4,234.7 million (2017: US$540.8 million or equivalent to
HK$4,228.0 million) at the reporting date.
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Review of Operations (Cont'd)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONT’D)

Financial Resources, Liquidity and Capital Structure (Cont’d)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s net borrowings amounted to HK$11,802.5 million (2017:
HK$9,334.1 million), representing bank and other borrowings and notes/papers payable totalling
HK$17,207.6 million (2017: HK$12,532.7 million) less bank deposits, bank balances and cash of
HK$5,405.1 million (2017: HK$3,198.6 million) and the Group had equity attributable to owners of
the Company of HK$36,737.7 million (2017: HK$35,019.2 million). Accordingly, the Group’s gearing
ratio of net borrowings to equity attributable to owners of the Company was 32.1% (2017: 26.7%). At
the end of the reporting period, the current ratio (current assets/current liabilities) of the Group was 2.3

times, which decreased from the 3.7 times applicable at the end of the preceding year.

2018 2017
HK$ Million  HK$ Million
Bank loans are repayable as follows:
On demand or within one year 3,767.0 1,752.9
More than one year but not exceeding two years 1,899.7 1,395.8
More than two years but not exceeding five years - 309.6
Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause
are repayable as follows:
Within one year 3,300.8 1,018.0
More than one year but not exceeding two years 56.0 14.0
More than two years but not exceeding five years 446.0 -
9,469.5 4,490.3
Other borrowings are repayable over five years 62.1 35.0
Renminbi denominated notes are repayable within one year - 536.5
US dollar denominated notes are repayable as follows:
Within one year 113.3 92.3
More than one year but not exceeding five years 6,926.5 6,930.4
HK dollar denominated notes/papers are repayable within one year 636.2 448.2
7,676.0 8,007.4
17,207.6 12,532.7
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Review of Operations (Cont'd)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONT’D)

Financial Resources, Liquidity and Capital Structure (Cont’d)

The banking facilities of the Group are reviewed from time to time and new banking facilities will
be obtained or renewed to meet the funding requirements for capital commitments, investments and
operations of the Group.

Other than the Renminbi denominated notes, US dollar denominated notes and HK dollar denominated
notes/papers, most of the bank and other borrowings of the Group are charged at floating interest rates.
There are no known seasonal factors in the Group’s borrowing profile.

Segment Information

Detailed segmental information in respect of the revenue and profit or loss is shown in note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Risk of Foreign Exchange Fluctuation

The Group is required to maintain foreign currency exposure to cater for its recurring operating
activities and present and potential investment activities, meaning it will be subject to reasonable
exchange rate exposure. However, the Group will closely monitor this risk exposure as required.
Contingent Liabilities

Details of contingent liabilities are set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements.

Pledge of Assets

Details of pledge of assets are set out in note 46 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Review of Operations (Cont'd)

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

Properties

Hong Kong

The Group’s rental income from its Hong Kong property portfolio increased slightly across most of
its portfolio when compared to 2017.

In 2018, the net gain in the value of the Group’s property portfolio, including investment properties
owned by SHK, was HK$756.5 million, lower than that of 2017 by HK$225.8 million.

The hotel division continued to report increases in average room rates and occupancies, resulting
in an increased contribution.

AKL, the Group’s 50% joint venture holding various properties including Allied Kajima Building,
Novotel Century Hong Kong hotel, Sofitel Philippine Plaza Hotel and the Wanchai Jaffe Road hotel
redevelopment, recorded a profit decrease of 52% mainly due to a lower fair value increase in its
property portfolio during the year. Foundation work on the Jaffe Road hotel site was completed and
superstructure work is in progress.

Mainland PRC

The profit attributable to the owners of TACI was HK$1,251.2 million (2017: HK$2,054.1 million).

The decrease in profit of TACI was mainly due to the absence of a one-off gain of HK$1,634.0
million on the disposal of a subsidiary which was recorded in 2017. Although there was no one-
off gain from such disposal, TACI booked substantial sales and contributions from its ongoing
development projects.

Rental income was up by 9% as compared with 2017, due to additional investment properties
coming on stream.

TACI has a total of 15 cyberparks over 12 cities. The overall contribution of TACI’s cyberpark unit
increased during the year. The cyberparks on the Pearl River Delta have been contributing most
and TACI will concentrate on developing new cyberparks and urban renewal projects in this region
where it has ample manpower and marketing resources.

Phase 2 of TACI’s urban renewal project, Tian An Cloud Park, in Huawei New City Area in the
Longgang District of Shenzhen is under construction and is expected to be completed in 2019.

Asiasec Properties Limited, the listed subsidiary of TACI, reported a profit attributable to its
shareholders of HK$112.7 million (2017: HK$169.2 million).

K.
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Review of Operations (Cont'd)

OPERATIONAL REVIEW (CONT’D)

Financial Services

Investment and Finance

e The profit attributable to owners of SHK was HK$1,183.8 million (2017: HK$1,824.3 million).

e SHK’s principal investments division which included the structured finance business provided
a pre-tax contribution of HK$360.6 million (2017: HK$1,082.3 million) to its earnings. This
division’s investments portfolio was affected by mark-to-market losses in the second half of 2018.

*  Sun Hung Kai Credit Limited recorded a profit attributable to its owner of HK$95.2 million for the
year (2017: HK$29.4 million). Its loan portfolio reached HK$3.9 billion at the end of 2018 from
HK$2.1 billion at end of 2017.

Consumer Finance

e Profit attributable to owners of UAF for the year amounted to HK$1,000.4 million (2017:
HK$1,162.6 million), a decrease of HK$162.2 million.

* During the year, UAF adopted a conservative lending policy in the mainland China in view of
a weak credit environment. UAF focused its efforts on building a leaner, more efficient business
model by introducing a new automated credit scoring system, continuation of development of
online platforms and streamlining of its physical branches in mainland China.

e For UAF’s business in Hong Kong, it achieved satisfactory growth and the gross loan book
increased by 19% on a year-on-year basis and continued to deliver solid profitability.

e At the end of the year, the consolidated consumer finance gross loan balance amounted to
HK$10.4 billion, representing an increase of 6% from the end of 2017. As at the end of 2018, UAF
had 46 branches operating in 15 mainland China cities and 49 branches in Hong Kong.

Investments

e Atend of 2018, the Group held approximately 35.78% interest in APAC. The Group’s share of
the results of APAC for 2018 amounted to a loss of HK$132.9 million (2017: profit of HK$207.5
million). The loss reported at APAC was mainly due to unrealised losses from fair value changes of
its financial investments.

EMPLOYEES

The total number of headcount of the Group as at 31st December, 2018 was 4,262 (2017: 5,005). The
net decrease in headcount is mainly the result of the branch consolidation of UAF in mainland China,
as the business migrated further online. Total staff costs, including Directors’ emoluments, amounted to
HK$988.3 million (2017: HK$960.9 million). The Group reviews remuneration packages from time to
time. In addition to salary payments, other staff benefits include contributions to employee provident
funds, medical subsidies and a discretionary bonus scheme. The Group recognises the importance
of continuing professional education and development, and appropriate courses are arranged on a
periodical basis as well as subsidies are granted to employees who take job-related courses.

R 27 Annual Report 2018
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Review of Operations (Cont'd)

PRINCIPAL RISKS

The Group adopts a comprehensive risk management framework. Risk management policies and
procedures are regularly reviewed and updated to react to changes in market conditions and the
Group’s business strategy. The audit committee of the Company, or in the case of SHK, its risk
management committee, reviews risk-related policies and scrutinises that management has performed
its duty to have effective risk management and internal control systems necessary for monitoring and
controlling major risks arising from the Group’s business activities, changing external risks and the
regulatory environment, and reports to the Board on the above.

Financial Risk

Financial risk includes market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. Market risk is the risk that the value of
an investment will change due to movements in market factors and which can be further divided into
equity risk, interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk. Credit risk is the probable risk of losses arising
from clients or counterparties failing to make payments as contracted. Liquidity risk is the risk that a
given security or asset cannot be traded readily in the market to realised profit or prevent a loss. Further
discussion on financial risk management is outlined in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is concerned with possible losses caused by inadequate or failed internal processes,
people, systems or external events. Operational risk is mitigated and controlled through establishing
robust internal controls, setting out clear lines of responsibility, proper segregation of duties and
effective internal reporting and contingency planning. It is our corporate culture that the business and
operating line management are fully aware of, and responsible for, managing the operational risks
of their business units on a day-to-day basis. Independent monitoring and reviews are conducted by
the internal audit team which reports regularly to the respective senior management and the audit
committee.

RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group is highly committed to comply with laws and regulations that govern our businesses. As
a listed company in Hong Kong, the company has to comply with the listing rules of the Hong Kong
Exchange. Our loan businesses in Hong Kong are governed by the Money Lender’s Ordinance. The
lending businesses in the PRC are operated in accordance with the regional guidelines announced by
the provincial governments under the Guiding Opinions of the China Banking Regulatory Commission
and the People’s Bank of China on the Pilot Operation of Small-sum Loan Companies as well as the
Special Rectification Documents of their special working group on cash loans, internet loans and
P2P loans including “Notice on Regulation and Rectification of Cash Loan business”, “Notice on the
Implementation Guideline on Special Rectification of Online Microlenders Risks” [2017] No. 56 and
“Notice on Special Rectification and Check of P2P Lending Risk” [2017] No. 57. Our rental businesses
are governed by the Landlord and Tenant (Consolidation) Ordinance.

BawE (BE)ABRLA Annual Report 2018



Review of Operations (Cont'd)

LONG TERM CORPORATE STRATEGIES

The Group is engaged in its businesses of investment, structured finance, consumer finance, property
and related businesses, elderly care services and other investments. The Group’s policy has been to
adopt the following long term strategies:—

1. To maintain the organic growth of its core businesses;

2. To maintain a balance between the demands of short term returns and long term capital
appreciation; and

3. To seek investment opportunities that assist in strengthening and broadening its earnings base.
BUSINESS OUTLOOK

While significant risk factors such as geopolitical issues and the uncertainties surrounding Brexit
still remain, the ongoing development of the current trade war between USA and China is difficult
to forecast. These factors will continue to exert pressures upon the global and local economies and
investor sentiment.

For the consumer finance business, it is sensitive to economic conditions such as consumption
and unemployment. UAF will remain alert to factors which may affect these conditions and make
corresponding adjustments to its strategy while looking for any opportunities arising.

The local property market experienced a cool down over the past several months, which resulted from
the uncertainties arising from the US-China trade war and the slight upward adjustment of mortgage
interest rates. We expect the local property market to remain stable in 2019.

For the mainland property market, there have been ongoing various measures by the authorities to
regulate the high housing demand. However, China’s central bank’s decision to cut the banks’ reserve
requirement ratio in January 2019 to simulate the economy may signal a softening stance. We remain
confident of the long term prospects of the property market in China.

With the Group’s solid financial position and diversified income streams, the Board will continue to
adopt a prudent approach in implementing the Group’s stated strategies for the benefit of the Group

and all its shareholders in the challenging year of 2019.

APPRECIATION

The Board would like to thank all the staff for their effort and contribution in 2018, and would like to
express appreciation to the Shareholders for their continued support.

Lee Seng Hui
Chief Executive

Hong Kong, 25th March, 2019
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

ARTHUR GEORGE DEW

Mr. Arthur George Dew, aged 77, was appointed the Chairman and a Non-Executive Director of the
Company in January 2007. He is also a director of a subsidiary of the Company. He graduated from
the Law School of the University of Sydney, Australia, and was admitted as a solicitor and later as a
barrister of the Supreme Court of New South Wales, Australia. He is currently a non-practising barrister.
He has a broad range of corporate and business experience and has served as a director, and in some
instances chairman of the board of directors, of a number of public companies listed in Australia, Hong
Kong and elsewhere. He is also the chairman and a non-executive director of each of Allied Group
Limited (“AGL"), APAC Resources Limited (“APAC”) and Dragon Mining Limited (“Dragon Mining”),
and a non-executive director of each of SHK Hong Kong Industries Limited (“SHK HK IND”) and Tian
An Australia Limited (“Tian An Australia”). He is also a non-executive director of Tanami Gold NL
(“Tanami Gold”) and subsequently appointed as non-independent chairman in November 2018. Tian
An Australia and Tanami Gold are companies listed on the Australian Securities Exchange.

LEE SENG HUI

Mr. Lee Seng Hui, aged 50, was appointed the Chief Executive and an Executive Director of the
Company in June 2010. He is also a director of a subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Lee graduated
from the Law School of the University of Sydney with Honours. Previously, he worked with Baker &
McKenzie and N M Rothschild & Sons (Hong Kong) Limited. Mr. Lee is the chief executive and an
executive director of AGL, the chairman and a non-executive director of Tian An China Investments
Company Limited, a non-executive director of APAC and the non-executive chairman of Mount Gibson
[ron Limited (“Mount Gibson”), a company listed on the Australian Securities Exchange. Mr. Lee was
previously the chairman and a non-executive director of Asiasec Properties Limited.

MARK WONG TAI CHUN

Mr. Mark Wong Tai Chun, aged 54, was appointed an Executive Director of the Company in June 2010.
He is also director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Wong has a Master’s Degree in Business
Administration and is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and The
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. Mr. Wong was the financial controller of other listed
companies in Hong Kong. He is also an executive director of SHK HK IND, the director of investment
of AGL and an alternate director to Mr. Arthur George Dew in APAC, Tanami Gold, Dragon Mining
and Tian An Australia. Tanami Gold and Tian An Australia are companies listed on the Australian
Securities Exchange.

LI CHI KONG

Mr. Li Chi Kong, aged 65, was appointed an Executive Director of the Company in October 1999 and
re-designated as a Non-Executive Director of the Company in July 2018. He is also general consultant
of AGL. Mr. Li graduated from the University of Edinburgh in Scotland, United Kingdom with a
Bachelor’s Degree of Science and obtained a Post-graduate Diploma in Accounting from Heriot-Watt
University in Edinburgh. He is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Scotland and
a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has extensive experience in
finance and accounting. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Li worked for two major audit firms and acted
as the group financial controller for several listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Li retired from the
position of the group financial controller of AGL and Financial Controller of the Company in July 2018.

A ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management (Cont'd)

STEVEN SAMUEL ZOELLNER

Mr. Steven Samuel Zoellner, aged 49, was appointed an Independent Non-Executive Director of the
Company in September 2004. He graduated from the Scots College in Sydney, Australia and completed
a real estate licensing course. Mr. Zoellner has been a real estate agent since 1987 and has extensive
experience in the industry. Mr. Zoellner has been involved in some of the more prominent upper end
residential sales and development sites in Australia. He has previously owned Elders Double Bay for the
provision of a variety of real estate services which he sold in the year 2000. Since 2002, he has been
the principal of Laing & Simmons Double Bay which consistently sells the most exclusive real estate in
Australia.

ALAN STEPHEN JONES

Mr. Alan Stephen Jones, aged 75, was appointed an Independent Non-Executive Director of
the Company in January 2006. Mr. Jones, a chartered accountant, has extensive experience in
management, administration, accounting, property development, carpark management, finance and
trading, and has been involved in successful mergers and acquisitions of a number of public companies
in Australia and internationally. Mr. Jones is an independent non-executive director of each of AGL
and Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited (“SHK”). He is also an independent non-executive director of Mount
Gibson, a company listed on the Australian Securities Exchange, and a non-executive chairman of Air
Change International Limited, a company listed on the National Stock Exchange of Australia Limited.
He is also a non-executive director of Mulpha Australia Limited.

DAVID CRAIG BARTLETT

Mr. David Craig Bartlett, aged 53, was appointed an Independent Non-Executive Director of the
Company in August 2011. He graduated with honours in law from Exeter University in the United
Kingdom in 1988 and subsequently qualified as a solicitor in England & Wales, the Republic of Ireland
and the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. A former partner of the international law firm Clyde
& Co., he regularly acted for and advised AGL and AGL’s subsidiaries before leaving private practice
for a career in industry. Now based primarily in England, Mr. Bartlett is also an independent non-
executive director of each of AGL and SHK.

KELVIN LAM KAM WING

Mr. Kelvin Lam Kam Wing, aged 52, is the Acting Financial Controller of the Company since July 2018.
He obtained a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong
in 1999 and is a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and an associate member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Before Mr. Lam joined the Group in 1992,
he had worked in an international accounting firm for four years. Mr. Lam is also the acting group
financial controller of AGL.

R 27 Annual Report 2018
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance within a sensible
framework with an emphasis on the principles of transparency, accountability and independence. The
board of directors of the Company (“Board”) believes that good corporate governance is essential to the
success of the Company and to the enhancement of shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

In the light of the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (“CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”), the Board has reviewed the corporate governance practices of
the Company with the adoption of the various enhanced procedures which are detailed in this report.
The Company has applied the principles of, and complied with, the applicable code provisions of the
CG Code during the year ended 31st December, 2018, except for certain deviations as specified with
considered reasons for such deviations as explained below. The Board will review the current practices
at least annually, and make appropriate changes if considered necessary.

THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises seven directors (“Directors”) in total, with two Executive Directors, two
Non-Executive Directors (“NEDs”) and three Independent Non-Executive Directors (“INEDs”). The
composition of the Board during the year and up to the date of this report is set out as follows:

Executive Directors: Lee Seng Hui (Chief Executive)
Mark Wong Tai Chun

Non-Executive Directors: Arthur George Dew (Chairman)
Li Chi Kong
(re-designated as Non-Executive Director
on Ist July, 2018)

Independent Non-Executive Directors: Steven Samuel Zoellner
Alan Stephen Jones
David Craig Bartlett

The brief biographical details of the Directors are set out in the Profile of Directors and Senior
Management on pages 14 and 15.

Board Process

During the year, the NEDs (a majority of whom are independent) provided the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively “Group”) with a wide range of expertise and experience. Their active
participation in the Board and committee meetings brought independent judgment on issues relating
to the Group’s strategy, performance and management process, taking into account the interests of all
shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”).

R 27 Annual Report 2018



Corporate Governance Report (Cont'd)

THE BOARD (CONT’D)
Board Process (Cont’d)

Throughout the year and up to the date of this report, the Company has had at least three INEDs
representing not less than one-third of the Board. At least one of the INEDs has the appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise under Rule 3.10 of
the Listing Rules. The Board has received from each INED an annual confirmation of his independence
and considers that all the INEDs are independent under the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well as the operation and financial
performance of the Group, and to review and approve the Group’s annual and interim results and other
ad hoc matters which need to be dealt with. During the year, five Board meetings were held and the
individual attendance records of each Director at the meetings of the Board, Remuneration Committee,
Audit Committee and general meeting during the year ended 31st December, 2018 are set out below:

Number of meetings attended/held

Remuneration Audit General

Name of Directors Board  Committee = Committee Meeting
Executive Directors:
Lee Seng Hui (Chief Executive) 4/5 11
Mark Wong Tai Chun 5/5 171
Non-Executive Directors:
Arthur George Dew (Chairman) 5/5 171 2/2 171
Li Chi Kong 5/5 11

(re-designated as Non-Executive Director

on Ist July, 2018)
Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Steven Samuel Zoellner 5/5 11 2/2 0/1
Alan Stephen Jones 5/5 171 2/2 11
David Craig Bartlett 5/5 171 2/2 11

The Board has reserved for its decision or consideration matters covering mainly the Group’s overall
strategy, annual operating budget, annual and interim results, approval of Directors’ appointment or re-
appointment (based on the recommendations made by the Nomination Committee), material contracts
and transactions, corporate governance as well as other significant policy and financial matters. The
Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the executive management under the instruction/
supervision of the Executive Committee which has its specific written terms of reference. The respective
functions of the Board and management of the Company have been formalised and set out in writing
and will be reviewed and updated by the Board from time to time to ensure that they are consistent
with the existing rules and regulations.
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THE BOARD (CONT’D)
Board Process (Cont’d)

Regular Board meetings each year are scheduled in advance to facilitate maximum attendance of
Directors. At least 14 days’ notice of a Board meeting is normally given to all Directors who are given
an opportunity to include matters for discussion in the agenda. The company secretary of the Company
(“Company Secretary”) assists the Chairman of the Board in preparing the agenda for meetings and
ensures that all applicable rules and regulations are complied with. The agenda and the accompanying
Board papers are normally sent to all Directors at least 3 days before the intended date of a regular
Board meeting (and so far as practicable for such other Board meetings). Draft minutes of each Board
meeting are circulated to all Directors for their comment before being tabled at the following Board
meeting for approval. All minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection at
any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.

According to the current Board practice, if a substantial Shareholder or a Director has a conflict of
interest in a matter to be considered by the Board which the Board has determined to be material, the
matter will be dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board meeting. The articles of association of
the Company (“Articles of Association”) also stipulate that save for the exceptions as provided therein,
a Director shall abstain from voting on any Board resolution and not be counted in the quorum at
meetings for approving any contract or arrangement in which such Director or any of his close associates
has a material interest.

Every Director is entitled to have access to Board papers and related materials and has access to the
advice and services of the Company Secretary. The Board and each Director also have separate and
independent access to the Company’s senior management. Directors will be continuously updated
on the major development of the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure
compliance and upkeep of good corporate governance practices. In addition, a written procedure
has been established since June 2005 to enable the Directors, in discharge of their duties, to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at a reasonable cost to be borne by the
Company.

Directors’ Continuous Professional Development

For continuous professional development, in addition to Directors’ attendance at meetings and review
of papers and circulars sent by the management of the Company, Directors participated in the activities
including the following:

Participation in Continuous Professional Development Activities
Attending trainings/
briefings/seminars/
Reading Regulatory conference relevant
Name of Directors Updates to Directors’ duties

Executive Directors:

Lee Seng Hui (Chief Executive) v v
Mark Wong Tai Chun v v
Non-Executive Directors:
Arthur George Dew (Chairman) v v
Li Chi Kong v v
(re-designated as Non-Executive Director on 1st July,
2018)
Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Steven Samuel Zoellner v v
Alan Stephen Jones v v
David Craig Bartlett v/ v

A ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED
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THE BOARD (CONT’D)
Board Diversity

The Company has adopted the Board Diversity Policy in November 2013 which sets out the objectives
and principles regarding board diversity for the purpose of achieving the Company’s strategic objectives
of balanced diversity at the Board as far as practicable. Board appointments will be based on merit
and candidates will be considered against measurable objectives, taking into account the Company’s
business and needs.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity criteria, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, knowledge, professional experience and skills. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and the contribution that the selected candidates may bring to
the Board.

ROLES OF CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive should
be separate and should not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Arthur George Dew, being
the Chairman of the Board, is primarily responsible for the leadership of the Board, ensuring that
(i) all significant policy issues are discussed by the Board in a timely and constructive manner; (ii)
all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings; and (iii) the Directors receive
accurate, timely and clear information. The functions of the chief executive are performed by Mr. Lee
Seng Hui, the Chief Executive of the Company, who is responsible for the day-to-day management of
the Group’s business. Their responsibilities are clearly segregated and have been set out in writing and
approved by the Board in June 2005, and subsequently updated in April 2012 and November 2018 for
the relevant amendments to the revised CG Code effective on 1st January, 2019.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee include the nomination procedure specifying
the process and criteria for the selection and recommendation of candidates for directorship of the
Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive an induction package from the Company Secretary on the
first occasion of his/her appointment. This induction package is a comprehensive, formal and tailored
induction on the responsibilities and on-going obligations to be observed by a director pursuant to the
Companies Ordinance, Listing Rules and Securities and Futures Ordinance. In addition, this induction
package includes materials briefly describing the operations and business of the Company, the latest
published financial reports of the Company and the documentation for the corporate governance
practices adopted by the Board. Directors will be continuously updated on any major developments
of the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and upkeep of
good corporate governance practices.

All NEDs (including INEDs) of the Company were appointed for a specific term, but subject to the
relevant provisions of the Articles of Association or any other applicable laws whereby the Directors
shall vacate or retire from their office but eligible for re-election. The term of appointment of the NEDs
(including INEDs) has been renewed for further two years commencing from 1st January, 2019.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)

According to the Articles of Association, at each annual general meeting of the Company (“AGM”),
one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation. Further, any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the next following general
meeting of the Company whilst for those appointed as an addition to the Board shall hold office until
the next following AGM and in both cases, those Directors shall then be eligible for re-election at the
relevant meeting. Every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing corporate governance duties and has adopted the written terms
of reference on its corporate governance functions in April 2012.

The duties of the Board in respect of the corporate governance functions include:
(i) developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance;

(ii) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional development of Directors and
senior management;

(i) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements;

(iv) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to employees and Directors; and

(v) reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.

In 2018 and up to the date of this report, the Board has performed the corporate governance duties in
accordance with its terms of reference.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established various committees, including a Nomination Committee, a Remuneration
Committee, an Audit Committee and an Executive Committee, each of which has its specific written
terms of reference. Copies of minutes of all meetings and resolutions of the committees, which are kept
by the Company Secretary, are circulated to all Board members and the committees are required to
report back to the Board on their decision and recommendations where appropriate. The procedures
and arrangements for a Board meeting, as mentioned in the section headed “The Board” of this report,
have been adopted for the committee meetings so far as practicable.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)
Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee has been established since March 2012 and is chaired by the Chairman
of the Board and comprises a majority of INEDs. Currently, the Nomination Committee consists of
three members, including Messrs. Arthur George Dew (Chairman of the Nomination Committee),
being a NED, Steven Samuel Zoellner and David Craig Bartlett, all being the INEDs. The Nomination
Committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties and has access to independent
professional advice according to the Company’s policy if considered necessary. The major roles and
functions of the Nomination Committee are included in its terms of reference, which are available on
the websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) and the Company.

The Nomination Committee has formulated and set out the nomination policy (“Nomination Policy”) in
its terms of reference. The objective of the Nomination Policy is to ensure that the Board has a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s
business. To ensure changes to the Board composition can be managed without undue disruption, a
formal, considered and transparent procedure is in place for selection, appointment and re-appointment
of Directors, as well as plans in place for orderly succession (if considered necessary), including
periodical review of such plans. The appointment of a new Director (to be an additional Director or fill
a casual vacancy as and when it arises) or any re-appointment of Directors is a matter for decision by
the Board upon the recommendation of the proposed candidate by the Nomination Committee.

The criteria to be applied in considering whether a candidate is qualified shall be his or her ability to
devote sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the Company and contribute to the diversity of the
Board as well as the effective carrying out by the Board of the responsibilities. Further details of the
selection criteria and the procedure are set out in the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
which are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Nomination Committee will meet as and when necessary in accordance with its terms of reference
and may also deal with matters by way of circulation. In 2018, no Nomination Committee meeting was
held while the Nomination Committee dealt with matters by way of circulation. In 2018 and up to the
date of this report, the Nomination Committee performed the works as summarised below:

(i) reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval the proposed resolution for re-election of the
retiring Directors at 2018 AGM and 2019 AGM,;

(i) reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board and assessed the independence
of each INED;

(iii) recommended for the Board’s approval the retirement of an Executive Director and the re-
designation as a NED;

(iv) reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval the revised terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee for the relevant amendments to the revised CG Code effective on 1st
January, 2019; and

(v) reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval the renewal of the term of appointment of
NEDs (including the INEDs) for two years commenced from 1st January, 2019.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)
Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee has been established since December 1993 and currently consists of four
members, including Messrs. Alan Stephen Jones (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Steven
Samuel Zoellner and David Craig Bartlett, all being the INEDs, and Mr. Arthur George Dew, being a
NED. The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties and has
access to independent professional advice according to the Company’s policy if considered necessary.
The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are included in its terms of reference,
which are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are in compliance with the code provision B.1.2
of the CG Code, but with a deviation from the code provision that the Remuneration Committee shall
make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of the Executive Directors only
and not senior management (as opposed to executive directors and senior management under the code
provision). The reasons for the above deviation are summarised as below:

(i) the Board believes that the Remuneration Committee is not properly in a position to evaluate the
performance of senior management and that this evaluation process is more effectively carried out

by the Executive Directors;

(ii) the Executive Directors must be in a position to supervise and control senior management and thus
must be able to control their compensation; and

(i) there is no reason for Executive Directors to pay senior management more than industry standards
and thus Shareholders will benefit by reducing costs in the fixing of such compensation packages.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year in accordance with its terms of reference.
One Remuneration Committee meeting was held in 2018 and the attendance of each member is set out
in the section headed “The Board” of this report.

In addition to the Remuneration Committee meeting, the Remuneration Committee also dealt with
matters by way of circulation during 2018. In 2018 and up to the date of this report, the Remuneration
Committee performed the works as summarised below:

(i) reviewed the existing policy and structure for the remuneration of Directors;

(i) reviewed the existing remuneration packages of the Executive Directors;

(i) reviewed the existing remuneration of the NEDs (including the INEDs);

(iv) recommended for the Board’s approval the remuneration of a NED, who was retired and re-
designated from the position of Executive Director;

(v) reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval the bonus for the year ended 31st December,
2017 and the increment in the remuneration for the year 2018 of the Executive Directors and the
NEDs; and

(vi) reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval the increase in service fees and the renewal
of term of appointment of the NEDs (including the INEDs).
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)
Remuneration Committee (Cont’d)

The remuneration payable to Directors will depend on their respective contractual terms under their
employment contracts or service contracts as approved by the Board on the recommendation of
the Remuneration Committee. Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements whereas detailed changes in the emoluments of certain Directors
during the interim period and up to the date of the Interim Report were also disclosed in the Interim
Report of the Company dated 20th August, 2018. Details of the emolument policy of the Group are
also set out in the “Emolument Policy” section contained in the Directors’ Report on page 55.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has been established since December 1993 and currently consists of four NEDs,
three of whom are INEDs. To retain independence and objectivity, the Audit Committee is chaired by
an INED with appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise. The current members of the Audit Committee are Messrs. Alan Stephen Jones (Chairman of
the Audit Committee), being an INED, Arthur George Dew, being a NED, Steven Samuel Zoellner and
David Craig Bartlett, both being INEDs. The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its duties and has access to independent professional advice according to the Company’s
policy if considered necessary. The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are included in
its terms of reference, which are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are revised from time to time to comply with the code
provision C.3.3 of the CG Code, but with deviations from the code provision of the audit committee’s
responsibility to:

(i) implement policy on the engagement of the external auditors to supply non-audit services;

(i) ensure the management has performed its duty to have effective risk management and internal
control systems; and

(iii) ensure co-ordination between the internal and external auditors, and ensure that the internal audit
function is adequately resourced and has appropriate standing within the listed company.

The Board considers that the Audit Committee shall recommend (as opposed to implement under the
code provision) the policy on the engagement of the external auditors to supply non-audit services for

the following reasons:

(i) it is proper and appropriate for the Board and its committees to develop policy and make
appropriate recommendations;

(ii) the proper and appropriate mechanism for implementation of such policy and recommendations is
through the Executive Directors and management; and

(iii) INEDs are not in an effective position to implement policy and follow up the same on a day-to-day
basis.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)
Audit Committee (Cont’d)

Further, the Board considers that the Audit Committee only possesses the effective ability to scrutinise
(as opposed to ensure under the code provision) whether management has performed its duty to have
effective risk management and internal control systems. The Audit Committee is not equipped to
ensure that the same is in place as this would involve day-to-day supervision and the employment of
permanent experts. The Audit Committee is not in a position either to ensure co-ordination between the
internal and external auditors but it can promote the same. Similarly, the Audit Committee is not in a
position to ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced but it can check whether it is
adequately resourced.

The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year in accordance with its terms of reference. Two
Audit Committee meetings were held in 2018 and the attendance of each member is set out in the
section headed “The Board” of this report.

In addition to the Audit Committee meetings, the Audit Committee also dealt with matters by way of
circulation during 2018. In 2018 and up to the date of this report, the Audit Committee performed the
works as summarised below:

(i) reviewed and approved the audit scope and fees proposed by the external auditor;

(ii) reviewed the reports of findings/independent review report from the external auditor and the
management’s response in relation to the final audit for the year ended 31st December, 2017, the
interim results review for the six months ended 30th June, 2018 and the final audit for the year
ended 31st December, 2018 of the Group;

(i) reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval the financial reports for the year ended 31st
December, 2017, for the six months ended 30th June, 2018 and for the year ended 31st December,
2018 together with the relevant management representation letters and announcements;

(iv) reviewed the Internal Audit Report (“IA Report”) prepared by the Group Internal Audit Department
(I/IAD//);

(v) reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval the updated report on substantiation of the
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions, and their training programmes and budget;

(vi) reviewed and recommended for the Board’s annual review the Related Party Transaction Policies
and Procedures, Procedures for the Identification and Monitoring of Connected Transactions,
Whistle Blower Policy, Policy on the Disclosure of Inside Information, Manual of Company
Management Authority and Policy on Risk Management, Compliance and Internal Control
Procedures; and

=

(vii) reviewed and recommended for the Board’s annual review the Group’s risk management and

internal control systems.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)
Executive Committee

The Executive Committee has been established since January 1993 and currently consists of two
Executive Directors, being Messrs. Lee Seng Hui (Chairman of the Executive Committee) and Mark
Wong Tai Chun. The Executive Committee is vested with all the general powers of management
and control of the activities of the Group as are vested in the Board, save for those matters which
are reserved for the Board’s decision and approval pursuant to the written terms of reference of the
Executive Committee. The terms of reference of the Executive Committee were revised in November
2007 following the adoption of the Whistle Blower Policy by the Company.

The Executive Committee will meet as and when necessary to discuss the operating affairs of the Group
and may also deal with matters by way of circulation. The Executive Committee is mainly responsible
for undertaking and supervising the day-to-day management and is empowered:

(i) to formulate and implement policies for the business activities, internal control and administration
of the Group; and

(i) to plan and decide on strategies to be adopted for the business activities of the Group within the
overall strategy of the Group as determined by the Board.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Lau Tung Ni is the Company Secretary of the Company. All Directors have access to the advice
and services of the Company Secretary. The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman on board
governance matters, and is responsible for ensuring that Board procedures are followed and for
facilitating communications among Directors as well as with the Shareholders and management.

Ms. Lau is a fellow member of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and The Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. During 2018, Ms. Lau undertook over 15 hours of relevant
professional training to update her skills and knowledge.

CODES FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS AND RELEVANT EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors. All Directors have confirmed, following a specific enquiry by
the Company, that they have complied with the required standard as set out in the Model Code.

The Company has also adopted the Model Code as the Code for Securities Transactions by Relevant
Employees to regulate dealings in securities of the Company by certain employees of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries or the holding companies who are considered to be likely in possession of inside
information in relation to the Company or its securities.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing, with the support from the Accounts
Department, the consolidated financial statements of the Group. In preparing the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31st December, 2018, the accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong have been adopted and the requirements of the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(which also include Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance were complied
with. The Directors believe that they have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently, and made judgments and estimates that are prudent and reasonable and have ensured that
the consolidated financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s external auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, are set out
in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 111 to 122.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board has the responsibility to review annually the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems covering all material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls. In 2018, the Board, through the Audit Committee, had reviewed the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions, and their training programmes and budget.

The Group’s risk management and internal control systems are designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss; to manage rather than completely eliminate
the risk of system failure; and to assist in the achievement of the Group’s agreed objectives and goals.
They have a key role in the management of risks that are significant to the fulfilment of business
objectives. In addition, they should provide a basis for the maintenance of proper accounting records
and assist in the compliance with relevant laws and regulations.

Systems and procedures are put in place to identify, evaluate and manage the risks of different
businesses and activities. The annual assessment is performed through the completion by the relevant
business units and department heads of their respective responsibility statements as co-ordinated by the
IAD. The result and findings are reported by the management to the Chairman of Executive Committee
who puts forward the same to the Audit Committee and the Board for review on the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems, which have been considered effective and adequate.

The Company’s principal subsidiaries are managed under independent systems of risk management
and internal controls. These subsidiaries have provided appropriate assurance to the Company on their
compliance with the CG Code regarding risk management and internal control systems in general to
the Company.

A discussion of the policies and procedures on the management of each of the major types of risk

which the Group is facing is included in note 41 to the consolidated financial statements and under the
“Principal Risks” section contained in the Review of Operations on page 12.

BawE (BE)ABRLA Annual Report 2018



Corporate Governance Report (Cont'd)

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (CONT’D)
Internal Audit

The Head of the Group’s Internal Audit reports to the Chairman of the Board and the Audit Committee.
The IAD generally carries out the analysis and independent appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems.

The IA Report was prepared by the IAD and issued to the Audit Committee and the Board for review.
Policy on Disclosure of Inside Information

The Board has adopted the Policy on the Disclosure of Inside Information (“Policy”) effective on Tst
January, 2013 with respect to the procedures and internal controls for the handling and dissemination
of inside information. The Policy sets out guidelines and procedures to the directors of the Company
and relevant officers of the Group to ensure inside information of the Group is to be disseminated to the
public on an equal basis and in timely manner. Directors and relevant officers in possession of potential
inside information and/or inside information are required to take reasonable measures to ensure that
proper safeguards are in place to preserve strict confidentiality of inside information and to ensure that
its recipients recognise their obligations to maintain the information confidential. The Policy shall be
updated and revised as and when necessary in light of changes in circumstances and changes in the
Listing Rules, Part XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance and relevant statutory and regulatory
requirements from time to time.

External Auditors’ Remuneration

During the year, the remuneration paid to the Group’s external auditors is set out as follows:

Services rendered for the Group HK$ Million
Audit services 7.3
Non-audit services
— Taxation services 1.1
— Other professional services 0.5
Total 8.9
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of good communication with Shareholders. Information in
relation to the Group is disseminated to Shareholders in a timely manner through a number of formal
channels, which include interim and annual reports, announcements and circulars. Such published
documents together with the latest corporate information and news are also made available on the
website of the Company.

The Company’s AGM is a valuable forum for the Board to communicate directly with Shareholders. The
Chairman actively participates at the AGM and personally chairs the meeting to answer any questions
from Shareholders. The chairmen of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee or in their absence, another member of the respective committees or failing that their
respective duly appointed delegate, are also available to answer questions at the AGM. The chairman
of any independent board committee formed as necessary or pursuant to the Listing Rules (or if no such
chairman is appointed, at least a member of the independent board committee) will also be available
to answer questions at any general meeting of Shareholders to approve a connected transaction or any
other transaction that is subject to independent Shareholders’ approval.

During the year, the 2018 AGM was held on 25th May, 2018. The attendance records of the Directors
at the general meeting are set out in the section headed “The Board” of this report.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings for each substantial issue, including the re-
election of retiring Directors.

The notice to Shareholders is to be sent in the case of AGM at least 20 clear business days before
the meeting and to be sent at least 10 clear business days in case of all other general meetings. An
explanation of the detailed procedures of conducting a poll is provided to the Shareholders at the
commencement of the meeting. The Chairman answers questions from Shareholders regarding voting
by way of a poll. The poll results are published in the manner prescribed under the requirements of the
Listing Rules.

Shareholder(s) representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of all Shareholders having a right
to vote at general meetings as at the date of deposit of the requisition can request the Directors to
convene an extraordinary general meeting (“"EGM”) by sending a written request to the registered office
of the Company (“Registered Office”). Such requisition must state the general nature of the business
to be dealt with at the EGM and must be authenticated by the person or persons making it. Besides,
Shareholders may make a proposal (“Proposal”) at a Shareholders’ meeting by submitting it in written
form to the Board at the Registered Office in accordance with the Companies Ordinance and the
Articles of Association where applicable. The Proposal shall be in the form of a proposed resolution,
which shall clearly and concisely set out the Proposal for discussion and be relevant to the Company’s
business scope.

The Board established a shareholders” communication policy in April 2012, and subsequently updated
in December 2015. A Shareholder may serve an enquiry to the Board at the Registered Office for the
attention of the Board in written form, which shall state the nature of the enquiry and the reason for
making the enquiry. In addition, Shareholders can contact Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, the share registrar of the Company, for any questions about their shareholdings.

BawE (BE)ABRLA Annual Report 2018



Corporate Governance Report (Cont'd)

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted the Dividend Policy effective on 30th November, 2018. The Company’s
Dividend Policy aims at providing reasonable and sustainable returns to its Shareholders whilst
maintaining a position of financial stability which allows the Company to take advantage of any
investment and expansion opportunities that may arise from time to time.

The Board may declare or propose dividends on an annual basis and/or may declare interim dividends
or special dividends. Proposal or declaration of dividends by the Board is subject to consideration of
the Company’s and the Group’s operating results, accumulated and future earnings, gearing, liquidity
position, capital commitment requirement and future expansion plan as well as general economic
conditions and external factors that may have impact on the financial performance and position of
the Company and the Group. In addition, as the Company is a holding company, the Board will also
consider the dividends received from its subsidiaries and associates as the ability to pay dividends by
the Company is dependent on the dividends received from those subsidiaries and associates.

The Board will regularly review the dividend policy and will amend and/or modify the dividend policy
if necessary.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ENHANCEMENT

Enhancing corporate governance is not simply a matter of applying and complying with the CG Code of
the Stock Exchange but also about promoting and developing an ethical and healthy corporate culture.
We will continue to review and, where appropriate, improve our current practices on the basis of our
experience, regulatory changes and developments. Any views and suggestions from our Shareholders to
promote and improve our transparency are also welcome.

On behalf of the Board

Arthur George Dew
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25th March, 2019
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

REPORT OVERVIEW

This report discloses the Group’s sustainability initiatives and developments in accordance with
the “Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for listed issuers
published by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “ESG Reporting Guide”) for the year
ended 31st December, 2018. This report supplements information disclosed elsewhere in this Annual
Report.

SUSTAINABILITY PRINCIPLE AND PRACTICES

While delivering long-term value to our shareholders is our primary aim, we recognise that the choices
we make will have an impact on the communities in which we carry out our businesses. To ensure
that we leave a positive mark, we have adopted a Sustainability Policy that covers our principles in
environmental and social issues. Overall stewardship and direction of sustainability issues is provided
by the Board of Directors, with the ESG initiatives implemented by management of various businesses.

1. Our People
The Company is substantially an investment holding company and with subsidiaries involved in
real estate, finance and money lending, property leasing, management services and elderly care
services, our people are our most important asset that drives the long-term development and
sustainability of the Group.
Staff Breakdown (2018)

Total number of staff as at 31st December, 2018: 4,262

440/0 . Ma]e

By Gender: 569
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Cont'd)

SUSTAINABILITY PRINCIPLE AND PRACTICES (CONT’D)

1.

By Employment Type

Our People (Cont'd)

Staff Breakdown (2018) (Cont’d)

13%

@ Permanent Staff

@ Contract/Other Staff

87%

1.1 Welfare, labour standards and safety

We endeavour to provide our employees with competitive remuneration and welfare and
our compensation and benefits (including working hours, rest periods, welfare) exceeds the
minimum requirements of relevant regulations. The Group organizes various staff engagement
functions throughout the year, such as off-site meetings, team building activities, staff voluntary
services as well as staff annual dinners.

The Group endeavours to provide a safe and pleasant working environment for our staff.
Owing to the nature of our businesses, work-related injuries, occupational health issues and
the incurrence of child labour are not significant risk factors.

Well-being programs such as those promoting a good work-life balance are regularly offered
to staff, for example, managing stress and parenting skills. The Group also sponsors and
organises various company teams across the Group for team sports and community service.
The Group also participates in various donation campaigns organised by the Community
Chest, World Vision Hong Kong and Oxfam Hong Kong, like Green Day, Dress Casual Day,
Love Teeth Day, Mooncakes for Charity, Skip-a-meal and Oxfam Rice Event. Staff magazines
are published to share Group, industry and staff news and to promote internal communication.
Human Resources and sustainability related awards:

—  Good MPF Employer Award 2014-2019 (Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited (“SHK”))

— Caring Company Award 2005-2019 (United Asia Finance Limited (“UAF”)); 2016-2019
(SHK); 2009-2019 (Protech Property Management Limited)

—  Partner Employer Award 2016-2019 (UAF)
—  ERB Manpower Developer Award Scheme 2012-2020 (UAF); 2018 (SHK)

—  Social Capital Builder Award 2016-2019 (UAF)

The Hong Kong Corporate Citizenship Logo — Enterprise Category 2016-2019 (UAF)

K.
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32 Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Cont'd)

SUSTAINABILITY PRINCIPLE AND PRACTICES (CONT’D)

1. Our People (Cont’d)

1.1 Welfare, labour standards and safety (Cont’d)

The Hong Kong Corporate Citizenship Logo — Volunteer Category 2016-2019 (UAF)

Young Entrepreneurs Development Council — Long-Term Voluntary Service to the School-
Company-Parent Program (10 years) 2016-2018 (UAF)

Family-Friendly Employers Award Scheme 2017-2018 (UAF)
Corporate Volunteer Long Service Award Five Years Plus 2018 (UAF)

Environmental Bureau — The Charter on External Lighting Award Ceremony 2016-2019
(UAF)

Hong Kong Green Organization Certification — Wastewi$e Certificate 2018-2019 (UAF)
2017-2019 (Protech Property Management Limited)

Happy Company 2016-2019 (UAF)

Good Employer Charter 2018-2020 (UAF)

1.2 Policy on Employment and Labour Practices

The Group’s policy on employment is as follows:

observing relevant laws and regulations;

being an equal-opportunity employer, implementing fair practices relating to
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare for our
staff;

providing a safe, healthy and quality workplace and protecting employees from
occupational hazards;

promoting a good work-life balance for staff;

investing in training and professional development of our staff to improve their knowledge
and skills for discharging duties at work;

maintaining an open dialogue with our staff, facilitating a transparent two-way
communication; and

no child or forced labour.

A ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Cont'd)

SUSTAINABILITY PRINCIPLE AND PRACTICES (CONT’D)

1.

Our People (Cont'd)

1.2 Policy on Employment and Labour Practices (Cont’d)

In Hong Kong, the Group’s employment of staff is governed by the Employment Ordinance,
the Minimum Wage Ordinance, as well as the Employees’ Compensation Ordinance. In
Mainland China, staff employment is subject to the Labour Law and the Employment Contract
Law of the People’s Republic of China (“rr3 A [ 3LAN B 45 8 & %58 5 [m]i%”). The Group

has no known non-compliance with the above relevant regulations.

1.3 Development and Training

The Group is committed to fostering a culture of continuous learning in our organisation.
Heavy emphasis is placed on staff training which is tailored to equip our workforce with the
necessary knowledge and skills relevant to their work, as well as to build our talent pool.
Management is involved, together with external trainers, in designing training programmes that
meet the demands of the workplace. Training content and topics are set to cover the key aspects
of our operations. These include:

Compliance and regulatory — general compliance, market and regulatory updates, prevention
of bribery, know your customer/anti-money laundering, bankruptcy laws, data privacy, the
Money Lenders Ordinance, and the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Management skills and personal development — leadership skills, supervisory skills, KPI setting,
communication and interpersonal skills, creative thinking and problem-solving skills, coaching
skills, self-development skills.

Job skills — language skills, computer skills, debt collection skills, customer service skills.

UAF has a comprehensive graduate training programme to train up talented university
graduates for future advancement to management. The 25-month program provides training on
their knowledge and skill sets for the consumer financing industry.

On top of internal training, UAF and SHK Credit also provide a study subsidy for staff to
advance their education outside of office hours. UAF Hong Kong has received the honour of
“Manpower Developer” from the Employees Retraining Board every year since 2012.

In the hotel sector, as talents are our most valuable assets, we have formulated strategic plans
for talent retention, growth and development. We also provide training courses on regular

basis for talents.

Staff training across the Group amounted to a total of 58,045 hours in total.
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BERE(EE)ERAA Annual Report 2018

33



34 Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Cont'd)

SUSTAINABILITY PRINCIPLE AND PRACTICES (CONT’D)
1. Our People (Cont'd)
1.3 Development and Training (Cont’d)

Training hours breakdown (2018)

51%
By Gender © @ Male
49%
® remale
5%
By Grade @ Managerial Staff

95%

@ General Staff
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Cont'd)

SUSTAINABILITY PRINCIPLE AND PRACTICES (CONT’D)
1. Our People (Cont’'d)
1.3 Development and Training (Cont’d)

Percentage of Staff who Received Training

Male 63%

By Gender Female 90%
Overall 78%
Managerial Staff 76%

By Grade General Staff 78%

Overall 78%
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Cont'd)

SUSTAINABILITY PRINCIPLE AND PRACTICES (CONT’D)

2.

Product Responsibility

The Group provides loan products to individuals and corporates in Hong Kong and Mainland
China. These include private credit extended to corporates under the Principal Investments
Segment of SHK, consumer finance and small business loans through UAF, as well as mortgage
loans through Sun Hung Kai Credit Limited (“SHK Credit”).

In Hong Kong, all the relevant loan businesses above are licensed and operate under the Money
Lenders Ordinance (“MLO”). In Mainland China, UAF’s operations follow the regional guidelines
announced by the provincial governments under the Guiding Opinions (“Guiding Opinions”)
of the China Banking Regulatory Commission and the People’s Bank of China on the Pilot
Operation of Small Loan Companies as well as the Special Rectification Documents of their special
working group on cash loans, internet loans and P2P loans including “Notice on Regulation
and Rectification of Cash Loan business”, “Notice on the Implementation Guideline on Special
Rectification of Online Microlenders Risks” [2017] No. 56 and “Notice on Special Rectification
and Check of P2P Lending Risk” [2017] No. 57. During the year, there were no known cases of
non-compliance with the above laws or regulations.

In Hong Kong, the MLO focuses on borrowers’ rights as well as lenders’ practices. UAF, as a
founding member of the HKSAR Licensed Money Lenders’ Association (“LMLA”), has led the
drafting of the Code of Practice (“the Code”) for the money lending industry. The Code was
promoted for application by all the members of the LMLA including UAF and SHK Credit. The
Code is a comprehensive framework of market practice and standards, developed based on the
Hong Kong Monetary Authority’s guidelines to banks, in the various business aspects such as
customer relationships, know-your-customer, anti-money laundering, credit evaluation, collection
and recovery and data privacy. UAF is on the executive committee of LMLA and leads the task
force for regular review of the Code. The revised Code was launched in September 2018. UAF
also holds regular dialogues with the Companies Registry (which reviews the licensing matters of
money lenders) to discuss best practices and industry trends.

Across the Group we have approximately 450,000 customers, 44% of which is from the UAF
business in Hong Kong and Mainland China. As a market leader in Hong Kong, UAF runs extensive
advertising and promotion campaigns. Customer relationship programs such as “member-get-
members” and bonus point schemes are in place. Customers can access UAF’s loan services
through branch network, phone application as well as on-line means such as E-cash Revolving
Loans, mobile apps or WeChat programs (in Mainland China). UAF and SHK Credit place a very
high priority on upholding customers data privacy. Policies and procedures are in place and
regularly reviewed to ensure customers’ data are protected against unauthorised or accidental
access, processing or erasure. Appropriate levels of security protection were implemented by
adequate physical, electronic and managerial measures to safeguard customers’ personal data. In
addition, all relevant Hong Kong staff are required to complete a Personal Data Privacy Ordinance
e-learning course annually. During the year, IT security awareness courses were also held to alert
staff to the importance of cyber security and to provide staff with precautions on business customer
data protection.

Owing to the nature of the consumer finance and mortgage loans business, where debt collection
is involved, reputational risk monitoring and prevention is of utmost importance. At both UAF and
SHK Credit, various measures are in place to minimise risks. Results and response to collection
efforts are monitored on a timely basis. Dedicated telephone hotlines are set up for customer
complaints and dispute resolution. External agents engaged for collection are tightly monitored.

BawE (BE)ABRLA Annual Report 2018



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Cont'd)

SUSTAINABILITY PRINCIPLE AND PRACTICES (CONT’D)

3.

Supply Chain Management

The Group’s general business suppliers include providers of information technology and
communication, premises, legal and other business services as well as vendors for office supplies.
These are not considered to pose significant social risks for our business and procurement decisions
are based on pricing, suitability as well as the general reputation of suppliers.

For UAF and SHK Credit businesses specifically, external debt collection agents are engaged only
after internal collection efforts have failed to collect overdue debts. As at 31st December, 2018,
22 and 53 of such agents were engaged by the businesses in Hong Kong and Mainland China
respectively. UAF and SHK Credit both have well-defined policies and procedures for the selection
and monitoring of their debt collection agents. The agents are selected carefully based on track
record of good practices and reputation. They are required to abide by a Code of Conduct and are
subject to benchmarking, audits and rotation. As UAF and SHK Credit do not sell their receivables,
they can retain control over the collection process. Under the Code of Conduct, the agents shall
not:

—  sub-contract or delegate the whole or any part of their duties under the debt service agreement
with UAF and SHK Credit;

— violate the relevant laws and regulations; and

— engage in any action or conduct which is prejudicial to the business, integrity, reputation or
goodwill of UAF and SHK Credit.

As part of monitoring these agents, regular surveys are conducted with customers and the general
public for feedback. During 2018, the number of complaints received relating to debt collection is
minimal, which is less than 0.01% of the UAF’s and SHK Credit’s customer base. We understand
that this is a very low ratio by industry standards according to management’s knowledge. Over the
years, UAF’s market share by customer numbers (excluding that of banks) in Hong Kong continued
to lead as a result of its solid reputation.

Anti Corruption

A Whistle Blower Policy is in place, providing a direct channel for employees to report any
unlawful conduct, incident of corruption, avoidance of internal controls, incorrect or improper
financial or other reporting to senior management. This policy is either circulated to employees
periodically or placed on the corporate electronic platform by the Group to facilitate employees’
easy access and reporting. As part of financial controls, Finance departments review any irregular
expenditure and endeavour to detect any unlawful conduct.

All relevant staff in Hong Kong are required to complete Anti-Money Laundering & Counter-
Terrorist Financing e-learning courses. ICAC seminar on anti-corruption is organised periodically
for employees.

The internal audit departments, of respective business units, will also review the enforcement of

such policies and procedures on relevant operations in the course of performing ongoing review of
the internal control systems.
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38 Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Cont'd)

SUSTAINABILITY PRINCIPLE AND PRACTICES (CONT’D)

5.

Community Investment

We strive to excel for our customers and undertake the responsibility of a good corporate citizen by
contributing to the community and by encouraging our staff to enrol in charity and social services.

UAF has a long history of participation in volunteering activities to service our communities.
UAF was also named a “Caring Company” by the Hong Kong Council of Social Service for 13
consecutive years. Since 2015, the UAF Volunteer Team has participated in community services
projects serving the underprivileged, such as low-income senior citizens, senior citizens living
alone, children with heart diseases etc. As at 31st December, 2018, UAF had a total of 78
volunteer members and served a total of 1,056 hours in various community activities during 2018.

The key activities in 2018 included the following:

- Po Leung Kuk: DIY Chinese Lunar New Year Lantern with Elderly

- HK Family Welfare Society: Elderly Visit and Gathering

- HK Family Welfare Society: Easter Egg Making and Gathering with Kindergarten Children
- Po Leung Kuk: Jogging with Elderly

—  St. James Settlement: Elderly Home Visit

- St. James Settlement: GOrun Together Charity Run 2018

Apart from charitable activities, the Group is also actively involved in the community via the
Company and senior management’s participation in industry organisations, schools, chambers of
commerce and NGOs. By sharing our knowledge and best practices, we aim to contribute to the
long-term development of the community we operate in.

Industry Organisations and NGO Participation

Role of Company/

Senior Management Organisation

SHK

Committee Member The Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies

Corporate Member The Malaysian Chamber of Commerce (Hong Kong and Macau) Ltd.
Corporate Member The Australian Chamber of Commerce in Hong Kong

Corporate Member The Hong Kong Investor Relations Association

UAF

Founding member, The HKSAR Licensed Money Lenders’ Association

Chairman, Executive
Committee Member and

Secretary
Trustee member New Asia College, The Chinese University of Hong Kong
Director Hong Kong and Macau Taiwanese Charity Fund

The Group's total charitable donations during the year amounted to approximately HK$5.2 million,
benefiting causes for education, health, and charity services for the underprivileged.

K.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Cont'd)

SUSTAINABILITY PRINCIPLE AND PRACTICES (CONT’D)

6.

Charitable Foundation

Sun Hung Kai & Co. Foundation (the “Foundation”) was set up by SHK to serve as a platform for
SHK and its business associates and partners to support our community, in particular, to improve
the lives of the underprivileged. Sponsored by SHK, the Foundation is an independently registered
charity in Hong Kong.

The Foundation’s principal interests are in the areas of poverty relief, education and the
environment. In the past, SHK has thrived with the rapid development of Hong Kong and China.
As we look to the future, we will continue to devote our time, resources and capital to fostering a
stronger and more sustainable Hong Kong. In particular, we are avid supporters of institutions that
can nurture future leaders who can make a difference, such as The Dalton Foundation and The
Harvard Business School.

In conjunction with the Sun Hung Kai Scallywag sailing campaign sponsored by SHK, the
Foundation has supported and organised a STEM-themed clean seas awareness education program
for children during the 2017-18 Volvo Ocean Race Hong Kong Stopover. The Foundation has
also committed to build a long-lasting youth sailing legacy in Hong Kong and to make the sport
more accessible to local youth from less advantaged background. The sport builds determination,
discipline and teamwork, and advocates environmental awareness. A trial program was launched
through the Hong Kong Sailing Federation to explore various options on costs, structure and
support. The findings and recommendations will form the foundation for our future program.

In the hotel sector, we promote community contribution within the organisation. In 2018, we
have committed to reconciliation through Non-Governmental Organisations, e.g. Orbis, St. James
Settlement, World Wildlife Fund Hong Kong, Foodlink Foundation and Chi Heng Foundation, for
various programmes which encouraged social responsibility between the staff and the community.

The Environment

The Group’s Sustainability Policy encompasses our general approach towards environmental issues.
We endeavour to:

—  observe relevant laws and regulations and aim to go beyond minimum requirements;

— prevent/minimise air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste;

— make efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw materials;
— minimise the impact of the Group's activities on the environment and natural resources; and

- engage our staff, customers and partners to promote green business practices and constantly
re-assess our processes to minimise environmental impact.
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SUSTAINABILITY PRINCIPLE AND PRACTICES (CONT’D)
7. The Environment (Cont’d)

This report does not include the disclosure of all environmental KPIs as they are not considered
material or relevant as a conclusion of our stakeholder engagement as well as management’s view.
Instead, we have discussed our general approach and effort to reduce the Group’s environmental
footprint.

7.1 Emissions

The Group is not involved in any manufacturing activities. Emissions produced directly by the
Group only related to executive passenger vehicles (31) and company boats (8) in Hong Kong
and Mainland China. These are used for senior staff’s local travel only as well as for marketing
and entertainment. Therefore the scale and usage are immaterial given the size of the Group's
assets and staff. Other emissions produced are mostly on a “second-degree” basis as incurred
during occasional business travel which is infrequent.

The Group’s investment and finance businesses are mostly carried out locally in offices
and customer services branches in Hong Kong and Mainland China, or online. In line with
our policy to minimise air and greenhouse gas emissions, the head offices in each city are
equipped with video conferencing facilities to reduce the need for face to face meetings
and keep business travelling to a minimum. Only a small percentage of employees travel for
business. There are no relevant laws and regulations applicable to our business in this aspect.

7.2 Use of Resources and Environmental Impact

We have adopted a series of internal control policies and procedures to enhance the efficiency
in consumption of resources including energy, water and other paper. With about 4,262 staff
across the Group, we consume reasonable amounts of electricity and paper, and with the
efficient use of such, we hope to minimise our impact on the environment while we grow our
businesses. Water consumption is not relevant to our business as it relates only to the personal
consumption of our staff for their personal hygiene.

Since June 2013, electronic board paper systems have been promoted and implemented
throughout the Group, allowing our directors to access meeting papers online anytime,
anywhere with the use of portable electronic devices, improving Board efficiency whilst saving

paper.

The Company has for some years established an electronic communication channel with
shareholders, allowing shareholders to select to receive our corporate communications, such as
annual reports, interim reports and circulars, by accessing online versions instead of receiving
hard copies in mail. As a result, printing quantities of our corporate communications are
substantially reduced and consumption of paper are thus minimised.

Environmental protection guidelines for energy savings and reduction in paper consumption
are circulated to all staff at head office and branches. For instance, staff are reminded to switch
off lights and equipment after work, during lunch break or during time working outside the
office and wherever possible.

Energy efficient office equipment is always preferred in making purchase decisions. During

2018, the Group's total electricity consumption was approximately 8 million kWh (2017: 7.4
million kWh).
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SUSTAINABILITY PRINCIPLE AND PRACTICES (CONT’D)
7. The Environment (Cont’d)
7.2 Use of Resources and Environmental Impact (Cont’d)

In Hong Kong, UAF has joined the “Charter on External Lighting” (the “Charter”) launched by
the Environment Bureau since 2016, and the external lighting of advertising and shop signage is
switched off after midnight. In 2018, a total of 27 branches of SHK were presented with “Gold
Award” for participating in switching off external lighting from midnight to 7 a.m. One of the
Group’s subsidiary companies, Protech Property Management Limited, has for many years
participated in the Earth Hour Campaign (the “Campaign”) and encouraged owners/tenants of
the flats and buildings which it manages to turn off lights every year for one hour at 8:30 pm
on the Campaign nights. The purpose of the Charter and the Campaign is to minimise light
nuisance and energy wastage and to bring general awareness of environmental protection.

Throughout the Group, the following business processes were implemented to improve
efficiency and to reduce paper usage:

—  On-line or mobile loan applications channels

—  Web-based application system such as Document Management Systems of UAF and SHK
Credit

—  Electronic loan statements
—  Recycling schemes of office equipment and supplies
— Internal electronic administration and communication platform

In the property and hotel business, eco-friendly options are often considered and where
possible/appropriate are implemented in operations, construction and maintenance works.

These include:

1. Building Environmental Assessment Method Plus applied to demolition and new building
project.

2. Replace air-cool with water-cool air-conditioning system with selection of more efficient
oil-free chillers.

3. Up-grade building management system with better control for air-handling units.
4. Carry out energy audits.

5. Replace energy wasting lights with LED lights.

6. Change diesel boilers to gas boilers and heat pumps for hot water system.

7. Use of syphonic double flush WC units where appropriate.

8. Roof waterproofing system using more economical and efficient method to reduce noise,
dust and debris.

9. Use of non-Chlorofluorocarbon based refrigerants in air-conditioning unit selection.

A ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED
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SUSTAINABILITY PRINCIPLE AND PRACTICES (CONT’D)

7. The Environment (Cont’d)

7.2 Use of Resources and Environmental Impact (Cont’d)

Recycling scheme for materials, such as paper, plastic, glass bottle, cooking oil and electronic
materials, has been launched in certain restaurants and within internal departments. Food
saving has also been encouraged in joining the Waste Check Charter with the Environmental
Protection Department.

Except for the abovementioned, the Group’s business has no direct impact on the environment
and natural resources other than the consumption of electricity and paper as detailed above.

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT AND STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The materiality and relevance of the above environmental and social issues are determined based on
management’s view as well as conclusions from our stakeholders’ engagement. We regularly engage
key stakeholders in daily operations through meetings, events, and other communication and feedback
channels. Only material and relevant aspects and KPIs are included in the disclosures in this report.

HKEX ESG GUIDE REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX REFERENCE

Indicators

Report Section

A.Environmental

Aspect A1: Emissions

General Disclosure
KPI A1.1

KPI' A1.2
KPI'A1.3
KPI' A1.4
KPI' A1.5

KPI A1.6

Disclosure statement

The types of emissions and respective emissions
data

Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity

Total hazardous waste produced
Total non-hazardous waste produced

Description of measures to mitigate emissions and
results achieved

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes are handled, reduction initiatives and
results achieved

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

General Disclosure
KPI A2.1

KPI'A2.2
KPI' A2.3

KPI A2.4

KPI' A2.5

Disclosure statement

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by
type in total and intensity

Water consumption in total and intensity

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives
and results achieved

Description of whether there is any issue in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency initiatives and results achieved

Total packaging material used for finished
products

7

Not relevant for
detailed disclosure
Not relevant for
detailed disclosure
Not relevant for
detailed disclosure
Not relevant for
detailed disclosure
Not relevant for
detailed disclosure
Not relevant for
detailed disclosure

7
7.2

Not relevant for
detailed disclosure
Not relevant for
detailed disclosure
Not relevant for
detailed disclosure

Not relevant for
detailed disclosure
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HKEX ESG GUIDE REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX REFERENCE (CONT’D)

Indicators

Report Section

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
General Disclosure Disclosure statement

KPI' A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities
on the environment and natural resources and
the actions taken to manage them

B. Social

Employment and Labour Practices
Aspect B1: Employment

General Disclosure Disclosure statement

KPI' B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age
group and geographical region
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and

geographical region

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
General Disclosure Disclosure statement

KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety

measures adopted, how they are implemented
and monitored

Aspect B3: Development and Training
General Disclosure Policy statement

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender
and employee category
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per

employee by gender and employee category

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
General Disclosure Disclosure statement

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment
practices to avoid child and forced labour
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such

practices when discovered

Operating Practices

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

General Disclosure Policy statement

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging
suppliers, number of suppliers and
implementation

1.1

Not relevant for
detailed disclosure
Not relevant for
detailed disclosure
1.1

— —
w W

1.3

1.1 and 1.2

Not relevant for
detailed disclosure
Not relevant for
detailed disclosure

o
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HKEX ESG GUIDE REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX REFERENCE (CONT’D)

Indicators

Report Section

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

General Disclosure Disclosure statement

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped
subject to recalls for safety and health reasons

KPI B6.2 Number of products and service

related complaints received and
how they are dealt with

KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and
protecting intellectual property rights

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and
recall procedures

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and

privacy policies, how they are implemented
and monitored

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

General Disclosure Disclosure statement

KPI'B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding
corrupt practices and outcomes

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-

blowing procedures, how they are implemented
and monitored

Community

Aspect B8: Community Investment

General Disclosure Policy statement

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area

2
Not applicable

2

Not Relevant for
detailed disclosure
Not applicable

2

4
Not applicable

4

(3]
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Directors’ Report

The board of directors of the Company (“Board”) presents its annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively “Group”) for the year ended 31st
December, 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal activities of its principal
subsidiaries, associates and joint venture at 31st December, 2018 are set out in notes 51, 52 and 53 to
the consolidated financial statements respectively. The business review of the Group for the year ended
31st December, 2018, as well as further discussion and analysis as required by Schedule 5 to the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, are set out in the section headed “Review of Operations” on pages 6 to
13, the section headed “Communication with Shareholders” under Corporate Governance Report on
page 28 and the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages 30 to 44 of this Annual
Report, the discussions of which form part of this directors’ report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 123 and in
the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

The Board has declared an interim dividend of HK8 cents per share (in lieu of a final dividend) for
the year ended 31st December, 2018 (2017 interim dividend (in lieu of a final dividend): HK8 cents
per share) payable on or around Thursday, 2nd May, 2019 to the shareholders of the Company
(“Shareholders”) whose names appear on the register of members of the Company on Friday, 12th
April, 2019. The total dividend for the year is HK8 cents per share (2017: HK8 cents per share). Details
are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group’s investment properties were revalued on 31st December, 2018 at HK$10,291.6 million.
The net increase in fair value of HK$757.0 million attributable to investment properties held at 31st
December, 2018 has been credited to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Details of the changes in the investment properties of the Group during the year are set out in note 17
to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the changes in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note
18 to the consolidated financial statements.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

During the year, the Group’s interest in Tian An China Investments Company Limited (“TACI”)
remained at 48.66%. In view of the provisions of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 10
“Consolidated Financial Statements”, the Group has considered whether TACI is a subsidiary when
preparing its consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st December, 2018 and has
concluded that it does not have unilateral ability to direct the relevant activities of TACI based on the
facts and circumstances as detailed in note 23 to the consolidated financial statements. Accordingly,
the Group continues to account for its interest in TACI as an associate.
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PROPERTIES
Particulars of major properties of the Group at 31st December, 2018 are set out on pages 339 to 344.
SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARES ISSUED

Details of movement in the share capital of the Company during the year are set out in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DEBENTURES
The Group had the following debentures in issue as at 31st December, 2018:

- US$361,639,000 4.75% Guaranteed Notes due May 2021 under the US$2,000,000,000
Guaranteed Medium Term Note Programme (“MTN Programme”) were listed on 1st June, 2016
(stock code: 5654). The issuer of this programme is Sun Hung Kai & Co. (BVI) Limited (“SHK BV1”,
a company incorporated in the B.V.I. and a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of SHK).

— US$550,000,000 4.65% Guaranteed Notes due September 2022 issued by SHK BVI under the
MTN Programme were listed on 11th September, 2017 as to US$400,000,000 and on 19th
September, 2017 as to US$150,000,000 (stock code: 5267).

- HK$245,500,000 4.65% Guaranteed Notes due February 2019 under the MTN Programme were
issued by SHK BVI on 5th February, 2018.

— In June 2018, Sun Hung Kai (ECP) Limited (“SHK ECP”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of SHK,
established a US$1,000,000,000 commercial paper programme (“CP Programme”) and as at 31st
December, 2018, a total of HK$382,000,000 principal amount of commercial paper (“Commercial
Paper”) was issued by SHK ECP under the CP Programme.

During the year, the relevant Guaranteed Notes and Commercial Paper were issued for general
corporate purposes of the Group. For further details of the abovementioned issued Guaranteed Notes
and Commercial Paper, please refer to note 38 to the consolidated financial statements. Save as
disclosed above, the Group has not issued any debentures during the year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS
No equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares or that require the

Company to enter into any agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares were
entered into by the Company during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.
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DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company (“Directors”) during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
Lee Seng Hui
Mark Wong Tai Chun

Non-Executive Directors:
Arthur George Dew
Li Chi Kong (re-designated as Non-Executive Director on 1st July, 2018)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Steven Samuel Zoellner

Alan Stephen Jones

David Craig Bartlett

In accordance with Article T05(A) of the articles of association of the Company (“Articles of
Association”), Messrs. Arthur George Dew, Mark Wong Tai Chun and Li Chi Kong shall retire from
office by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

A list of names of all the directors who have served on the boards of the Company’s subsidiaries during
the year are available on the website of the Company under the “Corporate Governance” section.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company (“AGM”) has an unexpired service contract with the Group which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

TERMS OF OFFICE FOR THE NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All the Non-Executive Directors (including the Independent Non-Executive Directors (“INEDs”)) were
appointed for a specific term of two years which shall continue until 31st December, 2020 but subject
to the relevant provisions of the Articles of Association or any other applicable laws whereby the
Directors shall vacate or retire from their office.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

At 31st December, 2018, Messrs. Lee Seng Hui and Steven Samuel Zoellner, Directors, had the
following interests in the shares or underlying shares of the Company and its associated corporations,
within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”), as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO:

Approximate %
Number of of the total number

Name of Directors Name of companies shares interested of issued shares  Nature of interests
Lee Seng Hui the Company 5,108,911,521 74.99%  Other interests
(Note 1)
Steven Samuel Zoellner the Company 64,402 0.00%  Personal interests (held
(Note 3) as beneficial owner)
Sun Hung Kai & Co. 49,200 0.00%  Personal interests (held
Limited (“SHK") (Note 4) as beneficial owner)
(Note 2)
Notes:

1.

The interests include the holding of: (i) an interest in 1,973,216,190 shares of the Company (“Shares”) held by Capscore
Limited (“Capscore”); (ii) an interest in 45,903,120 Shares held by Citiwealth Investment Limited (“Citiwealth”); (iii) an
interest in 2,121,437,331 Shares held by Sunhill Investments Limited (“Sunhill”); and (iv) an interest in 968,354,880
Shares held by Allied Group Limited (“AGL”). Capscore, Citiwealth and Sunhill are all wholly-owned subsidiaries of AGL.
AGL was therefore deemed to have an interest in the Shares in which Capscore, Citiwealth and Sunhill were interested.
Mr. Lee Seng Hui together with Ms. Lee Su Hwei and Mr. Lee Seng Huang are the trustees of Lee and Lee Trust, being a
discretionary trust. The Lee and Lee Trust controlled approximately 74.95% of the total number of issued shares of AGL
(inclusive of Mr. Lee Seng Hui’s personal interests) and was therefore deemed to have an interest in 5,108,911,521 Shares
in which AGL was interested.

SHK is the indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Therefore, SHK is an associated corporation of the
Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

This represents an interest in 64,402 Shares.
This represents an interest in 49,200 shares of SHK.

All interests stated above represent long positions.

Save as disclosed above, at 31st December, 2018, none of the Directors and chief executive of the
Company had any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO, as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

During the year and up to the date of this report, the following Directors (not being the INEDs) are
considered to have interests in the businesses listed below which compete or are likely to compete with
the businesses of the Group pursuant to the Listing Rules as set out below:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

Messrs. Arthur George Dew and Lee Seng Hui are directors of Allied Group Limited (“AGL”) which,
through a subsidiary, is partly engaged in the business of money lending and through certain of its
subsidiaries and a close associate, is partly involved in the investment and trading in securities in
the resources and related industries and financial instruments;

Mr. Lee Seng Hui is a director of each of TACI and APAC Resources Limited (“APAC”) and a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of SHK, and was a director of Asiasec Properties Limited (“Asiasec”)
(resigned on 4th January, 2018) and one of the trustees of Lee and Lee Trust which is a deemed
substantial shareholder of each of AGL, SHK, SHK Hong Kong Industries Limited (“SHK HK IND”),
TACI, Asiasec and APAC which, through their subsidiaries and or a close associate, are partly
engaged in the businesses as follows:

- AGL, through a subsidiary, is partly engaged in the business of money lending;

— SHK, through certain of its subsidiaries, is partly engaged in the businesses of money lending
and property investment;

— SHK HK IND, through certain of its subsidiaries, is partly involved in the trading in securities
and investment in financial instruments;

—  TACI, through certain of its subsidiaries, is partly engaged in the businesses of money lending,
property development and investment and property management;

— Asiasec, through certain of its subsidiaries, is partly engaged in the businesses of property
investment and property management; and

— APAC, through certain of its subsidiaries, is partly engaged in the business of money lending
and is partly involved in the investment and trading in listed securities in the resources and
related industries.

Messrs. Lee Seng Hui and Mark Wong Tai Chun are directors of Allied Kajima Limited, and
Mr. Li Chi Kong was a director of Allied Kajima Limited (resigned on 1st July, 2018) which, through
certain of its subsidiaries, is partly engaged in the businesses of property rental and hospitality
related activities;

Mr. Li Chi Kong was a director of AG Capital Limited, a subsidiary of AGL (resigned on 1st July,
2018), which is partly engaged in the business of money lending;

Messrs. Arthur George Dew and Mark Wong Tai Chun are directors of SHK HK IND, a non wholly-
owned subsidiary of AGL which, through certain of its subsidiaries, is partly involved in the trading
in securities and investment in financial instruments;

Mr. Lee Seng Hui is a director of Mount Gibson Iron Limited which, through certain of its

subsidiaries, is partly involved in the investment and trading in listed securities in the resources and
related industries;

K.
BERE(EE)ERAA Annual Report 2018

49



50

Directors’ Report (Cont'd)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES (CONT’D)

(vii) Mr. Arthur George Dew is a director of APAC and Mr. Mark Wong Tai Chun is an alternate director
to Mr. Arthur George Dew in APAC which, through certain of its subsidiaries, is partly engaged
in the business of money lending and is partly involved in the investment and trading in listed
securities in the resources and related industries; and

(viii) Mr. Arthur George Dew is the non-executive director of Tian An Australia Limited (“Tian An
Australia”). Mr. Mark Wong Tai Chun is an alternate director to Mr. Arthur George Dew in Tian
An Australia. Tian An Australia, through certain of its subsidiaries, is partly engaged in property
development.

Although the above-mentioned Directors have competing interests in other companies by virtue of their
respective common directorship or shareholding, they will fulfil their fiduciary duties in order to ensure
that they will act in the best interests of the Shareholders and the Company as a whole at all times.
Hence, the Group is capable of carrying on its businesses independently of, and at arm’s length from,
the businesses of such companies.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which the Company, its holding company,
or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which the Directors or an entity
connected with the Directors had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year. For information, a tenancy agreement dated 29th November,
2017 for a term commenced from 19th November, 2017 entered into between Mr. Lee Seng Hui as
the tenant and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company as the landlord was terminated on 14th
February, 2018. The total rental of HK$0.5 million received therefrom during the period from 1st
January, 2018 to 14th February, 2018 is considered insignificant in relation to the Group’s business.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save for employment contracts and the sharing of administrative services and management services
agreement as detailed below under “Continuing Connected Transactions”, no other contracts, relating
to the management and/or administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or subsisted during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association provides that every Director or other officer of the Company shall be entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he may sustain
or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his office or otherwise in relation thereto. In addition,
the Company has maintained appropriate directors and officers liability insurance in respect of relevant
legal actions against the Directors.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’” AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS

To the best of Directors’ knowledge, at 31st December, 2018, the following Shareholders had interests
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO:

Approximate %
Number of of the total number

Name of Shareholders shares interested of issued shares Notes
Allied Group Limited (“AGL") 5,108,911,521 74.99% 1
Lee and Lee Trust 5,108,911,521 74.99% 2,3
Notes:

1. The interests include the holding of: (i) an interest in 1,973,216,190 shares of the Company (“Shares”) held by Capscore
Limited (“Capscore”); (ii) an interest in 45,903,120 Shares held by Citiwealth Investment Limited (“Citiwealth”); (iii) an
interest in 2,121,437,331 Shares held by Sunhill Investments Limited (“Sunhill”); and (iv) an interest in 968,354,880 Shares
held by AGL. Capscore, Citiwealth and Sunhill are all wholly-owned subsidiaries of AGL. AGL was therefore deemed to
have an interest in the Shares in which Capscore, Citiwealth and Sunhill were interested.

2. This represents the same interests of AGL in 5,108,911,521 Shares.

3. Mr. Lee Seng Hui, Director, together with Ms. Lee Su Hwei and Mr. Lee Seng Huang are the trustees of Lee and Lee Trust,
being a discretionary trust. The Lee and Lee Trust controlled approximately 74.95% of the total number of issued shares
of AGL (inclusive of Mr. Lee Seng Hui’s personal interests) and was therefore deemed to have an interest in the Shares in

which AGL was interested.

4. All interests stated above represent long positions.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

1.

As disclosed in the joint announcements of the Company and AGL dated 4th May, 2018, 25th
June, 2018, 24th July, 2018 and 17th September, 2018 respectively, on 4th May, 2018, a deed of
undertaking was executed by Asia Financial Services Company Limited (“Asia Financial Services”)
in favour of SHK (an indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) conditionally
undertaking to execute a share buy-back contract (“Buy-back Contract”) relating to an off-market
share buy-back by SHK of 145,000,000 shares of SHK held by Asia Financial Services (“SHK
Share Buy-back”). As advised and confirmed by SHK, the buy-back price for each share of SHK
was reduced from HK$4.75 to HK$4.49 after adjusting for the 2017 second interim dividend of
HK$0.14 per share and the 2018 interim dividend of HK$0.12 per share declared by SHK which
were paid to Asia Financial Services on 28th June, 2018 and 12th September, 2018, respectively.
The Buy-back Contract was entered into on 20th July, 2018. All conditions under the SHK Share
Buy-back have been fulfilled and completion of the SHK Share Buy-back took place on 17th
September, 2018.

Prior to the completion of SHK Share Buy-Back, Asia Financial Services was a substantial
shareholder of SHK. As such, Asia Financial Services was a connected person of the Company
pursuant to the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the SHK Share Buy-back constituted a connected
transaction of the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As disclosed in the joint announcement of the Company, AGL and SHK dated 23rd October,
2018, on 23rd October, 2018, Sun Hung Kai Credit Limited (“SHK Credit”) as lender entered
into a loan agreement with Mr. Peter Wong Man Kong (“Mr. Wong”, the then independent non-
executive director of SHK) as borrower, pursuant to which, SHK Credit agreed to, among other
things, make available to Mr. Wong loan facilities including (i) a short term loan in the amount of
HK$10,000,000 for a term of six months from the date of drawdown with an interest rate of 18%
per annum; (i) an instalment loan in the amount of HK$115,000,000 for a term of twelve months
from the date of drawdown with an interest rate of 19.625% per annum for the first installment and
7.625% per annum for the second to twelfth installment, respectively; and (iii) a term loan in the
amount of HK$30,000,000 for a term of twelve months from the date of drawdown with an interest
rate of 7.625% per annum, on the terms and subject to the conditions therein (“Loan Transaction”).

As SHK Credit is an indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary of SHK, which is an indirect non
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and that Mr. Wong was the then independent non-
executive director of SHK, Mr. Wong was therefore a connected person of the Company and the
Loan Transaction constituted a connected transaction for the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.
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BABE (FEEB)ARAA Annual Report 2018



Directors’ Report (Cont'd)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

1.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 7th February, 2017 and the 2017
Annual Report of the Company, the Company entered into a renewed sharing of administrative
services and management services agreement (“Services Agreement”) with AGL on 7th February,
2017, pursuant to which the Company agreed to renew and extend the term of the sharing of
administrative services and management services agreement dated 28th January, 2014 and as
supplemented by a supplemental agreement dated 7th February, 2017 entered into between
the Company and AGL for a period of three years commenced from 1st January, 2017 to 31st
December, 2019 and to reimburse AGL the actual costs incurred in respect of the administrative
services, which included the corporate secretarial services, provision of registered office address,
utilities services including water, electricity, telephone (including international telephone services),
internet, photocopying, postal, courier and delivery and other services ancillary to the day-to-
day administration and operation of the Group provided by AGL to the Group (i.e. the Company
and its subsidiaries, but excluding those in the group of SHK) (“Administrative Services”) and the
management services, which included the management, consultancy, strategic, internal audit,
management information system consultancy and business advice services provided by the senior
management and the selected staff of AGL (“Management Staff”) to the Group (i.e. the Company
and its subsidiaries, but excluding those in the group of SHK) (“Management Services”).

Mr. Lee Seng Hui, by being the Chief Executive and an Executive Director, a member of the
Management Staff providing the Management Services and also one of the trustees of Lee and
Lee Trust, being a discretionary trust which, together with his personal interest, controlled
approximately 74.95% interest in the total number of issued shares of AGL as at 31st December,
2018; Mr. Arthur George Dew, by being the Chairman and a Non-Executive Director and a
member of the Management Staff providing the Management Services; Mr. Mark Wong Tai Chun,
by being an Executive Director and a member of the Management Staff providing the Management
Services; and Mr. Li Chi Kong, by formerly being an Executive Director and re-designated as a
Non-Executive Director with effect from 1st July, 2018, and a member of the Management Staff
providing the Management Services; all of them are deemed to be interested in the Services
Agreement.

The annual caps in respect of the Management Services under the Services Agreement were set at
HK$40,000,000, HK$44,500,000 and HK$49,000,000 for each of the three financial years ending
31st December, 2019 respectively. The aggregate fees payable by the Group to AGL in respect of
the Management Services for the year ended 31st December, 2018 was HK$28,893,000.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (CONT’D)

2. As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 29th November, 2017 and the 2017
Annual Report of the Company, a renewed tenancy agreement (“Tenancy Agreement”) was entered
into on 29th November, 2017 between Hillcrest Development Limited (“Hillcrest”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as the landlord and AGL as the tenant for the renewal of
a tenancy of 60 Plantation Road, the Peak, Hong Kong (“Premises”) for residential use for a further
term of two years commenced from 1st January, 2018 to 31st December, 2019 at a monthly rental
of HK$488,000 (exclusive of rates and management fee). The Premises is held by Hillcrest for
investment purposes. The rent has been determined based on the prevailing market rent as advised
by Norton Appraisals Holdings Limited (“Norton Appraisals”), which is a firm of independent
property valuers.

The annual cap for the transaction under the Tenancy Agreement was set at HK$5,856,000
for each of the two financial years ending 31st December, 2019. The Tenancy Agreement was
subsequently terminated on 14th February, 2018. The aggregate amount of rental for the period
from 1st January, 2018 to 14th February, 2018 was HK$732,000.

Since AGL is the controlling shareholder and ultimate holding company of the Company, AGL is a
connected person of the Company, the transactions contemplated under the Services Agreement (other
than the sharing of the Administrative Services) and the Tenancy Agreement (collectively “Continuing
Connected Transactions”) constituted continuing connected transactions of the Company under Rule
14A.31 of the Listing Rules, which are subject to the reporting, annual review and announcement
requirements but are exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the
Listing Rules.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the INEDs have reviewed the Continuing Connected
Transactions and have confirmed that the Continuing Connected Transactions were entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(iii) according to the relevant agreements governing them on terms that were fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged the auditor of the Company to perform

a review in respect of the above Continuing Connected Transactions and the auditor has reported its
conclusion to the Board, confirming the matters set out in Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

Details of the Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments and of the five highest paid individuals
in the Group are set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the Executive Committee on the basis
of their merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments payable to Directors will depend on their respective contractual terms under their
employment contracts or service contracts as approved by the Board on the recommendation of the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual performance
and comparable market statistics.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for less
than 30% of the total turnover for the year. Also, the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s
five largest suppliers taken together were less than 30% of the Group's total purchases for the year.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any Shareholders, which to the knowledge of the
Directors owned more than 5% of the Company’s total number of issued shares, had a beneficial
interest in any of the Group’s five largest suppliers and customers.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s shares during the year ended 31st December, 2018.

DONATIONS

The Group made charitable donations of HK$5.2 million during the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance practices.
Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 16 to 29.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the

Directors, as at the date of this report, the Company has maintained sufficient public float as required
under the Listing Rules.
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AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the AGM to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the auditor of
the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Arthur George Dew
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25th March, 2019
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Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Allied Properties (H.K.) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on
pages 123 to 337, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31st December, 2018, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31st December, 2018, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONT’D) RAREZSIE(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEEZERNNEERRERSE

Key audit matter

BREZER

Valuation of investment properties situated in Hong Kong

BRRENEZMHE

We identified the valuation of investment properties
situated in Hong Kong as a key audit matter due to
the significance of the balance to the consolidated
financial statements as a whole and level of judgment
in determining their respective fair values.

Approximately 95% of the investment properties
represent residential properties, car parking spaces,
commercial properties and a godown located in Hong
Kong. The carrying amount of investment properties
situated in Hong Kong was HK$9,768.7 million as
at 31st December, 2018 with a resulting change in
fair value of HK$752.8 million recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year
then ended.

All of the Group’s investment properties are held at fair
value based on valuations performed by independent
qualified professional valuers not connected with the
Group (the “Valuers”).

Details of the valuation methodology and key
inputs used in the valuations are disclosed in note
17 to the consolidated financial statements. The
valuations are dependent on certain key inputs that
involve management judgment, including term
yield, reversionary yield and reversionary rental for
investment properties. A table showing the relationship
of significant unobservable inputs to fair value is also
disclosed in this note.
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BatE (FEE)FRAIA

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of
investment properties in Hong Kong included:

e Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the Valuers and an understanding
of the valuation methodology, the performance
of the property markets, significant assumptions
adopted, critical judgment on key inputs and data
used in the valuations;

e Assessing the reasonableness of the key inputs and
source data used in the valuations by management
and the Valuers by comparing them, on a sample
basis, to publicly available information of similar
comparable properties; and

e Re-performing the sensitivity analysis on the key
inputs to evaluate the magnitude of their impacts
on the fair values.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONT’D) FAREZSIE(E)

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HRELER BEZERNMEEBRERSEE

Impairment assessments of interests in associates — Tian An China Investments Company Limited (“TACI”) and
Sun Hung Kai Financial Group Limited (“SHKFGL”)
REBELAARZHEREFRAR(RZ N RFIBESHEBEGRAR(FEESHMER |) 2R 2 REE

We have identified the impairment assessments of
interests in TACI and SHKFGL as a key audit matter due
to the significance of the balance to the consolidated
financial statements as a whole and level of judgment
(as stated in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements) in determining the estimated recoverable
amount of the relevant interests in the associates.

As at 31st December, 2018, the management
conducted impairment assessments to ensure that the
carrying amounts of the interests in TACI and SHKFGL
are lower than their respective estimated recoverable
amounts. The estimated recoverable amounts of TACI
and SHKFGL have been determined with reference to
their value in use and fair values less costs of disposal
respectively, which are inherently subjective being
dependent on the inputs that require management
judgment and assumptions about the discounted future
cash flows of the respective associates and the related
discount rates.

As disclosed in note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements, the carrying amounts of TACI and SHKFGL
are HK$10,979.4 million and HK$1,131.0 million
respectively. The management has concluded that
there is no impairment in respect of the Group's
interest in TACI as its value in use is higher than its
carrying amount. A reversal of impairment loss on
interest in SHKFGL of HK$66.7 million was made as
its fair value less costs of disposal is higher than its
carrying amount in current year.
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ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED
BawE (FEE)FRAIA

A

Our procedures in relation to the impairment
assessments of interests in TACI and SHKFGL included:

e  Obtaining an understanding of the process and
testing the internal controls over the annual
impairment assessment including the Group’s
assessment of indicators of impairment,
preparation of the cash flow forecasts, setting
of reasonable and supportable assumptions
and inputs to the models used to estimate the
recoverable amount;

e  Evaluating the appropriateness of the valuation
methodology and the models used, with the
assistance of our internal valuation specialist,
where appropriate;

e  Evaluating the reasonableness of the inputs and
assumptions used to determine the cash flow
forecasts with reference to historical performance,
economic and industry indicators, publicly
available information and the Group’s strategic
plans; and

e Re-performing the underlying calculations used in
the Group’s assessment and performing sensitivity
analysis of the inputs used.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONT’D)

Key audit matter

BREZER

REEZEEE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEZERNNEERREREER

Impairment of loans and advances to consumer finance customers, mortgage loans and term loans (loss
allowance for expected credit losses (“ECL”) upon application of HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (“HKFRS

9”))

HESREFERKREN RBEBERURAHERZBE(RKATEYRBRELENSEIF SRITAI(FEY
BHREENESS D RRMFEFR(AREEBE ) 2BERHE)

We identified the impairment of loans and advances
to consumer finance customers, mortgage loans and
term loans as a key audit matter due to significant
management judgment involved in identification and
measurement of expected credit losses.

The key changes arising from the adoption of HKFRS
9 are that the Group’s credit losses are now estimated
based on an expected loss model rather than an
incurred loss model.

As disclosed in notes 26, 27 and 29 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group has loans and advances
to consumer finance customers of HK$9,769.7
million, after recognising an impairment allowance
of HK$645.6 million, mortgage loans of HK$3,854.2
million, after recognising an impairment allowance
of HK$9.7 million and term loans of HK$4,096.4
million, after recognising an impairment allowance
of HK$153.3 million, as at 31st December, 2018.
As explained in note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, in current year, the Group adopted
HKFRS 9 and recognised an additional impairment
of HK$106.6 million as at 1st January, 2018 in
accordance with the transitional provisions of HKFRS 9.
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Our procedures in relation to the impairment of
loans and advances to consumer finance customers,
mortgage loans and term loans included:

e Inquiring the management to understand the
approach applied on ECL model of loans and
advances to consumer finance customers,
mortgage loans and term loans;

e Understanding key controls on how the
management estimates impairment for loans
and advances to consumer finance customers,
mortgage loans and term loans;

e Testing the accuracy of the ECL adjustment made
by the Group as at 1st January, 2018 on initial
adoption of HKFRS 9;

e Testing the integrity of information used by
management to develop the provision matrix on
a sample basis, by comparing individual items
in the analysis with the relevant loan agreements
and other supporting documents;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONT’D) FAREZSIE(E)

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRELER BEEZERNMNEERREREE

Impairment of loans and advances to consumer finance customers, mortgage loans and term loans (loss
allowance for expected credit losses (“ECL”) upon application of HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (“HKFRS 9”))
(Cont’d)

HESREFERKREN RBERURAHERZBE(RKATEVRBREENSEIN SR ITA|(TFEY

BREENFSS D ERMFEFR(FRBEEBE ] 2BRRE) (&)

The assessment of impairment for loans and advances
to consumer finance customers, mortgage loans and
term loans involves significant management judgments
and estimates on the amount of expected credit loss at
the reporting date.

At each reporting date, the management assesses
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk for exposures since initial recognition
by comparing the risk of default occurring over the
expected life between the reporting date and the date
of initial recognition. The management considers
reasonably supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort for this purpose.
This includes quantitative and qualitative information
and also, forward-look analysis.
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Challenging management’s basis and judgment in
determining the appropriateness of management’s
grouping of loans and advances to consumer
finance customers and mortgage loans into
different categories in the provision matrix, the
inputs and assumptions applied on the ECL
model, including probability of default, loss given
default, the Group’s historical loss experience and
forward-looking information, with the assistance
of our internal specialist;

Assessing the appropriateness of the inputs and
assumptions applied on the ECL model of term
loans, including probability of default, loss given
default and forward-looking information, with the
assistance of our internal specialist;

Reviewing the Group's historical loss experience;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONT’D) AREXEE(E)

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRELER EEBERNNEERARERSEE

Impairment of loans and advances to consumer finance customers, mortgage loans and term loans (loss
allowance for expected credit losses (“ECL”) upon application of HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (“HKFRS 9”))
(Cont’d)

HESREFERREN RBERURAHERZRE(RRATBVBREEN TR ST A |((FEY

BHREEUEN N RABFEER(HEHEEFR ) 2B RRE) (&)

In assessing the lifetime ECL on credit-impaired
financial assets classified as stage 3, the Group
performs the assessment based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors specific to the borrowers, general economic
conditions, the current conditions at the reporting
date and forward-looking analysis. The Group also
reviews the value of the collateral received from the
customers in measuring impairment. The methodology
and assumptions used for estimating the impairment
amount are reviewed regularly to reduce any
differences between loss estimates and actual loss
experience.
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Assessing the reasonableness and appropriateness
of the management’s judgment on staging criteria
for determining if a significant increase in credit
risk has occurred and the basis for classification
of exposures into the 3 stages as required by
HKFRS 9 and examining loan exposures on a
sample basis to evaluate if there has been timely
identification and classification of loan exposures
into the 3 stages as required by HKFRS 9;

Testing the mathematical accuracy of the loss
allowance for ECL;

For loans and advances to consumer finance
customers, mortgage loans and term loans
classified at stage 3, we examined underlying
documentation supporting the value of the
collateral, if any, and the management’s key
estimations used in the individual impairment
assessment for loans and advances to consumer
finance customers, mortgage loans and term loans
on a sample basis; and

Evaluating the disclosures regarding the
impairment measurement of loans and advances
to consumer finance customers, mortgage loans
and term loans in notes 26, 27, 29 and 41 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONT’D) FAREZSIE(E)
Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BREZER BEEZERNMNEEBRRERSEHR

Estimated impairment of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives

BEREEEERFHCBTLEE 2 GHRE

We have identified the estimated impairment of
goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives as a key audit matter due to the inherent
subjectivity arising from the significant management
judgment involved as stated in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.

As shown in notes 20, 21 and 22 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group has goodwill and trade
mark of HK$2,384.0 million and HK$868.0 million
respectively arising from the acquisition of United Asia
Finance Limited (“UAF”).

The recoverable amount of UAF, a cash-generating
unit (consumer finance segment), represents the value
in use based on discounted estimated future cash flows
over a five-year period. The recoverable amount of
UAF was determined to be in excess of its net carrying
amount. Further details are shown in note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED
BawE (FEE)FRAIA

Our procedures in relation to estimated impairment of
goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives included:

e Obtaining an understanding of the valuation
methodology and the processes with respect to
the valuation of the recoverable amount (which
represents the value in use) of UAF;

e Evaluating the appropriateness of the valuation
methodology and the models used by
management, with the assistance of our internal
valuation specialist;

e Comparing the current year actual cash flows with
the prior year cash flow projections and assessing
the reasonableness for the changes of those
assumptions (e.g. average growth rate on the profit
before tax) used in current year;

e Assessing the reasonableness of other key inputs
used by management (e.g. sustainable growth rate
and discount rate) based on our knowledge of the
business and industry, with the assistance of our
internal valuation specialist; and

e Testing the mathematical accuracy of the value in
use calculation.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONT’D)

Key audit matter

BREZER

HEFZEEGE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEZERNNEERREREE

Valuation of financial instruments classified as level 3 under fair value hierarchy

PERLAFEESRE=AZEMITAZHE

We identified the valuation of financial instruments
classified as level 3 under the fair value hierarchy
(“Level 3 financial instruments”) as a key audit matter
due to the degree of complexity involved in valuing
the instruments and the significance of the judgments
and estimates made by management. In particular, the
determination of unobservable inputs is considerably
more subjective given the lack of availability of
market-based data.
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Our procedures in relation to the valuation of level 3
financial instruments included:

e Obtaining an understanding of the valuation
methodologies and the processes performed by
the management with respect to the valuation of
Level 3 financial instruments;

e  For a sample of financial instruments, performing
the following procedures, with the assistance of
our internal valuation specialist, as appropriate:

— Evaluating the appropriateness of the
methodologies and valuation techniques
used by management for Level 3 financial
instruments; and

—  Assessing the reasonableness and relevance
of key assumptions and inputs based on our
industry knowledge;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONT’D) RAREZSIE(E)

Key audit matter

HREZER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EE2BERNNEERARERSEE

Valuation of financial instruments classified as level 3 under fair value hierarchy (Cont'd)

PERAVPEESRE=RZEMTAZGEE)

At 31st December, 2018, HK$7,317.9 million of the
Group’s total financial assets (including financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income of HK$21.6 million and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss of HK$7,296.3 million)
and HK$22.9 million of the Group’s total financial
liabilities carried at fair value were classified as level 3
under the fair value hierarchy.

These include an unlisted put right for shares in an
associate, unlisted overseas equity securities with a
put right for shares and unlisted overseas investment
funds with carrying amount at 31st December,
2018 of HK$1,120.0 million, HK$856.6 million and
HK$5,157.3 million, respectively.
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In respect of unlisted put right for shares in an
associate and unlisted overseas equity securities
with a put right for shares, in addition to the above
procedures, testing the mathematical accuracy of
the valuation model, with the assistance of our
internal valuation specialist; and

In respect of the unlisted overseas investment
funds, checking the net asset value against the
financial information provided by fund managers
or fund administrators, as appropriate.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

A ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED
BawE (FEE)FRAIA
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONT’D)

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Sze Ching Yiu.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
25th March, 2019
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE-F— /) FE+A=1+—HILFE
2018 2017
—E-)\F —FR 4
Notes HK$ Million HK$ Million
B 5E BEERT (B
Revenue A 5&6
Interest income FLE WA 4,132.9 3,665.2
Other revenue HAthlsg A 782.5 709.1
4,915.4 4,374.3
Other income HAbg A 300.9 139.3
Total income LA 5,216.3 4,513.6
Cost of sales and B RS e LA 42
other direct costs AR (495.6) (365.6)
Brokerage and KA e
commission expenses 2 (50.5) (46.7)
Selling and marketing expenses &85 K& 75 1k & % il (159.2) (145.6)
Administrative expenses FTECE (1,321.6) (1,348.5)
Changes in values of properties ¥ 2E{B{H 5 H) 7 756.5 982.3

Net gain on financial assets and & ##48 # MR A FE(E
liabilities at fair value through o H 4 Rl 7 T

profit or loss =G TRC 8 235.7 1,229.9
Net exchange loss WEE 53 s 45 13 4 (10.9) (107.4)
Net impairment losses on ST H 2 EkEE

financial instruments e 9 (902.6) =
Bad and doubtful debts SRR 9 - (387.4)
Other operating expenses HoAth #8452 (123.3) (287.5)
Finance costs Tl AR 12 (455.8) (384.3)
Share of results of associates JREAG Bk 7 N ) 24 498.5 1,277.3
Share of results of joint ventures — JEfG &4 /0 R 2545 336.2 659.4
Profit before taxation A 11 s A1) 13 3,523.7 5,589.5
Taxation FilA 14 (247.5) (322.0)
Profit for the year A FE i 3,276.2 5,267.5
Attributable to: JEAL T

Owners of the Company AN AR 2,343.4 3,991.1

Non-controlling interests T2 B £ 932.8 1,276.4

3,276.2 5,267.5
HK cents HK cents
7l Al

Earnings per share BREF 15
Basic HAR 34.40 58.59
Diluted v 34.39 58.58

ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED

A BoEE (BRE)ERD A AR e AL



124

for the year ended 31st December, 2018 BEF—/\FET_H=T—HILFE
2018 2017
—EB-N\F  “FLF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET H T
Profit for the year A 5 ¥ 3,276.2 5,267.5

Other comprehensive (expenses) income: — HAth 21 (& ) i 25

Items that will not be reclassified to AN F R 57 15 7 A
profit or loss: ZIEHA -
Investments in equity instruments B HAb T R T AT EE
at fair value through other Ji P2 M4 T
comprehensive income g
— Net fair value changes during the year — ARAE N T (E A ) v AR (129.7) -
Share of other comprehensive (expenses) — FEAG B/ w] HoAh 21w (22 )
income of associates g (216.1) 337.3
Share of other comprehensive income of — FEAG A8 /8 F] HoAth 2 1
joint ventures g 1.6 0.2
(344.2) 337.5
Items that may be reclassified subsequently & AJ G5 8 #5 4-K1 2 15 i He
to profit or loss: ZIHA -
Available-for-sale financial assets AT AL
— Net fair value changes during the year X /A e LR - (175.5)
— Reclassification adjustment to — AR R R R
profit or loss on impairment H 4 iR - 176.2
- 0.7
Exchange differences arising on P SN SE 5 AR AT 7 AR
translation of foreign operations 2 T 50 25 %A (329.9) 465.6
Reclassification adjustment to profit or loss — FARAE H1 B — i 2 7 I
on deemed disposal of an associate HH A E IR R 2.1 -
Reclassification adjustment to profit or loss 7 Hi 8 — M4 A =] f
on disposal of an associate HHT R R R R (7.6) -
Reclassification adjustment to profit or loss & H & &/ 7l Ik
on disposal of joint ventures HOR T R R AR 2.8 -
Share of other comprehensive (expenses) — MEfG %A F] Hift 4> i
income of associates (%) Wt (63.9) 70.6
Share of other comprehensive (expenses) — E{h &2/ 7] HoAth 4 1H
income of joint ventures (B ) W (5.9) 2.3
(402.4) 539.2
Other comprehensive (expenses) AN FC A 22 T (22 ) Uiss -
income for the year, net of tax SR (746.6) 876.7
Total comprehensive income for the year A4 Ji 4 T Wi 2 A8 4H 2,529.6 6,144.2
Attributable to: AL TT
Owners of the Company AN R 1,862.8 4,559.3
Non-controlling interests JeFE R 45 666.8 1,584.9
2,529.6 6,144.2
A ALLIED PROPERTIES (1) LIMITED Annua | Sopon 201



at 31st December, 2018

Non-current assets

Investment properties

Property, plant and equipment

Prepaid land lease payments

Goodwill

Intangible assets

Interests in associates

Interests in joint ventures

Available-for-sale financial assets

Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive
income

Amounts due from associates

Loans and advances to consumer
finance customers due after one year

Mortgage loans

Deferred tax assets

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Term loans, trade receivables,
prepayments and other
receivables

Current assets

Other inventories

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Prepaid land lease payments

Loans and advances to consumer finance

customers due within one year
Mortgage loans
Term loans, trade receivables,
prepayments and other
receivables
Amounts due from brokers
Amounts due from associates
Amounts due from joint ventures
Tax recoverable
Short-term pledged bank deposits and
bank balances
Bank deposits
Cash and cash equivalents

FRBEE

BEYIE

ENN G

TEAME

itk

i E

TR T A W] 2 M4

BB AT A

ALt e R

2 FL At 2 TS i
R (R
EMERE

Wi w K

—AER B I
C NS WSE TN

AR EK

IR AERLIH

IEHAR B RAE P E (E
BRI < il

AR I S
A ~ FHAHIA &
HAbRE IR

REBEE

HAbfF &

ER R AR IRE AP E
BRI 2 G

THAULE

—AEN B e
IR CVE TN

Hcd B

AR B S
A ~ BRI K
oAt BE O IA

KRR K

LA Y/NEIV N

BENFEIGK

A i [ B IR

AR ERAT A
SRAT R R

RATAF K

Ha KB &FEY

W_ZF—/4FE+—H=1—H

Notes

Bk

17
18
19
20
21
23
24
25

25
30
26
27
28

25

29

25
19

26
27
29
30

30

31
31
31

2018 2017
—F-\F —F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BERATT B &I
10,291.6 9,537.1
1,051.9 1,084.9
4.0 4.4
2,498.7 2,498.7
895.1 887.5
13,257.8 13,288.0
3,455.0 3,163.7
- 324.0

206.5 -
266.7 275.2
2,618.9 2,322.8
1,956.8 1,243.1
730.3 649.6
6,360.9 5,033.7
79.5 505.8
43,673.7 40,818.5
0.3 0.2
4,378.6 6,199.1
0.1 0.1
7,150.8 6,840.8
1,897.4 877.3
4,487.6 3,162.6
507.1 725.9
266.3 228.1
9.8 9.1

6.1 5.9

20.0 1.2
353.5 787.7
5,031.6 2,409.7
24,109.2 21,247.7
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at 31st December, 2018

Current liabilities

Trade payables, other payables
and accruals

Financial assets sold under repurchase
agreements

Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss

Amount due to a holding company

Amounts due to associates

Amounts due to joint ventures

Tax payable

Bank and other borrowings due within
one year

Notes/papers payable

Provisions

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

REAE

JEAS 5 5y O~ HABME
(RE SV e
[ i o ok T~ i B 2
EMEE

IER G RAE AP E
BRI 2 A

R — [ e 2 w) R

K o m A

KA B FHIA

JEABLE

—EREIZ BT K
HA 6

e

14

REBEEFE

REERRBAE

W_ZF— /4FE+—H=1+—H

2018 2017

—F-\F “F—LF

Notes HK$ Million HK$ Million
R 5t BERATT H &I
32 346.6 425.5
33 1,216.5 1,071.0
25 425.3 161.1
27.8 14.9

7.4 7.4

40.1 0.1

188.6 156.6

37 7,569.8 2,784.9
38 749.5 1,077.0
39 105.1 70.7
10,676.7 5,769.2

13,432.5 15,478.5

57,106.2 56,297.0

Annual Report 2018
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at 31st December, 2018

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company

Shares held for employee ownership
scheme

Employee share-based compensation
reserve

Share of net assets of subsidiaries

Non-controlling interests
Total equity

Non-current liabilities

Bank and other borrowings due after
one year

Notes/papers payable

Deferred tax liabilities

Provisions

The consolidated financial statements on pages 123 to 337
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 25th March, 2019 and are signed on its behalf by:

Arthur George Dew

KEDE
DIRECTOR
HH

BRAK
JEA
fik

ERATRR
FEftRE %R

Tl B A B
A By
DA 32 2
1 5 P < ol
JRE AL B 2~ )

RS
R

FRBEE

—ERIM 2 RIT R
HAb &

e

EAERLIHA R

14

W_ZF—/4FE+—H=1—H

2018 2017

—F-\F —F

Notes HK$ Million HK$ Million
R st BERATT B &I
34 4,250.6 4,250.6
36 32,487.1 30,768.6
36,737.7 35,019.2
(29.7) (7.6)

10.5 5.1

11,162.3 12,277.6

11,143.1 12,275.1

47,880.8 47,294 .3

37 1,961.8 1,740.4
38 6,926.5 6,930.4
28 332.2 328.6
39 4.9 3.3
9,225.4 9,002.7

57,106.2 56,297.0

BI23HEFI7EHZ AR MBE MR E RS

TR UEE ] T H T R AR T

A iy AR

Mark Wong Tai Chun
E K5
DIRECTOR
HH
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

Operating activities
Profit for the year

Adjustments for:

Net impairment losses on financial instruments
Finance costs
Taxation
Depreciation
Net exchange loss
Expenses recognised for employee ownership
scheme of Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited (“SHK”)
Amortisation of intangible assets
Net loss on disposal/write-off of property,
plant and equipment
Impairment loss recognised for hotel property
Loss on disposal of joint ventures
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments
Net increase in fair value of investment properties
Share of results of associates
Share of results of joint ventures
Net fair value gain on financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Net impairment loss reversed on interests
in associates
Gain on disposal of an associate
Gain on deemed disposal of an associate
Bad and doubtful debts
Impairment loss on available-for-sale financial assets
Loss on redemption of notes payable

Operating cash flows before movements

in working capital

BE_F—/F+_A=t—HILFE

Rexy
AR L it

WHRIEH

S TR HiEk R

B A

BA

e

HE s £

AR R = (B )
M By B T D 2 2

T

i HEHIE - B Rk
IR

TERBI T W% < WL (B 1R

HESEAFZ R

TR

1§ <LE PN e R

REAG B8 A R S

FEAG BB A IR

B AR AT EERMZ 2/
B KA PR
ki) VAPl 6

O Al £
BRI A

1 — g A 2 W

e & — e 2 F 2 s

FHR

ARt A E R 4R

R et SR 2 B R

Kt BEE SR

REXBHERE

2018 2017
—E-N\F “E
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT BT
3,276.2 5,267.5
1,099.8 -
455.8 3843
247.5 322.0
76.7 783
10.9 107.4

8.3 6.4

1.9 1.8

1.1 1.5

0.5 0.8

0.5 -

0.2 0.1
(757.0) (983.1)
(498.5) (1,277.3)
(336.2) (659.4)
(180.3) (1,094.0)
(132.4) -
(77.6) (103.5)
(36.8) -
(17.6) -

- 387.4

- 176.2

- 0.8
3,143.0 2,617.2
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

Decrease (increase) in financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Increase in financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss

Decrease in amounts due from brokers

Increase in financial assets sold under repurchase
agreements

Decrease (increase) in amounts due from associates

Increase in provisions

Increase in amount due to a holding
company

Increase in trade payables, other payables and
accruals

Increase in loans and advances to consumer
finance customers and mortgage loans

Increase in term loans, trade receivables,
prepayments and other receivables

(Increase) decrease in other inventories

Cash from (used in) operations
Interest paid
Taxation paid

Net cash from (used in) operating activities

Investing activities

Proceeds from disposal of long-term financial assets
as at fair value through profit or loss

Net fixed deposits with banks withdrawn

Dividends received from associates

Proceeds on disposal of associates

Amounts repaid by associates

Proceeds on disposal of subsidiaries

Proceeds on disposal of joint ventures

Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Purchase of long-term financial assets as at fair value
through profit or loss

Amounts advanced to associates

Capital injection to a joint venture

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Acquisition of additional interests in associates

Additions to investment properties

Purchase of intangible assets

Purchase of financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Amounts advanced to joint ventures

Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets

Capital injection to associates

Net cash used in investing activities
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2018 2017
—E-N\F TE LA
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEHRT HEWBTT
1,244.5 (3,003.8)
264.1 45.0
218.9 333.7
145.5 1,071.0
48.0 (77.0)
15.3 11.7
12.9 33
12.1 91.8
(3,528.5) (3,071.2)
(810.6) (632.2)
(0.1) 0.1
765.1 (2,610.4)
(341.9) (324.1)
(287.6) (283.1)
135.6 (3,217.6)
621.9 90.2
391.9 539.9
232.2 264.1
119.8 -
118.9 44.0
70.0 -
3.2
0.5 0.3
(1,326.0) (603.4)
(250.6) (81.0)
(72.1) (69.7)
(62.9) (52.6)
(16.5) (9.9)
(10.6) (207.2)
(10.1) -
(8.8 -
0.7) 0.2)
- (390.0)
- (128.0)
(199.9) (603.5)
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Financing activities
New bank and other borrowings raised
Proceeds from issue of notes/papers
Amount advanced from a joint venture
Repayment of bank and other borrowings
Dividends by subsidiaries to non-controlling
interests
Amounts paid for shares repurchased and
cancelled by a subsidiary
Repayment of notes/papers
Redemption of notes/papers
Dividends paid to equity shareholders
Purchase of shares for employee ownership
scheme of SHK
Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary
Disposal of notes held by subsidiaries
of the Company
Amounts advanced from associates
Repayment of capital contributions
by non-controlling interests
Repurchase of notes payable

Net cash from financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning
of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
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2018 2017
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HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEAR H &
19,100.9 1,695.5
795.1 4,694.6
40.0 =
(14,044.6) (2,800.6)
(657.1) (454.9)
(650.9) (196.2)
(616.5) (2,300.8)
(576.4) (60.5)
(545.0) (545.0)
(24.8) (4.8)
(0.5) =

- 3349

- 0.1
- (66.9)
- (37.7)

2,820.2 257.7
2,755.9 (3,563.4)
(134.0) 141.2
2,409.7 5,831.9
5,031.6 2,409.7
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

1.

GENERAL

Allied Properties (H.K.) Limited (“Company”) is a public
limited company incorporated in the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (“Hong Kong”) and its shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”). The ultimate holding company is Allied
Group Limited (“AGL”), a listed public limited company
which is also incorporated in Hong Kong. The ultimate
controlling party of the Company is the trustees of Lee and
Lee Trust. The address of the principal place of business
of the trustees of Lee and Lee Trust is 24/F, Allied Kajima
Building, 138 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
The address of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company is 22/F, Allied Kajima Building,
138 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (“Group”) are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates
and joint venture are set out in notes 51, 52 and 53
respectively.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time in the
current year:

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

Amendments to
HKFRS 2

Amendments to
HKFRS 4

Amendments to
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKAS 40

Financial Instruments

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment transactions

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts

As part of the Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Transfers of Investment Property
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

2

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONT’D)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Cont’d)

Except as described below, the application of the above
new and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

The same accounting policies, presentation and methods
of computation have been followed in these consolidated
financial statements as were applied in the preparation of
the Group’s financial statements for the year ended 31st
December, 2017.

The related amendments of initial application of HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 15

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the related
amendments

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments and the related consequential
amendments to other HKFRSs. HKFRS 9 introduces new
requirements for 1) the classification and measurement
of financial assets and financial liabilities, 2) expected
credit losses (“ECL”) for financial assets, loan commitments
and financial guarantee contracts and 3) general hedge
accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the
transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9, i.e. applied the
classification and measurement requirements (including
impairment) retrospectively to instruments that have not
been derecognised as at 1st January, 2018 (date of initial
application) and has not applied the requirements to
instruments that have already been derecognised as at 1st
January, 2018. The difference between carrying amounts as
at 31st December, 2017 and the carrying amounts as at 1st
January, 2018 are recognised in the opening accumulated
profits and other components of equity, without restating
comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not
be comparable as comparative information was prepared
under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement.

Accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS 9
are disclosed in note 3.
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2

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONT’D)

The related amendments of initial application of HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 15 (Cont’d)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of
HKFRS 9 (Cont’d)

(a)

Available-for-sale (“AFS”) financial assets

From AFS financial assets to financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI”)

The Group elected to present in other comprehensive
income (“OCI”) the fair value changes of some
of its equity investments previously classified as
AFS financial assets, of which unquoted equity
investments of HK$21.6 million were previously
measured at cost less impairment under HKAS 39.
These investments are not held for trading and not
expected to be sold in the foreseeable future. At the
date of initial application of HKFRS 9, investments of
HK$282.6 million were reclassified from AFS financial
assets to equity instruments at FVTOCI. In addition,
impairment losses previously recognised of HK$121.6
million attributable to owners of the Company were
transferred from accumulated profits to investment
revaluation reserve as at Tst January, 2018.

From AFS financial assets to financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)

At the date of initial application of HKFRS 9, some of
the Group’s equity investments of HK$41.4 million
were reclassified from AFS financial assets to financial
assets at FVTPL. The fair value gain of HK$16.4
million attributable to owners of the Company as at
1st January, 2018 was transferred from investment
revaluation reserve to accumulated profits.
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72

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONT’D)

The related amendments of initial application of HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 15 (Cont'd)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of
HKFRS 9 (Cont’d)

(b)

Financial assets at FVTPL and/or designated at FVTPL

At the date of initial application, the Group no
longer applied designation as measured at FVTPL for
the convertible notes and the portfolio of financial
assets categorised in FVTPL which is managed and
its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, as
these financial assets are required to be measured
at FVTPL under HKFRS 9. As a result, the fair value
of these investments of HK$5,436.3 million were
reclassified from financial assets designated at FVTPL
to financial assets at FVTPL. There was no impact on
the amounts recognised in relation to other financial
assets at FVTPL from the application of HKFRS 9.

Impairment under ECL model

Loss allowances for other financial assets at amortised
cost comprising mainly of amounts due from
associates, amounts due from joint ventures, loans and
advances to consumer finance customers, mortgage
loans, term loans, trade and other receivables,
amounts due from brokers, short-term pledged bank
deposits and bank balances, bank deposits and cash
and cash equivalents, are measured on 12-month ECL
(“12m ECL”) basis and there had been no significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, except
for certain loans and advances to consumer finance
customers, mortgage loans and term loans which are
measured on lifetime ECL basis as for those credit risk
had increased significantly since initial recognition.
For undrawn loan commitments, an ECL of HK$27.8
million which is included in provisions has been
recognised.

As at 1st January, 2018, the additional credit loss
allowance of HK$106.6 million and deferred tax
assets of HK$28.2 million have been recognised
against accumulated profits of HK$25.4 million and
non-controlling interests of HK$53.0 million. The
additional loss allowance is charged against the
respective asset.

ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONT’D)

The related amendments of initial application of HKFRS 9

and HKFRS 15 (Cont'd)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of
HKFRS 9 (Cont’d)
Impairment under ECL model (Cont'd)
All loss allowances for financial assets (including
loans and advances to consumer finance customers,
mortgage loans, term loans and payments on behalf
of customers) and loan commitments as at 31st
December, 2017 reconciled to the opening loss
allowance as at 1st January, 2018 is as follows:

(c)

At 31st December,
2017
- HKAS 39

Amounts remeasured
through opening
accumulated profits and

non-controlling interests

REZ—L4F
+=H=1+—H

— A aHEN 399
ERI 25T
L VE RS

s EH

AR &K

Amounts written off (Note) 5 #Aa (224#)

At 1st January, 2018
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A BRI - AMER AT
) S B R 1Y) 2 o Ml 4R 1R A B
ZE A — B Z Pk R
ZEBRANE

Payments
Loans and on hehalf
advances to of customers
consumer (included
finance in trade
customers receivables)
HEZE Loan  Mortgage Term REFHH
ZFE&% commitments loans loans (st AEK Total
kB¥  ERARE 2 BRBEX  BHER  EZRE) b
HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million ~ HKS$ Million  HK$ Million
FEBT  A&KT HEET AEKT  EAET BEET
063.3 - 5.0 86.6 0.6 761.5
77.5 27.8 0.2 1.1 - 106.6
(122.7) - - - (6.3) (129.0)
618.1 27.8 52 87.7 0.3 739.1

Note: Amounts written off resulted from the refinement of the write-

off policy on the initial application of HKFRS 9.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONT’D)

The related amendments of initial application of HKFRS 9

and HKFRS 15 (Cont'd)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of

HKFRS 9 (Cont’d)

(d) Financial liabilities with non-substantial modification
Under HKAS 39, the Group revised the effective
interest rates for non-substantial modification with
no gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. At
the date of initial application, the carrying amounts
of financial liabilities previously modified were
adjusted downward by HK$10.9 million to reflect
the change in accounting policies as stated in note
3, with corresponding adjustments credited to the
accumulated profits and non-controlling interests as
at 1st January, 2018 of HK$6.0 million and HK$4.9
million respectively.

(e) Interests in associates
The Group’s share of adjustment arising from initial
application of HKFRS 9 by associates led to a debit
to investment revaluation reserve as at 1st January,
2018 by HK$86.3 million with a corresponding credit
to accumulated profits as at 1st January, 2018 by
HK$86.3 million.

In addition, the net effects arising from the initial
application of HKFRS 9 resulted in a decrease in the
carrying amounts of interests in associates of HK$5.4
million with corresponding adjustments debited to
accumulated profits and non-controlling interests as
at 1st January, 2018 by HK$3.1 million and HK$2.3
million respectively.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and
related amendments

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time
in the current year. HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS 18
Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the
related interpretations. The Group has applied HKFRS
15 retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially
applying this standard recognised at the date of initial
application, 1st January, 2018. Any difference at the date
of initial application, if any, is recognised in the opening
accumulated profits (or other components of equity, as
appropriate) and comparative information has not been
restated. Apart from the additional disclosures as shown
in note 5, the application of HKFRS 15 in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years.
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2

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.

wE_F—/F+_A=+—HILFEZ

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONT’D)

The related amendments of initial application of HKFRS 9

and HKFRS 15 (Cont'd)

As a result of the changes in the accounting policies
above, the opening consolidated statement of financial

RAFET RAEETNERMBRERE
AT EREMEREER ) (F])

BRARAEBMBHREENFIRRE R
B #s o5 2E R 581555 2 AR BRI RT ()
A Bl gt Ok 2 28 > vgsa e
IRDLRIH T LAE S - T R E/R 4 F1IHH Br
TR Z % -

position had to be restated. The following table shows the
adjustments recognised for each individual line item.

HKFRS 9
At 31st BANBREERHEHR At 1st
December, 2017 Remeasurement/ January, 2018
Audited Impairment Restated
R-B—+% allowances RZB-N\E
+=B=t-H Reclassification Ef:tE/ -A-H
"ER BNOE HERE EE2]]
HKS Million HKS Million HKS$ Million HK$ Million
HEBT HEBT HEBT AEBT
Non-current assets EREEE
Investment properties BEmE 9,537.1 - - 9,537.1
Property, plant and equipment VEN T 1,084.9 - - 1,084.9
Prepaid land lease payments AR 44 - - 4.4
Goodwill Ha 2,498.7 - - 2,498.7
Intangible assets E3IA 887.5 - - 887.5
Interests in associates B AR Z g 13,2880 - (5.4) 13,2826
Interests in joint ventures ResAfZ iR 3,163.7 - - 3,163.7
Available-for-sale financial assets A {1 & 4 &5 324.0 (324.0) = =
Financial assets at fair value through & HAl 2 s /A T
other comprehensive income BEEEE SERE = 282.6 = 282.6
Amounts due from associates NGV ¢ 275.2 = - 275.2
Loans and advances to consumer  —4EfAFIH 2 1%
finance customers due after SHEPET R
one year .5 23228 - 90.0 2,412.8
Mortgage loans TEiEEN 12431 - 1.5 12446
Deferred tax assets BRI E 649.6 - 282 677.8
Financial assets at fair value through R 18 & et/ T-(E (E
profit or loss M2 R 5,033.7 414 - 5,075.1
Term loans, trade receivables, BRI B 5 2R
prepayments and other receivables T TR KL ARENEIR 505.8 - - 505.8
40,8185 - 1143 40,9328
Current assets RBEE
Other inventories HiE& 0.2 - = 0.2
Financial assets at fair value through 18 & et/ T-E(E
profit or loss R S RERE 6,199.1 = = 6,199.1
Prepaid land lease payments TIE 0.1 - - 0.1
Loans and advances to consumer  —4E KA Z I ESH
finance customers due within ERER R
one year Bk 6,840.8 - (167.5) 6,673.3
Mortgage loans HRiaE K 877.3 - (1.7) 875.6
Term loans, trade receivables, G W G e
prepayments and other receivables T TR K LA EIR 3,162.6 - (1.1) 3,161.5
Amounts due from brokers X 725.9 - - 725.9
Amounts due from associates [ UNElE ¢ 228.1 - - 228.1
Amounts due from joint ventures A& /A K 9.1 = = 9.1
Tax recoverable H] U BLIR 5.9 - - 5.9
Short-term pledged bank deposit SRR 12 - - 12
Bank deposits BTl 787.7 - - 787.7
Cash and cash equivalents RAeRBE%EY 2,409.7 = - 2,409.7
21,247.7 - (1703) 210774
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONT’D)

The related amendments of initial application of HKFRS 9

and HKFRS 15 (Cont’d)

Current liabilities

Trade payables, other payables
and accruals

Financial assets sold under
repurchase agreements

Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss

Amount due to a holding company

Amounts due to associates

Amounts due to joint ventures

Tax payable

Bank and other borrowings
due within one year

Notes payable

Provisions

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company

Shares held for employee
ownership scheme

Employee share-based
compensation reserve

Share of net assets of subsidiaries

Non-controlling interests
Total equity

Non-current liabilities

Bank and other borrowings
due after one year

Notes payable

Deferred tax liabilities

Provisions

HE—

—NE+ZA=+—HILHEE

RAMITREETNE BB RESE
AT ERMEREZER ) (F])

BRRAEBMBRE

ERFIRRER

B ISR XE RIS 1555 2 AR5 5T (&)
At 31st ﬁmﬁﬁ 5'@95’5 At 1st
December, 2017 Remeasurement/ January, 2018
Audited Impairment Restated
RoB—+& allowances RZB-NE
TZA=1+—H  Redassification EfitE -A-H
HEA ENDE HERE &E5|
HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million
H T HEsT HHEBT HHET
REEE
FERS S50 ~ AR50
DEst0E 4255 - - 4255
WA B &2 B
B 1,071.0 = = 1,071.0
BRI A TEE
W7 S RA 161.1 - - 161.1
R— R i 0R 149 = - 149
Y§ = YNGIE 7.4 - - 74
RAEARA 0.1 = - 0.1
REfrBiE ) 156.6 - - 156.6
—ERNEMZRITR
HA 2,784.9 = = 2,784.9
RNES 1,077.0 = = 1,077.0
Tt 70.7 = 27.8 98.5
5,769.2 - 27.8 5,797.0
REEETE 15,4785 - (198.1) 15,280.4
HEERRDEE 56,297.0 - (83.8) 56,213.2
M&ﬁ’a{ﬁ
A 4,250.6 = = 4250.6
ikt 30,768.6 = (22.5) 30,746.1
KR ARREN
B 35,019.2 = (22.5) 34,996.7
BiEE R A
HARG (7.6) = = (7.6)
MRSt 2
1B S 4 bt 5.1 = - 5.1
T BES 0 ) ot 12,277.6 - (50.4) 12,227.2
FERER 12,275.1 - (50.4) 12,2047
EnaE 472943 = (72.9) 472214
E 7=
*@fﬁﬂﬂ;ﬁﬁﬁﬁ&
HifEE 1,740.4 = = 1,740.4
e 6,930.4 - (10.9 6,919.5
BAERAA I 328.6 - - 328.6
Tt 33 = = 33
9,002.7 = (10.9) 8,991.8
56,297.0 - (83.8) 56,213.2
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONT’D)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective:

HKFRS 16 Leases’
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments!
Amendments to Definition of a Business*
HKFRS 3
Amendments to Prepayment Features with
HKFRS 9 Negative Compensation'
Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKFRS 10 and between an Investor and its
HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture?
Amendments to Definition of Material®
HKAS 1 and
HKAS 8
Amendments to Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
HKAS 19 Settlement!
Amendments to Long-term Interests in Associates
HKAS 28 and Joint Ventures'
Amendments to Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle!

[ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2019.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2021.

g Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which
the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual
period beginning on or after 1st January, 2020.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2020.

Except as described below, the directors of the Company
do not anticipate that the application of the new and
amendments to HKFRSs will have material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONT’D)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Cont'd)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will
supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by
a customer. In addition, HKFRS 16 requires sales and
leaseback transactions to be determined based on the
requirements of HKFRS 15 as to whether the transfer of the
relevant asset should be accounted as a sale. HKFRS 16
also includes requirements relating to subleases and lease
modifications.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are
removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model
where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability
have to be recognised for all leases by lessees, except for
short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain
exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease
liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the
present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for
interest and lease payments, as well as the impact of lease
modifications, amongst others. For the classification of
cash flows, the Group currently presents upfront prepaid
lease payments as investing cash flows in relation to
leasehold lands for owned use and those classified as
investment properties while other operating lease payments
are presented as operating cash flows. Upon application of
HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease liability will
be allocated into a principal and an interest portion which
will be presented as financing and operating cash flows
respectively by the Group.
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2

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONT’D)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Cont'd)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Cont’d)

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised
prepaid lease payments for leasehold lands where the
Group is a lessee. The application of HKFRS 16 may
result in potential changes in classification of these assets
depending on whether the Group presents right-of-use
assets separately or within the same line item at which the
corresponding underlying assets would be presented if
they were owned.

Other than certain requirements which are also applicable
to lessor, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor
accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to
require a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating
lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS
16.

As at 31st December, 2018, the Group has non-
cancellable operating lease commitments of HK$225.6
million as disclosed in note 44(a). A preliminary assessment
indicates that these arrangements will meet the definition
of a lease. Upon application of HKFRS 16, the Group will
recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability
in respect of all these leases unless they qualify for low
value or short-term leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable
rental deposits paid of HK$36.9 million and refundable
rental deposits received of HK$50.7 million as rights and
obligations under leases to which HKAS 17 applies. Based
on the definition of lease payments under HKFRS 16,
such deposits are not payments relating to the right to use
the underlying assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts
of such deposits may be adjusted to amortised cost.
Adjustments to refundable rental deposits paid would be
considered as additional lease payments and included in
the carrying amount of right-of-use assets. Adjustments to
refundable rental deposits received would be considered as
advance lease payments.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONT’D)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective (Cont’d)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Cont’d)

The application of new requirements may result in changes
in measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated
above. The Group intends to elect the practical expedient
to apply HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously
identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-
Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease and not apply this standard to contracts that were
not previously identified as containing a lease applying
HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4. Therefore, the Group
will not reassess whether the contracts are, or contain
a lease which already existed prior to the date of initial

application.
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”)
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, except for certain properties
and financial instruments, which are measured at fair
value, as explained in the significant accounting policies

set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

BE_F—/F+_A=t—HILFE

e

RAMITREETNE BB RESE
AT ERMEREZER ) (F])

EBTEEARERNIIT REBTNEE
PR S 2RI (F)

BB TR AR 1 65 — T B (4)
PRIIHRE vl REE S B SOt i RHE - 2
B K WA Pt o AN SR BEBEE s A
T B YE RN 5 1 6 S A S PR A
W e RIS 17 58 L A (I P S
aRLZAe) — B4R El ZHERT
B AR B ] AL A A6 {68 P B
REELGE - ELASHE e JU B PR 516 Al R
A vt e RIS 1 7 9% R A i (1 R A 5
WL ) — @ BE4uta AT
WA o DG > A SR BN & OB aF Al 4
AR BRI E AR G A — S BB S
BEHE -

ETEEIFEE

iR

G 2 RS WA T AR s B T @ LA
Y S B S S LR « O - S
BRI S P i85 E il ([ E i
B ) R Al 24 O (4622 5) WL 2 0
P 5% 7975 -

SR E B R R T 1 B S AR S YE R Y M
IO F T HEUOR Pl A E (R
O T3 e i T HLBRA L

JBE SRR — SBEAR B 52 5 B il B s e 1
REZAFEE -

Annual Report 2018
=% — UAE ]

145



146

for the year ended 31st December, 2018

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment, leasing transactions that are within the scope of
HKAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities
to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable
value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

—  Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities.

—  Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from input other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the assets or liabilities,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices).

—  Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include input for the
assets or liabilities that are not based on observable
market data.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

—  has power over the investee;

— is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

—  has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting
rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when
the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in consolidated profit or
loss and other comprehensive income from the effective
date of acquisition and up to the effective date of disposal,
as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income
and expenses within the Group are eliminated on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein. Profit or
loss and each items of other comprehensive income are
attributable to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributable to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interest having a debit balance.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Basis of consolidation (Cont’d)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s relevant components
of equity and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets
and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling
interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable
to the owners of the Company. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation
to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the
subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
to another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9/HKAS 39 or, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment
in an associate or a joint venture.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Business combinations (Cont’d)
At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value at
the acquisition date, except that:

— deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or
assets related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

— liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment transactions of the acquiree or the
replacement of an acquiree’s share-based payment
transactions with share-based payment transactions of
the Group are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
at the acquisition date; and

— assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed. If, after assessment, the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss
as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may
be initially measured at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling interests
are measured at their fair value or, when applicable, on
the basis specified in another Standard.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Business combinations (Cont’d)

When the consideration transferred by the Group in
a business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement, the
contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-
date fair value and included as part of the consideration
transferred in a business combination. Changes in the
fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify
as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments
made against goodwill or gain on bargain purchase.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that
arise from additional information obtained during the
“measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year
from the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances
that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as
measurement period adjustments depends on how
the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured
at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement
is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration
that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured
at subsequent reporting dates in accordance with
HKFRS 9/HKAS 39, or HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as appropriate, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group'’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the
date when the Group obtains control), and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income, as appropriate. Amounts arising
from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition
date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income and measured under HKFRS 9/
HKAS 39 would be accounted for on the same basis as
would be required if the Group had disposed directly of
the previously held equity interest.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted during
the measurement period (see above), or additional assets
or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information
obtained about facts and circumstances that existed as of
the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected
the amounts recognised as of that date.

wE_F—/F+_A=+—HILFEZ

3.

EESBER ()

EBE6(E)

ik 7 5 [ S5 5 it e 2 AU 4G T
SR EZ M5 BEESEMH > Al
A7 B SR AU 3R O B 2 A (E
At > e AR S & R AU
Z By o fiM G A R A 2 5
REAEEAZ - MARZBEME
WA R i e A R (R SO i 2R I A
HRESREE o w1 B TR R R AT wt I
(A W B AN R 2 — 4 ) PR BT A B
RIS H E A 2 HH R UL BONE
T A 2 A

HARR A A G B R 2
ME B AR - BT8R
fUBEZ 807 K sE o Yoo i a2 51
AEAGRERZEEH B EE > m
HAR AT 2 SRR e 22 AR © B0
HREESAR BRAERERZSH
F i R s B B A MBI S 0 5% R v
At I 3.9 B B A S v R 2R 3 7 908 T 48
i~ BB R R EURE A | (B8 I L
E) EHEHR o A 2 Wi B0k 1R AR 4R
i AR AERE -

T A LA PEBLSE I > AR DA B
FEROSCE 2 v 2 R f O o B (R A
SE BB EEHIREE ) 2 APE E T
B i B A A 2 Wi Bk 1R () BITR R
i MR B HC A 2 T e 4 (A8 1)) IR R o ik
OB 2 7 HE 2 75 WSO I U i b4 T
W it F A e R SR A 7 o T S o 2
9%k A ERHERIS 3R B HAH G
R AN AR SR [ 4 A S B A R R
MR BEHE AR o

THSERS & R BERNIET & BF 2 ity A A R
R 52 A2 AR - RIIAS 52 B ok SE I
AR IR H 2 Wi o %S R
JAFHEH (A E30) 7 > SRR AN &
BRI RE > LU A A B TR WA
HEMFEZHE LB e m) > ek
BEAE H R SR BE R

Annual Report 2018
S N E R



for the year ended 31st December, 2018

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Interests in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an investment in which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, an investment in an associate or a
joint venture is initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or
loss and other comprehensive income of the associate or
joint venture. Where necessary, adjustments are made
to bring the accounting policies of associates and joint
ventures in conformity with the Group. When the Group’s
share of losses of an associate or joint venture exceeds the
Group'’s interest in that associate or joint venture (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group’s net investment in the associate or joint
venture), the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or
joint venture.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Interests in associates and joint ventures (Cont’d)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the date on
which the investee becomes an associate or a joint venture.
On acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill
which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate or a joint venture may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is
tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms
part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal
of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate or joint control over a joint venture, it
is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in the
investee with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. The Group discontinues the use of the equity
method from the date when the investment ceases to be
an associate or a joint venture, or when the investment
is classified as held for sale. The difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or joint venture at the
date the equity method was discontinued, and the fair
value of any retained interest and any proceeds from
disposal is included in the determination of the gain or loss
on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that associate
or joint venture on the same basis as would be required
if that associate or joint venture had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
by that associate or joint venture would be reclassified
to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or
liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from
equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment)
upon disposal/partial disposal of the relevant associate or
joint venture.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Interests in associates and joint ventures (Cont’d)

Where the Group’s interest in an associate increases,
whether directly or indirectly, the impact of the change
should be accounted for as an incremental purchase of
the associate and recognised at cost. When the Group’s
interest in an associate increase due to a decrease in
the investee’s issued shares, the difference between
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the investee’s
identifiable assets and liabilities before and after the

change, is recognised directly in equity.

When the Group transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, unrealised profits and losses are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the

relevant associate or joint venture.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary for
which the agreement date is on or after 1st January,
2005 represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over
the Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the relevant
subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Such goodwill is
carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

On subsequent disposal of the relevant subsidiary, the
attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included
in the determination of the amount of profit or loss on

disposal.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon application

of HKFRS 15)

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the particular

performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Revenue recognition (Cont’d)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon application
of HKFRS 15) (Cont’d)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

—  the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

—  the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

—  the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or
service. The Group shall consider indicators of the transfer
of control, which include, but are not limited to, the
following:

—  the Group has a present right to payment for the asset
and a customer is presently obliged to pay for an asset;

— the Group has transferred physical possession of
the asset and the customer has obtained physical
possession of an asset;

—  the customer has accepted the good or service; and

—  other indicators of the transfer of control of the good
or service to the customer.

Income from hotel operations, provision of property
management services and elderly care services are
recognised as a performance obligation satisfied over time
as the customers simultaneously receive and consume
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs. Regarding hotel operations, the Group
generally receives an advance payment in full before it
provides services or receives settlement after it provides
services. For the provision of property management
services, the Group bills its customers in advance or
in arrear according to the terms of the contract with
customers. For elderly care services, the Group generally
bills it customers in advance before it provides the relevant
services to the customers.

Service income is recognised at a point in time when the
services for the transactions are completed under the terms
of each engagement and the revenue can be measured
reliably.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Revenue recognition (Cont’d)

Revenue recognition (Prior to 1st January, 2018)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course
of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities, as described below.

Rental income from properties under operating leases,
including rentals invoiced in advance, is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant leases.

Income from the provision of services, including elderly
care services, is recognised upon the provision of the
relevant services or on a time apportionment basis over the
terms of the service contracts.

Income from the sale of goods is recognised when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over the
goods sold.

Revenue from hotel operations is recognised when services
are provided.

Interest income from financial assets is recognised on
a time apportionment basis, taking into account the
principal amounts outstanding and the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that discounts the
estimated future cash flows through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
owner’s right to receive payment has been established.

Income from rendering financial guarantee services is
recognised over the contractual period on a straight-line
basis.

Other service fee income is recognised upon the provision
of the relevant services or on a time apportionment basis
over the contractual period of the guarantee or loan.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Croup as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter
into an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of
rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and buildings

When the Group makes payments for a property interest
which includes both leasehold land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group. Specifically, the entire
consideration (including any lump-sum upfront payments)
are allocated between the land and the building elements
in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold
interests in the land element and building element at initial
recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid land
lease payments” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-
line basis. When the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the leasehold land and building elements,
the entire property is generally classified as if the leasehold
land is under finance lease.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Foreign currencies

The individual financial statements of each group entity
are presented in the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (its functional
currency). For the purpose of the consolidated financial
statements, the results and financial position of each
entity are expressed in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
functional currency of the Company, and the presentation
currency for the consolidated financial statements.

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in
profit or loss for the period except for differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of
which gains and losses are recognised directly in equity, in
which cases, the exchange differences are also recognised
directly in equity.

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Income and
expense items are translated at the average exchange rates
for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity (the
translation reserve). Such translation differences are
reclassified to profit or loss in the period in which the
operation is disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable asset
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation
and retranslated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of the reporting period. Exchange differences arising
are recognised in the other comprehensive income.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised on a time
apportionment basis, taking into account the principal and
the effective interest rates. They are charged to the profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.

The contributions payable to the Group’s retirement
benefit schemes and the mandatory provident fund scheme
are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contribution.

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing, where appropriate, based
on approved formulas that take into consideration the
profit attributable to the Group after certain adjustments.
The Group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.

For shares of SHK (“Awarded Shares”) granted under the
employee ownership scheme of SHK, the fair value of the
employee services received is determined by reference
to the fair value of Awarded Shares granted at the grant
date and is expensed on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity
(employee share-based compensation reserve). At the end
of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of Awarded Shares that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the estimates,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss, with a corresponding
adjustment to the employee share-based compensation
reserve.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Taxation
Taxation represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before taxation”
as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss because of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
interests in associates and joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Taxation (Cont’d)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rates (and tax law) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amounts
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities
or deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group
intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net
basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred
tax arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Investment properties

Investment property, which is property held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation, is stated at its fair value
at the end of the reporting period. Gains or losses arising
from changes in the fair value of investment property are
included in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use or no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.

Transfers to, or from, investment property are made in the
following circumstances:

— commencement of owner-occupation, for a transfer
from investment property to owner-occupied property;

— end of owner-occupation, for a transfer from owner-
occupied property to investment property; and

— commencement of an operating lease to another
party, for a transfer from inventories to investment
properties.

For a transfer from investment property carried at fair value
to owner-occupied property or inventories, the property’s
deemed cost for subsequent accounting shall be its fair
value at the date of change in use.

For a transfer from owner-occupied property to investment
property, the entity treats any difference at that date
between the carrying amount of the property and its
fair value in the same way as a revaluation surplus.
The excess of the fair value of the property at the date
of transfer over the carrying amount of the property is
credited to other comprehensive income and accumulated
in property revaluation reserve, except to the extent
that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset
previously recognised as an expense, in which case the
increase is credited to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss to the extent of the decrease previously charged
to consolidated statement of profit or loss. The excess
of the carrying amount of the property at the date of
transfer over the fair value of the property is recognised
in consolidated statement of profit or loss to the extent it
exceeds the balance, if any, on the revaluation reserve
relating to a previously revaluation of the same asset.
On subsequent disposal of the investment property, the
revaluation surplus included in equity may be transferred
to accumulated profits. The transfer from revaluation
surplus to accumulated profits is not made through profit
or loss.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Investment properties (Cont'd)

For a transfer from inventories to investment property that
will be carried at fair value, any difference between the fair
value of the property at that date and its previous carrying
amount is recognised in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment including land and
buildings held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, or for administrative purposes are stated
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of assets less their estimated residual value over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis.

Depreciation rate is at the following per annum:

shorter of the estimated useful life
and the remaining lease term of
land

shorter of the estimated useful life

Hotel property

Leasehold land and

buildings and the remaining lease term of
land
Leasehold 20%
improvements
Furniture, fixtures and 10% to 50%
equipment
Motor vehicles and 162/,% to 20%
vessels

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

When the nature of the lessee’s property interest
changes from investment property to property, plant and
equipment, the lessee shall continue to account for the
lease as a finance lease.

Prepaid land lease payments

The up-front prepayments made for the leasehold land and
land use rights that are classified as operating leases are
amortised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the period of the lease or when
there is impairment, the impairment is expensed in profit
or loss.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
identified and recognised separately from goodwill where
they satisfy the definition of an intangible asset and their
fair values can be measured reliably. Such intangible assets
are measured at their fair value at the acquisition date.

Intangible assets acquired separately
(i) Club memberships

It represents the right to use the facilities of various
clubs, with the management considering that the club
memberships do not have a finite useful life.

(i) Computer software

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring into use the specific software. These costs are
amortised using the straight-line method.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with
finite useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives
is provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. Useful lives are also examined on an annual
basis and adjustments where applicable are made on a
prospective basis. Alternatively, intangible assets with
indefinite lives are carried at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses and are tested for impairment annually
by comparing their recoverable amount with their carrying
amount.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets excluding
financial assets

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or
group of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, which represent the
lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating
segment.

ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED
BawE (FEE)FRAIA
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets excluding
financial assets (Cont’d)

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable
amount is less than its carrying amount, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit
(or group of cash-generating units). Any impairment loss
for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any
of the cash-generating unit within the group of cash-
generating units, the attributable amount of goodwill is
included in the determination of the amount of profit or
loss on disposal. When the Group disposes of an operation
within the cash-generating unit (or a cash-generating
unit within a group of cash-generating units), the amount
of goodwill disposed of is measured on the basis of the
relative values of the operation (or the cash-generating
unit) disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating
unit (or the group of cash-generating units) retained.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) that have indefinite
useful lives are not subject to amortisation, and are
tested at least annually for impairment and reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
Assets that are subject to depreciation and amortisation
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less cost to sell and
value in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest level for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units) if
an impairment test cannot be performed for an individual
asset. An impairment loss is recognised immediately as an
expense. Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating units) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with HKFRS 15 since 1st January,
2018. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities
at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest/dividend income which are derived from the
Group's ordinary course of business are presented as
revenue.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in note 2)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

— the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

—  the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

— the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling; and

—  the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at the date of initial application/initial
recognition of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an
equity investment in OCI if that equity investment is
neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to
which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

— it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

— on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

— itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at the
amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing
so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)
Financial assets (Cont’d)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with

transitions in note 2) (Cont’d)

(i)  Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. For financial
instruments other than purchased or originated
credit-impaired financial assets, interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired (see below). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the
next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-
impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following
the determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)
Financial assets (Cont’d)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with

transitions in note 2) (Cont’d)

(i)  Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in
OCI and accumulated in the investment revaluation
reserve; and are not subject to impairment assessment.
The cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified to
profit or loss on disposal of the equity investments,
and will be transferred to accumulated profits.

Dividends from these investments in equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the
Group's right to receive the dividends is established,
unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery
of part of the cost of the investment. Dividends are
included in the “other revenue” line item in profit or
loss.

(iii) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated
as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and
is included in the “net gain on financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss” line item.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS
9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
financial assets which are subject to impairment under
HKFRS 9 (including trade and other receivables, short-
term pledged bank deposits and bank balances, bank
deposits, cash and cash equivalents, loans and advances to
consumer finance customers, mortgage loans, term loans,
amounts due from brokers, amounts due from associates
and amounts due from joint ventures), loan commitments
and financial guarantee contracts.

The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL represents the
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. Assessment is done based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group measures the loss allowance equal to 12m
ECL, unless when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL
should be recognised is based on significant increases in
the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)
Financial assets (Cont’d)
Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9

with transitions in accordance with note 2) (Cont’d)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonably supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available)
or internal credit rating;

— significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap
prices for the debtor;

— existing or forecast adverse changes in
(1) regulatory, economic or technological
environments; (2) business or financial conditions
that are expected to cause a significant decrease
in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor; or

— financial re-organisation/restructuring entered by
the debtors.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonably supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)
Financial assets (Cont’d)
Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9

with transitions in accordance with note 2) (Cont'd)

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk (Cont’d)

For loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts, the date that the Group becomes a party to
the irrevocable commitment is considered to be the
date of initial recognition for the purposes of assessing
the financial instrument for impairment. In assessing
whether there has been a significant increase in
the credit risk since initial recognition of a loan
commitment, the Group considers changes in the risk
of a default occurring on the loan to which a loan
commitment relates; for financial guarantee contracts,
the Group considers the changes in the risk that the
specified debtor will default on the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

3.

A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)
Financial assets (Cont’d)
Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9

with transitions in accordance with note 2) (Cont’d)

(i) Definition of default
For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking
into account any collateral held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is
more than 90 days past due unless the Group has
reasonably supportable information to demonstrate
that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate. In particular, the following qualitative
indicators are taken into account in determining the
risk of a default occurring:

—  probable bankruptcy entered by the borrowers;
—  death of the debtor, and

— disappearance of active market of the collateral
or repossessed properties.

(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data about the
following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

(c) the lenders of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower concessions that the lenders would not
otherwise consider;

(d) probable bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation entered by the debtor;

(e) probable shortfall that expected cash inflows
from the realisation of collateral is below the
carrying amount of financial assets; or

() the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)
Financial assets (Cont’d)
Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9

with transitions in accordance with note 2) (Cont'd)

(iv) Write-off policy

The Group writes off the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset when there is information indicating
that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for
example, when the counterparty has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off
may still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate.

A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries will result in an impairment
gain and is included in “Net impairment losses on
financial instruments” in note 9.

For the year ended 31st December, 2018, the
measurement of the expected credit loss under HKFRS
9 is included in “Net impairment losses on financial
instruments” as presented in note 9. Prior period
amount determined adopting the incurred loss model
under HKAS 39 is not restated and presented as “Bad
and doubtful debts” in note 9.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined
with the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.

For a financial guarantee contract, the Group is
required to make payments only in the event of a
default by the debtor in accordance with the terms
of the instrument that is guaranteed. Accordingly, the
expected losses is the present value of the expected
payments to reimburse the holder for a credit loss that
it incurs less any amounts that the Group expects to
receive from the holder, the debtor or any other party.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)
Financial assets (Cont’d)
Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9

with transitions in accordance with note 2) (Cont’d)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (Cont’d)
For undrawn loan commitments, the ECL is the
present value of the difference between the
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group if
the holder of the loan commitments draws down the
loan, and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive if the loan is drawn down.

For ECL on financial guarantee contracts or on
loan commitments for which the effective interest
rate cannot be determined, the Group will apply
a discount rate that reflects the current market
assessment of the time value of money and the risks
that are specific to the cash flows but only if, and to
the extent that, the risks are taken into account by
adjusting the discount rate instead of adjusting the
cash shortfalls being discounted.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or caters
for cases where evidence at the individual instrument
level may not yet be available, the financial
instruments are grouped on the below basis:

—  Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group’s
term loans, trade and other receivables, loans
and advances to consumer finance customers
and mortgage loans are each assessed as a
separate group. Amounts due from brokers,
amounts due from associates and amounts due
from joint ventures are assessed for expected
credit losses on an individual basis);

—  Past-due status; and
—  Nature, size and industry of debtors.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue to
share similar credit risk characteristics in accordance
with the internal credit risk categories as disclosed in
note 41.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised cost
of the financial asset.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)
Financial assets (Cont’d)
Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9

with transitions in accordance with note 2) (Cont'd)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Cont'd)
For undrawn loan commitments, the loss allowances
are the present value of the difference between:

(@) the contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group if the holder of the loan commitment
draws down the loan; and

(b) the cash flows that the Group expects to receive
if the loan is drawn down.

Except for loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts, the Group recognises an impairment gain
or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments by
adjusting their carrying amount, with the exception
of term loans, trade and other receivables, loans
and advances to consumer finance customers and
mortgage loans where the corresponding adjustment
is recognised through a loss allowance account. For
loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts,
the loss allowances are recognised as provisions.

(vi) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
and continues to control the transferred asset, the
Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and
an associated liability for amounts it may have to
pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity
instrument which the Group has elected on initial
recognition to measure at FVTOCI upon application
of HKFRS 9, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve
is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to
accumulated profits.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9

with transitions in accordance with note 2) (Cont’d)

(vii) Fair value measurement principles
Fair values of quoted investments are based on
quoted prices. For unlisted securities or financial assets
without an active market, the Group establishes the
fair value by using appropriate valuation techniques
including the use of recent arm’s length transactions,
reference to other investments that are substantially
the same, discounted cash flow analysis and option
pricing models.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1st January,
2018)

Financial assets are classified into the following
specified categories: financial assets at FVTPL, held-to-
maturity investments, AFS financial assets and loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the
time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on Tst January,
2018) (Cont’d)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial assets is either held for trading or it is designated as
at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

— it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

— on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

— itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for
trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

—  such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

— the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is
managed and its performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment strategy,
and information about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; or

— it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1st January,
2018) (Cont’d)

Available-for-sale financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or not classified as
financial assets at FVTPL, held-to-maturity investments or
loans and receivables.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are
classified as AFS financial assets and are traded in an
active market are measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period. Changes in the carrying amount
of AFS monetary financial assets relating to interest
income calculated using the effective interest method
and dividends on AFS equity investments are recognised
in profit or loss when the Group's right to receive the
dividends is established. Other changes in the carrying
amount of AFS financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the
heading of investment revaluation reserve. When the
investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or
loss (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment of
financial assets below).

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to
and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity
instruments are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of each reporting period
(see accounting policy on impairment of financial assets
below).

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including term loans, trade and
other receivables, amounts due from brokers, amounts
due from associates, amounts due from joint ventures,
short-term pledged bank deposit, bank deposits, cash
and cash equivalents, loans and advances to consumer
finance customers and mortgage loans) are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any impairment (see accounting policy on impairment of
financial assets below).
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on Tst January,
2018) (Cont'd)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition. Interest income is recognised on an
effective interest basis for debt instruments.

Derecognition
The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the

contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument
which the Group has elected on initial recognition to
measure at FVTOCI upon application of HKFRS 9, the
cumulative gain or loss previous accumulated in the
investments revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit
or loss, but is transferred to accumulated profits.

Fair value measurement principles

Fair values of quoted investments are based on bid
prices. For unlisted securities or financial assets without
an active market, the Group establishes the fair value by
using appropriate valuation techniques including the use
of recent arm’s length transactions, reference to other
investments that are substantially the same, discounted
cash flow analysis and option pricing models.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of
HKFRS 9 on 1st January, 2018)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets other than those at FVTPL, is
impaired. In the case of equity securities classified as AFS,
a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
securities below their cost is considered in determining
whether the securities are impaired. If any such evidence
exists for AFS financial assets, the cumulative loss
(measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that financial asset previously recognised in profit or
loss) is removed from equity and recognised in profit or
loss. Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss on
equity investments are not reversed through profit or loss.
Any increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment
loss is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under the heading of investment revaluation
reserve.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

—  breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments; or

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

— disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)
Financial assets (Cont’d)
Impairment of financial assets (before application of

HKFRS 9 on Tst January, 2018) (Cont'd)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. If, in a subsequent
period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.
Each receivable that is individually significant is reviewed
for indication of impairment at the end of each reporting
period. Loans and receivables that are individually not
significant and are assessed not to be impaired individually
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period on a
collective portfolio basis.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment

Individual impairment allowance applies to term loans
which are individually significant or have objective
evidence of impairment. In assessing the individual
impairment, management estimates the present value of
future cash flows which are expected to be received, taking
into account the borrower’s financial situation and the net
realisable value of the underlying collateral or guarantees
in favour of the Group. Each impaired asset is assessed on
its merits and the impairment allowance is measured as
the difference between the loan’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the loan’s original effective interest rate.

Collective impairment allowances cover credit
losses inherent in portfolios of loans receivable and
other accounts with similar economic and credit risk
characteristics where objective evidence for individual
impaired items cannot be identified. In assessing the
collective impairment, management makes assumptions
both to define the way the Group assesses inherent losses
and to determine the required input parameters, based
on historical loss experience and current economic
conditions. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method or at

FVTPL.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition. Interest expense is
recognised on an effective interest basis (other than those
financial liabilities classified as at FVTPL, of which the
interest expense is included in net gains or losses.)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial liability is (i) contingent consideration of an
acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS 3
applies, (ii) held for trading or (iii) it is designated as at
FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

— it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term; or

— oninitial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

— itis a derivative, except for a derivative that is a
financial guarantee contract or a designated and
effective hedging instrument.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont’d)
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(Cont’d)

A financial liability other than a financial liability held
for trading or contingent consideration of an acquirer in a
business combination may be designated as at FVTPL upon

initial recognition if:

—  such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

— the financial liability forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which
is managed and its performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment strategy,
and information about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; or

— it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKFRS 9/HKAS 39 permits
the entire combined contract to be designated as at
FVTPL.

Upon application of HKFRS 9, for financial liabilities that
are designated as at FVTPL, the amount of change in the
fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability is recognised
in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in
other comprehensive income would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk that
are recognised in other comprehensive income are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss; instead, they are
transferred to accumulated profits upon derecognition of
the financial liability.

Prior to application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018,
financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value recognised directly in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any interest paid on
the financial liabilities and is included in the “Net gain on
financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss” line item in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont’d)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including bank and other borrowings,
trade and other payables, financial assets sold under
repurchase agreements, amount due to a holding
company, amounts due to associates, amounts due to
joint ventures and notes/papers payable are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due in accordance with the original
or modified terms of a debt instrument.

A financial guarantee issued for rendering financial
guarantee service is initially measured at fair value as
represented by the consideration received from the
specified customers and the consideration received is
recognised as revenue on straight-line basis over the
guarantee period. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee at the higher of: (i)
the amount of obligation under the contract, as determined
in accordance with HKFRS 9 (since 1st January, 2018)/
HKAS 37 (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1st January,
2018); and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised over the
guarantee periods.

Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements
continue to be recognised, which do not result in
derecognition of the financial assets, and are recorded as
“financial assets at FVTPL”. Financial assets sold subject to
agreements with a commitment to repurchase at a specific
future date are not derecognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The proceeds from selling
such assets are presented as “financial assets sold under
repurchase agreements” in the consolidated statement of
financial position. Financial assets sold under repurchase
agreements are initially measured at fair value and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont’d)
Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including bank and other
borrowings, notes/papers payable, trade and other
payables, amount due to a holding company, amounts due
to associates and amounts due to joint ventures, which
are recognised initially at fair value, are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition/non-substantial modification of financial

liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit
or loss.

The Group accounts for an exchange with a lender of
a financial liability with substantially different terms as
an extinguishment of the original financial liability and
the recognition of a new financial liability. A substantial
modification of the terms of an existing financial
liability or a part of it (whether or not attributable to the
financial difficulty of the Group) is accounted for as an
extinguishment of the original financial liability and the
recognition of a new financial liability.

The Group considers that the terms are substantially
different if the discounted present value of the cash
flows under the new terms, including any fees paid net
of any fees received and discounted using the original
effective interest rate, is at least 10 per cent different
from the discounted present value of the remaining cash
flows of the original financial liability. Accordingly, such
exchange of debt instruments or modification of terms
is accounted for as an extinguishment, any costs or fees
incurred are recognised as part of the gain or loss on
the extinguishment. The exchange or modification is
considered as non-substantial modification when such
difference is less than 10 per cent.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont’d)
Non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities (under

HKFRS 9 since 1st January, 2018)

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities
that do not result in derecognition, the carrying amount
of the relevant financial liabilities will be calculated at
the present value of the modified contractual cash flows
discounted at the financial liabilities” original effective
interest rate. Transaction costs or fees incurred are
adjusted to the carrying amount of the modified financial
liabilities and are amortised over the remaining term. Any
adjustment to the carrying amount of the financial liability
is recognised in profit or loss at the date of modification.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue
or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date when derivative contracts are entered into and
are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the
end of the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the
derivative is designated and effective as a hedging
instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition
in profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedge
relationship.

Generally, multiple embedded derivatives in a single
instrument that are separated from the host contracts are
treated as a single compound embedded derivative unless
those derivatives relate to different risk exposures and are
readily separable and independent of each other.

Embedded derivatives (under HKFRS 9 since 1st January,
2018)

Derivatives embedded in hybrid contracts that contain
financial asset hosts within the scope of HKFRS 9 are not
separated. The entire hybrid contract is classified and
subsequently measured in its entirety as either amortised
cost or fair value as appropriate.

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts
that are not financial assets within the scope of HKFRS
9 are treated as separate derivatives when they meet the
definition of a derivative, their risks and characteristics are
not closely related to those of the host contracts and the
host contracts are not measured at FVTPL.

Embedded derivatives (before application of HKFRS 9 on
1st January, 2018)

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts
are treated as separate derivatives when they meet the
definition of a derivative, their risks and characteristics are
not closely related to those of the host contracts and the
host contracts are not measured at FVTPL.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event,
if it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation. Where the Group
expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only
when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense
relating to any provision is presented in profit or loss net of
any reimbursement.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control
of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising
from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that an outflow of economic resources will be
required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured
reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements. When
a change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
the outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a
provision.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average
method.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, bank
balances and short-term time deposits.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are set out as
follows.

Estimate of fair value of investment properties

At the end of the reporting period, investment properties
are stated at fair value based on the valuation performed
by independent professional valuers. In determining the
fair value, the valuer has based on a method of valuation
which involves certain estimates. In relying on the
valuation report, the management has exercised their
judgment and is satisfied that the assumptions used in
valuation are reflective of the current market conditions.

ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED
BawE (FEE)FRAIA
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONT’D)

Recoverable amount of associates

(i)

(ii)

In determining the recoverable amount of Tian An
China Investments Company Limited (“TACI”), a listed
associate included in note 23 (Note (i)), management
used appropriate assumptions to estimate the value
in use based on discounted future cash flows of the
associate. Where those assumptions and/or future
cash flows are different from expected, impairment
may arise.

In determining the recoverable amount of APAC
Resources Limited (“APAC”), a listed associate
included in note 23 (Note (i)), management used the
fair value less costs of disposal based on the market
value of APAC’s interest in its associates plus its other
assets and liabilities, and assessed if any impairment
may arise.

(iii) SHK disposed of its 70% interest in a wholly-owned

subsidiary Sun Hung Kai Financial Group Limited
(“SHKFGL”) in June 2015 and classified the remaining
30% equity interest as an associate. The Group’s
interest in SHKFGL is tested for impairment whenever
there is an impairment indicator. Determining whether
the interest in the associate is impaired requires an
estimation of the fair value less costs to sell or value
in use on the basis of data available to the Group. The
value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value. Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, or change in
facts and circumstances which results in downward
revision of future cash flows, a material impairment
loss/further impairment loss may arise.

BE_F—/F+_A=1t—HILFE
At T REERZE 2 T ERR ()

4.
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(iii)
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(CONT’D)

Impairment allowances on loans and advances to
consumer finance customers and mortgage loans

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for the
loans and advances to consumer finance customers and
mortgage loans. The provision rates are based on aging
of different consumer finance loan products and based
on groupings of various debtors that have similar loss
patterns. The provision matrix is based on the Group's
historical default rates taking into consideration forward-
looking information that is reasonably supportable and
available without undue costs or effort. At every reporting
date, the historical observed default rates are reassessed
and changes in the forward-looking information are
considered. Loans and advances to consumer finance
customers and mortgage loans with significant balances
and credit impaired are assessed for ECL individually.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.
The estimates would include the amount and timing of
future cash flows, guarantee and collateral values when
determining impairment allowances. These estimates are
driven by a number of factors, changes in which can result
in different levels of allowances. The Group considers
reasonably supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort for this purpose. This
includes quantitative and qualitative information and also,
forward-looking analysis. Details of expected credit loss
are set out in note 41(b). The information about the ECL
and the Group’s loans and advances to consumer finance
customers and mortgage loans are disclosed in note 26
and note 27 respectively.

Impairment allowances on term loans

The ECL for term loans is based on the Group’s historical
default rates taking into consideration forward-looking
information that is reasonably supportable and available
without undue costs or effort. At every reporting date,
the historical observed default rates are reassessed and
changes in the forward-looking information are considered.
Term loans with significant balances and credit impaired
are assessed for ECL individually.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONT’D)

Impairment allowances on term loans (Cont’d)

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.
The estimates would include the amount and timing of
future cash flows, guarantee and collateral values when
determining impairment allowances. These estimates are
driven by a number of factors, changes in which can result
in different levels of allowances. The Group considers
reasonably supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort for this purpose. This
includes quantitative and qualitative information and also,
forward-looking analysis. Details of expected credit loss
are set out in note 41(b). The information about the ECL
and the Group'’s term loans are disclosed in note 29.

Estimated impairment of goodwill and intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives

The Group conducts tests for impairment of goodwill
and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives annually
in accordance with the relevant accounting standards.
Determining whether the goodwill and the intangible assets
are impaired requires an estimation of the fair value less
costs to sell or value in use on the basis of data available to
the Group. Where future cash flows are less than expected,
an impairment loss may arise.

Deferred tax

Estimating the amount for recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from tax losses and other deductible temporary
differences requires a process that involves forecasting
future years’ taxable income and assessing the Group's
ability to utilise tax benefits through future earnings. Where
the actual future profits generated are more or less than
expected, a recognition or reversal of the deferred tax assets
may arise, which would be recognised in profit or loss for
the period in which such a recognition or reversal takes
place. While the current financial models indicate that the
recognised tax losses and deductible temporary differences
can be utilised in the future, any changes in assumptions,
estimates and tax regulations can affect the recoverability
of this deferred tax asset.

Fair value of derivative and financial instruments

The Group selects appropriate valuation techniques for
financial instruments not quoted in an active market.
Tables regarding the valuation of material financial assets
under level 3 in note 25 provides detailed information
about the key assumptions used in the determination of the
fair value of material financial instruments.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

5.

BE_F—/F+_A=t—HILFE

5.

REVENUE
Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable
that are derived from the provision of consumer finance,
property rental, sale of properties, hotel operations and
property management services, provision of consultancy
and other services, interest and dividend income, income
from term loan financing and elderly care services. An
analysis of the Group's revenue for the year is as follows:
Contracts with customers BEFEZEH
Hotel operations BT SEH5
Management services B AR
Service income and others RS W B HeAth
Elderly care services R
Interest income on loans and advances 1% & Rl % P 83K %
to consumer finance customers Bz B

Interest income received from banks,

term loans and others HoAth e P 2 FLE A
Property rental SYE iiN-
Dividend income BB A

Total revenue of HK$4,915.4 million for the year ended
31st December, 2018 comprises HK$4,277.6 million
recognised at a point in time and HK$637.8 million
recognised overtime.

As at 31st December, 2018, for the Group’s contracts
with customers with an original duration of one year or
less and for contracts with customers with unsatisfied
or partially unsatisfied performance obligations where
the Group has the right to bill the customers an amount
that corresponding to the values of the services provided
to the customers, the transaction prices allocated to the
unsatisfied performance obligations for these contracts
with customers is not disclosed accordingly.

AT - AR

WA

WA B S i Bl - e
AP ~ I S L S BIRES - 2
AR s B HCAt AR5 ~ FLE R BB ~ &
S e e RS W B W S R 2
I o DUN A AL EFER WA Z T

2018 2017
—EB-N\F  “FLF
HK$ Million  HK$ Million
HEBT A # T
70.8 64.0

248.8 205.2
126.5 120.9

92.0 79.4

538.1 469.5
3,388.5 3,074.8
744.4 590.4
233.1 228.8

11.3 10.8
4,377.3 3,904.8
4,915.4 4,374.3
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

5.

REVENUE (CONT’D)

Revenue from contracts with customers are included in the

segment revenue as follows:

Hotel operations
Management services
Service income and others
Elderly care services

Revenue from contracts
with customers

Hotel operations
Management services
Service income and others
Elderly care services

Revenue from contracts with
customers

ES
ERRH
TR B e
M

RAEF 284
WA

NS
ERRH
TR B e
s

RAEFZAH
A

HE_F— ) FET_H=1—HILERE

5. WA(&)

B EHEF Z G HAFEAZS BRI > 5178

LI
2018
—E-N\fF
Property
rental, hotel
operations and
management
Investment services
and finance Consumer MERE
BE finance EIRER Others Total
ke HESR RERRK At k]
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT
- - 70.8 - 70.8
0.4 - 248.4 - 248.8
97.3 29.2 - - 1265
- - - 92.0 92.0
97.7 29.2 319.2 92.0 538.1
2017
S
Property
rental, hotel
operations and
management
[nvestment services
and finance Consumer WM -
g finance I Others Total
P& HEH REERE ot k)
HKS Million HKS$ Million HKS Million HKS Million HK$ Million
HEBT HEET HEBT AEET HEBT
- - 64.0 - 64.0
03 - 2049 - 205.2
76.4 45 - - 120.9
- - - 79.4 79.4
76.7 44.5 268.9 79.4 469.5
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

6.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

The operating business organised and managed in each
segment represents a strategic business unit that offers
different products and services for the purpose of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance by the
Executive Directors of the Company. The Group has the
following reportable and operating segments:

—  Investment and finance — investment and provision of
mortgage loan and term loan financing.

—  Consumer finance — providing consumer loan finance
products.

—  Property rental, hotel operations and management
services — property rental, hotel operations managed
by third parties and provision of property management
services.

—  Others — elderly care services, development and sale
of properties and property based investments.

Inter-segment transactions have been entered into on terms
agreed by the parties concerned.

Segment results represent the results earned by each
strategic business unit without allocation of reversal of
impairment loss on interests in associates, impairment loss
on interest in an associate, finance costs, share of results of
associates and share of results of joint ventures.

195

BE_F—/F+_A=t—HILFE

6.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

6.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (CONT’D)

@

Segment revenue and results

Analysis of the Group’s revenue and results is as

follows:

Segment revenue ZhERA
Less: inter-segment revenue 15 : A Z A

Segment revenue from A ESMNFEF 2
external customers IHBIA

Segment results IR
Reversal of impairment loss  #[el i B8 A 6l 2
on interests in associates 4 Bl

Finance costs BERA

Share of results of associates FE{fEi#& /A Fl L4

Share of results of JEfh A A
joint ventures |

Profit before taxation BRBLRT A

Taxation BH

Profit for the year AR A

HE_F— ) FET_H=1—HILERE
6. DEER(E)
(i) DEHWARES

A 2 WA S EESE A HTINR
2018
“§-0\%

Property

rental, hotel

operations and

management

services

Investment Consumer MERE -
and finance finance EEER Others Total
RERSH HESH REBRK Hity g
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT BBET BERT BEBT BERT
877.0 3,422.1 544.3 92.6 4,936.0
(5.0) - (15.6) - (20.6)
872.0 3,422.1 528.7 92.6 4,915.4
1,097.1 1,207.9 754.4 7.8 3,067.2
77.6
(455.8)
498.5
3.8 - 3324 - 336.2
3,523.7
(247.5)
3,276.2
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

6.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (CONT’D)

@

Segment revenue and results (Cont’d)

BE_F - N\FH+A=+—HILFE
6. ZEER(H)
OJ: LONES 1€ )

2017
CE—LE
Property
rental, hotel
operations and
management
services
Investment Consumer WEEME
and finance finance ST Others Total
RE LG HESH TE B Hh ok
HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HK$ Million
H#EkT HEIBT H#EBT HEIBT HEET
Segment revenue IR 701.9 3,122.2 488.8 80.0 43929
Less: inter-segment revenue i, : 7.2 1A (6.3) - (12.3) - (18.6)
Segment revenue from A ESMEEF 2
external customers A 695.6 3,122.2 476.5 80.0 43743
Segment results IHER 14443 1,444.7 1,040.7 3.9 3,933.6
Reversal of impairment loss  48[el i — il A v 2
on interest in an associate 4.2 il A 107.6
Impairment loss on R ATZ
interest in an associate 2 W EE R (4.1)
Finance costs R A (384.3)
Share of results of associates JE{f i/ 724G 12773
Share of results of FEE G B AR
joint ventures E (287) - 688.1 - 659.4
Profit before taxation BBl AT G A 5,589.5
Taxation BiE (322.0)
Profit for the year A A 5,267.5
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018 BEF—/\FET_H=T—HILFE

6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (CONT’D) 6. DEPERI(E)

(i) Segment assets and liabilities (i) PHWEERERE

2018
“E-N\EF

Property

rental, hotel

operations and

management

services

Investment Consumer MERE
and finance finance BEEKR Others Total
RERSH HESRE ERRE Hity &%
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HKS$ Million
BEAT BEAT BBET BEAT BEAT

Segment assets AR 24,348.4 15,674.8 9,722.2 455 49,790.9
Interests in associates RSN R 2 R 13,257.8
Interests in joint ventures AT 240.2 - 3,214.8 - 3,455.0
Deferred tax assets EREREE R 730.3
Amounts due from associates B /AT KK 533.0
Amounts due from joint ventures A /AR K3 - - 9.8 - 9.8
Tax recoverable T B 6.1
Total assets B 67,782.9
Segment liabilities HHaE 1,780.0 5,560.1 96.6 15.1 7,451.8
Amounts due to associates Y YNGR 74
Amounts due to joint ventures KA /AR - - 40.1 - 40.1
Tax payable TEftBR 188.6
Bank and other borrowings BT LI 4,206.0
Notes/papers payable TEf o 7,676.0
Deferred tax liabilities EHEAE 332.2
Total liabilities A B 19,902.1
ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED
Aﬂ\ BonE (BAE)ERD A A e



for the year ended 31st December, 2018

6.

Segment assets

Interests in associates

Interests in joint ventures
Deferred tax assets

Amounts due from associates
Amounts due from joint ventures
Tax recoverable

Total assets

Segment liabilities

Amounts due to associates
Amounts due to joint ventures
Tax payable

Bank and other borrowings
Notes payable

Deferred tax liabilities

Total liabilities

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (CONT’D)

(ii) Segment assets and liabilities (Cont’d)

i
REEAT
RARATLZ S
BERIAHR
ARk
BRATRE

A el R
B

g

U it
KEBAFAFE
REfHBLR
RAT R AR
LRES
EHAAR

A

BE_F—/F+_A=t—HILFE

6. ZEHER(E)

(i) PHEEREEER)

2017
CE—LE

Property

rental, hotel

operations and

management

services

Investment Consumer PEME -
and finance finance ST Others Total
REREM HESH B ity Rk
HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HK$ Million
HET HEIBT H#EBT HEIBT HEBT
19,709.8 15,535.1 9,166.0 35.7 44,446.6
13,288.0
280.2 - 2,883.5 - 3,163.7
649.6
503.3
- - 9.1 - 9.1
5.9
62,066.2
1,410.9 3,552.2 84.5 12.2 5,059.8
7.4
- - 0.1 - 0.1
156.6
12120
8,007.4
328.6
14,771.9
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200
for the year ended 31st December, 2018

6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (CONT’D) 6.

(iii) The geographical information of revenue and non-
current assets are disclosed as follows:

Revenue from external customers by i Y b B 40 1
location of operations VNIRRT UN
Hong Kong i
Mainland China R[] A i
Others FiAty

No revenue arising from transactions with a single
external customer amounted to 10% or more of the
Group's revenue for the year.

HEEN BRI

Non-current assets other than
financial assets and deferred

tax assets by location of assets LA JE i B
Hong Kong it
Mainland China HH B A 3L
Others Aty

BE_F—NEtT_H=1T—HIERE
PER(4E)
(i) W

ARFERBEE 2 #hiFERHFE W
T:

2018 2017

—E-N\F ZE LA

HK$ Million HK$ Million

BEBT EX: Yoo

3,743.5 3,365.4

1,163.1 999.2

8.8 9.7

4,915.4 4,374.3

R > MR § AN R F 285
I AAEAREE B AR 10%E A | o

<o VT 7 I AR AE L SH S

2018 2017
—E-NHF —E—t4E
HK$ Million  HK$ Million

BEAT X Yiow
30,108.4 28,963.6
626.5 599.8
719.2 900.9
31,454.1 30,464.3
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018 BEF—/\FET_H=1T—HILFE
6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (CONT’D) 6. DEHER(ME)
(iv) Other segment information (iv) Eftt o EpE R
2018
ZE-N\F
Property
rental, hotel
operations and
management
services
Investment Consumer  Y¥EHEE
and finance finance EEBR Others Total
RERGH HESH EERK Hit wam

HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million  HKS$ Million
BEET BEET BEET BEET BEET

Included in segment ANRER/
results/segment assets nERE

Depreciation and itk

amortisation i 15.3 40.4 224 07 78.8
Impairment loss on hotel ~ HEFRVERE4E 2 WifE

property recognised it - - 0.5 - 0.5

Net increase (decrease) in R &2 A TEE
fair value of investment 34111 ()

properties i 186.0 0.9 5719 - 757.0
Net impairment losses SRTAZWE
(gains) on financial TR (s
instruments H 69.5 833.6 (0.6) 0.1 902.6
Capital expenditure BRI 13.0 249 45.2 0.5 83.6
2017
“F—t
Property
rental, hotel
operations and
management
services
Investment Consumer WHEHE -
and finance finance TG R Others Total
REREM HELH EHRIRE Hh Rk

HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HK$ Million
H#EkT HEIBT HEBT AEIBT HEBL

Included in segment ATARRES/
results/segment assets A

Depreciation and e R

amortisation s 13.8 43 226 0.5 80.2
Impairment loss on hotel ~ HERVE IS4 2 BifH

property recognised [ - - 0.8 - 0.8
Impairment loss on it E e EE

available-for-sale LB

financial assets it 176.2 - - - 176.2
Net increase in fair value of &%

investment properties BRI 119.0 14 862.7 - 983.1
Bad and doubtful debts R 89.4 2973 0.6 0.1 387.4
Capital expenditure AR 435 13.2 238.2 0.8 295.7
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7. CHANGES IN VALUES OF PROPERTIES

BE_F - /FH_A=1t—HILFE
7. MIREEED

2018 2017
—E-N\F  ZFhF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEET A E T
Changes in values of properties comprise: ¥ ZE{E (B B (17
Net increase in fair value of P& N TE
investment properties Ryl 757.0 983.1
Impairment loss recognised for FRERDIPI G )2 2
hotel property HE 1R (0.5) (0.8)
756.5 982.3

The recognition of impairment loss was based on the lower
of cost and value in use for hotel property. The value in
use was determined based on independent professional
valuations at 31st December, 2018.

8. NET GAIN ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT
OR LOSS

The following is an analysis of the net gain on financial
assets and liabilities at FVTPL:

e 2 a0 (LM 1R T 5 JA Y S5 ) 3 2 JRUAS B
B AR E 2 R FH - fREE
TR — % — /4 A =+—H Z M5
HOEEAGEEE

8. EBRESREAVEEREZEME

EREBBREFE

12 4R i AR A P (B R B 4 T S
Bl s AT AR

2018 2017
A% e St S
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEAT A &I
Net realised and unrealised (loss) gain on 4l & /5 % £ & B A# 3 b AR
financial assets and liabilities Bl (18 Wi s 1H 4R
Held for trading FefEse o Rl (224.6) 297.9
Financial assets at 75 18 5 4 BRI F
FVTPL TE B R B 2 4 Rl 460.3 932.0
235.7 1,229.9
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9. NET IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON FINANCIAL 9. £RTAZHEREEE FHE
INSTRUMENTS/BAD AND DOUBTFUL DEBTS

2018 2017
—EB-N\F R LA
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEEBT A E##ETT
Loans and advances to consumer HESREF B3
finance customers P&
Net impairment losses before recoveries Ui [l fif () 3ok {1 7 4 75 4 1,025.0 -
Recoveries of amounts previously £ 1A [B] 55 i A
written off I RIH (195.1) -
Bad and doubtful debts SRR - 277.3
829.9 277.3
Mortgage loans L 7S120°
Net impairment losses before recoveries i [l i (1) Joi {F s 46 15 48 4.5 -
Recoveries of amounts previously £ Wi [m] e i H s
written off ) FIE 0.7) =
Bad and doubtful debts SRR - 3.2
3.8 3.2
Term loans, trade and other FHIAER - E 5 KM HAh
receivables JEWCRIH
Net impairment losses before recoveries i [l Aij () Jai {1 s 46 15 48 70.3 -
Recoveries of amounts previously Ui ] 5 T A B
written off A IE (1.4) =
Bad and doubtful debts SRIEIR - 106.9
68.9 106.9
902.6 387.4
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10. DIRECTORS’, EMPLOYEES’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(@) The emoluments paid or payable to each of the seven

BE_F - N\F+A=+—HILFE
10. E% - BERSREEZEM

@ EBNIENtH(ZF—tF:+tH)

(2017: seven) Directors were as follows: BEECMEmT -
2018
—E-N\fF
Chief Executive
Lee Seng Hui Mark Wong
TR Tai Chun Li Chi Kong? Total
EHE BN | =Rl ok
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
HEET BEAT BERT HEET
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS ~ #{T&%
Directors’ fees HEWE - - - _
Salaries/service fees and  #i4: /TR E: K
other benefits HAER 3.11 1.25 0.63 4.99
Bonus payments (Note) ~ {EAL (FEfi%) 21.98 0.83 0.90 23.71
Retirement benefits HEY NV |
scheme contributions HEk 0.06 0.06 0.03 0.15
Sub-total gt 25.15 2.14 1.56 28.85

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.

From Tst January to 30th June, 2018

ERPIR AT S 2 e B S
WA 7 e A A B P 2 RS o

‘ bH_F— F—H—HERA=1H

2018
—E-N\E
Chairman
Arthur
George Dew  Li Chi Kong* Total
FEIREE ZE [ 4 EE
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEAETT BEBT BEERT
NON-EXECUTIVE T
DIRECTORS BEx
Directors’ fees A4 - - -
Salaries/service fees and Hid S REE K
other benefits FHoAth A5 A1 0.92 0.26 1.18
Bonus payments (Note) AL (GEf#%) 1.23 - 1.23
Retirement benefits RARAEAFRE
scheme contributions 3K - - -
Sub-total /INEE 2.15 0.26 2.41

The non-executive directors” emoluments shown
above were mainly for their services as directors of
the Company or its subsidiary.

# From Tst July to 31st December, 2018

ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED
BatE (FEE)FRAIA

ERPRIFMITER e ERR
SR IR ) B 8 R 2 2 R
B o

H-Z—A\FLtHA—-HE+_A=+—
A
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10. DIRECTORS’, EMPLOYEES’ AND SENIOR 10. EZ - GEREREEEMS ()
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (CONT’D)

(@) The emoluments paid or payable to each of the seven (@ BENRESFER(ZZ—FF: £3H)
(2017: seven) Directors were as follows: (Cont’d) EECMEmT (&)
2018
ZB-N\F
David Craig
Alan Stephen Bartlett  Steven Samuel Total
Jones HEE Zoellner ek
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET BEAT BERAT BEET

INDEPENDENT NON- B3I
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS  #i{TE=

Directors’ fees HHE 0.02 0.02 - 0.04
Salaries/service fees and ¥4 /M &
other benefits HAaA] 0.54 0.29 0.05 0.88
Bonus payments fEAL - - - -
Retirement benefits scheme 8 /&85t #
contributions it - - - -
Sub-total Y 0.56 0.31 0.05 0.92
The independent non-executive directors’ BRI TE R < R
emoluments shown above were mainly for their TSR A m) SR g A w]
services as directors of the Company or its subsidiary. IR o
2018
—B-)N\F
HK$ Million
BEETL
Total At 32.18
2017
“E—LiE
Chief Executive
Lee Seng Hui Mark Wong
TTBAE R Li Chi Kong Tai Chun Total
2 U 2 ) EN o
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
HE T HEET HEET HE T
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS ~ #i{7&E
Directors’ fees HHWE - - - -
Salaries/service fees and ¥4/ MB &
other benefits Hob Al 3.57 1.26 121 6.04
Bonus payments (Note) ~ {EAL (FEfi%) 21.56 0.71 0.82 23.09
Retirement benefits scheme #& (/45 #1511
contributions K 0.04 0.06 0.06 0.16
Sub-total NGt 25.17 2.03 2.09 29.29
The executive directors’ emoluments shown above ERFRBATESR M R AR
were mainly for their services in connection with the A T Mo A S B A B 8 2 IS o
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.
A ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K) LIMITED /;nr%aL et 2013
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10. DIRECTORS’, EMPLOYEES’ AND SENIOR 10. = - EEREREEEMS ()

MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (CONT’D)

@ EBNIENtH(ZT—tF:tH)

(@) The emoluments paid or payable to each of the seven

(2017: seven) Directors were as follows: (Cont’d)

EszMEm® : (8)

2017
LA
Chairman
Arthur George
Dew Total
B0 GHEES KA
HK$ Million HK$ Million
HE I HE I
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR FHITES
Directors’ fees e - =
Salaries/service fees and other e R K
benefits HoAth g A 0.88 0.88
Bonus payments (Note) fEAL (5Ef%) 1.22 1.22
Retirement benefits scheme RARAE A FEE
contributions HEK = -
Sub-total /NEF 2.10 2.10

The non-executive d

irector’s emoluments shown

above were mainly for his services as directors of the

ERPR T ER e ER R
SEAE R AR I BB 8 W S 2 i

Company or its subsidiary. ¥ e
2017
“E—HAE
David Craig
Alan Stephen Bartlett  Steven Samuel Total
Jones 9 fl Zoellner A
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
HEBIT A& AEET HEHT
INDEPENDENT NON- B
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS ~ J#{TEE
Directors’ fees EHNE 0.02 0.02 = 0.04
Salaries/service fees and  #i4: /IRI5E &
other benefits HAmEA 0.53 0.28 0.05 0.86
Bonus payments fear - - - -
Retirement benefits B AT E
scheme contributions 3 = = = =
Sub-total INET 0.55 0.30 0.05 0.90

The independent non-executive directors’
emoluments shown above were mainly for their

services as directors of

the Company or its subsidiary.

bR I AT S I
T B A m B 8 ml s

Z MR o
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

10. DIRECTORS’, EMPLOYEES’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (CONT’D)

(@)

(b)

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the seven
(2017: seven) Directors were as follows: (Cont’d)

Total Mt

Note: The amounts represented the actual discretionary bonus in
respect of the preceding year approved and paid to respective
directors during the year.

Certain Directors of the Company received
remuneration from the Company’s holding company.
The holding company provided management services
to the Group and charged the Group a management
service fee, which is included in share of management
service expenses as disclosed in note 47(a), for
services provided by these Directors as well as other
management personnel who were not Directors of the
Company.

The management service fee is calculated by
reference to the time devoted by the management
personnel on the affairs of the Group and therefore
can be apportioned to the Directors mentioned
above. The total of such apportioned amounts, which
has been included in the above table, is HK$31.26
million (2017: HK$31.39 million).

The service fee of each of the Independent Non-
Executive Directors was increased by approximately
6% to 8% with effect from 1st January, 2019 as
compared with 2018.

Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals included one (2017:
one) of the Directors, details of whose emoluments
are set out in note 10(a) above. The combined
emoluments of the remaining four (2017: four)
individuals are as follows:

Salaries and other benefits
Bonus payments
Retirement benefit scheme contributions

ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED
BawE (FEE)FRAIA

HE_%

—NE+ZA=+—HILHEE

10. EX - EERSREEEME ()

(@

(b)

Rz S HLAbAR A

AR AR A A

ENHEFER(ZE—tF : £H)
EszMEmT : (8)

2017
“E -t
HK$ Million

HE#ET

32.29

REAE A BRI A PR 4 B A AR B
I R FE AL o

AN A T E B RA A Z s ]
W B <z o PRESBC N Rl i AS SR BRI
PR - S 1 A S [ WA IO B 5
M W25 B NAE M EE47 (a) 1 8% 7 B
WA BRAR S 2 11 > Tota SE EE e Rl
AN E R 2 HANE G B fe it
Z WA S AT o

EMRBE 25 EHE N B AR
L FEHARNA Z R HIFHE > BT 3%
LBt 2= bt = - R 2 5%
L3I L) 43 I R AR AE 5 31.26 B B
To( L4 3139 BT) ©

HoZ—FE—HH# > S8k
HATHEFE WG ER T — /\F LT
#16%%8% o

EEME

4Rz N EEE % (%
— LK) EH > EMEFEEER
® B EE10(a) « HERMU A (ZF
—L4E W) N EZEEEESIT

2018 2017
—E-N\F —F g
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT B &I
25.8 26.2

53.6 74.3

1.7 1.3

81.1 101.8
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10. DIRECTORS’, EMPLOYEES’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (CONT’D)

(b) Employees’ emoluments (Cont'd)

(c)

The emoluments of the above employees, who
were not Directors of the Company, were within the
following bands:

HK$6,000,001 — HK$6,500,000
HK$7,500,001 — HK$8,000,000
HK$9,500,001 — HK$10,000,000
HK$20,500,001 - HK$21,000,000
HK$26,500,001 — HK$27,000,000
HK$46,500,001 — HK$47,000,000
HK$57,500,001 - HK$58,000,000

Senior management’s emoluments

Of the senior management of the Group, seven (2017:
all seven) were the Directors of the Company whose
emoluments are included in the disclosure above.
The combined emolument of the remaining one (2017:
none) individual is as follows:

Salaries and other benefits 3 4 R LA 4 A

Bonus payments fEAL

Retirement benefit scheme BARFE A
contributions K

From 1st July to 31st December, 2018
The emolument of the above senior management who

was not Directors of the Company, was within the
following band:

HK$0 — HK$1,000,000

HE_E

—NE+ZA=+—HILHEE

10. EE - EERSREEEME ()

(b) EEME(HE)

6,000,001 7T —6,500,000% 7T
7,500,001 7C — 8,000,000% 7T
9,500,001 7T —10,000,000% 7T
20,500,001% 75 —21,000,000% JC
26,500,001 75 —27,000,000% JC
46,500,001 75 —47,000,000% JC
57,500,001 7C — 58,000,000 7T

(c)

EHIC — 1,000,000% 70

FAE Bl A A FITE R - E I
LU

Number of employees
BEAR
2018
—E-N\§

2017
—F—tE

_ | =
|

-]
[

EREHEEHS

AEFEZ (ZF—LE  23EH)
EMAREIE AR NFER > HE
e E TR L Hfp—& (—F
—L4E ) AN R A 45 A

-
2018# 2017

—E-N\Es —FE L

HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT HE I

0.3 —

0.1 -

0.4 —

%/ FEA—-AEF A=t R

bt SR B A AT 2 E
Bz M- LL T HEE

Number of employees

BEAZ
2018 2017
—E-N\E e S i
1 _
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

11. INFORMATION ABOUT MATERIAL INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
OR CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
to which the Company, its holding company, or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which
the Directors or an entity connected with the Directors had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year. For
information:

(i)

(if)

a tenancy agreement dated 29th November, 2017
for a term commenced from 19th November, 2017
entered into between Mr. Lee Seng Hui as the tenant
and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
as the landlord was terminated on 14th February,
2018. The total rental of HK$0.5 million received
therefrom during the period from 1st January, 2018 to
14th February, 2018 (2017: HK$4.1 million received
during the year ended 31st December, 2017) is
considered insignificant in relation to the Group’s
business.

(a) a tenancy agreement dated 12th July, 2016 was
entered into between San Pack Properties Limited
(“San Pack”, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company) as the landlord and San Tai
Distribution Company Limited (“San Tai”, a company
of which Mr. Edwin Lo King Yau, a director of the
holding company of the Company, can exercise more
than 50% of the voting rights at the general meetings)
as the tenant for the period from 1st July, 2016 to
30th June, 2019; (b) a tenancy agreement dated 4th
November, 2016 was entered into between San Pack
as the landlord and China Pacific Group Limited
(“China Pacific”, a company of which Mr. Edwin Lo
King Yau can exercise more than 50% of the voting
rights at the general meetings) as the tenant for the
period from Tst April, 2016 to 31st March, 2019;
and (c) a logistics and warehouse services agreement
dated 27th March, 2017 was entered into between
San Pack as the client and San Tai as the service
provider for the period from 1st April, 2017 to 30th
June, 2019. The total rental of HK$14.1 million (2017:
HK$14.1 million) received therefrom and the total
service fee of HK$0.4 million (2017: HK$0.3 million)
paid thereto during the year ended 31st December,
2018 are considered insignificant in relation to the
Group’s business.

HE_%

—NE+ZA=+—HILHEE

1. ARESAR S » ZHFREGHNTHE
REZNER

TR A JBE A 25 i BB AR 4F BE (R AL AT BRp ] >
A w] ~ HAERE m sHAT AT & 2 7]
(7] 2% B g 2~ ) Stz A T 7. 8 o L A )
R BN R R M AR AT
HERY) ~ R EH - 2%

7= RS (TR BT ) BiLAR 8 7] —[H]
EEMBAT EHEE) R _FE—L
Ft—H I HF L E R >
e —F—tE+—HFILHEAL
B M EER - FE—/\4E A
0 H & o R — NF—H—H
A — 4 H 10 B R stk
P05 | BB (—F—+L
F gz F—-tE+ - H=+—
H k4B B 4.1 B B IT) B A% 5
B s B AEK -

(a) Ll AE B ZEABRA A ([ ILAE | > AR
Az HEEZEEENBAR) ER¥EE)
=R EEAERAF ([ =8> 5
Wit RN TR ZHERA R Z D) 1]
A BE SRR A7 (1 R 48 5 0% 8 ZEAE Y A
A (FEAMF) sTar— A =&
—NEL A+ HZHE W
B FE—NELH—-HE _Z—L4E
ANH=1H 5 (b) g (FEAZEE) H
W RE ST A E A R AR ([HEE] > 25
Soph oA n] i B RO e A T B R 50%
LM AT ERBF) 5L — 10
Hi A —F—NE+—HNHZHE
Whie > AHIAA —F—NFNUA—HE
SE-NUF=ZA=1—H 5 Kol
o EAKF) B =% (/E &R LRE
M) R —fHE A —F—L44E=H
— 1t HZYiR KRR
AR AE - FE—tHENA —HE %
—NENA=Z1TH BEEFE— /4
+ = A=+ H L4 U R A AL
G141 H BB (L FE— L4
14.1H B T0) KT S5 IR BS 4 A8
0AE B IL(—FE—LF 03/ %
W) ML E TSN S B A E K -
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

12.

13.

FINANCE COSTS

Interest on following liabilities:
Bank borrowings
Notes/papers payable

Total finance costs
included in:
Cost of sales and other direct costs
Finance costs

All finance costs were derived from financial liabilities not
at fair value through profit or loss for both years.

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation has been
arrived at after charging:

Auditors’ remuneration
Amortisation of intangible assets
— computer software
Amortisation of prepaid land
lease payments
Depreciation
Expenses recognised for employee
ownership scheme of SHK
Impairment loss on AFS financial
assets measured at fair value
(included in other operating
expenses)
Impairment loss on interest in
an associate (included in
other operating expenses)
Loss on disposal of joint
ventures (including in
other operating expenses)
Net loss on disposal/write-off of
property, plant and equipment
Retirement benefit scheme
contributions
Staff costs (including Directors’
emoluments but excluding
contributions to retirement benefit
schemes and expenses recognised
for the employee ownership scheme
of SHK)

BRA Air v A1l 2

kR

23 IR
ST e 6
— 7B S o
TEAHAE
8
e
AT (7 B
BEAT B R 2 %
AP EERHE
T {36 4 il
WEREE
(FF A A % 22 )
A — PRI A W) 2 W i 2
WERE
(FH A A R % 22 )
HEAE N A 2 R
(R AHAb LS E

)
YIS - R
B 2 1R A
R R ]

K

B THA (aiE#E S
BN R NDE LS
AR B
BB {2 B 5
AR
#1)

BE_F—/F+_A=t—HILFE

. BERA
2018 2017
—g_\E kA
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT EE Y
DI & A E

RITEE 286.6 198.0
AT 5 381.9 344.5
668.5 542.5

A THIEE N Z

Rl AN AR
S B B A B HAt 4 A 212.7 158.2
V& A 455.8 384.3
668.5 542.5

% P4 52 i Al JSCAR T 20 I 92
1R Rl A TR E R B Sl A fi o

13. BREIAIEF]

2018 2017
—B-N\F —ThF
HK$ Million  HKS$ Million
HEBT H T
6.9 6.2

1.9 1.8

0.2 0.1

76.7 78.3

8.3 6.4

- 176.2

- 4.1

0.5 -

1.1 1.5

86.6 85.5
901.7 875.4
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13. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (CONT’D)

ok

year ended 31st December, 2018

BE_F - N\FH+A=+—HILFE
13. BRBiATRA ()

2018 2017
—E2-)\F B4
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEBT H ¥ T
and after crediting: WEFHA -
Dividend income from listed T AR R A R
equity securities A 8.9 10.8
Dividend income from unlisted FE LT A R SR S
equity securities WA 2.4 -
Gain on deemed disposal of TRAE A — g
an associate (included in NEIZ W (FEA
other income) HAthse A) 17.6 -
Gain on disposal of HERE AR Z
subsidiaries (included in Wt (A A
other income) *** LA ) #k 132.4 -
Gain on disposal of an associate HE RS AT 2
(included in other income) ** Wt (FEAFAIEA) ** 36.8 -
Rental income from investment WEHAREYE
properties under operating leases, L NS
net of outgoings of HK$26.8 million Zi26.8H BT
(2017: HK$26.6 million) (ZF—L4 1 26.68 EHIL) 200.1 196.0
Reversal of impairment loss on FE R R A T 2
interests in associates T 5 2 Sk (B s 18
(included in other income) * (FEA AR A) * 77.6 107.6

SHK disposed of 70% interest in its wholly-owned subsidiary
SHKFGL in June 2015 and classified the remaining 30% equity
interest as an associate. The recoverable amount was measured
at fair value less cost of disposal of SHKFGL. The fair value was
measured by discounted cash flow approach at the reporting date
using a discount rate of 17.0% per annum. As part of the disposal,
the Group was awarded a put right on the 30% equity interest of
SHKFGL. This put right recorded a valuation gain during the year of
HK$67.0 million (2017: HK$1.0 million) classified under net gain
on financial assets and liabilities at FVTPL. A reversal of impairment
loss on interest in SHKFGL amounting to HK$66.7 million (2017:
HK$107.6 million) was included in the amount of reversal of
impairment loss on interests in associates for the year ended 31st
December, 2018.

The Group disposed of its 38.09% interest in an associate, Tanami
Gold NL, to APAC Resources Mining Limited (a wholly-owned
subsidiary of APAC, an associate of the Group), on 5th June, 2018
for a consideration of HK$119.8 million, resulting a gain of HK$36.8
million recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

*ok

ATF—RAENA > HiEREES EHAE R A
AT A AL I 2 70% 38 5 I EER T 30%
JRERE A S — THTH 2 A R B o T g ] < 6 A
ST e i A ) TR DR o B AR o
H AT 1B DA B 1 7.0% 4 R A S B
EIMAIEIEE o (Ef I BEFIEN B A
42 B HEAZ T 7106 ik 4 T 42 1B 1) 3. 0% FREARE P 5
TR HE AT R SR AR A (B IR £5 67.0 T E5 s
JG(ZF—LAF 1.0 8 0) o REINGERE
T R N A (R B . 4 R o I B (i 25
B B2 \F+A=1T—HILFE
FEAE [ B A T 2 M 2R 2 BE IR S A A
55 98 I A S ik 6 T 42 ) 22 A 5 2 Tl A s 1R
66.7 0 E#s G (—E—L4F  107.6 H BHIL) -

A \AEN A T H > AR ] i) 25K YRR
A PR A (R A SR B S A Al B KB IR 2 &
I s | B — [H A W Tanami Gold
NLI938.09% M4 » fAAE5119.8H BT - &
I £536.8 H BTG > NGB B A R N AERR
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

13. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (CONT’D)

A

ok ok

On Tst August, 2018, SHK group disposed of its wholly-owned
subsidiary, SWAT Securitisation Fund. The details of SWAT
Securitisation Fund at the date of disposal were as follows:

Consideration received:
Total consideration received

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which
control was lost:
Net assets disposed of

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary:
Consideration received and receivable
Net assets disposed of

Gain on disposal

Net cash inflow arising
on disposal:
Cash consideration

On 17th December, 2018, SHK group disposed of its wholly-
owned subsidiary, Maple Shade Limited. The details of Maple Shade
Limited at the date of disposal were as follows:

Consideration received:
Cash received
Deferred cash consideration

Consideration received

ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED

BEwE(EE)F

fR 2 7

BE_F—NEtT_H=1T—HIERE
13. BRELANER(4E)

Hkok

A FE— )NEAH—H

R S I B A

& /S FISWAT Securitisation Fund o ji 8
H I > SWAT Securitisation FundfI=EE 41T

BWRIE :
E oA A8

EAEEHENEER
BEZDH :
L 5 S

HK$ Million
BHEBT

55.0

1st August, 2018
=2-N\ENA—-H
HK$ Million
BEER

HE— B AR Z W

B R R 1
Lt S 1

A s

HERELECZHESRA
T
Bl

55.0

RoFE—ET AL H s Rm A M
HA YA ®lMaple Shade Limited o i Hi £
HH# > Maple Shade Limited fJ7E 4T

BWRE :
C e 4
RSB A

C A E

HK$ Million
BEBET

15.0
242.9

257.9

Annual Report 2018
S N E R



for the year ended 31st December, 2018

13. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (CONT’D)

#*% (Cont'd)

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which
control was lost:

Financial assets at
FVTPL

Net assets disposed of

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary:
Consideration received and receivable
Net assets disposed of

Gain on disposal

Net cash inflow arising
on disposal:
Cash consideration

According to the sales and purchase agreement, the deferred
consideration will be settled in cash by the purchaser on or before
30th April, 2019 and is included in “other receivables” per note 29.

14. TAXATION

The income tax charged (credited) Prg Bl s (%)
comprises: g
Current tax AR IE
Hong Kong i
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) e N R ILANE ([
and other jurisdictions B HoAth ] 325 3t [
(Over) under provision in prior years WA T (B EEEME)
Deferred tax IRIERLIH
Current year AREESE

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at the rate of 16.5% of
the estimated assessable profits for both years.

PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC Enterprise Income Tax
at 25% for both years.

BE_F - N\FH+A=+—HILFE
13. BRBiATRA ()

sk (iﬁ)
17th December,
2018
—E-N\F
+=A++H
HK$ Million
BEAT
BREEHENEER
BEZHH
AR g0 R B A
PR PR 4 A 180.5
B B A 180.5
HE— BB ATz :
i B B A 257.9
O B S R (180.5)
B AR 77.4
HENEECZRERAZ
b
BeAE 15.0

MR RZ 80 B M B T e > BT & — L4
PUH =+ H e 2 i LABL S 45T IR AEAUAE > sk
JERAE FEA M 31297 HAb REBGKIE A -

14. B\

2018 2017
—B-NE T tF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBTT H T
223.8 213.5
HRE )
118.3 52.9
342.1 266.4
AL (13.7) 22.2
328.4 288.6
(80.9) 33.4
247.5 322.0

T R A5 7 T 4181 4 B 35 A 5 RE R B vk
F16.5%Z Bl REIHE o

A FR I 22 B RS 4 R ZEL AT r I A 2 i A
B o WA BRI £525% o
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BE_F - N\F+A=+—HILFE
Bi1E ()

for the year ended 31st December, 2018

14. TAXATION (CONT’D) 14.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated on
the estimated assessable profits for the year at the rates
of taxation prevailing in the countries in the relevant

jurisdictions.

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit

A& 1 Al ] 5 i [ 2 A T 4 PR i R
Ao i 1) AT B ) 3 s PRy % R 2 BRAT B %

AR A PER JE B4R 5 48 2 R B 7R 2 BRABL il iR

before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or FlZ EHRAT -
loss as follows:
2018 2017
—B-N\F R LA
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEEBT H#EWIT
Profit before taxation A 1T s A1) 3,523.7 5,589.5
Less: Share of results of associates A N Y (498.5) (1,277.3)
Share of results of joint ventures FEAL &8N 7 2E4E (336.2) (659.4)
Profit attributable to the Company AN ) B B g A )

and subsidiaries JREAL U5 ] 2,689.0 3,652.8
Tax at Hong Kong Profits DI HEF IS BB Z16.5%

Tax rate of 16.5% (ZF—t4F 1 16.5%)

(2017: 16.5%) At 2 BLIA 443.7 602.7
Countries subject to different tax rates ¥ A [F LR 2 B K 12.0 31.6
Tax effect of expenses that are not ANH] RIS

deductible for tax purposes ol T 5 %8¢ 33.4 38.5
Tax effect of income that is not taxable — #ZHFRBLULA 2

for tax purposes T JE R 28 (237.1) (388.5)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AR FAR TE i 15 2 i TH 2 2 26.2 10.6
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses B Z Wi R iR B H

previously not recognised Tl JE 5 28 (16.8) (1.7)
Tax effect of deductible temporary ERERRIEN A S

differences not recognised Tl JE 5 28 - 16.7
Tax effect of utilisation of deductible B il Je i R AR Al 06

temporary differences previously AT =Y

not recognised i s 5 2 (0.2) -
Reversal of deferred tax on tax loss ] 2 BT R B R

previously recognised IRIEFIH - (6.5)
Reversal of deferred tax on deductible — $#[5] 2 /i £ f 52 Al $184

temporary difference previously R =R

recognised RAEFIH - (0.2)
(Over) under provision in prior years — #&{E4F B (FBARTE ) 8 A 2 (13.7) 22.2
Others HoAth - (3.4)
Taxation for the year ARAE BE R IE 247.5 322.0

Deferred tax recognised in other comprehensive income
was immaterial in both years presented.

ME 2 514E R

A H A THT A 2 T

HEFER A E K -
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the

following data:

Earnings
Earnings for the purpose of basic

earnings per share (profit attributable
to owners of the Company)
Adjustments to profit in respect of
impact of contingently issuable
shares under the employee
ownership scheme of a subsidiary

Earnings for the purpose of diluted
earnings per share

Number of shares

Weighted average number of shares
in issue for the purpose of basic and
diluted earnings per share

215
BE-F— /NFE+_H=1+—HI4FE
15. BRER

N ) PSR A 5 S A M) T AR
AT BgE A

2018 2017
—E-N\F % LA
HKS$ Million  HK$ Million

BEBTT H H# i TT
Fi |
R AR
TR 2 BRI (AR ) BB
JEA 36 1) 2,343.4 3,991.1
MM E AT Z
1& B B A 5T ] i
Al BEBRAT LA 2 R A
T FIAE H 4% 0.7) (0.5)
R A
TR Z B A 2,342.7 3,990.6
Million shares  Million shares
BER O
Jiliglhe <¢E]
WET A AR LA
i 2 B 2 B AT AR
TINFET- 44 88 6,812.2 6,812.2
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

16. DIVIDEND

BE_F—NEtT_H=1T—HIERE
16. RE

2018 2017
—E-N\F  ZFhF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEAT EX- 3w
Dividend declared FIRBEE
Interim dividend (in lieu of a final AR E
dividend) of HK8 cents per share HIRZ R
declared subsequent to the end of (RERBBE)
the reporting period (2017: interim BR8N (—F—L4F -
dividend (in lieu of a final dividend) HRI S (R R BIEE)
of HK8 cents per share) g Hs i) 545.0 545.0
Dividend recognised as distribution ENTERTRZ
during the year 4=}
2017 interim dividend (in lieu of a R LER IR
final dividend) of HK8 cents per (FRERBIKE)
share (2017: 2016 interim dividend B8l (= F— L4
(in lieu of a final dividend) of HK8 CEB—NEFHARE
cents per share) (FERIARE) B s usAl) 545.0 545.0

The amount of the interim dividend (in lieu of a final
dividend) for the year ended 31st December, 2018 has
been calculated by reference to 6,812,201,460 shares in
issue at 25th March, 2019.

BEZF-NE+_H=+—HILFE
FIRE (RERBRE) 288 > 112
MR —F—NFE=HA+tHHAHCETZ
6,812,201,460 BB 5154 -
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018 BEF—/\FET_H=1T—HILFE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. REME
Hong Kong PRC USA UK Total
R HE e HE e
HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million
AEETT HEHIT A& A& HEBT
Fair value AFEE
At st January, 2017 noE—tFE—H—H 7,963.3 49.5 265.9 - 8,278.7
Exchange adjustments i 3 - 3.7 2.0 18.3 24.0
Transferred from properties B AR E
held for sale Y 441 = = = 44.1
Additions I 1.8 = = 205.4 207.2
Increase (decrease) in fair value RIS RERR 2 A TEE
recognised in profit or loss i () 996.1 14 - (14.4) 983.1
At 31st December, RoFE—tHE+H
2017 ==0 9,005.3 54.6 267.9 209.3 9,537.1
Exchange adjustments HE S, - (2.8) 0.7 (11.0) (13.1)
Additions B 10.6 - - - 10.6
Increase (decrease) in fair value 8% HERR 2 /A F
recognised in profit or loss AR (D) 752.8 0.9 6.7 (1.6) 757.0
At 31st December, i F— )\
2018 +ZH=1+—H 9,768.7 50.9 2753 196.7 10,291.6
Unrealised gains or losses for the 4F kst AT 25 R85
year included in profitor loss  Ié B4R
For 2018 —F—)\4E 752.8 0.9) 6.7 (1.6) 757.0
For 2017 TE L 996.1 1.4 - (14.4) 983.1
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT’D)

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties on
the dates of transfer, acquisition and at the reporting dates
have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried
out at these dates by Norton Appraisals Holdings Limited,
Whitney & Associates and Savills (UK) Limited, firms
of independent and qualified professional valuers not
connected with the Group.

For properties located in Hong Kong, PRC and the United
Kingdom (“UK”), the fair value was grouped under
level 3 and was determined based on the investment
approach, where the market rentals of all lettable units of
the properties are assessed and discounted at the market
yield expected by investors for this type of properties. The
market rentals are assessed by taking into account the
current passing rents and the reversionary income potential
of tenancies. For the properties which are currently
vacant, the valuation was based on capitalisation of the
hypothetical and reasonable market rents with a typical
lease term or direct comparison approach. The discount
rate is determined by reference to the yields derived
from analysing the sales transactions of similar properties
in Hong Kong, PRC and UK, and adjusted to take into
account the market expectation from property investors
to reflect factors specific to the Group’s investment
properties.

For property located in the United States of America
(“USA”), the fair value was grouped under level 3 and
was determined based on the sales comparison approach
— land analysis, where the market sales of the observable
transactions in neighbourhood areas are assessed and
adjusted to take into account the location, size, condition
and physical characteristic of this investment property.

There has been no change from the valuation technique
used in the prior year. In estimating the fair value of the
properties, the highest and best use of the properties is
their current use.

HWE - FE - NF+_H=1+—HILFEF
17. BEWHE(E)

AL B BUE Y ST WO Y R A
A HZAFEECHEENorton Appraisals
Holdings Limited > Whitney & Associates
KSavills (UK) Limited/4#%5F H 11T 2
TR E > RZ 5 W) 44 oy BRLA 4R [ 41 B
LIS AR SR (E R -

AL ~ B K] ([ ) 1 2&
M > AVEETIRAATES =80T > I
MRIEBCEIERE » SR - PR 2T
LA A9 T EAR & T VERTAS > MR BUE
TR BCIAY 36 2 T (EL IRl S0 B o R A T (E
MHAERF - C %5 B2 B4 LA A 0Bk
AT - s H A2 B2 WIS o AGETS
ARPEARE S LT (LA < 2 T - e[ gt
RITES > BBk R LA E I o BB
TI2 57 - hE RSB 3 2 S5
LG Hr 2 HE R E - WE A% > D
At AMEBEH 2 T > AL
BEY AR

HUAL TR S B A B ([ 52 B |) 2 W) 26T
5o NEETISRMATESR =T AR
PRI UL — LT E - BRI > AT
A 5 B 2 AT S 5y T R Al
W% Bz E Y RN E - B~ R
PR EAE A

A A BE R T A (B 5 I A By o A
A E N TEERE > W30 R B B
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT’D)

The following table gives information about how the fair
values of these investment properties are determined (in
particular, the valuation techniques and inputs used), as
well as the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (levels 1 to 3) based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable.

Investment properties

219
BE-F— /NFE+_H=1+—HI4FE
17. BEWHE(E)

R BARR AP B (E R A A B
AR Y ] BB I ] R A% S BUE W3R
OFREAE CRR AR BT T A (BT 32 S A
B - DLRA-FEER RIS 2 A
SRR (R — 225 =8 MR -

held by the Group
in the consolidated
statement of
financial position
REREMBRRERZ
FEBMEFRENE

Relationship of
unobservable inputs
to fair value (Note)
A BEGAHE
BAVEEZBE
(FE#R)

Residential properties
located in
Hong Kong
(A 2 B

Valuation
Fair technique(s)
value and key input(s)
hierarchy fEERER
NEEE TEHA Significant unobservable input(s)
&R 85 EATTEEGABE
Level 3 Investment Approach
= BE%
The key inputs are
B2 PN (6
(1) Term yield Term yield, taking into account of
AR AR 2R yield generated by market average
selling price and the market average
rental from comparable properties and
adjustment to reflect the conditions
of the building, of 1% to 2.75%
(2017: 1% to 3%).
IR R 1 %2 2.75% (—F—L4F
19%%3%) > #6517 & gy 2
518y B A8 B T 35 P P A 4 A 2 Wit
A AE T LD AR AR
(2) Reversionary Reversionary yield, taking into account
yield of yield generated by market average
(lierEs selling price and the market average
rental from comparable properties and
adjustment to reflect the risk associated
with the future rental, of 1.2% to 3.25%
(2017: 1.2% to 3.25%).
R 1.2%%3.25% (—F—+
A1 1.2%%3.25%) o % A L
W2 T B R Tt e
He 2 WSt I A R DA S R A A
AR g
K.) LIMITED
ER 2 A

The higher the term
yield, the lower the
fair value.

G R > A
AR ERAE -

The higher the
reversionary yield,
the lower the
fair value.

[ e ES TSN
A fE A
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT’D)

Investment properties

held by the Group

Valuation

wE_F—/F+_A=+—HILFEZ

17. REWE(E)

Relationship of

in the consolidated  Fair technique(s) unobservable inputs
statement of value and key input(s) to fair value (Note)
financial position hierarchy fHEFER THUEEm ASE
RGEHERRARZ AFEE FTEHA Significant unobservable input(s) HEALEEZBEEZ
FEEFRENE Z& HE EAFEERARE (E#%)
Residential properties The key inputs are

located in (Cont'd)

Hong Kong (Cont'd) T AR ()
R FEZ W

(%) (3) Monthly term Monthly term rental for each unit is The higher the

rental
HHME

(4) Reversionary
rental

[ it

derived from the average of the rental as
stated in the existing rental agreements
with an average of HK$23 to HK$48
(2017: HK$21 to HK$71)/sq. ft./month.

KBz 5 A S HBE ARG 2
SN FEAST I R23ETE48% T
(ZF—L4 21T E7 1) 2 F
HREIR A -

Reversionary rental for each unit
is compared with direct market
comparables and taking into account
of location and other individual factor,
the range of average reversionary
rental is from HK$22 to HK$73
(2017: HK$20 to HK$71)/sq.ft./month.
& BN 2 A SR 4 B BT ] U
FHBHILL » AL Y SE R S H A
RS FoREEe 2 EEN T4
AR TE 73T (—F—L
4 208 TCE7 1T ©

monthly term
rental, the higher
the fair value.
HAMeHR > A
{EEBRE -

The higher the
reversionary rental,
the higher the
fair value.

e > A1
(R AR -
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018 BE_F—/)Ft+_H=1+—H I4FEF
17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT’D) 17. REW*E(E)
Investment properties
held by the Group Valuation Relationship of
in the consolidated  Fair technique(s) unobservable inputs
statement of value and key input(s) to fair value (Note)
financial position hierarchy fHEFER THEEm ASE
REeiikinke ATEE FEHRA Significant unobservable input(s) HAVEEZRAE
AEERFRENE FR 85 EATTEEBARE (FE#R)
Car parking spaces  Level 3 Investment Approach
located in H=M REE
Hong Kong
LA Z B The key inputs are
T E A B
(1) Reversionary Reversionary yield, taking into account  The higher the
yield of yield generated by market average reversionary yield,
(llieEs selling price and the market average the lower the
rental from comparable properties and ~ fair value.
adjustment to reflect the risk associated {8 §Hi 4 Rl > 28
with the future rental of 3.75% TAB(E A -
(2017: 4.5%).
BRI R f13.75% (ZF—L4F -
4.5%) > KEE 8] G HLEBH) L T T
R M R T35 R RE 4 A 2 iR Bl
71t R LA S R AR 4 2 A B g
(2) Reversionary Reversionary rental for each unit The higher the
rental is compared with direct market reversionary rental,
(i comparables and taking into account of  the higher the
location and other individual factor, the  fair value.
average reversionary rental is HK$2,200 &8l 48 » AF
(2017: HK$2,200)/unit/month. (B E B -
& B 2 A5 A R R T3 T R
ML > A% i8S B K Ho At AR
FIER > FHERHEE e SR
2,200% 70 (ZF—L4F : 2,200 70) °
A ALLIED PROPERTIES (1K) LIMITED A nnua | Sopor 201
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Investment properties
held by the Group

in the consolidated
statement of

financial position
RESRBRRRZ
AEERBERENE

Fair
value

for the year ended 31st December, 2018

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT’D)

Valuation
technique(s)
and key input(s)

hierarchy fHEFER
NEEE FEHA

&

8

wE_F—/F+_A=+—HILFEZ

17. REWE(E)

Significant unobservable input(s)

EATTEEBARE

Relationship of
unobservable inputs
to fair value (Note)
T BEGAHE
BAVEEZBE
(FEf2)

Commercial
properties located
in Hong Kong

(DA PAGESYES

Level 3

B

Investment Approach

g%

The key inputs are
T E A B

(1) Term yield
Rl gk

(2) Reversionary
yield
TR B A 2

Term yield, taking into account of yield
generated by market average selling
price and the market average rental
from comparable properties and
adjustment to reflect the conditions
of the building, of 2% to 2.75%

(2017: 2% to 3%).

EBR AR R S2% 22.75% (— T —L4F -
2% 3%) > M8 FE AT E B S T
S TP R i 5 VI R e R 2 Wi
HRA A SRR DA S M TR

Reversionary yield, taking into account
of yield generated by market average
selling price and the market average
rental from comparable properties and
adjustment to reflect the risk associated
with the future rental, of 2.1% to 3.25%
(2017: 2.5% to 3.5%).

B R F52.1%53.25% (=% —+
iF 1 2.5%%3.5%) - KB R E LR
KIS E R E
AR A R R DA SRR AR A 4 2
il

The higher the term
yield, the lower the
fair value.

NG R > A
AR {ERAR -

The higher the
reversionary yield,
the lower the fair
value.

il o
P (A -
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT’D)

Investment properties
held by the Group
in the consolidated  Fair

Valuation
technique(s)

BE_F—/F+_A=t—HILFE

17. REWE(E)

Relationship of
unobservable inputs
to fair value (Note)

statement of value and key input(s)
financial position hierarchy f&EBER AABREAHE
RiGEHERRARZ AFEE FTEHA Significant unobservable input(s) HEALEEZBEEZ
AEERFRENE FR 85 EATTEEBARE (FE#2)
Commercial The key inputs are
properties located (Cont'd)
in Hong Kong E S A Bk ()
(Cont'd)
()R YA HELYES (3) Monthly term  Monthly term rental for each unit is The higher the
(%) rental derived from the average of the rental as  monthly term

BAME

(4) Reversionary
rental

(it

stated in the existing rental agreements
with an average of HK$37 to HK$80
(2017: HK$35 to HK$76)/sq. ft./month.

KBz 5 A S H ARG 2 M
TP ARG ITR37 T R80T
(ZF—L4F : 35HITE76iTL) 2T
SRR -

Reversionary rental for each unit
is compared with direct market
comparables and taking into account of
location and other individual factor, the
range of average reversionary rental is
from HK$40 to HK$87 (2017: HK$35.7
to HK$74)/sq.ft./month.

& B 2 AR R 4 B BT T B LR
FABHILL » AL 4 SE R S H A A
FIRR  FREES 2 EEN T4
ABFIRA0BITES7 L (ZF—L
4 35.7HILET4ETT) -

rental, the higher
the fair value.

FAMENE > AT
B E M -

The higher the
reversionary rental,
the higher the
fair value.

e > A
{EEBRE -
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Investment properties
held by the Group

in the consolidated
statement of

financial position
REEEMBRRER 2
AEBREFRENE

Fair
value

for the year ended 31st December, 2018

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT’D)

Valuation
technique(s)
and key input(s)

hierarchy fHERER

AFEE
50

FEHA
2iE

wE_F—/F+_A=+—HILFEZ

17. REWE(E)

Significant unobservable input(s)

EXATAERRARE

Relationship of
unobservable inputs
to fair value (Note)
TABERABE
RAVEEZBE
(FEHR)

Godown located in
Hong Kong
NGB ER

Level 3
B

Investment Approach
K&

The key inputs are
A B

(1) Term yield
A A g 2R

(2) Reversionary
yield
18 Bl a2

Term yield, taking into account of yield
generated by market average selling
price and the market average rental
from comparable properties and
adjustment to reflect the conditions of
the building, of 3.5% (2017: 3.5%).

AR J53.5% (T —H4F
3.5%) > K& ] B LB SE L TG
P AR i 5 P YA e AR 2 W 2l
At 3 LS A IR

Reversionary yield, taking into account
of yield generated by market average
selling price and the market average
rental from comparable properties and
adjustment to reflect the risk associated
with the future rental, of 4% (2017: 4%).

BRI 4% (—F— LA 4%) > &
% 1 AL LB S 2 P R A KT
S PR 4 AR 2 Wi A A H R D
JC R AR AR 42 2 AR IR -

The higher the term
yield, the lower
the fair value.

S R - A
FE{EAAL -

The higher the
reversionary yield,
the lower the
fair value.

(e S TSN
VR {EAAL -
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018 BE - )\E+H=1t—HIFEF
17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT’D) 17. REWE(E)
Investment properties
held by the Group Valuation Relationship of
in the consolidated  Fair technique(s) unobservable inputs
statement of value and key input(s) to fair value (Note)
financial position hierarchy f&EBER AABREAHE
REeiikinke ATEE FEHRA Significant unobservable input(s) HAFEEZBER
AEERFRENE FR 85 EATTEEBARE (FE#2)
Godown located in The key inputs are
Hong Kong (Cont'd) (Cont'd)
MREEZEA (B) S A Bk ()
(3) Monthly term Monthly term rental for each unit is The higher the
rental derived from the average of the rental monthly term
HHME as stated in the existing rental rental, the higher
agreements with an average of HK$7.5  the fair value.
(2017: HK$7.5)/sq.ft./month. A e > AF

wENZ ARSI ARLRI 2 EEE -
&43 ARy 58T (2 F—L4F
7.5 T0) FTEES -

(4) Reversionary Reversionary rental for each unit The higher the
rental is compared with direct market reversionary rental,
(hites comparables and taking into account the higher the fair

of location and other individual factor,  value.
the average reversionary rental is HK$8 & &5 » AT
(2017: HK$7.6)/sq.ft./month. E{E B o
& B 2 AR B 4 B 4 i 85 T LU
THBAREL - AACE 4 3 2 S H A A
FIRE > PRS2 8 A 8-F TR
eI (—F—LF  7.687T)
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Investment properties
held by the Group

in the consolidated
statement of

financial position
RESRBRRRZ
AEERBERENE

Fair
value

for the year ended 31st December, 2018

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT’D)

Valuation
technique(s)
and key input(s)

hierarchy fHEFER
NEEE FEHA

&

8

wE_F—/F+_A=+—HILFEZ

17. REWE(E)

Significant unobservable input(s)

EATTEEHABE

Relationship of
unobservable inputs
to fair value (Note)
T BEGAHE
BAVEEZBE
(FE#2)

Commercial
properties located
in PRC

Gl P ESYES

Level 3

B

Investment Approach

g%

The key inputs are
T E A B

(1) Term yield
Rl gk

(2) Reversionary
yield
R Bl 26

Term yield, taking into account of yield
generated by market average selling
price and the market average rental
from comparable properties and
adjustment to reflect the conditions of
the building, of 6% (2017: 6%).

AR R 6% (—F— L4 : 6%) > &
< QA EFant el
S P ¥RE 4 AR 2 Wi G A R L
[ BAEFHRYL -

Reversionary yield, taking into account
of yield generated by market average
selling price and the market average
rental from comparable properties and
adjustment to reflect the risk associated
with the future rental, of 6.75% (2017:
6.75%).

BRI f6.75% (T — L4 -
6.75%) » K875 [ Al HLRY)SE 2 T
T EAE K T e A 2 g
A R DA R R AR A < 2 A B L

FEA,H:O

The higher the term
yield, the lower
the fair value.

G R > A
AR {ERAR -

The higher the
reversionary yield,
the lower the
fair value.

Rl o > 2
FAE (A -
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018 BE_F—/)Ft+_H=1+—H I4FEF
17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT’D) 17. REW*E(E)
Investment properties
held by the Group Valuation Relationship of
in the consolidated  Fair technique(s) unobservable inputs
statement of value and key input(s) to fair value (Note)
financial position hierarchy fHEFER THEEm ASE
REeiikinke ATEE FEHRA Significant unobservable input(s) HAVEEZRAE
AEERFRENE FR 85 EATTEEBARE (FE#2)
Commercial The key inputs are
properties located (Cont'd)
in PRC (Cont'd) R ARE ()
NGl P ESYES
(%) (3) Monthly term Monthly term rental for each unit is The higher the
rental derived from the average of the monthly term
HHME rental as stated in the existing rental, the higher
rental agreements with RMB78.7 the fair value.
(2017: RMB111.9)/sq. m./month. B HMA R AF

#ENZGHMSHHARLTRIZH EEE -
SHABTHANRE78.70(—F
—-L4E : NRH¥111.970) 2 P A

B e
(4) Reversionary Reversionary rental for each unit The higher the
rental is compared with direct market reversionary rental,
(it comparables and taking into account of  the higher the

location and other individual factor, the  fair value.
average reversionary rental is RMB102  fEgfH & #im » /AF
(2017: RMB107.9)/sq.m./month. fE{E MR -
£ B 2 A8 S R 4 B i 3 T LR
FHABARLL - T 5875 1) 3E b B e F b
FIEE > FHEELE 28 AEF K
BARME10270 (2B —H4F - ARK
107.970) °
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Investment properties
held by the Group

in the consolidated
statement of

financial position
RESRBRRRZ
AEERBERENE

Fair
value

for the year ended 31st December, 2018

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT’D)

Valuation
technique(s)
and key input(s)

hierarchy fHEFER
NEEE FEHA

&

8

wE_F—/F+_A=+—HILFEZ

17. REWE(E)

Significant unobservable input(s)

EATTEEBARE

Relationship of
unobservable inputs
to fair value (Note)
T BEGAHE
BAVEEZBE
(FEf2)

Industrial properties
located in PRC
(V3T PRI 2 7/E S

Level 3

B

Investment Approach

g%

The key inputs are
T E A B

(1) Term yield
Rl gk

(2) Reversionary
yield
TR Bl A 26

Term yield, taking into account of yield
generated by market average selling
price and the market average rental
from comparable properties and
adjustment to reflect the conditions of
the building, of 4.25% (2017: 4.25%).

IR R S4.25% (—F—L4F
4.25%) > K875 RE AT LY SE 2 T b
B R TG IR B A A 2 A
lf AR £ R DA S R IR L

Reversionary yield, taking into account
of yield generated by market average
selling price and the market average
rental from comparable properties and
adjustment to reflect the risk associated
with the future rental, of 4.75%

(2017: 4.75%).

BRI 3 234.75% (—F—L4F -
4.75%) - FEE A E L SE L
W PR EE T e EE 2
Wi I A R DA S R AR A 4 2
il

The higher the term
yield, the lower
the fair value.

R R > A
AR {ERAR -

The higher the
reversionary yield,
the lower the
fair value.

[ e ES TSN
B (A -
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018 BE_F—/)Ft+_H=1+—H I4FEF
17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT’D) 17. REW*E(E)
Investment properties
held by the Group Valuation Relationship of
in the consolidated  Fair technique(s) unobservable inputs
statement of value and key input(s) to fair value (Note)
financial position hierarchy fHEFER THEEm ASE
REeiikinke ATEE FEHRA Significant unobservable input(s) HAVEEZRAE
AEERFRENE FR 85 EATTEEBARE (FE#2)
Industrial properties The key inputs are
located in PRC (Cont'd)
(Cont'd) 3 i A ek ()
PR Bz T
(%) (3) Monthly term Monthly term rental for each unit is The higher the
rental derived from the average of the rental. ~ monthly term
HHME The properties are vacant in both years.  rental, the higher
B2 AME A THHE - 2%Y  the fair value.
ENZMEFEENS/ZEE - A SR > AF
TR -
(4) Reversionary Reversionary rental for each unit The higher the
rental is compared with direct market reversionary rental,
i comparables and taking into account the higher the
of location and other individual factor, fair value.
the range of average reversionary BEFH A > A
rental is from RMB28 to RMB34 TR

(2017: RMB28 to RMB35)/sq.m./month.
B 2 A B 4 B T 3 T EORAR
AL o W58 ey S b B R At A )
HE » FIEEHE 2 #EN T8 H 5
Ik NRE280 8 NRE3470 (%
—+t4F - AR08 02 ARH3570) -

ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED Annual Report 2018
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT’D)

Investment properties

held by the Group
in the consolidated
statement of
financial position

REEHMBRRR 2

Fair
value

Valuation
technique(s)
and key input(s)

hierarchy fEEGER
AVLEE FEBRA
FEREERENE R

8

wE_F—/F+_A=+—HILFEZ
17. REW=X(E)
Relationship of

unobservable inputs
to fair value (Note)

Freehold land located Level 3

in the USA
NP e
i

B

Sales Comparison
Approach — Land
Analysis, based on
market observable
transactions of
similar pieces of
land and adjusts to
reflect the location,
size, condition
and physical
characteristic of the
freehold land.

6 Lo — oy
> DAL L3t 2
i3 I B 1
LB R A
J ik A SEHE 1 b
MO E - MR
1 R B

T BEGAHE
Significant unobservable input(s) HAVEEBER
EATTEEBARE (FEf2)
Market observable price/acre of several  The higher the market
pieces of similar lands ranging from observable price/
US$3,100 to US$26,000 (2017: acre, the higher the

ranging from US$7,463 to US$38,287).  fair value.

TR Lo 2 AT A ah T TR R
A F3,100£TE26,000%7C (—F—+  WABE > ATEE
i T F7,463% 0% 38,287KTC) © B o
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT’D)

Investment properties
held by the Group

in the consolidated
statement of

financial position

Valuation
Fair technique(s)
value and key input(s)

hierarchy fHEFER

231

BE_F—/F+_A=t—HILFE

17. REWE(E)

Significant unobservable input(s)

EATTEEBARE

Relationship of
unobservable inputs
to fair value (Note)
TR AHE
BAVEEZBR
(FE#2)

REEEHMBRRAK2 AVEE TEHA
AEERFRENE FR 85
Commercial properties Level 3 Investment Approach
located in UK H=M REE
(D PAESYES

The key inputs are

T E A B

(1) Term yield

g llenkd

(2) Reversionary
yield
R Bl A 26

Term yield, taking into account of yield
generated by market average selling
price and the market average rental
from comparable properties and
adjustment to reflect the conditions of
the building, of 4.5% (2017: 5%).

IR S5 4.5% (—F— L4 5%) -
R g e S TP S E K
i35 Y RH B A 2 WA 0 A o R 4
AR AR FRL

Reversionary yield, taking into account
of yield generated by market average
selling price and the market average
rental from comparable properties and
adjustment to reflect the risk associated
with the future rental, of 5.0%

(2017: 5.59%).

TR % /55.0% (—F—L4F
5.59%) > K& AT B LB 2 i b
T EAE K T e A 2 g %
S A 2 DA R WROR A A < 2 A B L

FRA,II:O

The higher the term
yield, the lower the
fair value.

R > A
AR A -

The higher the
reversionary yield,
the lower the
fair value.

(e ES TSN
A fE B
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT’D)

Investment properties

HWE - FE - NF+_H=1+—HILFEF
17. BEWHE(E)

held by the Group Valuation Relationship of
in the consolidated  Fair technique(s) unobservable inputs
statement of value and key input(s) to fair value (Note)
financial position ~  hierarchy &S AR AABREAHE
REEBBMRRRZ AVEE FEBA Significant unobservable input(s) HAVEEZBE
AEERFRENE FR B EATTEEGABE (FE#2)
Commercial properties The key inputs are
located in UK (Cont'd)
(Cont'd) FE AR ()
(DA PAEESYES
(%) (3) Monthly term Monthly term rental is derived from the  The higher the
rental average of the rental as stated in the monthly term
e existing rental agreements with an rental, the higher
average of GBP62,633 the fair value.
(2017: GBP71,251)/month. HAMEMR > AT
T A AL 2 B R B sl BT P29 AL TR (E MR -
& P RAEH 62,6338 (% —tL
0 71,2513%8)
(4) Reversionary Reversionary rental is compared with The higher the
rental direct market comparables and reversionary rental,
i taking into account of location and the higher the
other individual factor, the average fair value.
reversionary rental is GBP85,056 e > AF
(2017: GBP88,055)/month. R -

TR B 4 B T8 T LA A L
#8225 X AR R R > F
YRt 4 A% H 85,0568 (—F—+&
4E 88,0555 8%) o

Note: There is no indication that any slight change in the unobservable
input would result in a significantly higher or lower fair value
measurement in both years of 2018 and 2017.

There were no transfers into or out of level 3 during both
years.

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying value of
investment properties pledged as security of the Group's
bank and other borrowings amounted to HK$8,875.8
million (2017: HK$7,745.7 million).

Details of the Group’s investment properties and other
assets being pledged to secure loans and general banking
facilities are set out in note 46.

REME R T AE R R LR W R R > B
SR AN AT IBLE i N\ R A A T S 5 T
B PEER R ki -

WYAE AL > S SN Bl i 2 =% -

TSRS HAR > A 58 [l B A T e S Al A5 451G
A AW 2 HRIHI{H £ 8,875.8 A &
WIL(ZFE—L4 1 7,745.7A B I0) ©

A 5 R N — B SRAT A BT 2 45
B KA G 2 R R it 46
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018 BEF—/\FET_H=1T—HILFE
18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. Y% - RERZE
Furniture
Leasehold land Leasehold fixtures and Motor
Hotel  andbuildings  improvements equipment vehicles
property HELH BEEF  HBERE  andvessels Total
EENE k&7 %8 e RERAM a3t

HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million
BT AT BEBT BEBT BEBT AR

Cost S
At Tst January, 2017 e S ot i Rl 608.5 5542 142.1 1744 9.0 1573.2
Exchange adjustments S - 35 107 51 02 395
Additions s - - 123 353 498 974
Disposals/wite-off /s - - (3.4) (6.4) 93) (19.)
At31st December, REE—LE

2017 1A= 608.5 5717 161.7 2084 1347 1,691.0
Bxchange adjustments I s - (174) (8.1) (3.5) 0.1) 29.1)
Additions s - - 110 480 39 629
Disposalsfwrite-off i /s - - (12) (8.6) 07) (105)
At 315t December, RoF—\E

2018 TZAZT-A 608.5 560.3 163.4 2443 1378 17143

Accumulated depreciationand ~ B3HER

impairment W
At st January, 2017 R-Z—tHE—H—H 265.7 48.1 97.0 78.6 40.8 5302
Exchange adjustments B - 25 8.2 33 01 141
Provided for the year AERR 75 154 209 22 123 783
Impairment loss WEER 08 - - - - 08
Eliminated on disposalsfwrite-off & /S5 = = (3.4) 4.9) (9.0 (17.3)
At31st December, REF—t8
2017 TZA=1-H 2740 66.0 122.7 99.2 44.2 606.1
Exchange adjustments S - (24 (6.9) (2.6) 0.1) (120
Provided for the year AR 74 157 200 207 129 76.7
Impairment loss i 05 - - - - 05
Fliminated on disposalswrite-off 1% /(A Bs 44 - - (12 73) 04) 89)
At 315t December, i SV
2018 TZA=1—H 2819 793 134.6 110.0 56.6 062.4
Cartying amounts R
At 31t December, %=\
2018 TZAZ—H 326.6 481.0 28.8 1343 81.2 1,051.9
At31st December, ALk
2017 TZA=1—H 3345 511.7 39.0 109.2 90.5 1,084.9
ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED
A BoEE (BRE)ERD A AR e AL
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT’D)

19.

20.

The carrying amounts of hotel property and leasehold land

and buildings shown above comprise:

Properties in Hong Kong
Properties outside Hong Kong

At the end of the reporting period, leasehold land and
buildings with carrying value of HK$20.7 million (2017:
HK$21.2 million) were pledged as security of the Group's

bank and other borrowings.

PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

The Group’s prepaid land lease payments comprise:

Leasehold land outside Hong Kong

Analysed for reporting purposes as:
Non-current assets
Current assets

GOODWILL

Cost
At 1st January and 31st December

wE_F—/F+_A=+—HILFEZ
18. Y15 ~ BB Rk (&)
3 S A 2 R A R T

A
2018 2017
—2-N§ Tt
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEBT HEW G
N Y2 536.0 550.3
Tk W3 271.6 295.9
807.6 846.2

AR HAAR > A4 M R AT B HA A5 B4
IR IRI(E £ 20.7 A 8o (—F— L4
21.2H B IC) 2 & i s o

19. FEHH(E
AAE B TEAHAE 45
2018 2017
—2-N§ Tt
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBTT H # T
TN 2 A il 4.1 4.5
Ty 3 H W TR 2 0 #
FE T Eh A E 4.0 4.4
T 0.1 0.1
4.1 4.5
20. B8
2018 2017
—E-N\F b
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBTT HE T
R
R—HA—HEk+_H=+—H 2,498.7 2,498.7
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018 BEF—/\FET_H=1T—HILFE
21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 21. BIVEE
Computer Customer Web Club
software  Trade mark  relationship domain  memberships Total

B E BE EFBE Ry eHeE st
HKS Million  HKS$ Million  HKS$ Million  HKS$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million
HEET AEBCT  BEBL  AEECT  BEBL BEBL

Cost B
At 1st January, 2017 WZZ—tFE—-A—H 17.3 875.0 1,154.0 78.0 7.0 2,1313
Exchange adjustments HE St 13 - - - - 13
At 31st December, 2017 moF—tFE+-A=1+—H 18.6 875.0 1,154.0 78.0 7.0 2,132.6
Exchange adjustments E Ji A (0.9) = = = - 0.9)
Additions b | 0.1 - - - 10.0 10.1
At 31st December, 2018 N E— )\ H=Z1—H 17.8 875.0 1,154.0 78.0 17.0 2,141.8
Accumulated amortisationand ~ E5HEER
impairment B
At Tst January, 2017 RZF—tHE—-A—H 3.1 7.0 1,154.0 78.0 0.9 1,243.0
Exchange adjustments HE S, 03 - - - - 03
Amortisation charged for the year A4 £ 1k 2 #654 18 = = - - 18
At 31st December, 2017 A E -t A=A 5.2 7.0 1,154.0 78.0 0.9 1,245.1
Exchange adjustments HE St 03) - - - - (03)
Amortisation charged for the year A4 [ 2L Ik 2 #E 19 - - - - 19
At 31st December, 2018 RZZ—N\FE+=A=1+—H 6.8 7.0 1,154.0 78.0 0.9 1,246.7
Carrying amounts REE
At 31st December, 2018 AN E— )N\t A=1—H 11.0 868.0 - - 16.1 895.1
At 31st December, 2017 moZ—tF+-A=+—H 13.4 868.0 - - 0.1 867.5
ALLIED PROPERTIES (H..) LIMITED
A BoEE (BRE)ERD A AR e AL
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

21.

22.

BE_F—NEtT_H=1T—HIERE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONT’D) 21. B EE (&)
Other than the club memberships and trade mark, W € T e R X% e A R[] 5 (6 TR 4R 41 >
which have indefinite useful lives, the intangible assets T S AT B A ] 2 B 48 v g
are amortised on a straight-line basis over the following
periods:
Computer software 3-5 years G 3FE54F
Customer relationship 5.4 years %5 R 5.44F
Web domain 10 years A58 104
IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL AND 22, BEREEEEAEH2EBFEEZ
INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE USEFUL AR
LIVES
For impairment testing, goodwill and intangible assets ST BEN > R _F—/NFE T A
with indefinite useful lives at 31st December, 2018 were o s k- Y& ATt s R e 5
allocated to the following cash generating units. BE TRl A DL B A AR B o
Goodwill Trade Mark
HE 5]
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-N\F e S o3 —E-N\F “E LA
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET HEHETT BEBT HETT
Consumer finance segment {5 &R/
— United Asia Finance — TR G BB A TR
Limited (“UAF") ) (T 55 e & B S 1) 2,384.0 2,384.0 868.0 868.0
Investment and finance BE R e
segment - SHK —HiiE 104.9 104.9 - -
Others segment — Cautious ~ HA 43
Base Limited —Cautious Base Limited
(“Cautious Base”) ([ Cautious Base ) 9.8 9.8 - -
2,498.7 2,498.7 868.0 868.0

Annual Report 2018
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228

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL AND
INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE USEFUL
LIVES (CONT’D)

The recoverable amount of UAF which is included in
the consumer finance segment, a cash-generating unit,
represents the value in use at 31st December, 2018 based
on a business valuation report on the UAF group prepared
by an independent qualified professional valuer, Norton
Appraisals Holdings Limited. The valuation used the
discounted cash flow approach and is based on a five-
year performance projection and certain key assumptions
(updated with latest market data) including an average
growth rate of 12.6% per annum on the profit before tax
from 2019 to 2023 (2017: 12.8% per annum from 2018
to 2022), a sustainable growth rate of 2.4% per annum
beyond 2023 (2017: 2.7% per annum beyond 2022),
and a discount rate of 14.9% (2017: 15.6%) per annum.
The recoverable amount of UAF was determined to be in
excess of its net carrying amount.

The recoverable amount of SHK which is included in the
investment and finance segment has been determined
based on a value-in-use calculation. The calculation
uses cash flow projections based on the financial budget
approved by SHK management covering a one-year period
for both years at a discount rate of 11% (2017: 11%) per
annum. The recoverable amount was determined to be in
excess of its net carrying amount.

The recoverable amount of Cautious Base which is
included in the others segment has been determined based
on a value-in-use calculation. The calculation uses cash
flow projections based on the financial budget approved
by Cautious Base management covering a five-year period
at a discount rate of 2.6% (2017: 3.3%) per annum. The
recoverable amount was determined to be in excess of its
net carrying amount.

Management believes that possible changes in any of the
above assumptions would not cause the carrying amounts
to exceed their recoverable amounts.

ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED
BawE (FEE)FRAIA

HE—

202

—NE+ZA=+—HILHEE

BHEREBEEAFHZELEEZ
Rl BRI (4R

T TH 4 430 2 B 4 e A B B I B
A WA I AT A [B] R AR R N
A=1t—HZHAMEE > HiREELAE
& HZE A {EFfiNorton Appraisals Holdings
Limited 4 4 55 91 Bk -A B 7S 4 B 36554 (H
e T E o AREMSE AT AR
S AR B8 A B AR TE I DA R T R
(DA 2 G 85 08 » i —F—JL
AEE TR T A 2 BRBLRD i A T 24 1
RAEH12.6%(F—L4HF : ZF—/N\F
BEBOF T HEB12.8%) RE T SFK
M) PR R AE R 5 2.4% (—F— L4 -
TR BB 2.7%) > MATHE RS
14.9% (—FE—L4 : 15.6%) o EEME&
Ef%ﬁ@ﬁqﬁtﬁlfﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁi%ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ@

T ARG K 4 430 A T 3 ] i [ 4
TIARE G FEE S 2 o wZ%uhE 5 LA 2L
SRR AR R L v ARG — S B BT B
FAEZN1% (2B — L4  11%) Frifi fy
e P S TE B o BT W] S AR AR A AE A

R A B 2 MR FHE -
A HoAth 43 #R A Cautious BaseRd i i [a] 4 %48

TARYE A B 2 o wZ%RTE IR R
Cautious Base’® ii)’ﬂl:/ﬁﬁ’]ﬂfﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬂl%
BT B 22.6% (ZF—+L4F : 3.3%)
i A FEMERY IR S S TE ) o Wl i (e 4 %E
ST AT 2y 68 0 LI T (L o

EHEMGE - BT R
%K@ﬁiﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁtﬂTﬂﬁllﬂﬁﬁﬁ

At Hh B
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

b g (G G))
;llftﬁiﬂx{ﬁ‘ AL AR Gii

Listed securities (Note (i))
Unlisted shares (Note (ii))

Note (i): FEARG) |

Listed securities ETEESF
Cost of investment P A
Share of post-acquisition reserves R WS 152 ft
Less: impairment W WiE
Elimination of unrealised profit A 5 2 v )

TSR TE o HRE
(FEfE)

Market value of listed securities,
at quoted price (Note)

Note:

As at 31st December, 2018, the market value of listed securities included
in the market value of the interests in TACI of HK$3,043.1 million (2017:
HK$4,033.0 million) and APAC of HK$345.9 million (2017: HK$339.8
million).

Management has reviewed the shortfall between the
carrying amount of a Hong Kong listed associate, TACI,
and the market value of TACI at the end of the reporting
period. The management considers that the value in use
based on discounted future cash flows of TACI is higher
than the carrying amount and the market value of TACI,
hence, no impairment needs to be recognised.

HE—

—NE+=H=+—HILEE
23. REFE QT 2R

2018 2017

—E-N\F  —FLF

HK$ Million HK$ Million

BEAT HE I

11,870.8 11,915.8

1,387.0 1,372.2

13,257.8 13,288.0

2018 2017

—E-NHF R 4R

HK$ Million HK$ Million

BEET H ##IT

3,594.2 3,997.5

8,308.4 7,962.1
(1.9) (13.9)

11,900.7 11,945.7
(29.9) (29.9)

11,870.8 11,915.8

3,389.0 4,503.5

AEfiFE

RoFE—NF+_A=+—H > LHhiEHENEEN

FEA R % i K G IR AS T (3,043.1 B & T (—
F—L4F : 4,033.08 EWIT) X345.9H EH T (ZF
—-t4E : 339.8HEWB L) ©

B PILRE C 3 B — M A v B T A R K
B 9 R THG L LR 22 1 S U R Y i L2 [
MZERH o EHRLERE S - R L YT BRI
Bt R o R A (R 2 2 BRI %
TE R o PRI S HmMERRIRE -
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23.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONT’D)

During the year ended 31st December, 2017, the Group
acquired an additional 0.9% of the total issued share
capital of APAC from the market for a consideration of
HK$9.9 million and the Group’s shareholding in APAC
increased to 29.34% accordingly. On 16th November,
2017, APAC announced a cash offer to repurchase shares
which was completed on 28th December, 2017. After
completion of the share repurchase of APAC, the Group’s
shareholding in APAC increased from 29.34% to 33.92%
and the difference between the Group’s share of the net
fair value of APAC's identifiable assets and liabilities before
and after the change is recognised directly in equity.

The shareholding in APAC increased from 33.92% at 31st
December, 2017 to 35.78% at 31st December, 2018 as
a result of the receipt of scrip dividends of 14,315,733
shares in APAC valued at HK$16.3 million and acquisition
of additional 6,680,000 shares in APAC from the market
for a consideration of HK$8.3 million during the year
2018.

Management has reviewed the shortfall between the
carrying amount of APAC and the market value of APAC
at the end of the reporting period. The management has
compared the carrying amount of APAC to the fair value
less costs of disposal of APAC, which was based on the
market value of APAC’s interest in its associates plus its
other assets and liabilities, and concluded that there is
no need to recognise an impairment allowance. The fair
value less costs of disposal has been used by management
in the impairment assessment of APAC as it reflects the
underlying assets value of APAC.

Note (ii): wE (i) :

Unlisted shares by
Cost of investment BE WA
Share of post-acquisition reserves JREA WA A% fti A
Less: impairment B - BE

Particulars of the Group’s principal associates at 31st
December, 2018 are set out in note 52.

HE—

23.

—/NF+ A=+ —HILFE
REE DRz e ()

BE-Z-CLET-H=1+—HI4EE
A4 8 DL AR 9.9 B OB WS L AE T I A
AR B R A 0 L AT AR W B S8 0.9% >
A 4 H] A REOK & R 2 B RE R 3 2
29.34% o jh —FE—tFE+—H+NH >
i K VR A B A B A DA TR BE A 5 LR
—F—tHEF T H T NHSERM o RTERK
AR B R By [m] B A% > ASSE B A B K& TR
Z BEHEH1 29.34% 38 11 233.92 % M A 4E 4]
ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ&%%ﬁﬁﬁ{@ﬁﬁﬁ
A 568 ) I 4% 9 22 3 L 3 A R 2 A T

A RER Bl —F—LF T H
=t+—HM33.92%E —F— )\4F+
H=1+—HMK3578% > W hn =%
— AR R R & TR DA S 14,315,733
B fEAT16.3 A B G - U RTETTGIE
AR K& IR ZE 506,680,000 LA AU{E
£58.3 H EU T ©

(EeLVHIRE SN - o/ Y I E AT N <g
A IR T EZ M2 - EHEED
1% B A A9 R TR (L B K R R LI
A?Z%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%?&
BTG 2 2 1B (B IR i B A AT

e %ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁoﬁﬂﬁﬁ
PRAK 2N T-AE (R 6 A AR 25 3 B R R
AEAT AR RS > A1 25 H B R 5 K A Bl
BEMEE -

2018 2017
—B-NE  —FtF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEAT [ER:
1,842.8 1,842.8
50.9 102.7
1,893.7 1,945.5
(506.7) (573.3)
1,387.0 1,372.2

AEER -FE—/F+_H=+—HZE
WS S T RGO M EES2 o
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONT’D)

Summarised consolidated financial information of

material associates

The summarised consolidated financial information of the
Group’s material associates, TACI, APAC and SHKFGL, is

set out below.

()

TACI

BE_F - /FH_A=1t—HILFE
23. REE QT2 (F)

(i)

The summarised consolidated financial information
below represents amounts shown in TACI’s
consolidated financial statements prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs. The results, assets and
liabilities of TACI are accounted for using the equity
method in these consolidated financial statements

(Note).

Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Revenue

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive (expenses)
income for the year

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Dividends received from TACI
during the year

B
I
B
I ) 1

A
el () VATIPAl &
ARAE i A
AR R H A A THT (28 1)
L&
ARAE I THT AL i
AR
AR JEWHUR %Y

=)

ERBE QR ZEE M BE R

S TR A R K% T R T
I A 2 A B S R BB 91 7
T

A B AR EA RN R &

(1 555 5 R 3 (RRAB A U B s i o
HRGRE) 22 &8 - REZ ¥
B HE R AT R R AR
BB R AR GERE) -

2018 2017
—E-N\F G S -
HK$ Million HK$ Million

BEETT HEW G
12,176.3 13,595.5
26,838.4 23,560.9
(7,560.7) (6,096.3)
(6,201.0) (6,175.1)

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—h4E
HK$ Million HK$ Million

BEBTT HEW G
3,291.7 1,112.9

- 1,634.0
1,258.1 2,092.1

(511.1) 673.4

747.0 2,765.5

146.7 238.3
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONT’D)

Summarised consolidated financial information of
material associates (Cont’d)

()

TACI (Cont’d)

Reconciliation of the above summarised consolidated
financial information to the carrying amount of
the interest in TACI recognised in the consolidated

financial statements:

wWE L/ Fr_H=1—HIFE
23. REFE N T 2B ()
BERBE QR ZHEMBEE R ()
(i) KL (#)
Al A S R B AR A i

e I REERR A K 22 A 2 BRI (B
HE .

=

2018 2017
—E-N\F e S o S
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEABT H &I
Net assets attributable to R WA
the owners of TACI B TE 23,883.1 23,4253
Proportion of the Group’s ownership R4 [H i K% 2
interest in TACI AT HERE 45 L 091 48.66% 48.66%
Share of net assets of TACI JEAL K 2B B i E 11,621.5 11,398.8
Goodwill [tk 3 1.8 1.8
Adjustment on acquisition of LW R 2R A
additional interest in TACI M2 T4 (614.0) (614.0)
Unrealised profit adjustments RS VS A S (29.9) (29.9)
Carrying amount of the AR KR E L
Group's interest in TACI HE £ 2 B THI(EL 10,979.4 10,756.7

Note: The Group’s 48.66% interest in TACI gives the Group 48.66%

of the voting rights in TACI. As at 31st December, 2018,
the board composition of TACI comprised five executive
directors, two non-executive directors and four independent
non-executive directors, totalling eleven directors. Of
these directors, a non-executive director of TACI is also an
executive director of each of AGL and the Company, and an
executive director of TACI is also an executive director of
AGL. China Elite Holdings Limited (“China Elite”, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company that held the 48.66%
interest in TACI) has resolved that whilst the Company’s direct
or indirect shareholding in TACI is less than 50%, China Elite
will not, without prior public notice required under applicable
legislation, exercise its power as a shareholder of TACI to seek
to appoint another director to the board of directors of TACI
who is or has within the previous twelve months been an
employee or a director of China Elite, its holding company or
any subsidiary of its holding companies.

TACLI’s other three significant shareholders hold a total of
32.71% equity interest as at 31st December, 2018 and were
independent third parties from the Group.

The Group has considered whether TACI is a subsidiary
when preparing its consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31st December, 2018 in view of the provisions
of HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and has
concluded that it does not have unilateral ability to direct
the relevant activities of TACI based on the above facts and
circumstances, and accordingly, the Group continues to
account for TACI as an associate.

The principal activities of TACI are property investment and
development in the PRC and are strategic to the Group’s
activities.

FEMR - AREENR R LK 2 48.66%HE fi I T A4
M A K % 2 48.66% P ZEHE o R &
—/\4E+"H=1+—H  K&&EHGH
HAATES ~ WA TES L2
BT ER G — R E R -
EZEEREE D > — B REFNITE
IR LA 4 B AR A F 45 AT
HWE S MRL—ZPTEFHABE
LB FAITE D - China Elite Holdings
Limited ([ China Elite] » 4%/ @] 4 & fff
JEBAT > B KK 48.66% WA ) o
PR EAR N T A L Y B 1 B R R
HEDIR50% > HIIChina Elitefe RAREE
PRGN T AR EAT IR
REWHRIIRES] » SoRBEH—HEF
TMARZH R > s denr +—
18 H AT 5% £E4B(EChina Elite ~ %
JBEZA T B LA R ) AT o g 2 70 0 1

W= FEFZHA=1—H» K%
HoAth =4 FEBR A ILFFA32.71%0%
HE > BB AREE 2 B =5

G I E T — A
= —H IR 2 A M AR AR
YRS S 3 B 1 0BT 4 4 AT
TERRY SeY eIy PN IS
7o A R R > I
o B 7 T 2 B ) T 38 7 K % B A B
W o (R > A AR 2 J
ININE

K2z EEIEBEE My IR P BT 5
PO R g - AR B A R MY

288
Er
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONT’D)

BE_F - /FH_A=1t—HILFE
23. REE QT2 (F)

Summarised consolidated financial information of BB\ T 2 2SS Bt (48)

material associates (Cont’d)

(i) APAC (i) FEREW
T2 &G B R ZAR A SR
BRI AR & B R (IRAR 7 W S 5
o HE QI A ) 25 2 SR o SR
FIRZ A EE LA RER
EIA LR S IR AR

The summarised consolidated financial information
below represents amounts shown in APAC’s
consolidated financial statements prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs. The results, assets and
liabilities of APAC are accounted for using the equity
method in these consolidated financial statements.

Current assets LB A

Non-current assets FF it Eh

Current liabilities BRI

Non-current liabilities FE B & fE

Revenue YA

(Loss) profit for the year ARAEBE (548 i A1)

Other comprehensive (expenses) AR B H A 4 T ()
income for the year Wi as

Total comprehensive (expenses) ARG BE 22T (22 1) Wi
income for the year KB

Dividends received from APAC ASAE W R R BRI
during the year liids!

2018 2017
—E-N\F “E—tF
HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million
BEER LY
1,055.5 1,718.5
1,851.1 1,678.3
(113.4) (39.8)
- (44.5)
2018 2017
—E-N\F TE LA
HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BEER EEY
180.5 1243
(335.1) 698.3
(155.1) 224.1
(490.2) 922.4
16.2 4.1
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONT’D)

Summarised consolidated financial information of

material associates (Cont’d)
(ii) APAC (Cont’d)

Reconciliation of the above summarised consolidated
financial information to the carrying amount of the
interest in APAC recognised in the consolidated

financial statements:

Net assets attributable to
the owners of APAC

Proportion of the Group’s ownership
interest in APAC

Share of net assets of APAC
Adjustment on acquisition of

additional interest in APAC
Others

Carrying amount of the
Group’s interest in APAC

A ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED
BawE (FEE)FRAIA

BE_F—/F+_A=t—HILFE

23. REFE QT 2R (E)
EABENTRZES
(ii)  EERK &I (A

Al R B R AR 2 B
5 T R B A VM 2 AT

Bt E R (4])

TR BB

{E 2 HHR
2018 2017
—E-N\E e D
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT H eI
AR B R
JREA B T E 2,793.2 3,312.5
AEE A T RKEE
WA PERE £ LU 45 35.78% 33.92%
JRE Ak YR VR 999.4 1,123.6
R WA I R R AR A
HE 25 7 2 (108.4) (73.3)
HAthy 0.4 -
AEE AT KGR
WE 5 2 BRI {EL 891.4 1,050.3
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018
23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONT’D)

Summarised consolidated financial information of

material associates (Cont’d)

(iif) SHKFGL
SHKFGL is accounted for using the equity method.
The summarised consolidated financial information
of the financial performance for the year and financial
position at the reporting date represents the amounts
included in the consolidated financial statements
of SHKFGL prepared in accordance with HKFRSs
and adjusted by fair value adjustments made at the
time of reclassifying SHKFGL from a subsidiary to an

associate.

Current assets T A E

Non-current assets JE B & =

Current liabilities T A

Non-current liabilities FEE) B R

Revenue A

Profit for the year AR B Vi )

Other comprehensive (expenses) HoAth 22T (B SZ)
income W 4

Total comprehensive income o TH] W it AR

BE_F—NEtT_H=1T—HIERE
23. REFE QT 2R (E)
BEABE QAT zEE W HERMR M (&)

(iii) B2 Al (]

TG 4 4R [ (o P RE 2R TR AR © %5
A TS R A 2 5 B 35 A i e R 4
5 (9 AR 5 A s A YA ) A R 2
G WIS R TN Y A IR R B T &
BHZ MESIRI > A S g
TS A AR B | B A R 2 A
A REFTVE 2 O FE (R -

2018 2017
—2-NE Tt
HK$ Million  HK$ Million

BHEET L.
12,572.9 11,995.9
1,095.6 1,827.7
(4,152.8) (5,805.9)
(6,085.3) (4,521.3)

2018 2017
—E-N\F G S = S
HK$ Million  HKS$ Million

BHEABRT T EHIT
1,602.6 1,328.2

210.7 127.5

(2.8) 11.8

207.9 139.3

Annual Report 2018
S N E R



for the year ended 31st December, 2018

23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONT’D)

Summarised consolidated financial information of

material associates (Cont’d)
(iii) SHKFGL (Cont’d)

245

BWE-E— ) Ft+—H=+—H I
23. REFE QT 2R (E)

(iif)

The reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interest in

SHKFGL is as follows:

Adjusted net assets of
SHKFGL

Group's effective interest

Group's share of adjusted
net assets

Goodwill

Impairment (note 13)

Carrying amount of the Group's
interest in SHKFGL

A ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED
BawE (FEE)FRAIA

R B A
AR AR

AL 2 A AR

A A [T A 4 o
B E

ik

WE (KHEE13)

A A [ 0 e < A £
2 4 B AT (L

i 2 5 ] ()

ERBE QR ZHEHEE R ()

e B s R AR AL i A AR
P 2 i B T B SRR

2018 2017
—B-NE  —FtF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEAT [ER:
3,430.4 3,496.4
30% 30%
1,029.2 1,048.9
607.7 607.7
(505.9) (572.6)
1,131.0 1,084.0
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018 S

23.

24.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONT’D) 23.

Aggregate financial information of associates that are not
individually material

The aggregate financial information of associates that are
not individually material is set out below.

The Group’s share of (loss) profit AR B EAL AR AR BE (518
for the year Tt Al

The Group's share of other 7S5 [ B A A 4
comprehensive (expenses) HoAto 2w (2 1)
income for the year Wi

The Group's share of total A A [ A AR 4 B
comprehensive (expenses) T (% ) Wias
income for the year AR

Aggregate carrying amount of the AR F A% S B A T Z
Group's interests in these associates HE £ 2 R ThD AR(EL

The Group has unrecognised share of losses of associates as
follows:

The unrecognised share of losses ARAF A AR R MEAG
for the year 18

Cumulative share of unrecognised losses 2 FHHEAL KRRk 1H

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 24,
Unlisted shares FE bt
Cost of investment FE WA
Share of post-acquisition reserves JRRE A WA B £ b A
Elimination of unrealised profit L A 5 35 i A1)

Particulars of the Group’s principal joint venture at 31st
December, 2018 are set out in note 53.

“E-NETZA=Z+—HIEE

REE DTz s ()
ERTREAZHE ARNMBEERRE

B AN T R 2 i A R ) A R A
HHUR -

2018 2017
—E-NHF - S
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEBT HE I
40.7) 32.0

(5.4) 11.1

46.1) 43.1

256.0 397.0

AL 2 R TERE EAG B 2w HR AN T

2018 2017
—E—_N\F S D
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEBTT H H T
0.7) (0.7)
(26.7) (26.0)
REE QT ZEE
2018 2017
—E-N\FE ZE LA
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBTT H H# T
236.8 249.0
3,251.7 2,948.2
3,488.5 3,197.2
(33.5) (33.5)
3,455.0 3,163.7

AREER —F—/NF+_A=Ft—HME
THB A A FEE R K k53 -
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

24. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONT’D)

Summarised consolidated financial information of

material joint venture

The summarised consolidated financial information in
respect of the Group’s material joint venture, Allied
Kajima Limited (“AKL”), is set out below. The summarised
consolidated financial information represents amount
shown in AKL’s consolidated financial statements
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs. The results, assets
and liabilities of AKL are accounted for using the equity

method in these consolidated financial statements.

Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

The above assets include the following:

Cash and cash equivalents

Revenue

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive (expenses)
income for the year

Total comprehensive income for
the year

The above profit for the year
includes the following:
Depreciation
Interest income
Interest expenses
Taxation

A ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED
BawE (FEE)FRAIA

2018
—E-N\F B+t
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEABTT HE T
it B 381.2
FE i Eh = 6,849.0 6,355.0
ELIB=K (223.2)
FE B A (510.5)
DI EEEARENIEE ¢
4 NS5 EY) 218.0
2018
—E-N\E —E LA
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEABTT HE T
A 716.2
AAE B I3 A 664.8
ARAEFE FHA A T (22 )
W 4 2.3)
NG ]
e 662.5
B AR AR B 35 ) A4
THI45IH -
e 64.4
B A 1.0
)8 2 3.8
BiIH 40.5

BWE-E— ) Ft+—H=+—H I
24. REE QT ZELE ()
ERGE QAT ZESMFEERHM

A 4E B EOK & 8 o F Allied Kajima
Limited ([ AKL J) 947 & A5 ORI 27
T o GEA IS E R AR AKLIY 45
A IAES R Y5 A B i e I AR )
R SR o AKLZ 288 - EE LA
T FIHE 2 V5 A AR 55 BABS R P B o
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BE_F—NEtT_H=1T—HIERE
24. REERQTZELE ()

for the year ended 31st December, 2018

24. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONT’D)
Summarised consolidated financial information of BEREE DT ZGEMBEER M (8)

material joint venture (Cont’d)

Reconciliation of the above summarised consolidated b aliBE G AT B R B LA A A TSR R

financial information to the carrying amount of the interest FITRERR A AKLAE 4 2 IR THI(E 2 R

in AKL recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

2018 2017

—E-N\EF —E LA

HK$ Million HK$ Million

BEAT [ER: Yo

Net assets of AKL AKLZ &2 i H 6,496.5 5,834.1
Proportion of the Group’s ownership ~ ZA4E B R AKLZ A HE

interest in AKL 45 L] 50% 50%

Share of net assets of AKL JEAGAKLE £ 15E 3,248.2 2,917.0

Goodwill TRy 0.1 0.1

Unrealised profit adjustments 5 B Ui 1) R B (33.5) (33.5)
Carrying amount of the Group's A AR B AKLRE AR 2
interest in AKL AR (ED 3,214.8 2,883.6
Aggregate financial information of joint ventures that are ERTREAZEE A RNMBEERRE
not individually material
The aggregate financial information of joint ventures that L B K 2 A m Y A R A B
are not individually material is set out below. HIIIE o
2018 2017
—E-N\EF e S w2
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT H T
The Group's share of profit (loss) A5 T R A A 4 Y )
for the year (k548) 3.8 (28.7)
The Group’s share of other AL [ REA AR 4 i
comprehensive (expenses) HoAth 2T
income for the year (B ) Yt (3.2) 2.2
The Group's share of total AR B AL A E L2 T
comprehensive income (expenses) W4 ()
for the year k] 0.6 (26.5)
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 25.

The following table provides an analysis of financial assets
and liabilities of the Group that are at fair value (subsequent
to initial recognition upon application of HKFRS 9).

BE_F—/F+_A=t—HILFE

TRHEERAE

FRASPAEB AP EER R eME
FE % B AR O BR T 78 8 U 5 e o 4 UV 2R 9 3%
HIHERRAR) o

2018
ZB-N\f
Fair value
NYEE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
5% o L fazt
HKS$ Million HKS$ Million HKS$ Million HKS$ Million
L BEAR BEATR BEETR
Financial assets at fair value through BRAMZARERAY
other comprehensive income BEREZEREE
Equity securities listed in Fil L2 Bk
Hong Kong figs 76.0 - - 76.0
Equity securities listed outside FisSME Eirz
Hong Kong iesSie 108.9 - - 108.9
Unlisted overseas equity securities I LM A E 2 - - 21.6 21.6
Analysed for reporting purposes as RERABTA
non-current assets FiRB 184.9 - 21.6 206.5
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Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss

Equity securities listed in Hong

Equity securities listed outside
Hong Kong

Forward currency contract

Options and futures listed outsi
Hong Kong

Unlisted put right for shares in
an associate

Unlisted call option for club memberships

Unlisted call option for shares |
outside Hong Kong
Contracts for difference

Unlisted bonds issued by unlisted companies

Kong

de

isted

Listed bonds and notes issued by

listed companies

Listed bonds and notes issued by

unlisted companies

Unlisted convertible preferred and

ordinary shares issued by an
unlisted company

Unlisted preferred shares issued by

an unlisted company

Unlisted convertible preferred shares
issued by an unlisted company
Unlisted redeemable preferred shares
issued by an unlisted company

Unlisted shares issued by unlist
companies

Unlisted convertible bonds issued by unlisted

companies

ed

Unlisted overseas equity securities with

a put right for shares

Unlisted overseas equity security
Unlisted overseas investment funds
Unlisted trust issued by an unlisted

company

Analysed for reporting purposes as:

Non-current assets
Current assets

for the year ended 31st December, 2018

25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

BRERREAY
EEAE EREE

il Ll 2 At

HiELIMLE Lz
Rt

EMERRY

FELSMEE L2
SHE B

iz —HBEAR
T hadit i

F Lz e

BHELSMOIE - b2
F LR

EEAA

AN Ev& Ao

gz
TR

FEmRARTL
LR R

R EAVNCE (v
T LT B R
Lk

R EAYNCE v
F LR

L EANYNCE v
T A B

— Wk LHARETZ
T L A R S

EAN VN L (v
I Ly

FEMRTRETL
F L

Gl L
HESNBA 2

F LN 2

F LB RS

R EANYACE v
F Eifist

REWEMB L :
Fis
B EE

BE - F—/N\F+_H=1+—HIFHF
25. TREEREE(E)

2018
“B-\f
Fair value
AYER
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
1 EZH B=H a5t
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BERT BERT BEET BEET
360.8 - - 360.8
903.7 - - 903.7
- 44.2 - 44.2
- 42.2 - 42.2
- - 1,120.0 1,120.0
- - 13.3 13.3
- - 0.4 0.4
- 9.9 - 9.9
- 1,483.7 - 1,483.7
- 253.5 - 253.5
- 38.3 - 38.3
- 56.3 - 56.3
- - 57.2 57.2
- 93.0 - 93.0
- 64.6 - 64.6
- 16.6 42.0 58.6
- - 21.0 21.0
- - 856.6 856.6
- 76.4 - 76.4
- - 5,157.3 5,157.3
- - 28.5 28.5
1,264.5 2,178.7 7,296.3 10,739.5
6,360.9
4,378.6
10,739.5
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss
Held for trading
Futures and options unlisted in Hong Kong
Futures and options listed outside
Hong Kong
Futures and options unlisted outside
Hong Kong
Foreign currency contracts
Over the counter equity derivatives
Short position in equity securities under
stock borrowing arrangement
Contracts for difference

Analysed for reporting purposes as current
liabilities

BE F—/\F+_H=1+—HIFHF
25. TREEREE(E)

2018
“E-\E
Fair value
AYVEE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
24 2= E=4 -
HKS$ Million HKS$ Million HKS$ Million HKS$ Million
BEBT BEBT BEBT BEBT
BRBERRRATEEREL
SREE
RER A i
Fi I L R - 25.2 - 252
FiEIME L2
V& R - 3.0 - 3.0
FELIMEZ
T E T R - 329 - 32,9
K& - 104 - 104
BANRAM A A - - 229 29
fERR IR T 2 i
HHRE 288.2 - - 288.2
ERAH - 4.7 - 427
BERE M A
B 288.2 114.2 229 4253
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

The following table provide analysis of financial assets
and liabilities of the Group that are measured at cost
less impairment and at fair value subsequent to initial
recognition (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1st January,
2018).

BE - F—/N\F+_H=1+—HIFHF
25. TREEREE(E)

S S Y e R NN RN
FRERBAR LA~ (L o P < O 2 B
(A =& — /\4F— A — H &R A& B 5K
HHERI 9 SRAT)

2017
“Z—tE
Fair value
AT Cost less
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 impairment Total
F—H F M F=B RAMBRERE st
HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million
HAEET BT HEET HAEET HEET
Available-for-sale financial assets ~ AftHESHEE
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong it Il 2 Bt A 4 47.2 - - - 47.2
Equity securities listed outside FLSMbIE bz
Hong Kong AR 213.8 - - - 213.8
Unlisted overseas equity securities  JE_F il sMiEA &% - - 414 21.6 63.0
Analysed for reporting purposes as £ 28 B 10475
non-current assets FRBEE 261.0 - 414 216 324.0
Financial assets at fair value ERERREATER
through profit or loss BEZERMEE
Held for trading investments FRERC T E
Equity securities listed in i L1z
Hong Kong T s 453.7 - - - 453.7
Equity securities listed outside BN iz
Hong Kong A s 2 743.4 - - - 743.4
Exchange-traded funds listed in (AN VA
Hong Kong FrEEEE 3.6 = - _ 16
Over the counter equity derivatives /M A4 TR - - 0.7 - 0.7
Forward currency contract EIERLH = 15.2 = = 15.2
Unlisted currency options 7 L B = 3.1 - - 3.1
Unlisted put right for shares in il o
an associate N TR HE = = 1,053.0 - 1,053.0
Unlisted call option for Lz ek
club memberships R R = = 10.9 = 10.9
Unlisted call option for shares A LSMORE L1
listed outsice ey i
Hong Kong AR - - 109 - 109
Contracts for difference EERH - 8.6 - - 8.6
Unlisted bonds issued by EWARENZ
listed companies T LT - 18.2 - - 18.2
Unlisted bonds issued by FETARETL
unlisted companies F LTt - 1,000.9 = - 1,000.9
Listed bonds and notes issued by~ LA R #4172
unlisted companies iR R - 302.0 - - 302.0
Listed bonds issued by EWARERZ
listed companies LiifER = 2,172.3 = = 21723
1,200.7 3,520.3 1,075.5 - 5,796.5
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE-F— /) FE+A=1+—HILFE
25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONT’D) 25. eREERAGE)
2017
i
Fair value
TR Cost less
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 impairment Total
- wmog =8 BATIRRE A5t

HKS$ Million  HKS$ Million  HK§ Million ~ HK$ Million  HK$ Million
HEHTT HEBT HEBT AEBT HEBT

Financial assets at fair value BRERREATER
through profit or loss (Cont'd) REZSMEE(H)

Investments designated as at 1o BRI
fair value through profit or loss AFEERE B E
Unlisted convertible preferred — Mk B # T
and ordinary shares issued by 2 LT
an unlisted company B R - 1173 - - 117.3
Unlisted convertible preferred — M s e #T
shares issued by an unlisted Z F LT
company B - - 17.1 - 17.1
Unlisted convertible bonds issued ~ JE_F /A Al %11 2
by unlisted companies S AN de - - 21.0 - 21.0
Unlisted overseas equity securities It aBit 2 7
with a put right for shares AN A 2 - - 811.5 - 811.5
Unlisted overseas investment funds ~ 3F_F s &4 = 167.2 4,302.2 = 4.469.4
- 284.5 5151.8 - 5436.3
1,200.7 3,804.8 6,227.3 - 11,232.8
Analysed for reporting purposes as: £ 28t F B FIF{f 2 447 -
Non-current assets B EE 5,033.7
Current assets B A 6,199.1
11,232.8
Financial liabilities at fair value BRRERENTEE
through profit or loss REZSHMER
Held for trading e g
Futures and options listed outside ¥ RASMAIE i 2
Hong Kong G R 25 - - . 25
Foreign currency contracts BRHE - 52.8 - - 52.8
Unlisted overseas options 7 s - 14 - - 14
Over the counter equity derivatives ~ B5MA T LE - - 8.8 - 8.8
Stock borrowings HARS - 82.9 - - 82.9
Contracts for difference EERH - 127 - ~ 12.7
Analysed for reporting purposes as A2 H 1927 A
current liabilities HH AR 2.5 149.8 8.8 - 161.1
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25.

A

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

AFS financial assets were intended to be held for a
continuing strategic or long-term purpose. Due to
insufficient market information and a wide range of
possible fair values as input to carry the fair value reliably,
some of the unlisted equity investments were measured at
cost less impairment.

On the basis of its analysis of the nature, characteristics
and risks of the securities, the Group has determined
that presenting them by nature and type of issuers is
appropriate.

Fair values are grouped from level 1 to 3 based on the
degree to which the fair values are observable.

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities.

Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from
input other than quoted prices included within level 1 that
are observable for the assets or liabilities, either directly (i.e.
as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from
valuation techniques that include input for the assets or
liabilities that are not based on observable market data.

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. Where level
1 inputs are not available, the Group engages external
valuers to perform the valuation for certain complex or
material financial assets and liabilities. The valuation
working group works closely with the external valuers to
establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs
to the valuation model for those complex or material
financial assets and liabilities. For those less complex or
not material financial assets and liabilities, the Group
establishes appropriate valuation techniques internally to
perform the valuation. The valuation working group also
analyses changes in fair value measurements from period
to period.

The fair values of bonds under level 2 at the reporting date
were derived from quoted prices from pricing services.
Where level 2 inputs are not available, the Group engages
external valuers to perform the valuation for certain
complex or material financial assets and liabilities.

The fair values of level 3 financial assets and liabilities
are mainly derived from valuation technique using an
unobservable range of data. In estimating the fair value of
a financial asset or a financial liability under level 3, the
Group engages external valuers or establishes appropriate
valuation techniques internally to perform the valuations
which are reviewed by the relevant management of the
group companies.

ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED
BatE (FEE)FRAIA

HWEF— /F+ A= —HIEFE
25. TREEREE(E)

]k B < AR AR R
FRHR o pA A 5T S B A R
AT P (8 AT 1 2 g A BB (ELOE T T 5
HETE R > B0 IF LTS A%
BEAFIER A R & o

BRI N R SRR B o A
P 5 E LB AT AR R B 25 e
B o

OB H AR B S B — % =4 -

BB P AR R AR A SR
PTG T 3 Y i A (AR ) AR o

fEAN - e B T B (RIMERS) B

B TR S B TR — s A 2 4
132 (B E TR A ) LB A B 15 o o

SRR TEE R R YR AL IR AR SR AT 8
KGR EE RA m AN ETT AR
$ o

TEAb VB (R > 752 (o HL B
Z BT S5 R o v lf7 288 5 — A A K
5% > AR B Z WS SN EAG (E Rt 4 T 1 M
BRI E B UEAT G (E o A5 E TR
NELBRLOI R A (B R R 5 AF > RS
e B A <l B R i (AR A S
B AGE T 5 R AN B o TR E
BUR B AN R Sl & MBS
7B T N IS A S T 2 A AL A DA T A
{H o fh(E TAR/DIMZ I M T (R

B8 -

R&EE R - B R Rz AP EETY
U E (B RS B i 2 ABAS o s T 4 A
HRMEMEERAM > EERASE M
ég%&ﬂ%ﬁ%: AR P 2R S A Ak (e R 7 Al

=R MR E R AR A PEEE R
H— RSB ERH (B TT i o
FHE = AR A B A R AP
RF o SR B Z RS SN (R 3 AT 80 &
08 ZAG{ETT R DAOEATAG (B > 3If ply 2 [ 2 )
ZAHBRE PR E B
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25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

The following table provides further information regarding
the valuation of material financial assets under level 3.

255

BE_F—/F+_A=t—HILFE

25. TREEREE(E)

TREMARE =HEREMEEMGEZ
2R

2018
3-NE
Valuation technique ~ Unobservable inputs Input values Fair value  Sensitivity analysis
fEnE  FTRENBARE LN 1 LYEE #BEAK
HKS Million
REER
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
BRRERROTREAR L CHKE
Unlisted put right for shares in an associate Option model Expected volatilty 104% 11200 Anincrease in volatlity would resultin
AR a1 UG iR Hst il anincrease in the fai value.
Fouity growth rate 14% SRR FREL A -
iRk Anincrease in equity growth rate would result
Estimated equity value  HK$1,137.0 Million in a decrease in the fair value.
BREEGE  1310AEET st L AMASA TR -
Discount rate 17% An increase in estimated equity value would
(for estimated resultin a decrease in fair value.
equity value) LA BN
iEES
(R AR Rfafe
Unlisted overseas equity securities with Market Expected volatilty 47% 8566 An increase in volatlity would resultin
a put right for shares approach and FrHim an increase in the fair value.,
RO LN option model Discount rate 25% BRI ESATRE L -
Tishtk R % An increase in discount rate would result n
Equity growth rate 0.9% a decrease in the fair value.
[ R TSR LTS A F R TR
An increase in equity growth rate would result
in a decrease in the fair value.
PR RE LA FRETR
Unlisted overseas investment funds Net asset value* na na 51573 nl
kLA ERES i TR T T
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25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

BE - F—/N\F+_H=1+—HIFHF
25. TREEREE(E)

2017
=
Valuation technique ~ Unobservable inputs Input values Fairvalue  Sensitivity analysis
[t AUBENEALE BARGRE AFEE SRR
HKS Million
kT
Held for trading investments
BERERE
Unlisted put ight for shares in an associate Option model Expected volatilty 8.9% 1,053.0  Anincrease in volatlity would result
Lz - FRELRRARE il Fist i in an increase in the fai value.
Equity growth rate 0.5% BRI PR -
iR An increase in equity growth rate would result
Estimated equity value - HK$1,084.0 million in a decrease in the fair value,
BREENE 1 0s0mBkT PR PR TR
Discount rate 16.6% An increase in estimated equity value would
(for estimated resultin a decrease in fair value.
equity value) PR RO LA TR -
kS
(U Cafit
Financial assets designated as at
fair value through profit or loss
FERRRERRROTRERE SRKE
Unlisted overseas equity securities with Market comparable Price to book ratio 1.06x 8115 Anincrease in volatilty would result in
a putright for shares approach and [ anincrease in the fair value.
RO LA option model Fxpected volatiity 5.1% WS AT EE A -
TisaHL 8k R A R An increase in equity growth rate would result
Discount rate 21% in a decrease in the fair value.
HEES PR R LI PRE TR -
Equity growth rate 0.1%
fRE
Unlisted overseas investment funds Net asset value* na na 43022 nh
N7 e HR A TR TR TR
*  The Group has determined that the reported net asset values * REEMEE - B G BHESE I EATE ML

represent fair value of the unlisted overseas investment funds.

Except for unlisted overseas equity securities with a put
right for shares, there has been no change in the valuation
technique during the year. During the year, the major
subsidiary of CM International Holding Pte Ltd (“CMIG”)
was listed on The New York Stock Exchange. Therefore, a
market approach was used instead of a market comparable
approach for the valuation of this subsidiary of CMIG.

B 2 NPE -

W 2 BB 03 58k HE 2 9F b T A RO R
RO o RN BIAGE T IE M AR E) o
N > CM International Holding Pte Ltd
(TCMIG ) By T ZE g 24 7] © AR A 8 55
o P LT o B > HEZCMIGZ M A
) AT Al (L IRy i PR T 35 3 i JF T 8 L R
o
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018 BEF—/\FET_H=1T—HILFE
25. SMEERERHE)

BN TEERE T 2 e E kAR

25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

The reconciliation of financial assets and liabilities under

level 3 fair value measurements is as follows: IR -
2018
I I
Balance at
31t
Balance at December,
15t anuary, Recognist gains or losses 2018
08 ERAKETER B Unrealised
i Other Z5-NE ginorlos
%)% comprehensive T2 fortheyear
-A-A Transfer ~ Profit or loss income Purchase Disposl  =T-B  ERAER
Pl &8 B Rb2ENE EA e 6B WEdER
HKS Million ~ HKS Milon ~ HKSMilion ~ HKSMilion ~ HKSMillion ~ HKS Million  HKS Million ~HKS Millon
REEn FEEn  REEn  REAr  EEEn  BEEn  EEMR  REER
Financial assets at fair value through ~~ EBEM2ERERAT
other comprehensive income BERE EHEE
Unlisted overseas equity securites F st 26 - - - - - 26 -
Financial assets at fair value through ~~ FEERERATER
profitor loss REZSHEE
Over the counter equity derivatives SMRAATAE LR 07 - 07) - - - - (07)
Unlited put rght forshares n F Lz~ RaL
an associate Tleiie 1,053.0 - 67.0 - - - 1,200 67.0
Unlised callaption for b kL fred
mermberships Bl i 109 - 24 - - - 133 24
Unlisted calloption for shares listed -~~~ DIMAIR L iRt f2
outside Hong Kong ¥ L 109 - (105) - - - 04 (103)
Unlisted prferred shares isued by AL ivd
an unlsted company FLTERER 171 39 38 - 534 (21.0) 57 04)
Unlisted shares issued by anwnlisted ~~~ —FiE ETVARETZ
company AN} 44 - (19 - 25 - 420 (19
Unlisted convertible bonds ssued by~ % i #f72
unlised companies FLmmkiEs 1m0 - - - - - n -
Unlisted overseas eqity securiies with AR
aputrightfor shares L 8115 - 41 - - - 836.6 81
Unlisted overseas investment funds kL EEE 4,302 (39) 34 - 10478 0322 51573 3028
Unlisted trustissued by an unlisted — i LA RE
company FLifest - - (1.0) - 93 - 283 (1.0)
Financil iabliies at fair value RERERALATERE
through profit or loss REZEHAR
Over the counter equity derivatives SRR TR (89) - (14.1) - - - (29) (141)
ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K) LIMITED Annual Report 2018
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Available-for-sale financial assets
Unlisted overseas equity securities

Held for trading investments
Over the counter equity derivatives
Over the counter currency derivatives
Unlisted put right for shares in

an associate
Unlisted call option for club memberships
Unlisted call option for shares

listed outsice Hong Kong

Investments designated as at fair value

Unlisted convertible preferred shares
issued by an unlisted company

Unlisted convertible bonds issued by
unlisted companies

Unlisted overseas equity securities with
a put right for shares

Unlisted overseas investment funds

Financial liablities held for trading
Over the counter equity derivatives
Over the counter currency derivatives

for the year ended 31st December, 2018

THHEcRER
kAR

BFRaRE

SRR T

SR TR

b anik NG
il

kLT & fraaRm
FELMIE LR
K LT

FEARATREREZRE
~HE LA
AL LS Vil
PRI 174
P
LG
TR
kLmisEe

RERaRE2 SRR
SRR TR
SRR

25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

BE - F—/N\F+_H=1+—HIFHF
25. TREEREE(E)

2017
“F-kE

Balance at

Jst

Belhrad Recognised gains or losses December,

1st January, CiRRadER 2017
2017 Other s Unrealised
s comprehensive “E—th gain orloss
3t income TZH for the year
=A=H  Profitorloss Afbzm Purchase Disposal =t-H Ffkan
L Ba g A i3 5% esE o
HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million
[ BT HEBT BEBT BEBT BEBT [
12 - 09 - - 114 -
04 03 - - - 0.7 03
0.1 0.1) - - B - 0.1)
1,052.0 1.0 - - - 1,053.0 1.0
8.3 26 - - - 109 26
124 03) - - (1.2) 109 03)
- 0.1 - 17.0 - 17.1 0.1
39 0.1 - 170 - 210 0.1
626.1 (14.6) - - - 8115 (14.6)
2871.6 922.7 - 060.5 (158.6) 43022 900.5
(29 (5.9) = = = (6.8) (5.9
(19 19 - - - - 19
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018
25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONT’D) 25. TREERBE(E)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets at the

BE_F—/F+_A=t—HILFE

745 T < L R ko U R 2 R T (B A

end of the reporting period were as follows: T
2018 2017
—g-_N\FE  —F LA
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEBT B EWIT
Financial assets at AR i MRAE A T E (R
FVTPL &Rl
— Held for trading investments —FHEH A - 5,796.5
— Investments at — At IR T
FVTPL B R & 10,739.5 5,436.3
10,739.5 11,232.8
Financial assets measured at amortised  §H £ I i B & 2
cost (2017: loans and receivables) TR AT B 2 & E =
under non-current assets (- F—b4F « B S ERCRIA)
— Term loans, trade and other — A S - B 5 KA
receivables (note 29) AJE (B 5E29) 79.5 505.8
— Loans and advances to consumer —HE SR B MK
finance customers (note 26) (f5526) 2,618.9 2,322.8
— Mortgage loans (note 27) — AR AR (M aE27) 1,956.8 1,243.1
— Amounts due from associates — BB N T R
(note 30) (Fff5E30) 266.7 275.2
Financial assets measured at amortised  BfkE & i B & = 2
cost (2017: loans and receivables) PR AT B 2 S R E
under current assets (- F—b4F « SR EENCHIA)
— Short-term pledged bank deposits — FE IR RA T A R
and bank balances (note 31) SRATAS R (FhEE31) 20.0 1.2
— Bank deposits, cash and cash —SRATHR - Bk
equivalents (note 31) B EEY (M5E31) 5,385.1 3,197.4
— Term loans, trade and other —HHEER - B 5 KA
receivables (note 29) ARIE (FfFEE29) 4,466.2 3,126.8
— Amounts due from brokers — &AL R K 507.1 725.9
— Loans and advances to consumer — H B AR PR K
finance customers (note 26) (Fff5E26) 7,150.8 6,840.8
— Mortgage loans (note 27) — iR SR (B 5E27) 1,897.4 877.3
— Amounts due from associates — A N T R K
(note 30) (Ff5E30) 266.3 228.1
— Amounts due from joint ventures — BB NEIREK
(note 30) (B¥5E30) 9.8 9.1
24,624.6 19,353.5
AFS financial assets ] ik A g U - 324.0
Financial assets at 75 30 LAt 4 T AT £ 4% AT
FVTOCI fEE R 2 &l & 206.5 -
206.5 324.0
35,570.6 30,910.3

Pl Annual Report 2018
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25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial liabilities at
the end of reporting period were as follows:

HHEH AT R Z

AR

Financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost
— Bank and other borrowings (note 37)
— Trade and other payables (note 32)
— Financial assets sold under
repurchase agreements (note 33)
— Amount due to a holding company

(BFF5E33)

— Amounts due to associates — R Ik I\ F 3RE
— Amounts due to joint ventures — RE& /N FIFIE

— Notes/papers payable (note 38)

Financial liabilities at

FVTPL SRR
— Held for trading —FHEs o id

Transferred financial assets

The Group enters into transactions in the normal course of
business by which it transfers recognised financial assets
to third parties. In some cases these transfers may give rise
to full derecognition of the financial assets concerned. In
other cases where the Group has retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of these assets, the Group continues
to recognise the transferred assets.

The Group transfers financial assets that are not
derecognised in their entirety primarily through the sale of
debt securities with repurchase agreements.

Sales and repurchase agreements are transactions in which
the Group sells a debt security and simultaneously agrees
to repurchase it (or an asset that is substantially the same)
at the agreed date and price. The repurchase prices are
fixed and the Group is still exposed to substantially all
the credit risks, market risks and rewards of those debt
securities sold. These debt securities are not derecognised
from the consolidated financial statements but regarded
as “collateral” for the liabilities because the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of these
debt securities. The proceeds received on the transfer are
recognised as liabilities under “Financial assets sold under
repurchase agreements”.

— SRAT S HA A (B eE37)
— B 5 K HA AR (i 5E32)
— [ hER 2 SREE

— R — WA R R

— A 2205 (B 5E38)

HWEF— /F+ A= —HIEFE
25. TREEREE(E)

75 42 ) 4 B AR S 0 R 22 R T
o

B IR S IR AR AP (R B

2018 2017
—B-N\F S
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT EE Ao
9,531.6 4,525.3
162.0 235.9
1,216.5 1,071.0
27.8 14.9

7.4 7.4

40.1 0.1
7,676.0 8,007.4
18,661.4 13,862.0
425.3 161.1
19,086.7 14,023.1

EERESREE
AR IE# B R PRI 28 5 > R
A C RS SR =07 o fEa T
THOUT - W% 55 n] e Bl e T 4% 1k e R
AR ERE  FEHAMEIT > AL
PR B 255 7 114 A8 KT JL e % [ - 1)
AR P A A R C R E

SR T T 6 A 1) T e ) S
i R R A 1 R AC L TR e A E

H S % T S 2 A 2 L o — T RE 2Rl
[5] Ry (7 54 h 7 300 e M A% (o] oz 5
Fra—JERBOMR EE ML S o [ AR
I E - AR BN RR 225 S 5
e 7 HY B R 0 LB > i 3 B A ]
o AL R 1% s R 1 48
PN YA TR S E R e N
AR B R A R TERE > (HBE R
RA T A | o SRR P WAL Y T A5 TR
[ 1o e T th B 2 Rl | Th RS S B

fi -
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018 BE - )\E+H=1t—HIFEF

25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONT’D) 25 TREEREEGE)
Transferred financial assets (Cont’d) CHEESRMEE (&)
The following table sets out the carrying amounts of all RS A R A L TERR Y B R 4
financial assets transferred that are not derecognised in EE S A B B fE I R T -

their entirety and associated liabilities.

As at 31st December, 2018
R=B-NF+ZA=+—-H

Carrying Carrying
amount of amount
transferred  of associated
assets liabilities
Analysed by liabilities type CEZELEE HEERME  Net Position
REEER AT ZHREE ZREE FE
Financial assets
at FVTPL
AVFEERE
ZERMEE

HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
HEBT HEBT BHERTRT

Financial assets sold under repurchase ] B T
agreements (note 33) Z & REE (E33) 1,483.7 1,216.5 267.2

As at 31st December, 2017
R_F—t&E+-A=1+—H

Carrying Carrying
amount of amount
transferred of associated
assets liabilities
Analysed by liabilities type SR HBERE  Net Position
He A TR A ZIRH{E Z IR {E H{E
Financial assets
at FVTPL
iR R R
NTAEEE
ZEMERE

HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
HEHBT A& B &SI

Financial assets sold under repurchase [l Btk T B

agreements (note 33) Z B MEE (HE33) 1,280.2 1,071.0 209.2
Financial assets and financial liabilities offsetting EiHEeREEREMEE
The disclosures set out in the tables below include R R A e SR A R
financial assets and financial liabilities that are subject H 5y =2 v v e ﬁ'%(?%’ﬁz*%tcﬁlﬂi(@*
to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar JEDL 5 il T LS A0 s PIT BRI » AN
agreement that covers similar financial instruments, JE TR A B4 A TR DL R RS

irrespective of whether they are offset in the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position.

A ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED Annual Report 2018
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

Financial assets and financial liabilities offsetting (Cont’d)
The Group has entered certain derivative transactions that
are covered by the International Swaps and Derivatives
Association Master Agreements (“ISDA Agreements”)
signed with various banks. These derivative instruments
are not offset in the consolidated statement of financial
position as the ISDA Agreements are in place with a
right of set off only in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy so that the Group currently has no legally
enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts.

Financial assets and liabilities subject to offsetting,
enforceable master netting arrangements and similar
agreements:

HE—

25.

—NE+=H=+—HILEE
cRIEEREE(E)
KHESREERSREE(E)
AREFMEFT A T ETRESS »

B R ERATHCET 10 130 B R A AR T B 1
% ([ISDAW R ) FrigEs o i ISDA R
BT RIS AE LR R A 4B A R
ﬁ T A [ F A2 1k A 5
THEFIRSH CRERRIY &40 > MaZEfTE T
Eiﬂi%éjﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%

SEARH - AR AT R R A 5 L P
AL i e T A IR S <l O S B BRI RS

Related amounts not set off in the

Grossamounts ~ Net amounts i L
setoffin the presented in the consolidated statement of financial
Grossamounts  consolidated  consolidated PXS'"""\
of recognised ~ statementof  statement of ) ﬁﬁ'az # ikﬁﬁlil
financial assets financial financial BB
and liabilities position position Cash collateral
B & RGa Financial - received/pledged
SREER  BERREA  HBARR  instuments ER/BEA  Netamount
BfEag B8R 25NEE SRIA REER B
HKS Million — HKS Million ~ HKSMillion ~ HKS Million ~ HK§ Million  HKS Million
il 40 [i]-40 [i]-{0 [i]-40 {490 [i]-{0
At 315t December, 2018 R=8-NF+A=1-A
Type of financial assets EREERY
Financial assets at ERBRREATER
FVTPL RESHERE 14389 (114) 14275 (425.3) - 1,002.2
Debt securities pledged as collateral for - {E£5 e ik £
financial assets sold under repurchase 2 & Z {EH Y
agreements (note 33) et (W33 14837 - 14837 (1,216.5) - 267.2
Type of financial liabilties tRaREY
Financial liabilties at ERRR IR ATER
FVTPL EHZ AR 4367 (11.4) 453 (425.3) - -
Financial assets sold under repurchase [ s it &
agreements LEHEE 1,216,5 - 1,216,5 (1,216.5) - -
At 315t December, 2017 REE—-LEFZA=1-H
Type of financial assets SREERY
Financial assets at ERERIRE A TER
FVTPL RESHEE 2,538.9 - 2,5389 (161.1) - 2377.8
Debt securities pledged as collateral for  fA3 o Btk Tt 2
financial assets sold under repurchase A& Z fEHfAY
agreements (note 33) iR (333 1,280 - 1,280 (1,071.0) = 209.2
Type of financial liabilties tRaREY
Financial liabilties at ERBGEREATER
FVTPL RHZHAR 161.1 - 161.1 (161.1) = =
Financial assets sold under repurchase [ ek i
agreemens LERERE 1,071.0 - 1,071.0 (1,071.0 = =
Further details on financial risk management of financial <5 I B M < L B B — 2D

assets and liabilities are disclosed in note 41.

TR B 41 -
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018 BE - )\E+H=1t—HIFEF

26. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CONSUMER 26. HEBLREEESH R BN
FINANCE CUSTOMERS

2018 2017
—E-N\F e S
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT HE I
Loans and advances to consumer HESMES
finance customers B S HGR
Hong Kong s 7,803.4 6,544.2
Mainland China R[] [A) B 2,611.9 3,282.7
Less: impairment allowance R AR L ] (645.6) (663.3)
9,769.7 9,163.6
Analysed for reporting purposes as: B2 E T Z 0
Non-current assets s &= 2,618.9 2,322.8
Current assets T 7,150.8 6,840.8
9,769.7 9,163.6
Movements of impairment allowance during the year of “E LA BT
2017 were as follows:
2017
B —t4E
HK$ Million
HEHIT
At Tst January mw—H—H (906.3)
Exchange adjustments HE 52, 7 (17.7)
Amounts written off B kI 700.8
Amounts recognised in profit or loss T E 5 At R 2 2K IE (440.1)
At 31st December wt+—H=+—H (663.3)
The information for 2018 is disclosed in note 41(b). T E— )R E R M EE41 (b) B R o
All the loans and advances bear interest at market interest FIr A Sk e B TG ARG B o
rates.
ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED
A BoEE (BRE)ERD A AR e AL
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

26. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CONSUMER

FINANCE CUSTOMERS (CONT’D)

The consumer finance division uses a provision matrix
to calculate the impairment allowance for loans and
advances to consumer finance customers. The provision
rates are based on aging of different consumer financing
loan products as groupings of various debtors that have
similar loss patterns and different factors, including
historical default rates and collectability, being adjusted
by forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost. In addition, loans and advances to consumer
finance customers with significant balances are assessed
for impairment individually based on historical credit
information.

As at 31st December, 2018, the aging analysis for the
loans and advances to consumer finance customers that
are past due is as follows:

BE_F—NEtT_H=1T—HIERE
26. HESRIZEFERKRBR(E)

T 7 < D 1 D 8 e A e B <
&R BRI ARG 1 o R
T ELA BT RUS R A A R 85 A 20 AL
F AN ] 1 2 <l A i ) i B AN ] )
2o WIRRER AR AU E P - LR
L5 30 22 P A BRIV AR A RS 1 OB
o Wb BAERMSBRNHESMES
Egﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂ%ﬂﬁﬁﬁgﬂ@%%ﬁ
WRAH o

RoFE—/)FT+_H=1T—H,> B@ilz
TH 2 Rl & P Ak R Bk 2 IR 84 43 B n
T

2018

—EB-N\F

HK$ Million

BHEETT

Less than 31 days past due EH D31 H 528.6
31 to 60 days 31260H 50.4
61 to 90 days 61£90H 11.9
91 to 180 days 91%2180H 48.2
Over 180 days 180 H LA E 109.2
748.3
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018 BE - )\E+H=1t—HIFEF

26. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CONSUMER 26. HEAREESSHIRBI(E)
FINANCE CUSTOMERS (CONT’D)

As at 31st December, 2017, the aging analysis for the WoEFz—tHE+ A =+—H > cmiiH
loans and advances to consumer finance customers that Il (2 TH 2 R R T B 2 AR B
are past due but not impaired is as follows: AHTUNE

2017

S

HK$ Million

T E T

Less than 31 days past due B3 H 538.7

31 to 60 days 31260H 100.2

61 to 90 days 61290H 52.9

91 to 180 days 91£180H 117.5

Over 180 days 180 H LA E 31.4

840.7

As at 31st December, 2018, loans and advances to WFE—/NFET+_H=1—H > IRHHES

consumer finance customers with aggregate carrying 7483 H HETTHIHBESMEF SR K

amount of HK$748.3 million are past due. Out of the past RO @ - MBI AR > 157.4

due balances, HK$157.4 million has been past due 90 HEBITCEA0H R E > WHACHE

days or more and is considered to be credit-impaired. The EWHAE o WAEBH T 5 RN B S E 5 5
impairment provision has taken into account the credit R BMEFNR B E T -

quality of the underlying assets and the financial strength
of the borrowers.

At the reporting date, loans and advances to consumer REEH > HEEMEF &5 & #K
finance customers consisted of HK$8,871.9 million AR AT S 2K08,871.9 F Ml ot (—&F
unsecured (2017: HK$8,881.3 million) and HK$897.8 —-L4F 1 8,881.31 ElEIL) KA R EK
million secured (2017: HK$282.3 million). The table 897.8 H L (—F—L4 : 28230 &
below summarises its credit quality (gross balances net of #on) o PRMAER —F-LERHGEHE

impairment allowances) at the end of 2017: B2 (KABEFNBR I (M)
2017
B —h4E
HK$ Million
HEE T

Credit quality FEEX

Neither past due nor individually impaired Az e 3 S AR A 8,266.4
Past due but not impaired AT {E A (L 840.7
Individually impaired A8 7 ok 56.5
9,163.6
A ALLIED PROPERTIES (1K) LIMITED /;nr%aL Sopor 201
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

26. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CONSUMER

FINANCE CUSTOMERS (CONT’D)

The amount and type of collateral required depend
on an assessment of the credit risk of the customer or
counterparty.

As at 31st December, 2018, the gross carrying amount
of loans and advances to consumer finance customers
amounts to HK$10,415.3 million (2017: HK$9,826.9
million). The Group is entitled to sell or repledge collateral
when there is default by the borrower. There has not been
any significant changes in the quality of the collateral held
for loans and advances to consumer finance customers.

The main types of collateral and credit enhancement
obtained are as follows:

— for personal lending, charges over residential
properties/commercial properties; and

—  for commercial lending, corporate guarantees, charges
over residential properties/commercial properties,
charges over real estate properties, pledge of shares or
debentures over the borrower’s assets.

In general, secured loans and advances are made to
consumer finance customers with sufficient amount
of collateral provided by them. Management requests
additional collateral as appropriate in accordance with
the underlying agreements, and monitors the market value
of collateral during its review of the adequacy of the
impairment allowance.

Estimates of the fair value of collateral are based on
the valuation techniques commonly used for the
corresponding assets at the time of borrowing.

It is the Group’s policy to dispose of repossessed properties
in an orderly fashion. The proceeds are used to reduce
or repay the outstanding loan balances. In general, the
Group does not retain repossessed properties for business
purposes. As at 31st December, 2018, no repossessed
properties were held by the Group (2017: Nil).

In respect of the secured loans and advances to customers
with the carrying amount of HK$183.5 million (2017:
HK$266.6 million), the fair value of collateral of such
loans and advances can be objectively ascertained to
cover the outstanding amount of loan balances based on
quoted prices of collateral.

The carrying amounts of the loans and advances to
consumer finance customers approximate their fair values.

BE_F—NEtT_H=1T—HIERE
26. HESRIZEFERKRBR(E)

Jor e HEAT R IE BRI % B 5 B T
ZAE BBl YL E o

RoFE— ) FE+A=Z+—H > H&EEH
HE AR KK IR AR(E£10,415.3H
H e (—F—LF 19,826.9A EE L) °
(&R NER) > A4 FAG HE B s e
FRICHR L o WhTH A Rl & P B R KR
A A B R KA ) o

JITREHEAT (i 2 A5 B 568 46 1) E BRI 4

—  HIMANER > ETEWE TEEY
SEHCHE 5 K

—  ERESEERC IBSERER - DMEE
E VA ESESZEUINNZE V2 YE i
A R AR BN B R IR
il o

— B > AR RS > Ty fitsa T
RATTRIEM M HBEME S - HHE
T R SR AR PR A BR) 175 sl A1t BN
> A b AR 0 TR0 TR Ry B B4R
AR (E -

et HA ity 2P R ) B R R R B A LA
HRRE 7 2 Pk (B 926 T R AE o

A 4R E Y BUOR A PR 8 B R 2 o B
A5 R TE AR ARG B 2 oA 1 2 R R A s o
— S > AEEAE R R EE
TR A E - NE+_H=+—H
AN R R 2 (T — L4
fiE) o

Ii) YF5 2 4 2 5 4R AR 1 A HIE P B % B
(R 5 0 e > EHEHR 5 i A P8
{8 & ] 58 2 L L A8 A R R ) &
AGEER) Z IR A 1835 0wt (&
—L4F 1 266.6 A BHETT) ©

R & TRk~ E W & o - EE N
PE(EAA o
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018 BEF—/\FET_H=1T—HILFE
27. MORTGAGE LOANS 27. BBEK
2018 2017
—B-N\F  —FLF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEET A E#ETT
Mortgage loans AR ER
Hong Kong T 3,863.9 2,125.4
Less: impairment allowance B WA A 9.7) (5.0)
3,854.2 2,120.4

Analysed for reporting purposes as: B2 E B EEZ T

Non-current assets e B G = 1,956.8 1,243.1
Current assets MEE = 1,897.4 877.3
3,854.2 2,120.4
Movements of impairment allowance during the year of “ R CERERE ST
2017 were as follows:
2017
“E 5
HK$ Million
HE T
At Tst January mw—H—H (3.2)
Amounts written off L IH 1.4
Amounts recognised in profit or loss AR 4 iR FH 3.2)
At 31st December w+=—H=1+—H (5.0)
The information for 2018 is disclosed in note 41 (b). T B R E R EE41 (D) B EE o
The mortgage loans bear interest at market interest rates. AR SR T R R R -
ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K) LIMITED
A BoEE (BRE)ERD A AR e AL



268

for the year ended 31st December, 2018

wE_F—/F+_A=+—HILFEZ

27. MORTGAGE LOANS (CONT’D) 27. BBEK(E)
The mortgage loans have been reviewed by the mortgage e 6 KA O 7 B 4 B > (e T B (E
loans division to assess impairment allowances which are AT RPAL o AR EE B Ay w] i m] 1 R
based on an evaluation of collectability, aging analysis of ity ~ BRES AT ~ A LA TS (E K B e
accounts, fair value of collateral and on management’s I > EFEE SR BN (58 SO A I
judgment, including the current creditworthiness and the AR > L AR 22 1A BRI A F i
past collection statistics of individual accounts and are Mt SR ET RS o

adjusted for forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost.

As at 31st December, 2018, the aging analysis for the WoFE— /) FE+H=+—H > cmiizr
mortgage loans that are past due is as follows: AR SR IR AT T
2018
—z-N\E
HK$ Million
HEET
Less than 31 days past due w31 H 306.0
31 to 60 days 31260H 285.5
61 to 90 days 61290H 61.4
91 to 180 days 91£180H 22.5
Over 180 days 180 H LA E 7.5
682.9
As at 31st December, 2017, the aging analysis for the REF—LFE+_H=+—H > B@aE
mortgage loans that are past due but not impaired is as R 2 F AR B Z IREE e AT AN TS
follows:
2017
“Z—+t4F
HK$ Million
HEBIT
Less than 31 days past due w31 H 218.0
31 to 60 days 31260H 6.5
61 to 90 days 61%£90H 4.1
91 to 180 days 91£180H 8.3
Over 180 days 180 H LA E 0.5
237.4
As at 31st December, 2018, mortgage loans with aggregate REF—/FHZA=+—H - REHEE
carrying amount of HK$682.9 million are past due. Out of 36829 | MUY 48 KT @M o A&
the past due balances, HK$30.0 million has been past due CHB & AR > 30.0 AW TCHHI90
90 days or more and is considered to be credit-impaired. DL o AR AR SR o Ia{E 15t
The impairment provision has taken into account the credit EEJ[&*E I AR B R S A OB
quality of the underlying assets and the financial strength BHEN -

of the borrowers.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

27. MORTGAGE LOANS (CONT’D)

At the reporting date, mortgage loans consisted of
HK$175.1 million unsecured (2017: HK$230.1 million)
and HK$3,679.1 million secured (2017: HK$1,890.3
million). The table below summarises its credit quality
(gross balances net of impairment allowances) at the end
of 2017:

2017
e S e S
HK$ Million
HE T

Credit quality FEEX
Neither past due nor individually impaired i A i A = A ] el 1,827.5
Past due but not impaired 340 14 {40 Dok (. 237.4
Individually impaired (ERIRERIED 55.5
2,120.4

The amount and type of collateral required depends on
an assessment of the credit risk of the customer. The main
types of collateral and credit enhancement obtained
are mortgages over residential properties/commercial
properties.

As at 31st December, 2018, the gross carrying amount
of mortgage loans amounts to HK3,863.9 million (2017:
HK$2,125.4 million). The Group is entitled to sell or
repledge collateral when there is a default by the borrower.
There has not been any significant change in the quality of
collateral held for mortgage loans.

BE_F - N\FH+A=+—HILFE
27. BRBEK(E)

S N E IR 7 = - O L Ve L= /4
175 1 B BB T (ZE—L4F : 230155
Hot) MA IS K3,679.1 H T (0
F—L4 :1,890.3H Hior) o R
:é—ﬁ@*ﬁ%%ﬁ%(ﬁ%%ﬁ?n%ﬁﬁ
A -

[ e MR R IE BRI % 5 2 A5 S m B
AEA DL E o P i L2 5 00 5 £
Ho b = BN ALY 3T EY Y
15 -

R oE—/NFE+A=+—H > HEEK
A S TR 4AE 45 3,863.9 | Hi o (& —+&
12,1254 H EHTT) o M ANEL
% 45 B A R Hh S R R AR A - B
EoN= G C R SR TN~ 3= N D

Annual Report 2018
=% — UAE ]

269



270

for the year ended 31st December, 2018

27. MORTGAGE LOANS (CONT’D)

In general, mortgage loans are granted on a secured
basis with sufficient amount of collateral provided by the
borrower. Management requests additional collateral as
appropriate in accordance with the underlying agreements,
and monitors the market value of collateral during its
review of the adequacy of the impairment allowance.

Estimates of the fair value of collateral are based on
valuation techniques commonly used for the corresponding
assets at the time of borrowing.

It is the Group’s policy to dispose of repossessed properties
in an orderly fashion. The proceeds are used to reduce
or repay the outstanding loan balances. In general, the
Group does not retain repossessed properties for business
purposes. At the end of the reporting period, the net
realisable value of the repossessed properties held by
mortgage loans division is HK$7.9 million (2017: Nil).

In respect of secured mortgage loans to mortgage loan
customers with the carrying amount of HK$3,679.1 million
(2017: HK$1,890.3 million), the fair value of the collateral
of such mortgage loans can be objectively ascertained to
cover the outstanding amount of the loan balances based
on quoted prices of collateral.

The unsecured mortgage loans include second mortgage
loans in respect of which the Group are not entitled
to a first charge of relevant mortgage properties. The
management considers that the second mortgage loans are
classified as unsecured loans due to the impediment in
repossession of the mortgage properties and the practical
difficulties to ascertain the residual collateral value after
claim by first mortgagee.

The carrying amounts of the mortgage loans approximate
their fair values.

The Group’s mortgage loans carried an average interest
rate of 8.50% (2017: 10.15%) per annum.

BE_F - /FH_A=1t—HILFE
27. BBEK(E)

— I > DRI AR B4R B0
RS BA 2SR R F S o A
i % TR R B SRR AT B o e 1 L RS
A > AT AR A 14 TR0 1 ey B %
HEAT TR ©

AR i T R TS R A A IR B P
DA RE B 2 A (E T ik i R E -

AL B A 7 s B R 3 o B
5 TR A e A i 22 A PR AR A5 B8R
— B > AR AR B A AR
SEMIE o MACEIIR - R BB RA I
WA S m] S B HE 2 7.9 T B T (—
F—tHF ) -

) 4% 45 52 2R R AR 0 A K 0 5 48 B K
(RRPEHET 5 0 8 > 5% % Fe 48 B
ol ST B W] 2 e o2 o SR A AT R
BRI SR &G R Z MR IR 4 3,679.1 H &
oo (—FE—+L4  1,890.3F HEi#IC) °

HESC I B B K A
Sl AT B4 4 ) S — HRC < HEA o RS
Wit [e] 42 iy ) S A AT RELGE A K% e 7 R4 it 72
TR — A RO R B AR B R R (LA
TEET PR IR 8 - 5 PR AR A 2 5 R K
I SR o

e FE R 2 AR T (B BELFL A B (EAR A

A AR A% 48 B K A A R 1 8.50%
(ZF—L4 £ 10.15%) °
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

28. DEFERRED TAX

The following are the major deferred tax assets and
liabilities of the Group recognised and movements thereon
during the current and prior years:

BEZ— /\HF+A=+—HIL4EE
28. ELEFIIE

AR B A A T BB A AR T AR Y 22
EIEBLIHE 2 b A (DL AR B S B 4

Undistributed
Accelerated Provisions earnings
tax  Revaluation and  Unrealised  and others
depreciation of assets  impairment gin  RDKBAR  Taxlosses Total
nEREFE  EEEf BRRAE ARRLE it REEE it
HKS Million~ HKS Million ~ HK§ Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million
AElkr  HEkr  AAMn  FRER  BElEx AAMn AREx
At st January, 2017 R=Z—t4—A—H 2503 184.4 (728.1) 55.3 - 79.1) (317.2)
Bxchange adjustments 5 - 07 (419) 48 - 08) (672)
Recognised in profitor loss R RER 89 @.1) 394 (4.0) 02) (8.6) 334
At 31t December, REE—t
2017 TZR=Z1-H 259.2 183.0 (730.6) 56.1 (0.2) (88.5) (321.0)
Impacton inital application B AF AT RS
of HKFRS 9 L P a2 - . (28) - - - (28.)
At st January, 2018 REF—\E—A—H 2592 183.0 (758.8) 56.1 (0.2) (88.5) (349.2)
Bxchange adjustments E s - (0.5) 360 (40) - 05 320
Recognised in profitor loss R HERR 16.1 - (9%.5) 31 - (3.6 (80.9)
At31st December, R N\F
2018 TZA=1—H 2753 182.5 (819.3) 55.2 (0.2) (91.6) (398.1)

For reporting purposes, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the underlying subsidiaries.
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances
of the Group for financial reporting purposes:

Deferred tax liabilities AR AE R TE B A&
Deferred tax assets % FIE R TE

SRS H S - T IRIEBUIHEE M A
R A B B JBg 22 mIHESH o LAR 3 ASSE 1
B BT AR AT SR TR A R 0 A -

2018 2017
—E-)N\F —E LA
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEBT [N
332.2 328.6
(730.3) (649.6)
(398.1) (321.0)
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

28. DEFERRED TAX (CONT’D)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
unrecognised deductible temporary differences of HK$5.0
million (2017: HK$5.1 million) and estimated unused
tax losses of HK$1,500.5 million (2017: HK$1,314.9
million) available to offset against future assessable profits.
A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
HK$530.4 million (2017: HK$511.4 million) of such losses.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
remaining HK$970.1 million (2017: HK$803.5 million) of
losses due to the unpredictability of future assessable profit
streams. The unrecognised tax losses included a sum of
HK$7.3 million that will expire during 2019 to 2023 (2017:
HK$11.2 million will expire during 2018 to 2022).

Under the Law of PRC on Enterprise Income Tax,
withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared in
respect of profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries from
1st January, 2008 onwards. Deferred tax has not been
provided for in the consolidated financial statements
in respect of temporary differences attributable to
accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting
to HK$1,081.6 million at the end of the reporting period
(2017: HK$1,026.5 million). The taxable temporary
differences have not been recognised as the Group is
able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

There were no other significant temporary differences that
are not recognised arising during the year or at the end of
the reporting period.

BE_F—NEtT_H=1T—HIERE
28. ELERIIE (&)

ARG HAA > A4 8 2 R e w0 g ey
FERAS.0A BT (CE L4 51 H S
W50 B AT 1K B R 2 M BB Uk A1 2 S R R
B BiIE 8 1,500.5 A mE T (- & —+k
o 1,3149FEH L) o HF 5304 H
B IC (CF—L4F 51148 B¥%I0) 2
i s R SR AR A BT A E o [FIRRE
TE A2 E SRR Y A > MO M AE R AR T
970.1H E# st (~F—L4 : 803.5H #
W) R IR IE BT o R ERERLIE
JEREREA IR —FE— R ZF AR
P2 FIE7 3 BB (FE—LF =
T— /)\FE2E T FNE 2 KIEH11.2
HEAHIT) o

TR B AR > B BT /NFE—
H—HE > ZE5 B e 2 7 BT 1534 A BT
B IR B S AN TEINRL o AR IR - 3
48 7ol P 1B T JE 2 ) A 2 v R B AL [ R 2
%61,081.6 1 B Hs T (—F—L4E 1 1,026.5
HEEIT) NG A MR E R E R
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE-F— /) FE+A=1+—HILFE
29. TERM LOANS, TRADE RECEIVABLES, 29. EHi&® - BKEZHE AARE
PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 5 B o fE Wk SR8
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tE
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT EX: Yoo
Secured term loans A IR AR 2,679.0 2,223.4
Unsecured term loans SEHEHR A A B 1,570.7 1,293.9
4,249.7 3,517.3
Less: impairment allowance W SRR (153.3) (86.6)
4,096.4 3,430.7
Trade receivables — accounts receivable JEUSE 5 #IH— K A& F
from customers 2 FEWSCKIA 59.6 45.9
Less: impairment allowance W WA A (0.5) (1.1
59.1 44.8
Guarantee and consultancy JREMSHE (R 2
fee receivables JeiA i) - 0.5
Payments on behalf of customers * REF T3 - 6.3
Less: impairment allowance W WA A - (6.6)
- 0.2
Other receivables oAt E Wi K T
Deposits 4 58.5 57.4
Others HAth 331.7 99.5
390.2 156.9
Term loans, trade and FHEEE A S M 2
other receivables at AR Bo
amortised cost e HoAth i K TE 4,545.7 3,632.6
Prepayments HATRIH 21.4 35.8
4,567.1 3,668.4
Analysed for reporting purposes as: B2 E 2
Non-current assets R & 79.5 505.8
Current assets TE G 4,487.6 3,162.6
4,567.1 3,668.4
& The Group has provided guarantees to guarantee the repayment * A [ B A D o B 3 A T R
of debts owed by the loan guarantee customers to their lenders. HETZEH o B NE+ =+ —
At 31st December, 2018, the outstanding guarantee amount was H > BB &8 A03F BET(—E &k
HK$0.3 million (2017: HK$19.2 million). Payments on behalf of AE 192 HEWIT) c REFPAMNZIEHRAEE

customers represented payments made by the Group to reimburse S e iz FEME JE (755 1L 22 30 R A 1) 34 B = 5 2k
the beneficiaries of the guarantees (“Holders”) for losses the Holders TH > ASEEET 2L AR 2 2 s N ([HEE )
incurred because the customers failed to make payments when due (&G A IR A 2 385k -

in accordance with the term of the corresponding debt instruments.

It is the Group's policy to dispose of repossessed collateral A 3] [ RS A T b A s YR S 5 o
in an orderly fashion.

A ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED Annual Report 2018
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018 #wE2—F— /\FEt+_A=t—HIL4EE
29. TERM LOANS, TRADE RECEIVABLES, 29. &% EWESXE - AFHIE
PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES K ELAth PE UL TR 1B (48
(CONT’D)
As at 31st December, 2018, the gross carrying amount of B E—NFETH=Z1—H S
secured term loans amounts to HK$2,679.0 million (2017: B A IR T AR (E 5 2,679.0 F BT (—
HK$2,223.4 million). The Group is entitled to sell or F—L4FE 2,223 4F EEETT) o MERA
repledge collateral when there is default by the borrower. BA > AR A RE 6 sl R A
There has not been any significant changes in the quality A o WA RN B A AR R
of the collateral held for secured term loans. S 4B B R B ) o
The following is an aged analysis of trade and other PLUT i 4558 H 2 8 5 B H A REGRIEAR
receivables based on the date of the invoice/contract note PRaE s LA B F IR 2 BRSO AT
at the reporting date:
2018 2017
—E-N\F e S D
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT [EN:
Less than 31 days DIR31H 310.8 27.3
31 to 60 days 31%260H 16.4 10.6
61 to 90 days 61290H 7.6 6.5
91 to 180 days 91%£180H 3.9 1.8
Over 180 days 180H LA E 0.4 0.8
339.1 47.0
Term loans, trade and other S ARERR S 2 7 A
receivables without aging* 54 5 B FC A R USRI * 4,360.4 3,679.9
Less: impairment allowances W W E I (153.8) (94.3)
Term loans, trade and other FEHESH BUAS R 2 A HH K
receivables at amortised cost & 5 Je HAth E WS IH 4,545.7 3,632.6
*  No aging analysis is disclosed for term loan financing, as, in the * EHER  BN A SRR B
opinion of the management, the aging analysis does not give BRES TR A K > (RIS 4 3% 5 A 10
additional value in view of the nature of the term loan financing B IRESHT
business.
A ALLIED PROPERTIES (1) LIMITED Annua | Sopon 201
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE-FZ— /FE+_H=1—HILEE
29. TERM LOANS, TRADE RECEIVABLES, 29. BHi&% - BWEHE - BANRE
PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES REMEWRTRIE(E)
(CONT’D)
The gross amount of impaired receivables at the end of T — L AR AR A (B AR TR AR %
2017 and the movement of impairment allowances during EABHA T —LFEZ BT -
the year of 2017 were as follows:
Term Trade Other
loans  receivables receivables Total
AMER RS HARER0E A5t

HKS$ Million ~ HK$ Million  HKS$ Million  HKS$ Million
A& HEBT A& HEHIT

At 31st December, RF—L4F
2017 +ZA=t+—H
Gross amount of impaired receivables A BE B IR A 124.4 2.9 6.8 134.1
Individually assessed impairment B A 9
allowances Bt
Balance brought forward R (0.4) (0.4) (56.1) (56.9)
Exchange adjustments i b, - = (2.0) (2.0)
Amounts written off s o - - 71.5 71.5
Amounts recognised in profit or loss RG22 5O0H (86.2) 0.7) (20.0) (106.9)
Balance carried forward oYl L UN (86.6) (1.1) (6.6) (94.3)
Net carrying amount of HEERLGHRIAZ
impaired receivables HRTH (1 37.8 1.8 0.2 39.8
As at 31st December, 2018, the aging analysis for trade AT E—NE+H=1—H > Eamin
and other receivables that are past due is as follows: 2 5 K HoAth BE S S E ) BEES AT T
2018
—EB-N\F
HK$ Million
BEBTT
Less than 31 days Dir31H 19.0
31 to 60 days 31260H 4.7
61 to 90 days 61%90H 5.7
91 to 180 days 91£180H 1.7
Over 180 days 180H LA E 0.2
31.3
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

29. TERM LOANS, TRADE RECEIVABLES,

wE_F—/F+_A=+—HILFEZ

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(CONT’D)

As at 31st December 2017, the aging analysis for trade and
other receivables that are past due but not impaired is as

follows:

Less than 31 days
31 to 60 days

61 to 90 days

91 to 180 days
Over 180 days

D31 H
31Z60H
61%90H
91%180H
180 H BA |

The carrying amounts of the trade and other receivables at

amortised cost approximate their fair values.

Further details on financial risk management of term loans,
trade and other receivables are disclosed in note 41.

29. BHER - BRERFE - AR

R E AWK IR ()

RoFE—EEF A=t —H > CafiH
el (2 52 5y I HA B WG TR 22 B 7 A

e :

2017

e Sl w2
HK$ Million
HEHIT

13.5
5.3
3.0
0.4

22.2

e A B R 2 B Ty % At B WS TR )

SR T (L B2

SR (EARA -

AR B 5 B AR ORI 2 <5 A
B B2 A — AP R I O R4
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

30. AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES AND JOINT  30. B
VENTURES

=

BE_F—/F+_A=t—HILFE

EAARAEAIRE

(i) Amounts due from associates (i) BEQTRRK
2018 2017
—2-NF Tt
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT HEHIT
Advances B 550.1 520.4
Less: impairment allowance W R 17.1) (17.1)
533.0 503.3

Analysed for reporting purposes as: 22 H W FT1EZ 047
Non-current assets TR B
Current assets B B

The details of impaired advances to associates during
the year 2017 were as follows:

Gross amount of impaired advances B4/ w4 (B #3K

to associates 5

IH

N

Individually assessed impairment A8 A AL

allowances e i
At Tst January and w—H—HX
31st December mt+—_HA=+—H
Net carrying amount of impaired Bk /N 7 B I (E
advances to associates B R T L

This information for 2018 is disclosed in note 41(b).

A ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED
BawE (FEE)FRAIA

266.7 275.2
266.3 228.1
533.0 503.3

—F LR N R A BEBR
(L UNNE

2017
—Z—tF
HK$ Million

HEWIT

17.3

(17.1)

0.2

B N E RN E41 (b) % FE o
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=% — UAE ]

277



278

for the year ended 31st December, 2018

30. AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES AND JOINT

VENTURES (CONT’D)

(ii) Amounts due from joint ventures

Advances
Less: impairment allowance

Analysed for reporting purposes as
current assets

Further details of amounts due from associates and joint
ventures are disclosed in notes 41 and 47.

31. BANK DEPOSITS, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  31.

Bank balances and cash
Fixed deposits with banks with
a term within 3 months

Cash and cash equivalents

Short-term pledged bank deposits and
bank balances

Fixed deposits with banks with
a term between 4 to 12 months

The carrying amounts of bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents approximate their fair values.

Further details on financial risk management of bank
deposits, cash and cash equivalents are disclosed in note

41.

wE_F—/F+_A=+—HILFEZ

(i) BE DRI

30. BEARAREE QAR (E)

2018 2017

—E-N\E e S

HK$ Million HK$ Million

BEBT B EBIT

B 9.8 9.1

W R E R - -
£ 23 B b

Ly i B A 9.8 9.1

TN EE41 Mea7 o

B m R a B A r KR E— Sk E

RITER RERBASEEY

2018 2017
—B-\F F L
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEEBT HEs T
ITHBR R 4 2,827.4 1,915.2
A =A8 A A2 HA
ZSRAT R MK 2,204.2 4945
Hae kB &%5EY 5,031.6 2,409.7
S BRI R4 TAE X
K SRATHE R 20.0 1.2
AN et S W o
ZSRAT R MK 353.5 787.7
5,405.1 3,198.6
SRATAERK ~ Bla N Bl & 558 Y 2 Wi (E 5

HOAFEEMA -

AT - Bl KB &S5 EY) 2 & MR B
BRI M EE4T
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018 BEF—/\FET_H=1T—HILFE
32. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND 32, BB 5 E - HtEMARERES
ACCRUALS Ee|
2018 2017
—B-N\F —ZTtF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT A TS
Accounts payable to customers JEATH % 5 3K IA 14.0 5.5
Deposit received A 52.1 2.0
Other accounts payable oAt AT 3R 95.9 228.4
Trade and other payables at RSN A AR B 5 [
amortised cost Al B A K IE 162.0 235.9
Accrued staff costs and other JEAT B T RLAS K
accrued expenses FAt =T 2 184.6 189.6
346.6 425.5
The following is an aged analysis of the trade payables, PATF AR &5 H 2 A 52 5 kT ~ AR
other payables and accruals based on the date of the AR IE B e R AR IR B 526 40 BLGR H
invoice/contract note at the reporting date: PR 2 MR AT
2018 2017
—E-N\F  “FLF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT A EHETT
Less than 31 days/repayable on DIR31H B R
demand 1878 48.3 51.4
31 to 60 days 31260H 11.2 8.8
61 to 90 days 61290H 12.9 9.2
91 to 180 days 912180H 1.3 -
Over 180 days 180H PA E 0.7 0.1
74.4 69.5
Accrued staff costs, other accrued S AR S 2 REAT B TARAR
expenses and other payables HoAthETH 2
without aging B HAB A 3KH 272.2 356.0
346.6 425.5
The carrying amounts of the trade payables, other payables RS A S IR 2 AT B 5 R~ HUAt
and accruals at amortised cost approximate their fair AR R e J e B T (L B HL - (B
values. o
A ALLIED PROPERTIES (1K) LIMITED Annual Report 2018
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018 wE_F— /\FT_H=1T—HILFE
33. FINANCIAL ASSETS SOLD UNDER REPURCHASE 33. B T HECZSREE
AGREEMENTS
2018 2017
—E-N\F e S i
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT HE I
Analysed by collateral type: AR T A
Debt instruments classified as: BB LR A
Financial assets at R A a RGN THEE
FVTPL S HE 7 4 T 1,216.5 1,071.0

As at 31st December, 2018, debt instruments which are j&%%@/\@jﬁ?ﬂfi‘l‘*‘ﬂ ’:\iftﬁﬁ
classified as financial assets at FVTPL with carrying amount 1R R e s V(RS 2 e R 2

i : e HRMI(E 51,483.7 A @ s o (—F—L4F -
of HK$1,483.7 million (2017: HK$1,280.2 million) were 1 280.2 T B 7C) 2 HS T RO AR B
Aty A R 2 T i Bt s 11 B o TS [ B B
R AL ET 1 248 A AR - 2%
PEREATHUA B EE25 -

sold under repurchase agreements with other financial
institutions. All repurchase agreements are due within 12
months from the end of the reporting period. Details of the
arrangement are set out in note 25.

34. SHARE CAPITAL 34. A
Number of
shares Value
RO BB
HK$ Million
[EX- P
Issued and fully paid: C 81T MAE -
At Tst January, 2017, W _FE—t4FE—H—H
31st December, 2017, —F—tHEt+ZH=1—H"
Tst January, 2018 and “EF-NE-H—-HK
31st December, 2018 —EF - NHF+_H=+—H 6,812,201,460 4,250.6
A ALLIED PROPERTIES (1) LIMITED Annua | Sopon 201
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018 BEF—/\FET_H=1T—HILFE

35. ANALYSIS OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE 35. B2 E(BR) WS >0
(EXPENSES) INCOME

Non-

controlling

Attributable to owners of the Company interests

RATREAELE FERER

Property  Investment Capital ~ Share of net

revaluation revaluation and other assets of

reserve reserve Translation reserves  subsidiaries
E RE reserve EXR e Total
EfffE EffffE ERGE Hthfate  ARAREE g

HKS Million ~ HK§ Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HK$ Million
BEBT AEBT AEBT AEBT AEBT BEBT

For the year ended BE-E-)\F

31st December, +=A=t-H

2018 354
Financial assets at fair value BRI 2 E

through other comprehensive A FEEREL

income SREE - (85.5) - - (44.2) (129.)
Exchange differences arisingon 47 HipAMEHIRE

translation of foreign operations ik 2 S EH - - (108.8) - (221.1) (329.9
Reclassification adjustment to TR —

profit or loss on deemed IARERM

disposal of an associate WETRAR - - 21 - - 21
Reclassification adjustment to AU — R

profit or loss on disposal of R MRS

an associate Rk - - (4.6) (3.0) - (7.6)
Reclassification adjustment to A A A R

profit or loss on disposal of B EREE

joint ventures Rk - 17 - - 1.1 2.8
Share of other comprehensive ol ey NGEEX

(expenses) income of associates 2 (£ i it 0.7) (30.2) (249.0) 03 (04) (280.0)
Share of other comprehensive e YAGEX

(expenses) income of 27 (BR)

joint ventures I - (1.8) 2.7) 1.6 (1.4) 4.3)

0.7) (115.8) (363.0) (1.1) (266.0) (746.6)

For the year ended BE T LR

31st December, +ZH=F—H

2017 LR
Available-for-sale financial assets A ffiHi 2 FI & = = = - 0.7 0.7
Exchange differences arisingon 7 ELIEANE B IR

translation of foreign operations /2 S EH - - 160.2 - 305.4 465.6
Share of other comprehensive TEit e A R A

income of associates Exillen 14 313 3737 - 15 407.9
Share of other comprehensive IR B AR

income of joint ventures eyl - 1.2 0.1 03 09 25

1.4 325 534.0 03 308.5 876.7
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

36.

37.

RESERVES

Property revaluation reserve
Investment revaluation reserve
Translation reserve

Capital and other reserves
Accumulated profits

Dividend reserve

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Bank loans
Other borrowings

Analysed as:
Secured
Unsecured

Bank loans are repayable as follows:

On demand or within one year
More than one year but
not exceeding two years
More than two years but
not exceeding five years
Bank loans with a repayment on
demand clause are repayable as
follows:
Within one year
More than one year but not
exceeding two years
More than two years but not
exceeding five years

Other borrowings are repayable
over five years

Less: Amount repayable within one year
shown under current liabilities

Amount due after one year

wE_F—/F+_A=+—HILFEZ

36. f#1E
2018 2017
—E-N\F Bt
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEBTT HEW G
)2 FA (el AR 335.7 336.4
B A ke (15.1) 324.8
T Softi s (262.7) 100.3
A oA (1.5) (8.6)
25 Al 31,885.7 29,470.7
litdsNE A 545.0 545.0
32,487.1 30,768.6
37. RITREMBEE
2018 2017
—EB-N\E —R—LA
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBTT H # T
ATRK 9,469.5 4,490.3
H At 62.1 35.0
9,531.6 4,525.3
515
PEEDRELL 3,137.3 990.0
A 6,394.3 3,535.3
9,531.6 4,525.3
SRATER AR BIR IR
FORRHEE I —F N 3,767.0 1,752.9
—4ED P H AR AR
4 1,899.7 1,395.8
WA DL AR AS A
FAE - 309.6
HAGEORIR S
AT B R I R
mr
—4EN 3,300.8 1,018.0
— DL PR
A 56.0 14.0
WAL BN
ka2 446.0 _
9,469.5 4,490.3
At 5 B AR
v 62.1 35.0
9,531.6 4,525.3
W ZER N R B
A B B A5 2 O (7,569.8) (2,784.9)
— AR B 2 R 1,961.8 1,740.4

Annual Report 2018
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE_EFE - NE+_H=+—HI4EF
37. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (CONT’D) 37. RITRAEMEE ()
The Group’s bank loans and other borrowings that are A DI T LS 2 BHESIME 2 SR TR
denominated in currencies other than Hong Kong dollars K H A ST
are set out below:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—t%F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEBT A E T
British pound Je gk 126.6 137.0
Renminbi PN 114.1 =
US dollar e 72.7 206.5
313.4 343.5
Further details on financial risk management of bank and SRAT BCHA i B 2 < bR PR 2 o — 2
other borrowings are disclosed in note 41. FET R M RE41 -
Details of the assets of the Group pledged to secure bank ARSI B 1 SRAT BCHCA 8 AT 2 S w1
and other borrowings are set out in note 46. HOR Mt EE46
The carrying amounts of the bank and other borrowings ﬁfﬁﬁ,ﬁ\ﬁﬂ{SEZEEETEEEEZ\—THE{E*E
approximate their fair values. A °
A ALLIED PROPERTIES (1K) LIMITED /;nr%aL Sopor 201
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018 BHE-F—/F+A=Z+—HILFEE
38. NOTES/PAPERS PAYABLE 38. ENRE
2018 2017
—E-N\F B S ki S
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEER HEHBIT
US dollar denominated notes (“US$ Notes”) 35712245 ([ 50224 |)
4.75% US dollar denominated notes AR A B
maturing in May 2021 4.75%FK T
(“4.75% Notes”) (l4.75%224 1) 2,750.7 2,742.4
4.65% US dollar denominated notes e —— oy W E |
maturing in September 2022 4.65%FK L
(“4.65% Notes”) (1 4.65%Z2%% |) 4,289.1 42803
HK dollar denominated notes/papers UEPIVE R 3
(“HK$ Notes/Papers”) (T 8E D)
HK dollar denominated notes/papers IR 636.2 448.2
Renminbi denominated notes PTG 28
6.9% Renminbi denominated notes R F—/EAHEIZ
maturing in May 2018 6.9% N R M S 4% - 536.5
7,676.0 8,007.4
Analysed for reporting purposes as: B2 E M FTEZ 0
Current liabilities T B 749.5 1,077.0
Non-current liabilities FE B & i 6,926.5 6,930.4
7,676.0 8,007.4
A ALLIED PROPERTIES (1) LIMITED Annua | Sopon 201



for the year ended 31st December, 2018

38. NOTES/PAPERS PAYABLE (CONT’D)

The US$/HK$ Notes were issued by Sun Hung Kai & Co.
(BVI) Limited, a subsidiary of SHK, under a US$2 billion
guaranteed medium term note programme.

The HK$ Notes/Papers were issued by a subsidiary of
SHK, Sun Hung Kai (ECP) Limited, under a US$1 billion
guaranteed commercial paper programme.

The 4.75% Notes are listed on the Stock Exchange. The
nominal value of the 4.75% Notes after eliminating the
intra-group holdings was US$354.9 million or equivalent
to HK$2,779.0 million (2017: US$354.9 million or
equivalent to HK$2,774.6 million) at the reporting date.
The fair value of the 4.75% Notes after eliminating the
intra-group holdings based on the price quoted from
pricing service at the reporting date was HK$2,716.6
million (2017: HK$2,882.2 million) which was categorised
as level 2.

The 4.65% Notes are listed on the Stock Exchange. The
nominal value of the 4.65% Notes after eliminating the
intra-group holdings was US$540.8 million or equivalent
to HK$4,234.7 million (2017: US$540.8 million or
equivalent to HK$4,228.0 million) at the reporting date.
The fair value of the 4.65% Notes after eliminating the
intra-group holdings based on the price quoted from
pricing service at the reporting date was HK$4,062.1
million (2017: HK$4,291.1 million) which was categorised
as level 2.

BE_F - N\FH+A=+—HILFE
38. BENRE(E)

Bk 5 2 B8 A " Sun Hung Kai & Co.
(BVI) LimitedtR4%204% 3 ToiEf i) 2248
BATRHBEEAT T R0, W n Y -

e L 2 Bt 8 22 7 Sun Hung Kai (ECP)
Limited R #1015 5 So & Or i SE 2 R 88 1T
FHEIEEAT T HE T IRR

4.75% B ERB ST BT - iRASEH
BANBRAE I A 2 2R > 4.75%5%
ZTH{E 53549 H B 3£ LE A 72 2,779.0
HEEBIL(CE L4  3549FEFEITC
BAHE R2,774.6 H B IG) o RASEH
AANPRE E B 2 R 0 REEE
AR T ERAEHE > 4.75% 248 2 AN B (E A
2,716.6 TG (—FE—L4F 1 2,882.2H
BUSTT) > R A o

4.65% S E AT BT o AEEEH
AN S 1 T R A 2 229045 > 4.65% 2%
2 THI{E £5540.8 F B 35 LB AR & v 4,234.7
HEBEILT(CE L4 5408HEFETT
AR R 4,228.0 H B IG) o AASEH
AAIBRE E H B 2 SRR - REEE
RS A S RABAS » 4.65% 2248 2 N B &
4,062.1H &G (ZF—LF 1 4291180
BHSTT) o ISR A o
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018 BEF—/\FET_H=T—HILFE

39. PROVISIONS

39. #&1E

Financial
Employee Loan guarantee
benefits commitments contracts Others Total
ESEAF EZRE BEERAN Hith @t
HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS$ Million HKS Million
HEBT HET HEBT R HEBT
At Tst January, i e i

2017 —H—H 43.8 - 10.6 45 58.9
Exchange adjustments BE 0% - - 0.7 0.1) 0.6
Additional provisions for the year 4 RESME M 55.3 - - 0.2 55.5
Amount written back BESHE 0.2) = (1.3) = (1.5)
Amount paid during the year ENERTHE (39.4) - - - (39.4)
Amount utilised during the year  4F [k ELf i ZUR 0.1) - - - (0.1)
At 31st December, M-t

2017 +ZA=1—H 59.4 = 10.0 46 740
Impact on initial KRR A SR

application of BRI

HKFRS 9 Va7 | = 27.8 - - 27.8
At Tst January, RZFE— N\

2018 —H—H 59.4 27.8 10.0 4.6 101.8
Exchange adjustments HE S - - (0.1) - (0.0
Additional provisions for the year 4 RESMER 86.4 0.9 9.6) 10.5 88.2
Amount written back IR = = = (8.8) (8.8)
Amount utilised during the year R L5 FIZIR 71.1) = = = 71.1)
At 31st December, RZFE— )\

2018 +=A=1+—H 747 28.7 03 6.3 110.0

2018 2017
—E-N\F ZE LA
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BERETT HE#E I

Analysed for reporting purposes as: /£ 23 H i FTEZ 2547 -
Current liabilities T B fE 105.1 70.7
Non-current liabilities JE L E) B 4.9 3.3
110.0 74.0
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018 BEF—/\FET_H=1T—HILFE

40. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 40. EXRBER

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as going concerns
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts (which
include bank and other borrowings and notes/papers
payable) and equity attributable to owners of the Company
comprising issued share capital and reserves.

Gearing ratio

The Group’s management reviews the capital structure on
an ongoing basis using gearing ratio, which is the net debt
divided by equity. Net debt includes the Group’s bank and
other borrowings and notes/papers payable less short-term
pledged bank deposits and bank balances, bank deposits
and cash and cash equivalents. The equity comprises all
components of equity attributable to the owners of the
Company.

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as
follows:

Bank and other borrowings SRAT S H A
Notes/papers payable AT

Less: Short-term pledged bank
deposits and bank balances
Bank deposits, cash and

WATHIER

cash equivalents BlaEEY)
Net debt e i
Equity attributable to owners AN F) R EAG
of the Company i
Gearing ratio EAR LA

B R R ERAT A A

WATAE > Bl K

A9 B R 1 LA T4
HELRAS SR TG T % /4 ) B A B 048 T
B L 5 1 = 44 8 R B 45
R A -

AR A ] 14 B AR R AL 35 B (LA SRAT I
A B A 248 ) B A R AR A
i (L1 OB AT IOA R Aol f)

EXRBELER

7R 1 L T R A R L R (RS
R ER LA SR ) 15 AR AR ZENE - (S
{3 R B A5 1 0 R AT B HLA i B S AT
SRR AT SRAT A7 A R BRAT A B ~ 4R
TTAF R BB 5 M Bl SR - e BLAE A
A F R A 2 2 &R AL AR 7 -

R IR BA AR RT

2018 2017
—B-NF Tt
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT B EBIT
9,531.6 4,525.3
7,676.0 8,007.4
17,207.6 12,532.7
(20.0) (1.2)
(5,385.1) (3,197.4)
11,802.5 9,334.1
36,737.7 35,019.2
32.1% 26.7%
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk is inherent in the financial service business and
sound risk management is a cornerstone of prudent and
successful financial practice. The Group acknowledges
that a balance must be achieved between risks control
and business growth. The principal financial risks inherent
in the Group’s business are market risk (includes equity
risk, interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s risk management
objective is to enhance shareholders’ value while retaining
exposure within acceptable thresholds. Risk management
is managed and controlled through relevant group
companies.

The Group’s risk management governance structure is
designed to cover all business activities and to ensure all
relevant risk classes are properly managed and controlled
by relevant group companies. The Group has adopted
a sound risk management and organisational structure
equipped with comprehensive policies and procedures
which are reviewed regularly and enhanced when
necessary in response to changes in markets, the Group's
operating environment and business strategies. The
Group’s relevant independent control functions play an
important role in the provision of assurance to the relevant
board of directors and senior management that a sound
internal risk management mechanism is implemented,
maintained and adhered to.

HWE - FE - NF+_H=1+—HILFEF
41. cRiRARERE

<& AR B A By A A JaRR > R ERT S — 1
%35 B VB LA L 5 AR SRR 2
it o AR IR A5 T Fan A BB SE B 0 R
I Rl BRE B o ACEE Y SE S 77 5 /Y 122
o o J g 7 i 357 JEL B (4% B SR g > A
2 Ja\ B S S Ja B ) ~ 5 B E B X B
SR\ o AR A B A LR B R A i
500 JE B = B T4 2K 22 8 - [R] By
BB v R o R A BT 32 2 A
A5 O ) L e B o

7R BB L B TR 2R B TR R 5 P A SE RS
EE) > LIRROR BT A A B JE B TR . ph AR B
LA F) 2 S B B o AR TR
— A% 5 B JE B B B A AR IR
TENERRIETF » ARECE R F &
SENERTAR T > M TE A T R R e T
A £ B A BR 0 7 S0 SR W 22 4 B T
58 o AN A B S B I BE AR T
W5 o 1o N ) o e A B e R
Bt~ AR S AR A A R A S P B
il o
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

(@ Market Risk

(i)

Equity Risk

There are many asset classes available for
investment in the marketplace. One of the
Group'’s key business undertakings is investing in
equity and is concentrated in the investment and
finance operating segment. Market risk arising
from any equity investments is driven by the
daily fluctuations in market prices or fair values.
The ability to mitigate such risk depends on the
availability of any hedging instruments and the
diversification level of the investment portfolios
undertaken by the segment. More importantly,
the knowledge and experience of the trading
staff of the segment managing the risk are also
vital to ensure exposure is being properly hedged
and rebalanced in the most timely manner.
Proprietary trading across the segment is subject
to limits approved by senior management of the
relevant group companies. Valuation of these
instruments is measured on a “mark-to-market”
and “mark-to-fair value” basis depending on
whether they are listed or unlisted. Value at
Risk (“VaR”) and stress tests are employed in the
assessment of risk. Meanwhile other non-VaR
limits such as “maximum loss” and “position”
limits are also set out to restrict excessive risk
undertakings. VaR and stress tests are approaches
which are widely used in the financial industry
as tools to quantify risk by combining the size of
a position and the extent of a potential market
movement into a potential financial impact.

The Group’s market-making and proprietary
trading positions and their financial performance
are reported daily to the relevant senior
management of the group companies in the
segment for review. Relevant internal audit
also performs regular checks to ensure there is
adequate compliance in accordance with the
established market risk limits and guidelines.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018
41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

(@ Market Risk (Cont’d)
(i) Equity Risk (Cont’d)

The table below summarises the overall financial
impact on the Group arising from market
movements in global equity indices. The analysis
is based on the assumption that equity indices
move +20% with all other variables being held
constant and all equity instruments undertaken
by the Group moving simultaneously. Declines
in the indices are expressed as negatives.

At 31st December, 2018
R-B-N\F+2A=1-B

HWE - FE - NF+_H=1+—HILFEF
41. eHEAMEE(E)

(@ ™WHBERE(E)
(i) HREE B (%)
N P MR BRER B T 45 s E AR
L WIS TR o ST T
TR BT F5 3 b R I8 £520% >
g HoAth SRR A5 5 AR
1) BT A A 2 T LS 2 A o Ji8
BN B EERR -

At 31st December, 2017
REF—tETZA=T—H

Potential impact on profit

or loss for the year

REERRG EEE
20% -20%
HKS Million  HKS Million

Potential impact on other

Potential impact on other

components of equity  Potential impacton profit  components of equity
BaitHs or loss for the year fEa e
PA it/ | KR RER ELRE VAl

20% -20% 20% -20% 20% -20%

HKS Million  HKS Million  HKS Million  HKS Million  HKS Million  HK$ Million

FEfr  AEAr  aditr nlEr rlE Bl

BERT BEAT
Local Index S 2988 (292.7)
Overseas Index MR 14696  (1,478.6)

15.2 (15.2) 3529 (306.5) 9.4 (94)
26.1 (26.1) 12613 (1,2485) 5.3 (55.3)

There is no material financial impact in the form
of profit before taxation for the year for the Group
arising from market movements in the global
equity indices. Futures, options and knock-out
options are hedged by other derivatives in view
of the volatile markets and wide trading ranges.

(i) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk of loss due to changes
in interest rates. The Group’s interest rate
risk exposure arises predominantly from term
financing in the investment and finance segment
and loans and advances to consumer finance
customers in consumer finance segment and
bank and other borrowings. Interest spreads
are managed with the objective of maximising
spreads to ensure consistency with liquidity and
funding obligations.

BRERII T 15 B B 3 A B F AR A
JEE F9 0 e 1) 7 4 T B S
B o BTG I B K 2 5 i R
7 R S R PR AR L
b A T B3 -

(i) FIF b
M) 2 gy o | 2 s Y BT 5 | s 1R
Z g o 7B T Y A R Ja iy o B2
A B B R Rl o i 2 A IR
DA 2 Sl o iR 2 T e
J5 b BGR DL R SRAT S HLA
£ AEEERE X - HNTER
S BEF GBS WX
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE-F— /) FE+A=1+—HILFE
41. *REREE ()

5 R ()
(i) FIF i (4

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

(@ Market Risk (Cont’d) @)
(ii) Interest Rate Risk (Cont’d)

At 31st December, 2018, assuming that market
interest rates moved by +50 basis points (2017:
+50 basis points), the profit before taxation
for the year for the Group would have been
HK$22.0 million lower or HK$21.8 million
higher respectively (2017: HK$12.4 million
lower or HK$12.7 million higher respectively).
Assets and liabilities bearing interest below 50
basis points are excluded from 50 basis points
downward movement.

The exposures of the Group’s financial assets
(liabilities) bearing variable interest rate to cash
flow interest rate risks and the earlier of their
contractual repricing dates and contractual
maturity dates are as follows:

WoE— /) E+-A=+—H >
106 T 5 1] 2R 2 5 )y 2% i Jek 50 1M
B (= — L4 - mik501H B
T o RIS £E [ A A 4F B2 19 R B
s A A% o Al R FE22.0 F B o
s EF21. 8 HEBIL(—E—L
AN R 2.4 F s TE b
FH12.7 B EHIC) o WA 501 B
T 2 5 ) AN B FE F R AL A 5010
BrzEE Ak -

ARLE H IR A R B W A A
FE (BR) ¥ 3 2 A R R b
M A& R a0 XA #2
H R

On demand
or less than
3 months
BREX 3 months 1 year Over
EES to 1 year to 5 years 5 years Total
DI3ER MEAEIE 15555 SERE @t
HKS Million HKS Million HK$ Million HKS Million HK$ Million
HEBT AE®T HEBT HEET AEBL
At 31st December, RZE-N\EF
2018 TZhA=t-H
Amounts due from associates T4/ /% - 40.0 - - 40.0
Loans and advances to HEEMER
consumer finance Bk
customers K 182.1 - - - 182.1
Mortgage loans 31 N 1,644.9 - - - 1,644.9
Bank deposits, cashand {77730 B4R
cash equivalents REe%EY 3,176.8 - - - 3,176.8
Bank borrowings RITEE (5,261.5) (1,820.9) (2,459.0 - 9,541.4)
At 31st December, WoZ—tE
2017 +ZA=+—H
Amounts due from =g
associates & - 35.0 - - 35.0
Loans and advances to HESMER
consumer finance Bk
customers Bk 277.7 - - - 277.7
Mortgage loans IR 3625 - - - 362.5
Bank deposits, cashand ~ $RfT773K BlE R
cash equivalents Re%EY 1,528.2 - - - 1,528.2
Bank borrowings BT E (4,011.4) (346.9) (140.0) - (4,498.3)
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

(@ Market Risk (Cont’d)
(i) Interest Rate Risk (cont’d)

The exposures of the Group’s financial assets
(liabilities) bearing fixed interest rate to fair
value interest rate risks and the earlier of their

BE-F— /NFE+_H=1+—HI4FE
41. eHEAMEE(E)

(@ ™WHBERE(E)
(i) FIRE 7 (4F)

75 [ 4 [ 7 A R mH S Sl
FE (RAR) T 3 28 P8 (5 A1) 52
b > MHAHEERH LEH

contractual repricing dates and contractual I A R REENT
maturity dates are as follows:
On demand
or less than
3 months
BREX 3 months 1 year Over  Non-interest
&8s tolyear  to5 years 5 years hearing Total
SRR 3EREIE 155 SERL %8 @3t
HKS Million ~ HKS$ Million ~ HK$ Million  HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million  HKS$ Million
AEET A% BEBT A% A% A%
At 31st December, RZE-NE
2018 tZB=t+-H
Amounts due from associates /A Al X 2 - 126.3 - - - 126.3
Loans and advances to HELRER
consumer finance v 0
customers A 2,403.4 4,664.9 2,393.9 1254 - 9,587.6
Mortgage loans AR 668.9 1,129.1 4113 - - 2,2093
Bonds included in financial 3t AR
assets at HATERRERZ
FVTPL SREEZES 312.8 - 106.7 1,377.0 - 1,796.5
Term loans B 21471 1,912.1 37.2 - - 4,096.4
Bank deposits, cashand ~ $RfT#RN - Ha R
cash equivalents HEEEN 1,066.2 3535 - - 755.6 21753
Bank borrowings BATHE (22.9) - - - 32.6 9.8
Notes/papers payable e - (7495)  (6926.5) - - (7,676.0)
At 31st December, RZE—tE
2017 TZRAE1—H
Amounts due from associates T /A F 2 = 46.0 = = - 46,0
Loans and advances to HELRER
consumer finance gk
customers #3x 2,5913 4,135.4 2,076.4 82.8 - 8,885.9
Mortgage loans TR E 311.6 5128 932.1 14 - 17579
Bonds included in financial 3t AZERE
assets at HATERRERZ
FVTPL ERER MBS 2,1933 - 18.2 13029 - 3,514.4
Term loans e 737.8 2,487.4 205.5 - £ 3,430.7
Short-term pledged bank ~ J MR T3
deposits and bank balances &R 12 - - - - 1.2
Bank deposits, cash and cash #7770 Bi4:
equivalents BB % EY 960.1 487.5 - - - 14476
(Bank borrowings)/ (SRF7fEE) /
unamortised A
armangement fee ZiE (13.0) - - - 210 8.0
Notes payable ENEE - (1,077.1) (6,930.3) - - (8,007.4)
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018
41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

(@ Market Risk (Cont’d)

(iii) Foreign Exchange Risk
Foreign exchange risk is the risk to earnings
or capital arising from movements in foreign
exchange rates.

The Group’s foreign exchange risk primarily
arises from currency exposures originating from
proprietary trading positions, and loan and
advances denominated in foreign currencies,
mainly in Australian dollars, British pound and
Renminbi. Foreign exchange risk is managed and
monitored by senior management of the relevant
group companies. The risk arises from open
currency positions are subject to management
approved limits and are monitored and reported
daily.

At 31st December, 2018, assuming that the
foreign exchange rates moved +5% (2017:
+5%) with all other variables held constant, the
profit before taxation for the year for the Group
would be HK$76.1 million lower/higher (2017:
HK$38.3 million lower/higher).

(b) Credit Risk

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31st December, 2018, the carrying amounts
of financial assets at amortised cost, as disclosed in
note 25 represent the maximum credit exposure.
In addition, the Group is also exposed to credit
risk arising from loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts as disclosed in notes 44(b) and
39. The maximum exposure to credit risk of the
investment securities at FVTPL which are exposed to
credit risk is their carrying amount, which amounts
to HK$2,033.8 million at 31st December, 2018
(2017: HK$3,578.4 million), and is monitored by
management according to their geographic locations
and industries. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements to cover its
credit risks associated with its financial assets, loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts,
except that the credit risks associated with term loans,
loans and advances to consumer finance customers
and mortgage loans, is mitigated because they are
secured over properties and other securities.

The Group manages and controls credit risk by setting
limits on the amount of risk it is willing to accept
for individual counterparties and by monitoring
exposures in relation to such limits. The Group
evaluates the credit risk for each loan application on
the basis of the repayment abilities of the customers
having regard to their financial position, employment
status, past due record and credit reference checking
result.

HE_%

—NE+ZA=+—HILHEE

41. cREEE(E)

(@)

TG EkE ()

(iii) ZMEE fi
A JE i T 4 s e 5 s i 36 20
BB A R R o

AL 2 SRR £ B A
HEIEE AR SN SIE
G . B AWOT - B
B RN R o ST B oy A B 4R
VR ) o AR L A L A B I B
5 o WANEART- B SR E L Z 5
WEE JRL o 7 32 1R /8 40 g e 41 2 B
@@’ﬁﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬁ
HEH

BoEz—=)NFE+H=1+—H>
MR % AN FER | 08 A5 5% (—
E—L4F 0 B NHEAS%) > Br
A HAb SRR RS QA%
AR A B 2 I B U A KT R
S ETt76 1 BEEIT(—E—+&
RN ET383E BT -

(b) FERE

a7 B 5 1 0 (B VA
RoFE—NE+_A=+—H > Wi
25 Jr B FE AL 61 B AR 51 B 1) 4 il L
) B T (B R B KA BB o bh >
I 45 13 75 18 [ B 5 44 (b) K2 39 BT i 5%
e BEHRYE M E R A K5 B
JEWBg o T A 5L gk 1) 5 3 1R s R A%
T (L PHL ) A5 S 5 O T B ) e
KA BB 2 HEREE > R F— N\
FE+ T H=+—H%2033.81 H i
JC(=F—+t4F :3,578.4F EH#IC) >
S P AR B B AT ST
5 o ZN AR [ SIf7 44 A AT (] S R
il {5 048 58 15 > DA (R R BEL 4 Rl
FE ~ BEHORYE NSRS S KA B
5 BJm\ g - B BB ~ TH 2 4l
B 5 AR N BAGER f EE R A 2E
T EL A 38 AR IR AT T A 4% AN

A [ 7 R S L A8 7l 52 5 3
J7 4532 1Y JE\ g e A B PR AR > 2
S 1 B 5 MR Bl 19 JEL B 20 B A
Pl {5 R B o SR %5 1R AR
T Al E R R 5 B R > B
w25 E LA BHR DL ~ R FARDL - i
RS KA Rk AR o
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018
41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

(b) Credit Risk (Cont’d)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont’d)
Credits are granted according to the hierarchy of
approval authorities within the Group, including the
front-line approval officers, central credit officers,
credit committees and the boards of directors of the
respective companies within the Group.

The Group has established a credit quality review
process to provide early identification of possible
changes in the creditworthiness of counterparties,
including regular collateral revisions and interviews
with customers to update the credit risk of customers.
Credit review checking and approval processes are
properly segregated to ensure effective internal control
over credit risk and monitoring in the respective
companies within the Group. Dedicated teams of
operations staff independent from the credit approval
authorities are assigned for recovery of overdue debts.
The credit quality review process enables the Group
to assess the potential loss as a result of the risk to
which it is exposed and take appropriate corrective
actions.

The Group adopts a prudent approach to credit risk
management framework. Its credit policy is timely
revised to align with the prevailing credit environment
which is continuously affected by changes in
business, economy, regulatory requirements, money
market and social conditions.

Internal audit department and risk management
department of respective companies within the
Group periodically conducts internal control reviews
and compliance checking over all aspects of credit
processes to ensure that the established credit policies
and procedures are complied with and sufficient
controls are in place to mitigate credit risk.

HWE - FE - NF+_H=1+—HILFEF
41. eHEAMEE(E)
b) SERRE)

1 BB B i (E AT A ()

i 5 AR A 5 T 1A 1“2 A B 5%
B ARAS SR A4 R Y AR AR
#EEE - PREEKE - FEZAE®
KERG -

AREMEBOLFERERFEMNEF > D
SR AN 05 (5 B AT R ) -
135 B2 5 A R AT o R TR > D
WA A5 LB 1 BB i UL © 15
B A S AR T 2 W0 o DATE
PREEH 5 L P TG A 50 Py R0 42 il B
BB N AT o BALME B
A BA 19 S5 = B T PO 2 IR U
[m] A B 5 © fR BB R A PR Fr (i 4
V] ) it T T s e g T B B0
TEAE Ji 15 SR U 5 i R AT ) -

A 4 [ 7 AR T o7 £ B B A PELAE
28 AR RHERT AR BBOK > DI a
FrAEZ 605 - Q0 - BERLE - B
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018
41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

(b) Credit Risk (Cont’d)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont’d)

The credit risks on bank balances are limited because
the counterparties are banks/financial institutions with
high credit ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies.

Other than the concentration of credit risk on liquid
funds which are deposited with several banks with
high credit ratings, the Group does not have any other
significant concentration of credit risk. Loans and
advances to consumer finance customers, mortgage
loans and term loans consist of a large number of
customers who are spread across diverse industries.

Concentration risk of loans and advances to consumer
finance customers is managed by reference to
individual customers. The aggregate credit exposure
in relation to the ten largest outstanding consumer
finance customers, including corporate entities and
individuals, before taking into account any collateral
held or other credit enhancements, at 31st December,
2018 was HK$1,197.4 million (2017: HK$343.6
million) of which 63.3% (2017: 32.5%) was secured
by collateral.

Concentration risk of mortgage loans is managed by
reference to individual mortgage finance customers.
The aggregate credit exposure in relation to the ten
largest outstanding mortgage finance customers,
including corporate entities and individuals, before
taking into account any collateral held or other
credit enhancements, at 31st December, 2018 was
HK$1,032.4 million (2017: HK$877.1 million) of
which 100% (2017: 100%) was secured by collateral.

BE-F— /NFE+_H=1+—HI4FE
41. eHEAMREE(E)
b) SERRE)

15 B 2 it (E AT A ()
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018 BHE-F—/F+A=Z+—HILFEE
41. *REREE ()

(b) FEERE(E)

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

(b) Credit Risk (Cont’d)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont’d)
Concentration risk of term loans is managed by
reference to individual term loan customers. The
aggregate credit exposure in relation to the ten largest
outstanding term loan customers, including corporate
entities and individuals, before taking into account
any collateral held or other credit enhancements, at
31st December, 2018 was HK$3,346.0 million (2017:
HK$2,552.0 million) of which 68.5% (2017: 63.4%)
was secured by collateral.

The Group’s internal credit risk assessment for loans
and advances to consumer finance customers and

15 B B % ek (8 7 A ()
AR 4R HR RS T 225 Rl 1
BREFTLLEM o A = F— \4E
+=H=+—H > 5 BALfHA B4R
5 B oA A B4 o 1 i AT > B
K KREXEHEXEF (BIEAF
B R 1) A B R 15 R B 4R
{E/53,346.0 A B (—F—L4F
2,552.0 @ #wison) » H68.5%(—
F—-L4E ¢ 63.4%) HASIH 2 AEHT
chﬁ o

A AL 2 < P B M B B
e B 2 AT L B A L DA

mortgage loans comprises the following categories:

Internal credit
risk categories

TR -

Loans and receivables at
amortised cost

Loan commitments/
financial guarantee contracts

RBEE Description BREBERATIRZ EXERS
JEl bl gt BN R ERHKE BBEREN
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of ~ 12-month ECL 12-month ECL
{190 default and does not have any 121 A 5 &5 1248 H # 5 Sk E
past-due amounts
HJ7 W E A E R K -
St AT 6 4 5
Watch list Debtor usually settles overdue 12-month ECL 12-month ECL
Bk balances after due date 1218 H 5 H iR 1218 A BEE B 1R
fits A — RO I AR 45
Doubtful There have been significant Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
A &E increases in credit risk since not credit-impaired not credit-impaired
initial recognition based on MG B ZHFENE Sk
information from internal or — 3lf A B B — M A5 B B
external resources
RSN E R > (5 R
AU AR B
Loss There is evidence indicating the Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
e asset is credit-impaired credit-impaired credit-impaired
A RN B CR HEE EHEME REH EHEIE SkEE
— (R E(E — (R E(E
Write-off There is evidence indicating that ~ Amount is written off N/A
65 the debtor is in severe financial against the allowance AN F

difficulty and there is no realistic

prospect of recovery of debts

A R (5 B f o

PRI FLG A BT S i ol i 5

account

JA T A R A Bl
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018
41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

(b) Credit Risk (Cont’d)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont’d)

The Group takes into consideration forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost
or effort in its assessment of significant increase in
credit risk as well as in its measurement of ECL.
The Group employs experts who use external
and internal information to generate a ‘base case’
scenario of future forecast of relevant economic
variables along with a representative range of other
possible forecast scenarios. The external information
includes economic data and forecasts published by
governmental bodies and monetary authorities.

The Group applies probabilities to the forecast
scenarios identified. The base case scenario is
the single most-likely outcome and consists of
information used by the Group for strategic planning
and budgeting. The Group has identified and
documented key drivers of credit risk and credit losses
for each portfolio of financial instruments and, using
a statistical analysis of historical data, has estimated
relationships between macro-economic variables
and credit risk and credit losses. The Group has not
changed in the estimation techniques or significant
assumptions during the reporting period.

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the
Group's financial assets including loans and advances
to consumer finance customers, mortgage loans, terms
loans, amounts due from associates, amounts due
from joint ventures, amounts due from brokers, short-
term pledged bank deposits and bank balances, bank
deposits, cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables, loan commitments, financial guarantee
contracts and contingent liabilities, which are subject
to ECL assessment:

Internal credit

BE-F— /NFE+_H=1+—HI4FE
41. eHEAMREE(E)

(b) FEEREE(E)

15 B 2 Jot (E A TA ()

Al A B g B 3 M R
FEARr > AL % BT A LI
A B85 BIVA] A 1 R TR R
A 52 (o] i S (o A1 0 B T O
B 75 A B K 5 R AR T T
[ AT IR > DL EACR
(R BE BRI 5t o S ERHELAE BUR
R I % < AR S5 £ ) 8 78 B B T
e

A JH 1 AR 25 R S 2 i 4 FEL B AR
o FEAT SN S B nT REEE A Y B
—HER > ALIRAR SR R SR A 2
FRER o AL Ol KRk
SR T HAL A (5 B B A B 1R
HEB AR - S R S R A st o
AP 2% A I B B L B M A
F R HEBR - RkEHR - A
5% [ 07 488 o4 B AV O i R R AR

R BB FUN S R A5
A4 14 L (0 0 2 R
SEHOLIIK « HBOER - ATISE -
BB AT KK - ABATIRE B
OO AT AT A7 #4745
B AT B BB %Y -
5 B AR HOR  SERCRI
IR 24 B SR L) O 15 SE R
S

2018 Notes risk categories 12-month or lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount
“E-N\E WdE  ABEERRER 12EAS2BRBEEES RE4E
HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million
BERT BERR
Loans and receivables at amortised cost
RBHRASIE 2 G5 R ERRE
Loans and advances to consumer 26 Low risk/watch list 12-month ECL
finance customers Vg5 1218 B kR 9,912.9
k& IRk e T Doubtful Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired)
[} 2B S G ) 281.8
Loss Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired)
32 2 S (R ERE) 220.6 10,415.3¢
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

(b) Credit Risk (Cont’d)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont’d)

Internal credit

BE_F—/F+_A=t—HILFE

41. sRiEBEE(E)

(b) FEERE(E)

T BB K i (E AT A ()

2018 Notes risk categories 12-month or lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount
ZE-N\E W& ABEERRER EARZHREEERSE IRHAE
HKS$ Million ~ HK$ Million
BEAT BEAT

Loans and receivables at amortised cost (Cont'd)
RBERATIR B REKFE(E)
Mortgage loans 27 Low risk/watch list 12-month ECL
B E s,/ % 1218 A (G Bt 3,487.6

Doubtful Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired)

[} 2 M 0 1 B R (IR B ) 350.7

Loss Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired)

B 2 MG SR (FERE) 25.6 3,803.9*
Term loans 29 N/A 12-month ECL
HHEH Nt 1218 A 5 SR 3,842.0

N/A Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired)

IR 2 MG SR (FEWE) 407.7 4,249.7*
Trade receivables 29 Low risk/watch list 12-month ECL
Tl E 53R s,/ % 1218 A 5 B 59.6 59.6
Amounts due from associates 30 N/A 12-month ECL
L i-UNGE Nl 1218 A B(E Skt 533.0

N/A Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired)

it ARG RER (FHEE) 17.1 550.1
Amounts due from joint ventures 30 N/A 12-month ECL
GOV R 1218 A B Skt 9.8 9.8
Amounts due from brokers N/A 12-month ECL
BRRH Nt 1218 A B SR 507.1 507.1
Short-term pledged bank deposits 31 N/A 12-month ECL

and bank balances A 1210 A A fE R

SRR T T K R ARAT AR 20.0 20,0
Bank deposits 31 N/A 12-month ECL
FITER A 1218 H B iR 353.5 353.5
Cash and cash equivalents 31 N/A 12-month ECL
ReRBL%EY AR 1218 A G &R 5,019.9 5,019.9
Other receivables 29 Low risk 12-month ECL
HoA e HUR il 1218 A B SR 390.2 390.2
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018
41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

(b) Credit Risk (Cont’d)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont’d)

Internal credit

BE-F— /NFE+_H=1+—HI4FE
41. eHEAMREE(E)

(b) FEEREE(E)
15 B 2 it (E A TA ()

2018 Notes risk categories 12-month or lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount
—E-NE ME  ABEEERER [PREEEEL GRS ] REAE
HKS$ Million ~ HK$ Million
BEET  BEER
Other items
HftiEH
Loan commitments (Note 1) 44(b)  Low risk/watch list 12-month ECL
BRI GERET) e /BB 12 AEHEEER 1,307.5
Doubtful Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired)
i R SR (25 ) 114 13189
Financial guarantee contracts (Note2) 39 Loss Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired)
FrB R a4 (ML) [ WG RER (R ERE) 03 03
Contingent liabilities 43 N/A 12-month ECL
BRAMR A 128 A M B R 107.0 107.0
*  The gross carrying amounts disclosed above include the & b A i W TR A0 455 A R i R B

relevant interest receivables.
Notes:

1. Loan commitments represent undrawn loan commitments to
consumer finance customers and term loan customers granted
by the Group under revolving loan facility arrangement.

2. The gross carrying amount of financial guarantee contracts
represents the maximum amount the Group has guaranteed
under the respective contracts.

REfiR

NI o

AEFORYE 15 A 52 B AR SRR BR S0 Rl i 22
P ALREE & I AN TR e eI ki

AR5 PR & 0 MR T MR (E AR AR B AR 9%
& HIE AT BOR SR -
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(b) Credit Risk (Cont’d)

for the year ended 31st December, 2018

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont’d)

The following tables show reconciliation of loss
allowances that has been recognised for loans and
advances to consumer finance customers, mortgage

loans, term loans and amounts due from associates.

Loans and advances to consumer finance customers

As at 1st January, 2018

Changes due to financial
instruments recognised as at
1st January/during the year:

Transfer from 12m ECL to
lifetime ECL

Transfer from lifetime ECL to
12m ECL

Transfer from 12m ECL to
credit-impaired

Transfer from lifetime ECL to
credit-impaired

Remeasurement of ECL

New financial assets originated
or purchased

Repayment and derecognition

Movement without impact on
profit or loss:

Written off (Note)

Exchange adjustments

As at 31st December,
2018

BE-F— /NFE+_H=1+—HI4FE
41. eHEAMEE(E)
b) SERRE)

T BB K i (e AT A ()

L YISy REE-E A IRl /0 & !

N LR

A B N

R HRFE R ) e TR A P R

H B2 5 B R B

Lifetime ECL
(not credit- Lifetime
impaired) ECL (credit-
RS impaired)
12-month ECL EEFE RS
1218 B B (BEEE FEE#R Total
EEEFE AE) (EERE) Mgt
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HKS$ Million
BEERT BEAR HE#RR HERAT
RZE-NE—F—H 382.4 148.5 87.2 618.1
w—HA—H /%R
MRS TR
FE A Y
H1 121 A (5 Bl e g
NG EER (50.1) 50.1 - -
RS UFEEEIRNS ek b &)
121 A B BE 9.0 9.0) - -
H 121 A B B iR g
ZEEME VA) - 7.1 -
AW EE B R E
R B BE - (559.4) 559.4 -
BRI REE 29.0 610.3 396.8 1,036.1
C A E
HamERE 589.9 - - 589.9
AR L TR (543.3) (54.6) 3.1) (601.0)
27.4 37.4 960.2 1,025.0
N2 cibva
S
TS (GEfR) - - (983.9) (983.9)
I o 9.2) 4.1 0.3) (13.6)
9.2) 4.1 (984.2) (997.5)
RZE-N\F
+=A=t+-H 400.6 181.8 63.2 645.6

Note: Amount of HK$983.9 million that were written off during the
year are still subject to enforcement activities.

REAR < R4 A EL B 1 983.9 T ST T RE

FAATERATD -
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE-F— /) FE+A=1+—HILFE
41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D) 41. cREEE (&)
(b) Credit Risk (Cont’d) (b) FER(E)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont'd) 1 B e Dt (A ()
Mortgage loans IR
Lifetime ECL
(not credit- Lifetime

impaired)  ECL (credit-
RN impaired)
12-month ECL FEFR RS

1218 A (YEEE REER Total
REER HE)  (RERE) o

HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEART BEAT BERR BERT

As at 1st January, 2018 R=Z-N§¥-A-H 0.8 2.8 1.6 5.2

Changes due to financial “—H—H/FRHA
instruments recognised as at  FEA &R TE
Tst January/during the year: FEAREE

Transfer from 12m ECL to 11218 A TS Bl iR

lifetime ECL ZRHFEMEEER 0.2) 0.2 - -
Transfer from lifetime ECLto 2 HATEHI(E SEHE#E
12m ECL 1218 A B B 0.2 0.2) - -
Remeasurement of ECL R R ARG R (1.8) 1.8 5.7 5.7
New financial assets originated £ 4 si i E )
or purchased WA E 1.8 - - 1.8
Repayment and derecognition AL IETERR 0.8) 0.8 (1.4) 3.0
0.8 1.0 4.3 4.5
As at 31st December, R=B-N\F
2018 +=A=+-H - 3.8 5.9 9.7
A ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED Annual Report 2018
BeEwE(FE)FRAA — E — N\ 4 L R
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

(b) Credit Risk (Cont’d)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont’d)

Term loans

As at 1st January, 2018

Remeasurement of ECL

Repayment and derecognition

As at 31st December,
2018

R=Z-\F-A—-H

T B HIE

B A TR

R-B-N\%F
+=A=1-8

Amounts due from associates

As at 1st January, 2018

Repayment and
derecognition

As at 31st December,
2018

BE_F—NEtT_H=1T—HIERE
41. sRiEBEE(E)

(b) FEERE(E)
T BB K i (E A1 ()

Lifetime ECL
(not credit- Lifetime
impaired)  ECL (credit-
2HEA impaired)
12-month ECL EEFE 2HRES
12{8 B85 (TEEE FEFR Total
EEFR AE) (EERE) @t
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEART BEAR BERT BERT
1.5 - 86.2 87.7
1.4 - 64.8 66.2
- - (0.6) 0.6)
14 - 64.2 65.6
2.9 - 150.4 153.3
B2 A A
Lifetime ECL
(not credit- Lifetime
impaired) ECL (credit-
RS impaired)
12-month ECL FEFR RS
128 R FEH (TEEE FEE#R Total
FEEE RfE) (FEHE) w@st
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HKS$ Million
BEAT BEEAT BEBT BEAT
- - 17.1 171
- - 17.1 17.1
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018
41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

(b) Credit Risk (Cont’d)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont’d)
Changes in the loss allowance for loans and advances
to consumer finance customers, mortgage loans,
term loans and amounts due from associates are
mainly due to changes in expected credit loss rate at
each stage and changes in gross carrying amounts of
respective loans and receivables are as follows:

Loans and advances to consumer finance customers

HE_%

—NE+=H=+—HILEE

41. eHEAMREE(E)
b) SERRE)

12-month ECL

15 B 2 ot (E A TA ()

T 2 & 5 B S BG  Hi E
B AR A R SO R
52 B £ R R A R B (S B
Jes 1R A B P B > A B IR A Y
HRTH AE S B U T

ek e IRl v OE T

Lifetime ECL
(not credit- Lifetime
impaired) ECL (credit-
ZHTEH impaired)
FEEBR 2HES

128 A 5 (EREE EEER Total
REBR HE)  (EERE) st
HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million
BEET BEET BEEL BEERL
Gross carryingamountasat ~ RA=Z—\F—F—HW
1st January, 2018 SREAE 9,281.6 246.5 176.1 9,704.2
Changes due to financial ‘—H—H/FRH
instruments recognised as at R &R TH
Tst January/during the year: LIRS :
Transfer from 12m ECL to w1218 7 B3 5 Bl R
lifetime ECL FRHFESGEEER (1,033.3) 1,033.3 - -
Transfer from lifetime ECLto ~ f1 & MR (5 ks R 2
12m ECL 1218 A SR Bl R 18.2 (18.2) - -
Transfer from 12m ECL to i1 210 7 LA 15 s 1R
credit-impaired BEEWE (194.5) - 1945 -
Transfer from lifetime ECLto ~ f1 2 TR f5 Sk R 2
credit-impaired fR e - (879.1) 879.1 -
New financial assets originated T4 4% sl B 4 il
or purchased HE 13,724.6 - - 13,724.6
Repayment and derecognition &k & 11 fEzE (11,741.4) (96.2) (44.2) (11,881.8)
Written off ik - - (983.9) (983.9)
Exchange adjustments HE 5t (142.3) 4.5) (1.0) (147.8)
Gross carrying amountasat ~ R=Z—\F+=A
31st December, 2018 =t+-BWEEAE 9,912.9 281.8 220.6 10,415.3

As at 31st December, 2018, loans and advances to
consumer finance customers of HK$90.4 million
classified as lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) is covered
by collateral.

W= /NE+H=1+—H > %
L2 TG Bk R (E EWE0E)
LW SR R BFK90.4 H EH T
Z A SO o
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018 BEF—/\FET_H=T—HILFE
41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D) 41. cREEE (&)
(b) Credit Risk (Cont’d) (b) FERE(E)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont’d) 15 B B J o (e P A (A8
Mortgage loans IR
Lifetime ECL
(not credit- Lifetime

impaired)  ECL (credit-
2HEA impaired)
12-month ECL FEFR RS

128 A (BEEE REER Total
REER wHE)  (RERE) o

HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEART BEAR BERT BERT

Gross carryingamountasat ~ R=B—\F—-A—HH
1st January, 2018 IREAE 2,048.5 68.0 8.9 2,125.4

Changes due to financial w—=HA—H/FRE
instruments recognised as at  FEFA4 R T A
Tst January/during the year:  FE/ERYEEE) -

Transfer from 12m ECL to H11 218 A TG B R

lifetime ECL E2MEAERER (401.6) 401.6 - -
Transfer from lifetime ECLto  f A2 I M5 Sl iREH =

12m ECL 128 A B B8 143 (14.3) = .
Transfer from lifetime ECLto &M MG Sk REH 2

credit-impaired R EHE - (29.1) 29.1 -
New financial assets originated  ELH 4 ol B 14 4

or purchased G 3,340.8 - - 3,340.8
Repayment and derecognition kB4 11 32 (1,514.4) (75.5) (12.4) (1,602.3)
Gross carryingamountasat ~ R=Z—\F+=A

31st December, 2018 =t-RYEEAE 3,487.6 350.7 25.6 3,863.9
As at 31st December, 2018, mortgage loans of W_E—-NF+_HA=+—H > 28
HK$25.6 million classified as lifetime ECL (credit- Ty 2 TE IS B 1R (15 B8i(E) i 1%
impaired) is covered by collateral. HBHFK25.6 1 B UETCSZIEA M IR B o

A PRITESIERTS i g
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018 BEF—/\FET_H=1T—HILFE
41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D) 41. eREREE(E)
(b) Credit Risk (Cont’d) (b) FER(E)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont'd) 1 B e Dt (A ()
Term loans A
Lifetime ECL
(not credit- Lifetime

impaired)  ECL (credit-
RN impaired)
12-month ECL FEFR RS

1218 A (YEEE REER Total
REER HE)  (RERE) o

HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEART BEAT BERR BERT

Gross carryingamountasat ~ R=B—\F—-A—HH
1st January, 2018 SREEE 3,110.7 - 406.6 3,517.3

Changes due to financial —HA—H/FRHE

instruments recognised as at  FEFA4& T A

1st January/during the year: IS
New financial assets originated T4 sl B 5 4 il

or purchased B 1,979.4 - 1.1 1,980.5
Repayment and derecognition B AL IEffERR (1,248.1) - - (1,248.1)

Gross carrying amountasat ~ W=-ZE—N\F+=f7

31st December, 2018 =t+-BWEELAE 3,842.0 - 407.7 4,249.7
As at 31st December, 2018, term loans of HK$407.7 R_F—/NFE+"H=1+—H» 8
million classified as lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) is FAa TG B E (EEREE) /A
covered by collateral. K407, 7 BT IR
ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K) LIMITED
A BoEE (BRE)ERD A AR e AL
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

(b)

(0

Credit Risk (Cont’d)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont’d)

(b)

HWE - FE - NF+_H=1+—HILFEF
41. eHEAMEE(E)

FERE(E)
T BB K i (E AT A (A8

B 2 AN

Amounts due from associates i 5 26
Lifetime ECL
(not credit- Lifetime
impaired)  ECL (credit-
2HEA impaired)
12-month ECL FEFR 2HEH
1218 A7 (LEEE REBE Total
REBAE HE  (EERE) #st
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET BEAT BEET BREET
Gross carryingamountasat ~ R=B—\F—-A—HH
1st January, 2018 EEAE 503.3 - 17.1 520.4
Changes due to financial “=H—H/%R"H
instruments recognised as at A4 T A
1st January/during the year: EAEI )
New financial assets originated £ #71% 5 i & 4 & il
or purchased B 250.5 - - 250.5
Repayment and derecognition AL IE TR (220.8) - - (220.8)
Gross carrying amountasat ~ RW=-ZE—N\F+=f8
31st December, 2018 =t+-HWEEAE 533.0 - 17.1 550.1
Liquidity Risk (0 RBELER

The goal of liquidity management is to mitigate risk
that a given security or asset cannot be traded quickly
enough in the market to prevent a loss or make the
required profit. Another goal is to enable the Group,
even under adverse market conditions, to actively
manage and match funds inflow against all maturing
repayment obligations to achieve maximum harmony
on cash flow management.

The Group manages its liquidity position to ensure a
prudent and adequate liquidity ratio. This is achieved
by a transparent and collective monitoring approach
across the Group involving the management of the
relevant group companies.

TRENE S B B AR RS E w2
o R e SRR AE T B R AR Ik
RO BRI 5 e A JaBee I B AR
ok A 2 o] B 6 £ A R B Tl S5 T IR
T AL T A ) S 2R A A
BEERA > WEIBReRBEH L
5 BEA R o

AR I B A L B W etk - R
A AR 2 B B LA o AAE ]
B 4 1 2% ) A8 PR DA v o W R R 4
7 SOEAT B -
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018 BEF—/\FET_H=1T—HILFE
41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D) 41. SEEREE(E)
(c) Liquidity Risk (Cont’d) (0 RBEESERE(E)
The exposure of the Group’s contractual undiscounted AR 1 2 < AR 9 5 2 R AT B
cash flow for the financial liabilities and their Bl <t B JE B X A R AR A9 B8 H 4
contractual maturity dates are as follows: T
On demand
or less than
90 days 91 days to 1year to Over
REXEET 1 year 5 years 5 years Total
HR90A UEEES 15555 SERL it

HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million
[ AT AT AT ARk

At 315t December, 2018 R=B-NEtZA=t-H
Bank and other borrowings* HGUEL 74528 21,1 2,0189 - 9,662.8
Trade payables, other payablesand ~ FETE 5508 - HAbRERt

accruals B R HR 1620 - - - 1620
Financial assets sold under repurchase B ek T il 2

agreements SHEE 1,2165 - - - 12165
Amount due to a holding company [ /ARl 506 278 - - - 27.8
Amounts due to associates U U 74 - - - 74
Amounts due to joint ventures RABNIHE 40.1 - - - 40.1
Notes/papers payable LR 736.4 2300 7,789.8 - 8,756.2
Loan commitrments Bkl 13189 - - - 13189
Guarantees* (R 0. 0.1 - - 0.3
Total st 10,962.1 4412 9,808.7 - 21,2120
At31st December, 2017 R-Z—+H#+ZH=+—H
Bank and other horrowings* iR f e & 23703 5200 17534 - 4,643.7
Trade payables, other payablesand ~ FEFT 5308 - SLIBAER

accruals SR R 0R 2359 - - - 2359
Financial assets sold under repurchase IR it .2

agreements LHEE 1,071.0 - - - 1071.0
Amounts due to a holding company  JKEERAFIFIA 149 - - - 149
Amounts due to associates Y =INEE 74 = 5 = 74
Amounts due to joint ventures RAENAZE 0.1 - = = 0.1
Notes payable EfEH 9.3 1,2389 8,0474 - 9,384.6
Loan commitments * BRI 12624 = = = 12624
Guarantees* R 10.2 8.6 0.6 - 194
Indemnities on banking facility made 34 F A& A&

available to joint venture" REHE AR 1127 - - - 127
Total e 5,183.2 17675 9,801.4 - 16,7521
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

A

(c) qumdlty Risk (Cont’d)

Bank and other borrowings with repayment on demand clause
are classified as on demand in the above analysis although the
demand clause has not been exercised.

The amount represents the maximum amount the Group
could be required by the counterparty bank to indemnity for
the loans drawn by a joint venture under a banking facility
guaranteed by the Group. Based on the expectation at the end
of the reporting period, the Group considers that it is remote
for such contingent liabilities to be materialised.

The amount represents the maximum undrawn loan
commitments under the loan facilities arrangement and the
Group could be required to provide loan disbursements upon
demand from the consumer finance customers and term
loan customers. Based on the expectation at the end of the
reporting period, the Group considers that it is remote for
such whole loan commitments to be fully drawn down in any
significant respect.

The amounts included above for guarantees are the maximum
amounts the Group could be required to settle under the
arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if that amount is
claimed by the counterparty to the guarantees.

ALLIED PROPERTIES (H K.) LIMITED
BatE (FEE)FRAIA

HE S

—NE+=H=+—HILEE

41. sRiEBEE(E)

(o)

uu.EjJﬁﬁﬂFﬁ“(ﬁE)

B 1 BOR ARG S0 SR AT B At 4
T e o3 AT R 0 R e SR B - SR
2 AR S RBATAE -

A _b B 3 O R4 it 5 4 8 F R
5% oy A B 0 (R 2 SRAT (5 SR AR IR B 2 6%
ARELR AR W S 0 2 B e B SRR
IR 2 T - AR ERE A Ll SR A
B 2 e il

DAL SRR AR R 5 Al B ol 1 AR R B
IR & %%&$%@ﬁﬁ% & = K
A IR ERE B BRI SRR e e 4
o SRR R 2 M AR R A
AT AT B K Uy T S R OR A A iR
ezt e by -

VbR MR REA T a8 5 —
77 AT A 1) A 4 I8 R I 2 PR 8 2 oK 4
o
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018 BEF—/\FET_H=1T—HILFE

42. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 42,

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing
activities.

BMEXBELEZRBEHR

R ARSI G S 7 4 (T
(I BE KIEBL e ) - T &
2 B LB 4 i R A S
A 5 5 B e R O 2T

PGB el o

Bank and
other
borrowings  Notes/papers Amounts due
Note 37 payable  Amounts due to joint
RITR Note 38 to associates ventures
HipfE & ERRE U4 ReE Total
W37 HiE38 NEHE REAR At
HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million  HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million  HKS Million
HEwTT AT [EF-35 AT [E- 5
At 31st December, 2017 R-F—tE+-H=+—H 4,525.3 8,007.4 74 0.1 12,540.2
Impact on initial application of & Y i A it BA 4 15 e
HKFRS 9 CLLiva 7% - (10.9) - - (10.9)
At st January, 2018 R=F—)\E—H—H 45253 7,996.5 74 0.1 12,5293
Financing cash flows: MEHSRE
Repayment of bank and other  fRiRSR1T R HAt
borrowings faf (14,044.6) - - - (14,044.6)
New bank and other borrowings — ZE5E {8 i 8447
raised HAbfE 19,1009 - - - 19,1009
Proceeds from issue of AT
notes/papers U - 795.1 - - 795.1
Redemption of notes/papers G = - (576.4) - - (576.4)
Repayment of notes/papers EiRLyE - (616.5) - - (616.5)
Amount advanced from ajoint ~ —HAEAT
venture H;k - - - 40.0 40.0
Accrued interest nilst 241.0 390.1 - - 631.1
Interest paid EATHE (157.0) (362.1) - - (519.1)
Effect on foreign exchange R E 2
rate changes L% (13.9) 493 - - 354
Others Ht (120.1) - - - (120.1)
At 31st December, 2018 REF—N\F+ZRA=+—H 9,531.6 7,676.0 74 40.1 17,255.1
At 1st January, 2017 ﬁ:?*i’@*ﬂ* A 56123 5,262.2 7.3 0.1 10,681.9
Financing cash flows: MERSRE
Repayment of bank and fRsRTT R A
other borrowings & (2,800.6) = = = (2,800.6)
New bank and other EETTRERTR
borrowings raised HAhfe 1,695.5 = = = 1,695.5
Proceeds from issue of notes BT RS a0E - 4,694.6 - - 4,694.6
Repurchase of notes [e] g = (37.7) = = (37.7)
Redemption of notes i e - (60.5) - - (60.5)
Repayment of notes RER - (2,300.8) - - (2,300.8)
Disposal of notes held by B A/ ] Y A )
subsidiaries of the Company ~ Frfi 2 24 - 3349 - - 3349
Amounts advanced =N
from associates K - - 0.1 = 0.1
Accrued interest JERHRIE 1819 345.0 - - 526.9
Interest paid ERFIE (156.1) (312.1) - - (468.2)
Loss on redemption of notes M Z4E 7 iR - 0.8 - = 0.8
Effect on foreign exchange rate %82
changes % 13.7 81.0 - - 94.7
Others Hiy (21.4) - = - 21.4)
At 31st December, 2017 R-ZF—t&E+-H=1+—H 45253 8,007.4 7.4 0.1 12,540.2
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

43.

44.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had

guarantees as follows:

Indemnities on banking facility made
available to joint venture

At 1st January
Exchange adjustments

At 31st December

COMMITMENTS

(@) Operating Lease Arrangements
As lessee

Minimum lease payments under
operating leases recognised
for the year

Land and buildings
Others

wE_F—/F+_A=+—HILFEZ

43. AREE

R  AREEE 2 REWT

2018 2017
—E-N\F ZE LA
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEBT HEW G
BT EEAFERIT
(G852 WiE
w—H—H 112.7 104.7
T b3 (5.7) 8.0
wt+—H=+—H 107.0 112.7
44, EiE
(@ KEHENZH
TELBRRIN
2018 2017
—E-N\F —F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEBTT H H T
TAARAE BT RR A B
A 2
T AR AH 420
b R S 154.5 190.5
Hfth 0.1 0.1
154.6 190.6

Annual Report 2018
S N E R



for the year ended 31st December, 2018

44. COMMITMENTS (CONT’D)

(@)

Operating Lease Arrangements (Cont’d)

As lessee (Cont’d)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due
as follows:

BE-F— /NFE+_H=1+—HI4FE
44, EIE(E)
(@) KREHNZH(E)

TERARN ()

R IR - A BAREA AT S AR
EAHATIT Y 51 R 2 3 A 2 RAR
ARYE BARFH A IR T

2017
—E-N\F ZF LA
Land and Land and
buildings Others buildings Others
T RETF Hith T T HoAs
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HKS Million
BEET BE#ET X Yo AT
Within one year —4ER 130.6 0.1 149.8 0.1
In the second to 5B ILAR
fifth year (HfEERE
inclusive ) 94.8 0.1 154.0 0.2
225.4 0.2 303.8 0.3

Operating lease payments represent rental payable by
the Group for its office premises and office equipment.
Leases are generally negotiated for terms ranging from
one to five years. The lease commitments include
rental payable to a holding company of HK$0.1
million (2017: HK$0.4 million), an associate of
HK$1.2 million (2017: HK$1.6 million) and a joint
venture of HK$42.6 million (2017: HK$67.6 million).

S FH A AT 348 AL [F sk A %= W)
N E RS 2 4 o FHAYZ
EM— R ER — 2 NEARSE - HE
TR 0,45 E At — [ 5 A ) 2 FH 4
01 A EEIC(—E— L4 : 04A %
WoT) ~ MEAT— IS A R 2 412
HHEET(FE—LE 16Aa 5B
gt) KEM—HEE A A2 H442.6
HEEgT(CE L4 67.6 0 ik
JG) °
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

44. COMMITMENTS (CONT’D)

(@) Operating Lease Arrangements (Cont’d)

As lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was
HK$230.8 million (2017: HK$226.7 million). The
property held has committed tenants with lease terms

and rentals are fixed at one to three years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contracted with tenants for the following future

minimum lease payments:

Within one year

In the second to fifth year inclusive

The lease commitments include rental receivable
from a holding company of HK$4.5 million (2017:
HK$6.9 million), associates of HK$0.4 million (2017:
HK$0.4 million) and a director of the Company of
HK$nil (2017: HK$7.4 million).

(b) Loan Commitments

Within one year

(c) Other Commitments

Capital commitments for funds

Other capital commitments

HWE - FE - NF+_H=1+—HILFEF
44, EIE(E)

(@ FEENRHEE)

TE4 AN

R Y EH AU A £230.8F
T (S F— L4 2267 A B
Jt) o Fifs Az Y2 e AP A
o SRR M R E 2 s — R =
ﬁz o

TSR IR - AR B R B R A
AR A FIRE B P 5T 5 4 -

2018 2017
—B-N\F —F—+tF

HK$ Million HK$ Million

BHEBTT HH T

AN 169.9 177.0
BB A (REE E/MASE) 100.3 118.7
270.2 295.7

4N

PSR YE S MBI — R A m) 2
SASEHEBHRIT(E—LE 69H
B IT) ~ RIS AR 24048
BT (CE L4 04FEHIT)
MMENTA S 7] — 2 S 2 FH A F W TT
(CF—t45F 74 EHIT) -

(b) BEFEE

2018 2017
—g-\F  F L
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT HE I
1,318.9 1,262.4

(c) HfthEie
2018 2017
—E-N\F —F L4
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEAT EX: Yoo
476.4 332.9
17.4 2.0
493.8 334.9
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BE-F— /NFE+_H=1+—HI4FE
45. EETF

for the year ended 31st December, 2018

45. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

The Group operates defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The
assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the
Group under provident funds managed by independent
trustees.

The retirement benefit cost charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss represents contributions paid
and payable to the fund by the Group at rates specified
in the rules of the schemes. Where there are employees
who leave the schemes prior to vesting fully in the
contributions, in accordance with the terms of the schemes,
the contributions payable by the Group are reduced by the
amount of forfeited employer’s contributions.

The schemes have been closed in December 2000 to new
employees as a consequence of the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance introduced by the Hong Kong
Government.

From 1st December, 2000 onwards, new staff in Hong
Kong joining the Group are required to join the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”). The Group
is required to contribute 5% of the employees’ salaries,
while the employees are required to contribute 5% of their
salaries to the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries established
in the PRC are members of state-managed retirement
benefit schemes operated by the PRC government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentage
of payroll costs to the retirement benefit schemes to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefit schemes is to make the specified
contributions.

ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED
BawE (FEE)FRAIA

ARLET I T i S B AR R B B O A A
FORRARAIGH# o 5255 5l 2 G BAC AR
W Y PR BSLAF IR SR RE A
PR B2 AR -

H A7 A 1H 30 R AT ER 2 IR AR I B S A 4R
P et ) i 4 7 EE ST AT B A 3t
A o A B 58 4 B = AR ARAE A ATR
HEt# > AARGEET B 2 Gk > A S Y
9 AT FTBR B2 M = Pk 2 7

PR 7 7 o SR AT 5 7 1 e 3 A
ol > S AEER —FTFET ZARER
PRI B AR st o

foFEEF LA AR U
VLA S 2 T AL /0 A B
ARG R (TRR R ]) - A5 R I
Y% 161 S B A O L5
5% 2 68 -

AR FAE P B RS 2 8 o W) 22 A B 2
I S A B 2 B SR ARAR A B ) 2 B o
BLAE BB A Rl 5 7% LB A T A 20 Lo pa
ARARAR AR K SCRABRAR A o
AR S B R RAR A w1 2 BAT A A 4 4
TE Z K
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

45. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONT’D)

Expenses recognised in profit or loss for the contributions
to retirement benefit schemes for the current year
amounted to HK$86.6 million (2017: HK$85.5 million).
The amount of forfeited contributions utilised in the course
of the year ended 31st December, 2018 was HK$0.3
million (2017: HK$0.2 million).

Under the employee ownership scheme of SHK (“EOS”),
which was formally adopted by SHK on 18th December,
2007, selected employees or directors of SHK group
(the “Selected Grantees”) were awarded shares in SHK.
Following management’s recommendation of SHK, shares
of SHK were granted to the Selected Grantees subject to
various terms including, amongst other things, the vesting
scale whereby awarded shares of SHK will vest and
become unrestricted in various vesting periods. During the
year, 3.2 million shares (2017: 1.2 million shares) of SHK
were awarded to Selected Grantees under the EOS. The fair
value of the services rendered (by reference to the market
value of awarded shares at grant dates) as consideration of
the shares awarded during the year was HK$15.5 million
(2017: HK$6.1 million) which will be amortised to profit
or loss during the vesting period. The amount expensed
during the year in respect of shares awarded under the
EOS was HK$8.3 million (2017: HK$6.4 million).

At the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held
on 23rd July, 2012, it was resolved that a director’s service
agreement entered between SHK group and a director
of SHK’s subsidiary for a term of ten years be approved.
Subject to the terms and conditions of the agreement,
SHK group has granted the director of a subsidiary an
option (“Option”) to subscribe for or purchase up to 20%
of the issued capital of a new company (“Newco”) to
be established to hold all equity interests in subsidiaries
incorporated or to be incorporated in the PRC for money
lending businesses in the PRC (“PRC Subsidiaries”) at an
exercise price which is determined based on the aggregate
carrying amount of shareholders equity and shareholders
loans proportional to the shareholding to be taken up by
the director of a subsidiary at the time of exercise of the
Option. Prior to the period before the Option becomes
vested, the director of a subsidiary is also entitled a
bonus calculated based on the performance of the PRC
Subsidiaries. The transaction constituted a very substantial
disposal and a connected transaction and its details were
disclosed in the Company’s circular dated 29th June,
2012.

HWE - FE - NF+_H=1+—HILFEF
45. EERF (&)

AR FE R AR A R B e IR R TR 2
2 5 86.6 H s (& — L4 : 85.5
HEBIL) c  REE_F - NFE+_H
b H IR A 2 R SRR
03 Ao ( —FE L4 02 B IT) °

Wismm N —FFEE+ A+ /\HIE
SR Z s LR B A w1 (T8 B
B BEATTE ) » s 2 AR g
B ([ RPN ) SR T S i
1y o 85T V6L 5 L HE AR > ) R K
BT T B T Ay > HEJE 52 4% TR
R > GLfhERE AL > BRI - iR T 2 HE
T A0 1% B oy S P 5 {1 i G A P e, 5 4 PR
il o 4EA > MR B A 5T 8 2 A )
BEE AR NEEAZ3 2 B (. — b4
1.2 B %) i ey o 4F AR B 2892 i
PARAE Z BT iR LIRS 2 A TE(H (K82 %
BERZ B A TZ H H W22 1B /515.5 A &
HIL(ZF—L4E 6.1 A ®mHEETT) - 0
St S 0 A A PR AR B o AR N AR SRR B R
WA 5T H 228 2 By T X8 2 &% /5 8.3
BEWBIC(CE—LF 647 EEBIT) °

ARFERZF—TFEA = H 8T
FRFRI G - R AL VT 6 5 4 o B oy
HE— [ P JB 2 W) 2 3 2T ST o R
i o AR o DAtk 2 K M AR
BIR o it FE A I 32 T I Jag 2 ) - 3 5 M e
TR (TR ABCREE 1) > 02 (o ol O s O R
SERA TN HA T ) ]%20%2 B 31T
A @ZH A FLAL AR AT R SR S A R
TR B AR 2 T S S 11 A 2 ) (T [
J& 7)) 2 A ERRHE o AT ORI AR PR I
0N ) 2 HERAT IR IR A R 2 AR L
BB 22 S RO REE it e S SR 82 k22 R T AL
RS o A R S HEE B T SO o R JR 2
PN RGP B BB 8 R R B
FTRZACAL » JRIASC G IE W E R
EHIE MBS > R RERRA LT
F—FNAZT A Z R o
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

45. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONT’D)

46.

The fair value of the Option on grant date of 23rd July,
2012 was HK$255.1 million which was calculated using
the Black-Scholes pricing model and carried out by Norton
Appraisals Limited, a firm of independent and qualified
professional valuers not connected with the Group. The
inputs into the model include an underlying asset value
of PRC Subsidiaries as at the grant date of HK$1,018.1
million, risk free rate of 2.74%, volatility of 39.25% and
expected option life of 5 years. No share based payment
expense is recognised in the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31st December, 2018
(2017: Nil) since one of the vesting conditions for the
Option is the successful completion of the establishment
of the Newco, the date of which, in the opinion of the
management, could not yet be estimated with reasonable
certainty.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, certain of the Group’s
investment properties and land and buildings with an
aggregate carrying value of HK$8,896.5 million (2017:
HK$7,766.9 million), bank deposits and bank balances
of HK$20.0 million (2017: Nil) together with certain
securities in respect of a listed subsidiary with investment
cost of HK$276.6 million (2017: HK$276.6 million) were
pledged to secure loans and general banking facilities
to the extent of HK$3,735.7 million (2017: HK$2,251.5
million) granted to the Group. Facilities amounting to
HK$3,137.3 million (2017: HK$990.0 million) were
utilised at the end of the reporting period.

At the end of the reporting period, a bank deposit of
HK$nil (2017: HK$1.2 million) was pledged to secure a
guarantee issued to third parties by a bank in favour of a
subsidiary to the extent of HK$nil (2017: HK$1.2 million).

BE_F—/F+_A=t—HILFE

45.

46.

EBEER (&)

WA 2 N TAEE AR B = — 4
LH -+ =HA255.1 1 8T Bk
A (5] NIf7 4 B 2 2 N A A B (H A F
W B B REAE A RS J LA S 5 — &7 R
W (AR AT o B i A S
FF [ B TS S DA B2 H A 22 MR B
1,018.1 H &I ~ MEFEA%2.74% ~
% 39.2 5% M Ta 7 i IS HE HH BR 45 FL4F - A%
R )FE+ A=+ IR
AR A MRS TR R AR 45 S B S (&
— LA ) o [R5 B — TE R
AR BN S8 BUHT AN 7 2 BAE - T4 28
TR SERUN L 2 H A A AR o

BEEHA

AR » A5 E IR I 484E 8,896.5
BT (—F— L4 7,766.9H Bt IT)
ZETREY R R - AT
KERATAE G200 S o (- FE — L4 ¢
) o L [A] — [ b I R A R A R AR
276.6 A BB IT(—E— L4 : 2766 H &
Wor) 2 A TR BRELEE3,735.7H
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

47. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

During the year, the Group entered into following

significant transactions with related parties:

(@) Summary of transactions

A holding company

Rent, property management and
air-conditioning fee and other property
related service fee income (Note)

Share of management service
expenses (Note)

Share of administrative expenses (Note)

Fellow subsidiaries
Interest expense

Associates

Loan referral fee and participation
fee income

Interest income

Management and service fees income

Manager’s fee

Rent, property management and
air-conditioning fee income

Interest expense

Service fees

Brokerage expenses

Rent and property management fee

Insurance premiums paid

Consultancy fee received

Joint ventures

Administration, management,
consultancy and agency fee income

Manager’s fee

Rent, property management and
air-conditioning fee

Director of the Company
Rental income

Entities controlled by a director
of a holding company
Rental income
Logistics and warehouse services fee

BE_F—/F+_A=t—HILFE

47. BEREBEA LR F RER

AN > AR B B LRI ER

Lo
(@ RIWE
(Income)/Expense
(A),/ % H
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E b
HK$ Million HK$ Million
HEAT H T
— IR A &)
4 ~ MEEH
72 e HAt ) 2
FIBRAARBS B A (R ) (5.2) (6.9)
JRE A 7 FRAR 5 22 T
Ga) 46.6 43.6
JEAGATBCE: B (GEAR) 0.6 0.5
BRKBAR
B2 12.0 14.0
BN\ F]
BN LS 0
A (21.6) (36.7)
FE WA (5.7) 2.4)
EIR R 4.3) (5.3)
BN 2.7) 2.6)
4 > WL L e i
A .1 (1.4)
FE# 5.5 9.0
s #: 4.5 5.0
K42 4.0 3.3
4 R P 3.6 4.1
B R B2 1.8 33
B s Rt 2 - 2.5)
BEAT
T~ EH
G E PN (11.5) (10.7)
EHAEH (1.3) 1.3)
4 ~ MK
ZE 0 30.2 23.3
KAREE
&I A (0.5) 4.1)
—BEERATDESEH
=4
HEUA (14.1) (14.1)
VIR B R R 0.4 0.3

Note: Apart from the tenancy agreement entered into by a subsidiary
of the Company and the Sharing of Administrative Services
and Management Services Agreement entered into by the
Company and a subsidiary with the holding company, none of
the above related party transactions constitutes a discloseable
connected transaction as defined in the Listing Rules.

A ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED
BatE (FEE)FRAIA

AR+ BRAS A T ] B 2 AT 7 A T
DA A ) e — T o ) L2 e
BT AL 2 AT B AR PSR PRS2 1
b > Bl BN 22 5 MEAS R _E T
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018 BE - )\E+H=1t—HIFEF

47. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES 47. EEEA TS REL(E)
(CONT’D)

b) FEEBEEAESHE

(b) Key management personnel compensation

Short-term benefits FEEAAE A
Post-employment benefits IRARAEF

Certain key management personnel of the Group
received remuneration from the Company’s
holding company. The holding company provided
management services to the Group and charged
the Group a fee, which has been included in the
share of management service expenses as disclosed
above in part (a) of this note, for services provided
by those personnel as well as others who are not key
management personnel of the Group.

The management service fee is calculated by
reference to the time devoted by the management
personnel on the affairs of the Group and can be
apportioned to the above key management personnel.
The total of such apportioned amounts, which has
been included in the key management personnel
compensation above for 2018, is HK$36.9 million
(2017: HK$34.6 million).

ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED
BawE (FEE)FRAIA

2018 2017
—B-NF Tt
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT B EBIT
84.1 94.8

0.7 0.6

84.8 95.4

AL AL T EREHE AN BRALAH
e B s ) WSORUM <6 o HE AN ] ] AR B
P e AR 2 R A BRI BS - w2z
I £ BL B RE () 7B 70 2 EAG 7 2R
BERS > MR b2 ERE
HERE N B B LA I AR SR ] 3 24 L
NE Frieflt -

SHEE BRGSO B AR
e AR Ol AL (YT =
KAl A EEZE L S MBS o
AN TR —F— 4369
HEET (. FE—L4F 3460 BHE
Jt) » CEFHRUEEEEHE A 5
D EUNE
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

47. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
(CONT’D)

A

BE_F—/F+_A=t—HILFE

(c) At the end of the reporting period, the Group had

the following material balances with related parties:

A holding company

Associates

Joint ventures

Fellow subsidiaries

Director of the Company

Entities controlled by a director
of a holding company

47. EREA TR Z REHRE)

(0 RBEEHR FEEREREALE

LUREREER

2018 2017
—E2-NF T tF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEBT HEH T
— M 7 (27.8) (14.9)
=g/l 525.8 379.6
AN H] (30.4) 9.0
ZITJj\ &%T%;;ﬁi (246.4) (253.8)
/N T - (0.9)

— [HI ¥ JBE 2 ) 2 55 P 1l
2B (1.4) (2.6)
219.8 116.4

The above amounts are included in the consolidated

FAt R TILA R 5 T AR AR 2 &7

statement of financial position of the Group in the B IR UL R AN -
following ways:
2018 2017
A —ER— LA
Notes HK$ Million HK$ Million
S fg BEER A E#HTT
Term loans, trade receivables, HIE - L
prepayments and other B 5 #KIH ~ TR
receivables e FL A R AT T 1.3 0.3
Amounts due from associates k= /NN /¢ (i) 533.0 503.3
Amounts due from joint ventures &3 &l KK (ii) 9.8 9.1
Trade payables, other payables — FEfT'E 5 3k IH - HAth
and accruals JRE A KT 5 JRE 3 I (2.6) (3.6)
Amount due to a holding company K — HI# /A 7 30E (ii) (27.8) (14.9)
Amounts due to associates KRB ) FOH (i) (7.4) (7.4)
Amounts due to joint ventures VGEx VAR ¢ (i) (40.1) (0.1)
Notes/papers payable JREA S0 (246.4) (370.3)
219.8 116.4
Notes: SR

(i)

(i)

As at 31st December, 2018, the amounts due from (to)
associates are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable
on demand, except for (i) an unsecured short-term loan to
an associate of HK$54.4 million, which bears interest at
7.65% per annum for the first month and 4.6% per annum
thereafter and is due for repayment on 30th April, 2019; (ii)
an unsecured short-term loan to an associate of HK$40.0
million, which bears interest at 3% above HIBOR per annum
and is due for repayment on 30th October, 2019; and (iii)
an unsecured short-term loan to an associate of HK$71.9
million, which bears interest at 3.8% per annum and is due
for repayment on 21st June, 2019.

As at 31st December, 2018, the amounts due from (to) joint
ventures and a holding company are unsecured, non-interest
bearing and repayable on demand.

ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED
BatE (FEE)FRAIA

(i) REF—NAFT+_HA=1+—H  Z%EX
B (R B/ K V8 Ay SIS~ H 8 &
U BEOR N AE R - M (i) 32 T — B
) P B8 FE 4 ) B 3K 5 4.4 B O 5
55— 18 H 1% 7.65% M 4 Al R 51 B R K%
4.6% W) 4R R+ S JE R =& — JUAE
PUH =+ H R )R — MBS R
) 4EE 1K 1 4 1) BE 3R 40.0 [ S T > R
T 8RAT IR 2E 4R BN 3 % A 4E Al 5B K ZH
AR —JUEFH = AR 5 Rz
F— I ) A R A B K7 1.9
BT > 153.8% MR K5 E R ZE
RN H = — BERR o
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

47. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
(CONT’D)

(d) During the year, loans of HK$250.1 million (2017:

(e)

®

(®

HK$81.0 million) were advanced to associates and
HK$118.9 million (2017: HK$44.0 million) were
repaid by associates.

During the year, a non-interest bearing loan of
HK$40.0 million (2017: Nil) was advanced from a
joint venture.

During the year, HK$64.6 million (2017: Nil) was
paid to an associate for subscription of the unlisted
redeemable preferred shares issued by it.

During the year, sale proceeds of HK$119.8 million
(2017: Nil) was received from an associate for
disposal of another associate to it.

HE_%

—NE+ZA=+—HILHEE

47. EREA TR Z RERE)

(d)

(e)

®

(g

R BB A B B S 250.1
HEET (o FE b4 81.00 # ik
Jo) KR E A FEEEKT118.9H &
WL (ZE—LF : 44.08 EHIT) ©

FEN - B HEE S A ERS40.0
HEET(CE—LE  MZeEa
R B HBE AR S e4.6H
I (T F— A - ) E L R %
B 2 W B AT 2 JF L i el B [ S
Ji o

AER S B — MR A AR 119.8
A EEIT(CF L4 - ) EIG
ARIANE 5 1) et B 5 — Tl B A
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY

Non-current assets

Intangible assets

Investments in subsidiaries
Amounts due from subsidiaries

Current assets

Trade receivables, prepayments and
other receivables

Amounts due from subsidiaries

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities
Trade payables,
other payables and accruals
Tax payable
Amount due to a holding company
Amounts due to subsidiaries

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

The Company’s statement of financial position was
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 25th March, 2019 and is signed on its behalf

by:

Arthur George Dew
WEE
Director

HE

wE_F—/F+_A=+—HILFEZ

48. AR TR ZBBRRE

2018 2017
—E-N\F e S e
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBTT BT
ERBEE
T 1.5 1.5
M E S T 2 A 2,284.5 1,951.7
RfF Jog 2 7 R K 10,883.3 11,185.2
13,169.3 13,138.4
REIEE
JENE 7 A ~ TS A
T At JE YA R 0.8 0.7
Rf} J&5 2 7 R K 1,532.1 954.5
B4 KRB &5 EY) 299.2 142.7
1,832.1 1,097.9
REaE
JEATE 7k - HoAth
JREASH SR TR 2 T I 3.3 2.6
JREAS BT 0.7 0.6
R — [RIHE A B 23.3 5.3
R MR 2 ik - 53.4
27.3 61.9
RBEESE 1,804.8 1,036.0
BEERRBERE 14,974.1 14,174.4
R R e
il 4,250.6 4,250.6
fetfhi 10,723.5 9,923.8
RSB 14,974.1 14,174.4

EHAREE

Mark Wong Tai Chun

B\ |

Director

HE
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

49. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

BE_F - N\FH+A=+—HILFE
49. XAT 2z

Accumulated Dividend

profits reserve Total

E-Spiagil IR E et

HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million

A E#TT A #ETT A EH#ETT

At Tst January, 2017 N_F—tHE—-H—H 9,051.1 545.0 9,596.1
Dividend paid EAHBE - (545.0) (545.0)
Interim dividend declared HIRPHIALE (545.0) 545.0 -

Profit and total comprehensive 4/ R R

income attributable to owners  JE{} %5 FI| &

of the Company 4 TH) i A KRR 872.7 - 872.7
At 31st December, e S -

2017 +=H=1+—H 9,378.8 545.0 9,923.8
Dividend paid EATRE - (545.0) (545.0)
Interim dividend declared B IR HBLE (545.0) 545.0 -
Profit and total comprehensive A</ R R

income attributable to owners  JE{ 5 Fl| &

of the Company A TH] AL 4ot SEAE 1,344.7 = 1,344.7
At 31st December, A — )4

2018 +=H=1+—H 10,178.5 545.0 10,723.5
The Company’s reserves available for distribution to W_E—NFE+_H=1+—H > XAF
owners of the Company at 31st December, 2018 are AR B8 T A B RO 2 il UL G 3
represented by accumulated profits and dividend reserve 10,723.5 A ## It (—F —+L4F : 9,923.8
totalling HK$10,723.5 million (2017: HK$9,923.8 million). HEHTT) B9 B B R RS R 251 -

A ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED
BawE (FEE)FRAIA
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

50. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Details of non wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group
that have material non-controlling interests

The consolidated profit or loss allocated to non-controlling
interests during the year and the accumulated non-
controlling interests in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31st December, 2018 are as
follows:

Profit allocated to
non-controlling interests

BE_F - /FH_A=1t—HILFE
50. RMTBAT2RE

FEEEREAFEZRESNFEZENE
DNEWFHIE

N > BT IR IO a2 A5 S 4R AR SR
— U = B 2 A IR
WRRNAFHZ R ERER T

Accumulated
non-controlling interests

DEFFERER ZER REtEERES

2018 2017 2018 2017

—E-NEg XL ZFB-NF F—LF

HK$ Million  HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million  HK$ Million

HEAER XYoo BEAET AT

SHK and its subsidiaries TR S LR 932.8 1,276.4 11,154.9 12,270.2

Other subsidiaries having HAthgEAH

non-controlling e R 45

interests Z Mg 7 - = 7.4 7.4

932.8 1,276.4 11,162.3 12,277.6

Summarised consolidated financial information of SHK is
set out below.

Current assets S

Non-current assets FE R E G

Current liabilities T & &

Non-current liabilities FELE) B R

Dividend distribution to S UR B T JE R
non-controlling interests i £

Revenue WA

Profit for the year AR FE Ui

Other comprehensive (expenses) AR B H A 4 TH]
income for the year (%) s

AR ARG B BRI ST -

2018 2017
—E-N\F e G
HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BEBT X Yiow
21,848.7 20,516.2
18,835.4 16,906.0
(8,652.8) (5,189.8)
(9,186.2) (8,833.9)
417.9 208.4
4,175.7 3,795.6
1,610.6 2,313.9
(447.3) 472.6
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

51. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at
31st December, 2018 which have their principal place of

BE_F—/F+_A=t—HILFE

operations in Hong Kong are set out below: BHIF -

Proportion of ownership interest

51. TEMBELARAER

W_FE—NFE+ZA=+—H AREE
ZEEH RAE AL s 2 E B MG 2~ 7] &

Paid up BERRER LA
issued Held by
ordinary the Company/
share capital subsidiaries Attributable
Subsidiaries BRERT KRR/ to the Group Principal activity
WELAR EERA WEARRE FEEES IREH
2018 2017 2018 2017
—B-NE ZZtF ZB-NF ZE
HKS$ % % % %
T
Admiralty Eight Limited 1 100 100 61 57  Property holding
EREEL/ES
Admiralty Eleven Limited 1 100 100 61 57  Property holding
ERREET/E S
Alaston Development Limited US$1 100 100 100 100  Property holding
(BT EREE/ES
Allied Properties Investments US$1 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
(1) Company Limited (B EVa-ELd)
Allied Real Estate 2 100 100 100 100 Real estate agency
Agency Limited Ho AR

e RORA R A )

AP Administration Limited 2 100 100 100 100  Provision of management
and consultancy
services

AR T B P R

AP Corporate Services Limited 2 100 100 100 100  Provision of
corporate services

iale

AP Development Limited 2 100* 100* 100 100 Investment holding

B s A IR A IR ] Eig e

AP Diamond Limited US$1 100 100 100 100  Property holding and

(B investment holding
RREIEE e <eedils

Annual Report 2018
—E AR

323



324
for the year ended 31st December, 2018

51. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

BE_F - N\F+A=+—HILFE
51. TEMBEATER(H)

(CONT’D)
Proportion of ownership interest
Paid up BRRER LA
issued Held by
ordinary the Company/
share capital subsidiaries Attributable
Subsidiaries BRERT xRF,/ to the Group Principal activity
WEAR EERA MEAREE FEEES FREH
2018 2017 2018 2017
—B-0\F ZZtF ZB-NF T tF
HK$ % % % %
T
AP Emerald Limited US$1 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
S SRR
AP Finance Limited 2 100 100 100 100  Money lending
fa&
AP Property Management 2 100 100 100 100  Building management
Limited SRt
Best Melody Development 5,000 100 100 100 100  Property holding
Limited RECR/ES
FR B RARA
Conrad Security Limited 1 100 100 100 100 Security and guarding
BRREARAT services
R Bt it
First Asian Holdings Limited 2 100 100 36 33 Investment holding
SR — SR A R A B
Florich Development Limited 10,000 100 100 100 100  Investment holding
RERRARAT HELER
Front Sail Limited 5,000 100 100 100 100  Property holding
A R A EREEL/ES
Gilmore Limited 2 100 100 100 100  Property holding
RRERT/E S
Hillcrest Development Limited 20 100 100 100 100  Property holding
ERRERTIE S
Hi-Link Limited 200 100 100 100 100  Investment holding
HELER
Hong Kong Dementia US$1 100 100 100 100 Provision of elderly
Services Limited (B care services
i E R B A R A A TR M
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51. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
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BE_F—/F+_A=t—HILFE

51. TEMBEQREFR (&)

(CONT’D)
Proportion of ownership interest
Paid up BRRER LA
issued Held by
ordinary the Company/
share capital subsidiaries Attributable
Subsidiaries BRERT N to the Group Principal activity
HEAR BB WEAREE AEEERS TEEK
2018 2017 2018 2017
“E-N§ “F-LF ZB-NF —FF
HK$ % % % %
iy
Integrated Custodian Limited 2 100 100 100 100  Property holding
EEZLYES
Itso Limited 2 100 100 61 57  Investment holding,
financial services and
securities trading
BUEFE 2 MR &
W EE
Jaffe Development Limited US$1 100 100 100 100  Property holding
E5 FHME
Kalix Investment Limited 2 100 100 100 100  Property holding
EEZLYES
LYNX Technology Limited 1,000,000 100 100 100 100  Medical equipment and
BRERHARAH supplies distribution
T ML RE i 7 8
Mainford Investment Limited 1 100 100 100 100  Property holding
SRR A A A %
Mightyton Limited 10,000 100 100 100 100  Property holding
FHmE
Oakfame Investment Limited 2 100 100 61 57  Investment holding
BFEREHRA A Eraeide
Ontone Limited 2 100 100 100 100  Hotel operations and
ZEHEH R property holding
T R
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51. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

51. TEMBEQREFR (&)

(CONT’D)
Proportion of ownership interest
Paid up BRRER LA
issued Held by
ordinary the Company/
share capital subsidiaries Attributable
Subsidiaries BRERT xRF,/ to the Group Principal activity
WEAR EERA WEARRE FEEES FREH
2018 2017 2018 2017
—B-0\F ZZtF ZB-NF T tF
HK$ % % % %
T
Plentiwind Limited 15,000,002 100 100 61 57  Investment holding
Polyking Services Limited 2 100 100 100 100  Building maintenance
HREIHS A IR ] and cleaning services
T IRE RIE RIS
Protech Property 5,000 100 100 100 100  Building management
Management Limited and security
RAFYEE AR A guarding services
L EReiVE T
Rodril Investments Limited 1 100 100 61 57  Investment holding
San Pack Properties Limited 10 100 100 100 100  Property holding
I B RA R AT EXE/ES
Scienter Investments Limited 20 100 100 61 57  Investment holding
and provision of loan
finance
PR RAR SRR E
Senior Care Elderly Limited US$1 100 100 100 100  Provision of elderly
17T care services
R MR
Senior Care Limited 1,000 100 100 100 100  Provision of elderly
EHEERARA R care services
R s
Senior Care Nursing Home 1,000 100 100 100 100  Provision of elderly care
Limited services
EHELHRAT R AEE TS
SHK Bullion Company Limited 10,000 100 100 61 57  Investment holding
SHK Commaodities Limited 10,000 100 100 61 57 Investment portfolio
gl e
SHK Finance Limited 150,000,000 100 100 36 33 Money lending

BB A 5 A7 PR A ]

fi 8
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51. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
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BE_F—/F+_A=t—HILFE

51. TEMBEQREFR (&)

(CONT’D)
Proportion of ownership interest
Paid up BRRER LA
issued Held by
ordinary the Company/
share capital subsidiaries Attributable
Subsidiaries BRERT N to the Group Principal activity
WELAR EERA WEARRE FEEES FREH
2018 2017 2018 2017
—B-0\F ZZtF ZB-NF ZEZtF
HK$ % % % %
BT
SHK International Limited 10,000 100 100 61 57  Investment holding
B
SHK Investment Services 1,000,000 100 100 61 57  Asset holding
Limited BEBE
SHK Pearl River Delta Issued share 100 100 61 57  Provision of loan finance
Investment Company capital: RUERME
Limited ERTHRA -
HBETRIL = f B 100,000,000
HRRAF Paid up share
capital:
BERE -
75,000,000.5
SHK Securities Limited 20 100 100 61 57  Asset holding
RS
Sierra Joy Limited 2 100 100 100 100  Property holding
EREEE/ES
Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited**  8,731,004,462 61 57 61 57  Investment holding
FUBHEA PR/ w] BERE
Sun Hung Kai Credit Limited 800,000,000 100 100 57 53 Mortgage financing
H (5 B R 7] (2017: R
450,000,000
(CF
450,000,000)
Sun Hung Kai Fintech Capital 3,000,000 100 100 61 57  Investment holding
Limited (formerly known as REHER
SHK Insurance Consultants
Limited)
(A T 2 O B e
HIRAF)
Sun Hung Kai Securities 60,000 100 100 61 57 Investment holding
(Overseas) Limited REHE
HBAEE T (85 AR AT
A ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.) LIMITED Annual Report 2018

= F - A E R



328

for the year ended 31st December, 2018

51. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

A

BE_F - N\F+A=+—HILFE
51. EEMBEATERN(H)

(CONT’D)
Proportion of ownership interest
Paid up BRRER LA
issued Held by
ordinary the Company/
share capital subsidiaries Attributable
Subsidiaries BRERT xRF,/ to the Group Principal activity
WEAR EERA WEARRE FEEES FREH
2018 2017 2018 2017
—B-0\F ZZtF ZB-NF T tF
HK$ % % % %
T
Sun Hung Kai Strategic 2 100 100 61 57  Investment holding,
Capital Limited securities trading and
BRI EAGRAR financial services
BV - AR
SR
Sun Hung Kai Structured 137,500,000 100 100 61 57  Securities trading and
Finance Limited provision of loan
HBEAREEARA finance B
wigr R MR R
Sun Hung Kai Venture 2 100 100 61 57  Investment holding
Capital Limited REHR
Texgulf Limited 20 100 100 61 57 Property holding
ERER/ES
Tung Wo Investment 10,000 100 100 61 57  Investment holding
Company, Limited REHR
RIABEARA R
United Asia Finance Limited  1,502,218,417.8 58 58 36 33 Consumer financing
S A A R AR HEEM
Universal Way Limited 2 100 100 100 100  Investment holding
R
Wah Cheong Development 25,100,000 100 100 61 57  Investment holding
Company, Limited REEM
ERREHRA
Wineur Secretaries Limited 2 100 100 61 57  Secretarial services
RIEHE A RA R R
Yee Li Ko Investment Limited 58,330,000 100 100 61 57  Property holding
(BRI BB A EREEL/ES

With the exception of Alaston Development Limited,
Allied Properties Investments (1) Company Limited,
AP Diamond Limited, AP Emerald Limited, Hong Kong
Dementia Services Limited, Jaffe Development Limited and
Senior Care Elderly Limited, which were incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands, all the above subsidiaries were

incorporated in Hong Kong.

ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED
BatE (FEE)FRAIA

FrAlaston Development Limited ~ Allied
Properties Investments (1) Company
Limited > AP Diamond Limited > AP
Emerald Limited ~ & & 4R RIE IR B
HAIRAT - Jaffe Development Limited &
Senior Care Elderly Limited i & i % #f
EREMSALAN > LB R A Y A RIS TE R
HERE ML o
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51. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(CONT’D)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st
December, 2018 which were incorporated and have their
principal place of operations outside Hong Kong are set

329

BE_F - N\FH+A=+—HILFE
51. ZEMBATREN(F)

BoFE - NFEF A=+ —H  ARFETE
s LA st 3B M A7 R H T S i 1
M TR TE A U3 P b i 2 2 B JBg 2 W) R

out below: mF
Place of Paid up issued Proportion of ownership interest
incorporation/ ordinary share LY L vk
operation capital Held by the Attributable
Subsidiaries e/ BRERT  Company/subsidiaries to the Group Principal activity
HELE R EERE  A0E/HELARE ARG TEER
2018 2017 2018 2017
Z8-\E CEtE ZR-NE CRLF
% % % %
Abbey Dale Ventures Limited British Virgin Islands Usst 100 100 61 57 Investment holding
KL 1 i
Allied Properties China Limited Cayman Islands US$1,000 100¢ 100¢ 100 100 Investment holding
e 1,000%7C e
Allied Properties Cayman Islands US$1,000 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
Investmens (3) Limited AR R 1,000%7E BEtR
Allied Properties Resources Limited ~ British Virgg;n Islands uss1 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
ERELHS X1 s
Boneast Assets Limited British Virgin lslands Usst 100 100 61 57 Investment holding
EHETHG 1 e
Bronwood Holdings Limited Biish Virgggn Islands usst 100 100 b1 57 Investment holding
ERRLHS 1% Bt
Cautious Base Limited British Virgin Islands HK$10,001 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
AR 10,0017% BEtR
Champstar Investments Limited British Virgin Islands USs1 100 100 61 57 Investment holding,
ﬁ%ﬁﬂgﬁ% 1% securities trading and
financial services
BEsm - BEEER
SR
Dagenham Investments Limited British Virgggn Islands Uss1 100 100 61 57 Investment holding
FRELRS %% BRER
Gilbrook Holdings Limited Briish Virgn Islands usst 100 100 100 100 Pr(gerty holding
ERELHS 1% RIS
Kenworld Corporation Refublic of Liberia Uss1 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
L RESLAE 1% BRER
A ALLIED PROPERTIES (1K) LIMITED Al Repens 2018
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

51. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

BE_F—/F+_A=t—HILFE

51. TEMBEQRESR (&)

(CONT’D)
Place of Paid up issued Proportion of ownership interest
incorporation/ ordinary share L] L il
operation capital Held by the Attributable
Subsidiaries e/ BRERT  Company/subsidiaries to the Group Principal activity
(i), P 3 i EERE  A0E/KELERE ARG IERR
2018 2017 2018 2017
St S
% % % %
Sun Hun§ Kai Global Opportunities  Cayman Islands Investment fund
Fund (formerly known as KIMA Pan R85
Asia Offshore Fund)
(FITKIMA Pan Asia Offshore Fund)
— Management shares 1,000 USS1shares 100 100 61 57
%ﬂﬁé 1,000RE 170
- Participating shares 7,392.805 100 100 61 57
é}ﬁﬁiﬁé) US$0.001shares
739806 0. 001 C
- Class B6 participating shares 184,612.1644 100 100 61 57
BOSIHI 25Ut (2017: 182,255.1444)
US$0.001shares
182,612.1644/i%
(CF—t%
182,255.1444%)
0,001 % C
- Class B3 participating shares 7,581.95 100 100 61 57
B3I 2k US$0.001 shares
756195
BR0.001 %
Lakewood Development Corporation  United States of US$1,000 100 100 100 100 Property holding
America 1,000%7C ﬁg i
LHY Limited British Virgin Islands Us$t 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
EREAHE 1% BRER
Paignton Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands USst 100 100 61 57 Investment holding
EBEAHE 1% BRER
Razorway Limited British Virgin Islands Us$t 100 100 61 57 Investment holding
EREAHE 1% BRER
Rossworth Global Limited British Virgin Islands Us$t 100 100 61 57 Investment holding
EREAHE 1% bt
Senior Care Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands USst 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
EREAHE 1% bl
Shipshape Investments Limited British Virgin Islands USst 100 100 61 57 Investment holding
EBEAHE 1% BRER
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BE_F—/F+_A=t—HILFE

51. TEMBEARER (&)

(CONT’D)
Place of Paid up issued Proportion of ownership interest
incorporation/ ordinary share FRRRE LA
operation capital Held by the Attributable
Subsidiaries e/ BRERT  Company/subsidiaries to the Group Principal activity
HELR RHAE EERE  A0E/KELERE KRB IERR
2018 2017 2018 2017
S LS
% % % %
SHK Asian Opportunities Holdings ~ Cayman Islands US$10,000 95 95 58 54 Investment holding
Limited HEHE 10,0007 BB
SHK Asset Management Holding British Virgin Islands US$3,400,001 100 100 61 57 Investment holding
Limited FRRARE 3,400,001 % 7C gtk
Sun Hung Kai (China) Investment People’s Republic of RMB50,000,000 100 100 61 57 Corporate marketing
Management Company Limited China RH50,0000007C and investment
A (B R EERARAR iEING Sl consultancy
TSk B S B
Sun Hung Kai (ECP) Limited British Virgin Islands Us$t 100 100 61 57 Financing
ERRAHE 1% HE
Sun Hung Kai & Co. (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands USst 100 100 61 57 Financing
ERELHE 11 HE
Sun Hung Kai & Co. (CP) Limited British Virgin Islands Us$t 100 100 61 57 Investment holding
EREAHE 1% b
Sun Hung Kai Capital Limited British Virgin Islands USst 100 100 61 57 Investment holding
EREAHE X1 e
Swan Islands Limited British Virgin lslands US$$503,000,001 100 100 61 57 Investment holding
FERARE 503,000,001 % e
Swanwick Global Limited British Virgin Islands USst 100 100 61 57 Investment holding
EREAHE 1% B
Treasure Rider Limited Cayman Islands US$19,800 92 9 57 53 Investment holding
e R 19,800% 7% BEtR
UAF Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands Us$t 100 100 61 57 Investment holding
EREAHE X1 b
Zeal Goal Interational Limited British Virgin Islands USst 100 100 61 57 Investment holding
ERRAHS 1% bl
A\ LU PROPERTIES (i) LivITED Annual Report 2018
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51. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

BE_F—/F+_A=t—HILFE

51. TEMBEQRESR (&)

(CONT’D)
Place of Paid up issued Proportion of ownership interest
incorporation/ ordinary share L] 1 3wl
operation capital Held by the Attributable
Subsidiaries e/ BRERT  Company/subsidiaries to the Group Principal activity
HEAT ST EERE  ADF/KEATRE AEERE IERR
2018 2017 2018 2017
80N Tt CR-NF CEtF
% % % %
VI A B B People’s Republicof ~ RMB200,000,000 70 70 2% 23 Money lending
HRAA China 200,000,000 (538
United Asia Finance i \ REEHIE
(ShanghaiPudong) Limited @
KIERBRTBEVEEFARAT  People’s Republic of US$50,000,000 100 100 36 33 Money lending
United Asia Finance China 50,000,000%7¢ (613
(Dalian F.7.2) Limited © i A RAIE
KT A RAR People’s Republic of RMBI,000,000 100 100 36 33 Financial consultancy
United Asia Consultancy China 1,000,000 BB
(Dalian) Limited © SN
KB MR SARAR People’s Republicof ~ HK$130,000,000 100 100 36 33 Money lending
United Asia Finance (Tianjin) Limited ®  China 130,000,008 ¢ [
i AR AR
s MR RA A Peaple’s Republicof ~ RMB200,000,000 80 80 9 27 Money lending
United Asia Finance (Beijing) Limited @ China ARH200,000,0007 (%
(S INC R
AV MRS A RAR People’s Republicof ~ HK$230,000,000 100 100 36 33 Money lending
United Asia Finance China 230,000,000% ¢ (338
(Chengdu) Limited SN
WA M ARG SHAERAR  People's Republic of RMB1,000,000 100 100 36 33 Financial consultancy
United Asia Financial Consultancy China ABH1,000,0007 BT RH
(Chengdu) Limited © GEIN
N~ SR (EIHRAF  People’s Republic of RMB50,000,000 100 100 36 33 Financial consultancy
First Asian Financial Consuliancy China ARH50,0000007C B
(Shenzhen) Limited ® EING
SRR A (L A RAT People’s Republic of RMBI,000,000 70 70 2% 23 Financial consultancy
United Asia Consultancy China 1,000,000 BB
(Shanghai Limited © i \ R
T L (I A TR A People’s Republic of RMB25,000,000 100 100 36 33 Financial consultancy
UA Financial Consultancy China B 25,000,000 BT RH

(Shenzhen) Limited ®

i\ RAAIE
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B}E_Z— ) FET_H=1—HILERE

51. TEMBEAREFR (F)

(CONT’D)
Place of Paid up issued Proportion of ownership interest
incorporation/ ordinary share L] 1 Swdid]
operation capital Held by the Attributable
Subsidiaries e/ BRERT  Company/subsidiaries to the Group Principal activity
il P b3S EERE  A0F/KELARE AREEL IEEH
2018 2017 2018 2017
ZE-NF CE-tE ZE-NF CFtR
% % % %
RETR AR People’s Republicof ~ RMB300,000,000 100 100 36 33 Money lending
United Asia Finance (Wuhan) Limited ® ~ China 300,000,007 (&
i\ RAAIE
R E B A RAA People’s Republic of RMB1,000,000 100 100 36 33 Financial consultancy
United Asia Financial Consultancy China AR1,000,00070 g
(Wuhan) Limited © T ARAHE
HRARER B MR People’s Republicof ~ RMB300,000,000 100 100 36 33 Money lending
HRAR China 300,000,000 (338
United Asia Finance i \ LA E
(Qingdao) Limite ®
BRI B AAERAR People’s Republic of RMB1,000,000 100 100 36 33 Financial consultancy
United Asia Financial Consultancy China 1,000,000 BT
(Qingdao) Limited @ A RAAIE
TR MR AR A People’s Republicof ~ RMB200,000,000 100 100 36 33 Money lending
United Asia Finance China R #200,000,0007T [f&
(Nanning) Limited ® FE AR
R R A TR A People's Republic of RMB1,000,000 100 100 36 33 Financial consultancy
United Asia Finance Investment China 1,000,000 BB
Management (Nanning) Limited © 13 AR AL f1E
AR VEEHAMAR  People's Republicof  RMB200,000,000 100 100 36 33 Moneylending
United Asia Finance (Harbin) Limited®  China AE#00,000,0007C [
i\ RAAIE
T R e UG People's Republic of RMB1,000,000 100 100 36 33 Financial consultancy
United Asia Financial Consultancy China AR1,000,0007 BRI
(Harbin) Limited © FE AR
R LB VR RAR People’s Republic of US$20,000,000 100 100 36 33 Moneylending
United Asia Finance China 20,000,000£ ¢ (338
(Chongging) Limited ® (NS
BRGNS AAERAR People’s Republic of RMB1,000,000 100 100 36 33 Financial consultancy
United Asia Financial Consultancy China 1,000,000 R
(Chongging) Limited © A RAAIE
BT LN e NG People’s Republicof ~ RMBG00,000,000 100 100 36 33 Money lending
United Asia Finance China R #600,000,0007C [f&
(Shenzhen) Limited ® i \REEHE
A ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED Annual Report 2018
EHE(FEEB)EFRL2A
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51. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 51. S EHBATER (&)

(CONT’D)
Place of Paid up issued Proportion of ownership interest
incorporation/ ordinary share L] L il
operation capital Held by the Attributable
Subsidiaries e/ BRERT  Company/subsidiaries to the Group Principal activity
HRAT ST EERE  A0F/KELARE AEERE IERR
2018 2017 2018 2017
80N Tt CR-NF CEtF
% % % %
ZHATR I EETARA Peaple’s Republic of HK$350,000,000 100 100 36 33 Money lending
United Asia Finance China 350,000,000% &
(Yunnan) Limited ® i A\ RALAE
EHTRMERESAAARAT  People’s Republic of RMB1,000,000 100 100 3 33 Financial consultancy
UA Financial Consultancy China AEH1,000,0007C HE
(Yunnan) Limited © E NG
TBEHE B () B R People's Republic of RMBS,000,000 100 100 36 33 Financial consultancy
Xinliancai Consultancy China 5,000,000 BB
(Shenzhen) Limited © i\ RAAIE
TR (KR BB g A2 People’s Republic of RMB50,000,000 100 100 61 57 Asset management
HRAA China AR 850,000,000 KEHl
Sun Hung Kai (Tianjin) Equity Fund i AR IR
Management Company Limited ®
TEEBGER (RB ARAA People’s Republicof ~ RMB300,000,000 100 100 36 33 Loan guarantee
Sun Hung Kai Financing Guarantee ~ China ARH300,000,0007 R
(Shenyang) Limited ® (S INC R
NGB A RAT People’s Republic of RMB1,000,000 100 100 36 33 Financial consultancy
United Asia Financial Consultancy China 1,000,000 BB
(Fuzhou) Limited @ E N
TR TR S B VB People's Republicof ~ RMB200,000,000 100 100 36 33 Money lending
HRAH China 200,000,000 (358
United Asia Finance HE YN
(Fuzhou) Limited ®
PR RS ARAR People’s Republicof ~ RMB300,000,000 100 100 36 33 Money lending
(formerly known as HRTHETE  China EH300,000,0007 [
SRR NEETARAA) N
United Asia Finance (JiNan)Limited ©
IR R SHAARAR  People's Republic of RMB1,000,000 100 100 36 33 Financial consultancy
Shenyang UAF Excellent Information ~~ China 1,000,000 BB AR

Consulting Limited ©

i A RALAIE
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51. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(CONT’D)

BE_F - N\FH+A=+—HILFE
51. ZEMBATREN(F)

Place of Paid up issued Proportion of ownership interest
incorporation/ ordinary share L] 1wl
operation capital Held by the Attributable
Subsidiaries AL/ BRERT  Company/subsidiaries to the Group Principal activity
HEAT FHfES ZERE  ALT/WELARRE ARERE L3
2018 2017 2018 2017
ZB-\fF CZtE ZB-NF TR
% % % %
T L T T People’s Republic of ~ RMB320,000,000 100 100 36 33 Moneylending
INEERRAR China 320,000,000 (A&
United Asia Finance (Shenhe District 1 A A1
Shenyang) Limited
BRI R (R People’s Republic of RMB20,000,000 100 100 36 33 Financial consultancy
HIR (formerly known as China 820,000,007 g i
RIEER MR SR A RAR) A RAAIE
Yirongzhan Fintech
(Shenzhen) Limited ©
KEEBHTHESHAARAT  People’s Republic of - 100 100 36 33 Financial consultancy
United Asia Financial Consultancy China R
(Tianjin) Limited P A RAAIE
*  These shareholdings represent the proportion of ownership interest o LS I RORE R AS O W) B A A R s 2 HE

held directly by the Company.

**  The subsidiary is listed in Hong Kong and further details about it are
available in its published accounts.

(@  These companies are sino-foreign equity joint ventures.
(b)  These companies are wholly-foreign owned enterprises.

(c)  These companies are wholly-domestic owned enterprises.

The names of People’s Republic of China incorporated
companies above are English translations.

The above tables list the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

Save as disclosed in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements, none of the other subsidiaries had issued any
debt securities at the end of the year.

1 -

o WM A R A BT > A B 4 R 2
MREE RO LA 2 B H A -

@@  ZEAFRTPIEERYE -

(b) EHFAT RSB E AR -

(0  ZEATFRAMBERYE -

gt e e N R AR S 2 R 44 A 4
PR

ERPTIN AT E R A AR
O > SO AR S I B Ay
AR MBS R o SEHER B AR
J& A RIEES G ERIRINITR -

SRARG B GR NG 3 83 B 41 > LA B
O3 RS AT AR H A (B 7B 5 -
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BE-Z— ) \HFt+_A=+—HI4EE
52. FEBENTER

BoFE - NEF A= HZALEE
TR A A ERANT

for the year ended 31st December, 2018

52. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES

Particulars of the Group’s principal associates at 31st
December, 2018 are set out below:

Place of Proportion of ownership interest and voting rights
incorporation/ REREERREEZLA
operation Held by Attributable
Associates Ra A subsidiaries to the Group Principal activity
BERT 3 R WELFRE AREER IRER
2018 2017 2018 2017
“E-0NF ZEtF AR ZEAR
% % % %
APAC Resources Limited* Hong Kong 36 34 36 34 Investment holding
BRERAR A &k B
Sun Hung Kai Financial Group  British Virgin Islands/ 30 30 18 17 Wealth management and
Limited Hong Kong brokerage business
HEEEERGRAR KRB LRE/ B frE AT
Tian An China Investments Hong Kong 49 49 49 49 Property development, property
Company Limited* y investment and property
REA BB EARAA management
WRBRE - PEBER
WxER
* These associates are listed in Hong Kong and further details are & RSN EITERE BT ABMZE AR ZIE

available in their published accounts.

The above table lists the associates of the Group which,
in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the
results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the
net assets of the Group. To give details of other associates
would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars
of excessive length.

— R LA G 2 FR E 7 -

ERPT IV F]E R R A AR
R > SO AR S I Ry
AR R] o EHGR ] H AR
BAFRRN - gL ERRRIE -
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for the year ended 31st December, 2018

53. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL JOINT VENTURE

Particulars of the Group’s principal joint venture at 31st
December, 2018 are set out below:

337
wE-Z—NFE+-H=+—HIHFE
53. TESEQAAER

HoFE - NEF AT HZALEE
HEBAFAERT

Place of Proportion of ownership interest and voting rights
incorporation/ FRERERARREZILA
Form of husiness - operation Held by Attributable
Joint venture structure AL/ subsidiary to the Group Principal activity
AELT FERREA RN WELARE AEEEL TERE
2018 2017 2018 2017
“B-0NE 0 ZRtFE ZB-NE ZRAR
% % % %
Allied Kajima Limited Incorporated ~ Hong Kong 50 50 50 50  Property and investment
AL Fik holding
W RACE

The above table lists the joint venture of the Group which,
in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the
results for the year or formed a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group. To give details of other joint
ventures would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

ERIBNA R E SRR R AR R A
HRHE > SO A SR [ By

AL GEAT o EHGE LI A S
BATFIRN - gL ERRRIIRE -
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Financial year ended 31st December,

BE+-A=t-BLUHEE

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
“ER-NE ZF A 2R ZF-1F ZBE-N\F
HK$ Million  HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million
HEET AEET AEBT HE T BEBR
Results S
Revenue* 9N 5,645.0 5,198.0 3,974.6 4,374.3 4,915.4
Profit for the year ZRAF Y F 3,075.3 6,104.2 5,099.8 5,267.5 3,276.2
Attributable to: JEAG T
Owners of the Company AR AR 2,023.8 41225 4,352.9 3,991.1 2,343.4
Non-controlling interests R 4 1,051.5 1,981.7 746.9 1,276.4 932.8
3,075.3 6,104.2 5,099.8 5,267.5 3,276.2
Basic earnings per share T RAEAZ A 29.75 60.52 63.88 58.59 34.40
HK centsitsfill HK cents ¥l HK cents #{ll HK cents #{ill HK cents &1
At 31st December,
R+=A=t+-H
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
“R-NE S ZF-HFE 2R ZF-tF ZBE-N\F
HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million
A& HEBT H T H WG BEEBR
Assets and liabilities BEREE
Total assets B 49,977.0 50,817.3 54,351.2 62,066.2 67,782.9
Total liabilities BB (15,187.8) (11,510.5) (11,875.6) (14,771.9) (19,902.1)
Total equity M4 34,789.2 39,306.8 42,475.6 47,2943 47,880.8
Non-controlling interests JerE i 3 (10,500.0) (11,629.3) (11,492.6) (12,275.1) (11,143.1)
Equity attributable to AN AR
owners of the Company JE At 22 24,289.2 27,677.5 30,983.0 35,019.2 36,737.7
& Included revenue from both continuing and discontinued operations. AR B R B AR RS R A -
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Particulars of major properties held by the subsidiaries and joint
ventures of the Group at 31st December, 2018 are as set out

S 2 6 B 26 ) B B L B —
T = H TR R AT

below:
Effective
Gross floor % held by

Lease area (S.M.) the Group Stage of
Name/location expiry Type EEMmE REE completion
B #m 5 ¥5l (FHK) BalA% 55 A P BR
Hong Kong

&

Park Place 2056+ R 3,475 100.00 Existing
7 Tai Tam Reservoir Road BAYE
Hong Kong
HERI5E
i
KIFKGEET7 9%
Allied Cargo Centre 2047 G 46,594 100.00 Existing
150-164 Texaco Road HAEYE
Tsuen Wan, New Territories
W5 B o
A
L 150 — 16458
60 Plantation Road 2066 R 639 100.00 Existing
The Peak, Hong Kong BAYE
A LLTH
TR 605%
Orchid Court 2049 R 791 100.00 Existing
38 Tung On Street ERERYES
Mongkok, Kowloon C 201 100.00 Existing
T ] RERYES
JUBERE A
L3859
The Redhill Peninsula 2056+ R 596 100.00 Existing
18 Pak Pat Shan Road BAY
Tai Tam, Hong Kong CP AT 100.00 Existing
AR B (Phase IV)
fRi YN HAY)E
FIE LA 185E (5 U i)
China Online Centre 2026+ C 15,680 100.00 Existing
333 Lockhart Road BAYE

Wanchai, Hong Kong
R B A A L

B BT

% e 433358

A ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED
BawE (FEE)FRAIA
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Effective
Gross floor % held by
Lease area (S.M.) the Group Stage of
Name/location expiry Type EBEMmME AEE completion
8 HE 49 5 1 5 (P FK) BHEE% 5T AP B
Hong Kong (Cont’d)
&8 ()
St. George Apartments 2081 R 10,287 100.00 Existing
No. 81 Waterloo Road B
Ho Man Tin, Kowloon CP 69### 100.00 Existin
L VRPN ERERYES
JUREfISCH
HITREB15E
Ibis Hong Kong North Point 2083 H 6,825 100.00 Existin
138 Java Road BV ELY/ES
North Point, Hong Kong
HAA B AL TS
LA
EHEIE 13858
No. 239 Jaffe Road and 2027+ P 5,083 50.00* Foundation
Nos. 10-12 Stewart Road works
Wanchai, Hong Kong completed
FHHIT and
23955 ) superstructure
EHHE 101258 works in
progress **
H A T AR
ERLK =
TRRHEAT rp
241 & 243 Jaffe Road 2027+ P 2,149 50.00* Foundation
Wanchai, Hong Kong works
kAT completed
241 & 2435 and
superstructure
works in
progress **
B TR
ORI E#E
TARHEAT
No. 9 Queen’s Road Central 2854 C 1,277 100.00 Existing
Hong Kong TR ELY/ES
i
EVEPN L L
Allied Kajima Building 2047 C 20,452 50.00* Existing
138 Gloucester Road BAYE
Wanchai, Hong Kong
iy PN ]
AT
HEATIE1385E
Novotel Century Hong Kong 2047 H 27,364 50.00* Existing
238 Jaffe Road WA

Wanchai, Hong Kong
B B A
AT
2385

A ALLIED PROPERTIES (H K.) LIMITED
BeEwE(FB)FRAA
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Name/location

B E

Lease

expiry
% F 58

Gross floor
area (S.M.)
Type EEEE
k2| (FT77K)

341

Effective
% held by
the Group Stage of
REH completion
EREE% 5T P ER

Hong Kong (Cont’d)
HE(E)

Tregunter Tower 3
14 Tregunter Path
Hong Kong
HoFIAR PR 253
A
HFAREEAE 1458

Admiralty Centre
18 Harcourt Road
Hong Kong
B

GRS

H 1855

] Residence

60 Johnston Road
Hong Kong
SR

T

HE L HUE 605

Outside Hong Kong
HHBEIN

FM 2100 Road and
Diamond Head Boulevard
Harris County

Texas

United States of America

SE B BN

Cannongate House
62-64 Cannon Street
London, United Kingdom
B fi K

Sofitel Philippine Plaza Manila
Cultural Centre of the
Philippines Complex

Roxas Boulevard

Pasay City

Manila, Philippines

SERES B

A ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED
BawE (FEE)FRAIA

2051

2053+

2054

Freehold
KA FENE

Freehold
/€

2041

R 745

C 2,970¢

R 13,875,254¢

C 1,885

H 73,866

100.00 Existing
BAY=

61.44 Existing
SRR VE S

100.00 Existing
BAYE

100.00 Existing
BAY=

100.00 Existing
SRR VE S

50.00* Existing
BAY=
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Name/location

£/ A

Lease

expiry
#m F H8

Gross floor
area (S.M.)
Type EBEEE
k2| (FT72K)

Effective

% held by
the Group
REE
BHEE%

Stage of
completion

5T AP R

Outside Hong Kong (Cont’d)
BERBHNE)

Shenzhen Tian An Cyber Park
Futian District

Shenzhen

People’s Republic of China
TRYIK 22 B Ik
GIEPNEE I

I

A8 H [&

Tianjin Tian An Cyberpark
Zhangjiawo, Xiging District
Tianjin

People’s Republic of China
KRR BRI
e A RIL AR

K

P R AR

Optics Valley International Plaza
No. 889 Luoyu Road

East Lake High-Tech
Development Zone, Wuhan
People’s Republic of China

e BRI

S PNEE I

BT A

190 T T [ 3 [

HE WG 889 5%

The Shuncheng Office
Wuhua District

Kunming

People’s Republic of China
NEUH A p
HrE \ RIEA B

B

LRl

2052

2060

2043

2046

[ 3,812

| 2,040

C 1,535

C 1,237

35.75

35.75

35.75

35.75

Existing
BAY=

Existing
AW

Existing
BAY=

Existing
BAY
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Name/location

B E

Lease

expiry
% F 58

Type
k2|

Gross floor
area (S.M.)
EEEE
(FHK)

Effective

% held by
the Group
REE
BHEE%

343

Stage of
completion

5T AP B

Outside Hong Kong (Cont’d)
EREHNE)

Block 2 of No. 101 building
Cuibai Road, Chunhuilu Street
Dadukou District

Chongging

People’s Republic of China
e A RILHE

HE

R [

A HifL % 1 78

FRAARE101 55218

Times Centre

No. 160 Zhengyang Road
Chengyang District
Qingdao

People’s Republic of China
AL

e A RILHE

HE

Ik

TEF #1608

No. 43, Beizhan 1st Road
Shenhe District

Shenyang

People’s Republic of China
HEE N\ R AL B

o

{0 [

bt — B 43 %%

Huagiang Plaza

Lixia District

Jinan

People’s Republic of China
T R

e \ R ILANEY

]

BT

A ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED
BawE (FEE)FRAIA

2061

2046

2044

2050

2,978

1,317

2,038

1,958

35.75

35.75

35.75

35.75

Existing
BAY=

Existing
BAY=

Existing
BAY

Existing
BAYEE
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Name/location

£/ A

Lease

expiry
#m F H8

Type
k2|

Gross floor
area (S.M.)
EBEEE
(FHXK)

Effective

% held by
the Group
REE
BHEE%

Stage of
completion

5T AP R

Outside Hong Kong (Cont’d)
BERBHNE)

SFC Sincere Centre

No. 99 Wuyi Road
Yuzhong District
Chongging

People’s Republic of China
SFCH#h {7 0
e \ R ILANEY

£

¥y 1

F—B99%E

Sincere Centre

No. 25 Fuging Road Er Duan
Chenghua District

Chengdu

People’s Republic of China
fibfs L

e A RILHE

AT

S

IR B — B2 5958

Yaopeng Mingzhu

Yunling Road

Creative Industrial Park
Dali City, Yunnan

People’s Republic of China
TG W 2R
HE N RALA
ENGPIT)

Al LR 5

EX N

2050

2051

2046

1,798

1,929

736

35.75

35.75

35.75

Existing
BAY=

Existing
B

Existing
AW

Notes:

Types of properties: R-Residential, C-Commercial, G-Godown, H-Hotel,
I-Industrial, P-Property under construction, CP-Car Parking

Spaces

* Indicates properties held through a joint venture

**  Expected construction completion in 2020

% With option to renew for a further term of 75 years
++  With option to renew for a further term of 99 years

* Saleable area

& Site area

#:  Net internal area

##  Number of car parking spaces

A -

ES VK

R—FEE - C—H¥ - G—&F >H-HEE >

I— L3> P—{E@YE - CP—HA}

fiix Rl e R o VATES R P E

FHIR = F = FERT
A AE A AR
]I LA

S5 AR
HUHE T A5
2 N H R
HA B H
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